

# 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park

Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report

Report to CSR

## Auburn Local Government Area

October 2018



## © artefact

Artefact Heritage ABN 73 144 973 526 Level 4, Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009 Australia

+61 2 9518 8411 office@artefact.net.au

Revision	Date issued	Reviewed by	Approved by	Date approved	Review type	Revision type
1	30 October 2018	Vanessa Edmonds	Vanessa Edmonds	30 October 2018	Quality and compliance	First draft
2	30 October 2018	Will Wang	Will Wang	30 October 2018	Client Review	Second draft
3	30 October	RAPs	RAPs	28 November 2018	RAP review	Third draft
Final	28 November 2018					Final

#### **Document history and status**

Printed:	
Last saved:	28 November 2018
File name:	Achar_18177_Olympic Park_Final_181128
Author:	Ryan Taddeucci
Project manager:	Ryan Taddeucci
Name of organisation:	Artefact Heritage Services Pty Ltd
Name of project:	1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park
Name of document:	1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report
Document version:	Final

© Artefact Heritage Services

This document is and shall remain the property of Artefact Heritage Services. This document may only be used for the purposes for which it was commissioned and in accordance with the Terms of the Engagement for the commission. Unauthorised use of this document in any form whatsoever is prohibited.

Disclaimer: Artefact Heritage Services has completed this document in accordance with the relevant federal, state and local legislation and current industry best practice. The company accepts no liability for any damages or loss incurred as a result of reliance placed upon the document content or for any purpose other than that for which it was intended.

## EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

## Background

Austino Property Group are proposing a residential development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park. The proposed development has been assessed as a State Significant Development, and Secretary's Environmental Assessment Requirements (SEARs) have been issued for the site (SSD\_9403). The requirements for heritage are as follows:

- Prepare a Historical Archaeological Assessment (HAA) detailing the likely impacts and outline the proposed management and mitigation measures to protect and preserve the non-Aboriginal archaeology (Artefact Heritage 2018c)
- Prepare a Heritage Impact Statement (HIS) addressing impacts of the proposed development on any state or local heritage Items in the vicinity (Artefact Heritage 2018b)
- Prepare an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) identifying any cultural heritage values, impacts and mitigation measures.

Artefact Heritage Services Pty Ltd (Artefact Heritage) have been engaged by Austino Property Group to prepare an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for the proposed development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park. Key issue 1 of SSD\_9403 states that the assessment must be completed in compliance with the Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales (Code of Practice) (Department of Environment, Climate Change & Water [DECCW] 2010a) and the Guide to Investigating, Assessing and Reporting on Aboriginal Cultural Heritage in NSW (the Guide) (Office of Environment & Heritage 2011).

The HAA (Artefact Heritage 2018c) and HIS (Artefact Heritage 2018b) have be provided in separate reports to meet the remaining heritage requirements of SSD\_9403.

### Consultation

Aboriginal community consultation has been conducted in accordance with the Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Consultation Requirements for Proponents 2010 (Consultation Requirements) (DECCW 2010b). A consultation log has been maintained which details all correspondence with the registered Aboriginal parties for the project (Appendix 1). Full records of consultation have also been provided in Appendix 2.

### Recommendations

- To keep consultation current, in the event of unexpected finds, the registered Aboriginal parties should be sent an update on the project everything six months until construction is complete
- A Heritage Interpretation Strategy should be prepared for the study area, in consultation with Aboriginal stakeholders. This plan would include methods of incorporating identified Aboriginal heritage values into the design process, such as use of native vegetation in replanting, use of local Aboriginal place names and interpretative signage providing information on Aboriginal land-use

within the study area and surrounding area. This recommendation is in line with the Ecologically Sustainable Development principles described in section 9.4.

## CONTENTS

Exe	ecutiv	ve summary	. ii
Fig	ures		vii
Tak	oles	v	'iii
Ab	brevi	ations	ix
1.0	In	troduction	. 1
1	.1	Project description	. 1
1	.2	Project approval framework	. 1
1	.3	Study area	. 2
1	.4	Background	. 2
1	.5	Study objectives	. 2
1	.6	Limitations	. 2
1	.7	Authors and contributors	. 3
1	.8	Report structure	. 3
2.0	L	egislative context	. 5
2	.1	State legislation	. 5
	2.1.1	National Parks and Wildlife Act 1974	. 5
	2.1.2	2 Native Title Act 1994	. 5
	2.1.3	3 Aboriginal Lands Right Act 1983	. 5
	2.1.4	Environmental Planning & Assessment Act 1979	. 5
2	.2	Commonwealth legislation	. 6
	2.2.1	Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999	. 6
	2.2.2	2 Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Heritage Protection Act 1984	. 7
3.0	С	onsultation	. 8
3	.1	Registration of Aboriginal parties	. 8
3	.2	Participation in survey	. 9
3	.3	Review of reports	10
4.0	E	nvironmental context	11
4	.1	Geotechnical investigations	11
4	.2	Landscape, geology and soils	11
4	.3	Hydrology	11
4	.4	Vegetation	12
4	.5	Natural resources	12
4	.6	Land use	13
	4.6.1	Overview	13
	4.6.2	2 Twentieth century industries 1907-1988	13
	4.6.3	Sydney Olympic Park Redevelopment 1990s	15

## 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report

5.0	Ar	chaeological context	18
5.1	1	Aboriginal ethnohistorical context	18
5.2		Regional archaeological context	18
5.3		Registered Aboriginal sites	19
5.4		Local archaeological context	23
5.5		Predictive model	23
6.0	Ar	chaeological survey	25
6.1		Aims	25
6.2	-	Timing and personnel	25
6.3		Survey strategy and methodology	25
7.0	Ab	original cultural heritage assessment	27
7.1	I	Methodology	27
7.2	(	Cultural landscape	27
7.3		Identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values	27
8.0	Si	gnificance assessment	29
8.1		Significance assessment criteria	29
8.2	:	Significance assessment	29
8.	2.1	Social and cultural value	29
8.	2.2	Historic value	30
8.	2.3	Aesthetic value	30
8.	2.4	Scientific value	30
8.3		Statement of significance	30
9.0	Im	pact assessment	31
9.1		Proposed development	31
9.2		Potential Aboriginal heritage impact	31
9.3	l	Management and mitigation measures	31
9.	3.1	Heritage interpretation strategy	32
9.	3.2	Changes to the proposed works	32
9.	3.3	Unexpected finds	32
9.4		Ecologically Sustainable Development principles	32
9.	4.1	The integration principle	33
9.	4.2	The precautionary principle	33
9.	4.3	The principle of intergenerational equity	33
9.5		Cumulative impacts	33
10.0	Ma	anagement and mitigation measures	34
10.1		Discovery of human remains	34
10.2	2	Changes to the proposed works	34
10.3		Heritage interpretation strategy	35

#### 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report

10.4	Ongoing consultation with Aboriginal stakeholder groups	35
11.0	Recommendations	36
12.0	References	37
13.0	Appendices	38
Appen	dix 1 – Current consultation log	
Appen	dix 2 – Full consultation records	

- Appendix 3 Archaeological Survey Report
- Appendix 4 AHIMS search data
- Appendix 5 Secretary's Environmental Assessment Requirements SSD\_9403

## FIGURES

Figure 1.1: Location of study area	4
Figure 4.1: View of modified creek banks of Boundary Creek, west aspect	12
Figure 4.2: Boundary Creek with artificial retaining embankment, northeast aspect	12
Figure 4.3: 1916 St John Parish map of area with approximate study area shown in red. State Abattoir located to the southwest, and the brick works to the north (Source: LPI)	14
Figure 4.4: View of the waste deposited in Homebush Bay taken in 1972 (Source: State Library of NSW)	15
Figure 4.5: View of the study area in 1943 (Source: Six Maps)	15
Figure 4.6: View of the study area in 2005 (Source: Google Earth)	16
Figure 4.7: View of the study area in 2014 (Source: Google Earth)	17
Figure 5.1: Distribution of AHIMS sites within extensive search area	22
Figure 6.1: Location of survey units.	26

## TABLES

Table 3.1: Registered Aboriginal parties for the study area	8
Table 3.2: Summary of RAP comments	10
Table 5.1: Frequency of site features within the AHIMS extensive search results	20
Table 5.2: Newington sites	20
Table 5.3: Summary of key studies	23
Table 7.1: Cultural heritage values identified for the study and surroundings	27
Table 9.1: Summary of impact	31

## ABBREVIATIONS

ACHAR	Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report
AHC	Australian Heritage Council
AHIP	Aboriginal Heritage Impact Permit
AHIMS	Aboriginal Heritage Information Management System
ALR Act	Aboriginal Land Rights Act 1983
Artefact Heritage	Artefact Heritage Services Pty Ltd
ASR	Archaeological Survey Report
ATSIHP Act	Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Heritage Protection Act 1984
BP	Before Present (that is 1950)
CHL	Commonwealth Heritage List
Code of Practice	Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales 2010
Commonwealth Act	Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Heritage Protection Act 1984
Consultation Requirements	Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010
DECCW	Department of Environment, Climate Change and Water (now OEH)
DNC	Didge Ngunawal Clan
DLO	Darug Land Observations
EP&A Act	Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979
EPBC Act	Environment Protection and Diversity Conservation Act 1999
g	grams
GPS	Global Positioning System
Guide	Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW
ha	hectares
НАА	Historical Archaeological Assessment
HIS	Heritage Impact Statement
JMCHM	Jo McDonald Cultural Heritage Management
km	kilometres
LALC	Local Aboriginal Land Council

## 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report

LEP	Local Environmental Plan
LGA	Local Government Area
m	metres
mm	millimetres
NHL	National Heritage List
NPW Act	National Parks and Wildlife Act 1974
NTSCorp	Native Title Service Provider for Aboriginal Traditional Owners in New South Wales and the Australian Capital Territory
0511	
OEH	Office of Environment and Heritage
PAD	Office of Environment and Heritage Potential Archaeological Deposit
	-
PAD	Potential Archaeological Deposit
PAD RAP	Potential Archaeological Deposit Registered Aboriginal Party
PAD RAP RNE	Potential Archaeological Deposit Registered Aboriginal Party Register of the National Estate

## 1.0 INTRODUCTION

### 1.1 Project description

Austino Property Group are proposing a residential development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park. The proposed development has been assessed as a State Significant Development, and Secretary's Environmental Assessment Requirements (SEARs) have been issued for the site (SSD\_9403). The requirements for heritage are as follows:

- Prepare a Historical Archaeological Assessment (HAA) detailing the likely impacts and outline the proposed management and mitigation measures to protect and preserve the non-Aboriginal archaeology (Artefact Heritage 2018c)
- Prepare a Heritage Impact Statement (HIS) addressing impacts of the proposed development on any state or local heritage Items in the vicinity (Artefact Heritage 2018b)
- Prepare an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) identifying any cultural heritage values, impacts and mitigation measures.

Artefact Heritage Services Pty Ltd (Artefact Heritage) have been engaged by Austino Property Group to prepare an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for the proposed development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park. Key issue 1 of SSD\_9403 states that the assessment must be completed in compliance with the Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales (Code of Practice) (Department of Environment, Climate Change & Water [DECCW] 2010a) and the Guide to Investigating, Assessing and Reporting on Aboriginal Cultural Heritage in NSW (the Guide) (Office of Environment & Heritage 2011).

The HAA (Artefact Heritage 2018c) and HIS (Artefact Heritage 2018b) have be provided in separate reports to meet the remaining heritage requirements of SSD\_9403.

### 1.2 Project approval framework

SSD\_9403 was issued to Austino Property Group on 6 July 2018 for 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park. The SEARs are for the preparation of an Environmental Impact Statement (EIS).

Sydeny Olympic Park is a State Significant Precinct and is subject to a number of specialised pieces of legislation. This report has been produced in compliance with the following documents:

- Auburn City Council LEP 2010
- State Environmental Planning Policy (Major Development) [SEPP] 2005
- Sydney Olympic Park Authority Act 2001
- Sydney Olympic Park Master Plan 2030

Key issue 1 of SSD\_9403 states that the ACHAR must be completed in compliance with the following documents:

 Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal objects in New South Wales (Code of Practice) (Department of Environment, Climate Change & Water [DECCW] 2010a)

- Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010 (Consultation Requirements) (Department of Environment, Climate Change & Water [DECCW] 2010b).
- The guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW (the Guide) (Office of Environment & Heritage [OEH] 2011).

As this project is being assessed under 75W of the *Environment Planning & Assessment Act 1979* (EP&A Act), permits issued under the *National Parks & Wildlife Act 1974* (NPW Act), principally an Aboriginal Heritage Impact Permit (AHIP), under Section 90 of the NPW Act will not be not required.

## 1.3 Study area

The study area consists of 1 Murray Rose Avenue (Lot 1/DP1185060) and 2 Murray Rose Avenue (Lot 2/DP1185060), located in the suburb of Sydney Olympic Park (Figure 1.1). The study area is located in the Local Government Area (LGA) of Auburn and the Metropolitan Local Aboriginal Land Council (LALC). The study area is within the Parish of St John and County of Cumberland.

#### 1.4 Background

Lot 1/ DP1185060 and Lot 2/ DP1185969 are on opposite sides of Murray Rose Avenue and were previously used as carparks. Geotechnical investigations at Lot 2/ DP1185969 have been previously conducted and found that there is no natural deposit as the site was altered by past cut and fill earthworks.

#### 1.5 Study objectives

The objectives of this report are to:

- Assess the Aboriginal cultural heritage values of the study area, including archaeological and community cultural values, and the significance of identified values. This is also a requirement of the Secretary Environmental Assessment Requirements (SEARs).
- Identify Aboriginal cultural heritage values that may be impacted by the proposed works, including consideration of cumulative impacts, and measures to avoid significant impacts. This is also a requirement of the SEARs.
- Ensure appropriate Aboriginal community consultation in the assessment process, as required by the SEARs.
- Identify any recommended further investigations, mitigation and management measures required, in compliance the SEARs, should the project proceed.
- To detail the results of the physical test excavation which investigated the areas of archaeological sensitivity and archaeological content of the study area, as required by the SEARS.

## 1.6 Limitations

This ACHAR is based on the previous ASR (Artefact Heritage 2018a) and the Aboriginal consultation process undertaken by Artefact Heritage (Section 3.0, Appendix 1 and 2) for the proposed residential development.



## 1.7 Authors and contributors

This ACHAR was prepared by Ryan Taddeucci (Heritage Consultant, Artefact Heritage) with management input and review from Vanessa Edmonds (Principal, Artefact Heritage).

Ryan Taddeucci (Senior Heritage Consultant, Artefact Heritage) prepared this ACHAR. Ryan has a Bachelor of Arts with Honours in Archaeology and a Masters of Museum Studies. Ryan has over five years' experience in Aboriginal cultural heritage management in NSW, WA and QLD.

Vanessa Edmonds (Principal, Artefact Heritage) directed the project, reviewed this report and provided management input and advice. Vanessa has a Bachelor of Arts in Australian Prehistory and a Master of Letters in Archaeology and Palaeoanthropology. Vanessa has over 30 years of experience Aboriginal cultural heritage management nationally.

#### 1.8 Report structure

The purpose of this report is to document the results of an investigation of Aboriginal heritage at the study area. As such, the structure of this report includes:

- Section 1 Introduction
- Section 2 Legislative context: outlines relevant legislation for this assessment
- Section 3 Consultation: provides information on the Aboriginal consultation process and results
- Section 4 Environmental context: provides an overview of the environmental conditions to provide context for the predictive model
- Section 5 Aboriginal context: presents the results of the background ethnohistoric and literature research and database searches. This section also presents a predictive model as background to the survey sampling strategy
- Section 6 Archaeological survey: presents the methodology and results of the Aboriginal archaeological survey
- Section 7 Aboriginal cultural heritage assessment: outlines the methodology for conducting an Aboriginal cultural heritage assessment and the identified heritage values, based on stakeholder consultation.
- Section 8 Significance assessment: full assessment of significance based on consultation with stakeholders following the review of this ACHAR and the ATER.
- Section 9 Impact assessment: discussion of how the proposed works will impact the identified Aboriginal site and how to mitigate against the loss of heritage value.
- Section 10 Management and mitigation measures: Outlines the proposed method of mitigating against loss of cultural value.
- Section 11 Recommendations: summary of recommendations for further investigations and mitigation against loss of heritage values.
- Section 12 References

#### Figure 1.1: Location of study area



Document Path: C:\Users\GIS\Desktop\GIS\GIS\_Mapping\18117\_Olympic\_Park\MXD\Study\_area.mxd

## 2.0 LEGISLATIVE CONTEXT

## 2.1 State legislation

#### 2.1.1 National Parks and Wildlife Act 1974

The NPW Act, administered by the OEH provides statutory protection for all Aboriginal 'objects' (consisting of any material evidence of the Aboriginal occupation of NSW) under Section 90 of the NPW Act, and for 'Aboriginal Places' (areas of cultural significance to the Aboriginal community) under Section 84.

The protection provided to Aboriginal objects applies irrespective of the level of their significance or issues of land tenure. However, areas are only gazetted as Aboriginal Places if the Minister is satisfied that sufficient evidence exists to demonstrate that the location was and/or is, of special significance to Aboriginal culture.

The NPW Act was amended in 2010 and as a result the legislative structure for seeking permission to impact on heritage items has changed. A Section 90 permit is now the only Aboriginal Heritage Impact Permit (AHIP) available and is granted by the OEH. Various factors are considered by OEH in the AHIP application process, such as site significance, Aboriginal consultation requirements, Ecologically Sustainable Development principles, project justification and consideration of alternatives. The penalties and fines for damaging or defacing an Aboriginal object have also increased.

As this project is being assessed under Part 4 Division 4.1 of the EP&A Act 1979 permits issued under the NPW Act are not required.

#### 2.1.2 Native Title Act 1994

The *Native Title Act 1994* was introduced to work in conjunction with the Commonwealth *Native Title Act 1993*. Native Title claims, registers and Indigenous Land Use Agreements are administered under the Act. There are no Native Title claims currently registered in the study area.

#### 2.1.3 Aboriginal Lands Right Act 1983

The *Aboriginal Land Rights Act 1983* (ALR Act) established Aboriginal Land Councils (at State and Local levels). These bodies have a statutory obligation under the ALR Act to:

(a) take action to protect the culture and heritage of Aboriginal persons in the council's area, subject to any other law, and

(b) promote awareness in the community of the culture and heritage of Aboriginal persons in the council's area.

There are no Registered Aboriginal Owners pursuant to Division 3 of the ALR Act for the project study area. The study area is within the boundary of the Metropolitan Local Aboriginal Land Council (LALC).

#### 2.1.4 Environmental Planning & Assessment Act 1979

The proposal will be assessed under Part 4, Division 4.1 of the EP&A Act, which establishes an assessment and approval regime for State Significant Development (SSD). Part 4, Division 4.1 applies to development that is declared to be SSD by a State Environmental Planning Policy (SEPP).

Section 4.41 (previously section 89J(c)) of the EP&A Act specifies that approvals or permits under section 90 of the NPW Act 1974 are not required for approved SSD.

#### 2.2 Commonwealth legislation

#### 2.2.1 Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999

The Environment and Heritage Legislation Amendment Act (No. 1) 2003 amends the Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999 (EPBC Act) to include 'national heritage' as a matter of National Environmental Significance and protects listed places to the fullest extent under the Constitution. It also establishes the National Heritage List (NHL) and the Commonwealth Heritage List (CHL).

The Australian Heritage Council Act 2003 (AHC Act) establishes a heritage advisory body - the Australian Heritage Council (AHC), to the Minister for the Environment and Heritage and retains the Register of the National Estate (RNE).

The Australian Heritage Council (Consequential and Transitional Provisions) Act 2003 repeals the Australian Heritage Commission Act 1975, amends various Acts as a consequence of this repeal and allows the transition to the current heritage system.

Together, the above three Acts provide protection for Australia's natural, Indigenous and non-Indigenous heritage. The features include:

- A new NHL of places of national heritage significance
- A new CHL of heritage places owned or managed by the Commonwealth
- The creation of the AHC, an independent expert body to advise the Minster on the listing and protection of heritage places
- Continued management of the Register of the National Estate (RNE).

#### **National Heritage List**

The NHL is a list of places with outstanding heritage value to the nation, including places which have Indigenous heritage values. The heritage values of these places are so important are that they are protected under the EPBC Act. This means that a person cannot take an action that has, will have, or is likely to have, a significant impact on the national heritage values of a national heritage place without the approval of the Australian Government Minister for the Environment and Energy. It is a criminal offence not to comply with this law and there are significant penalties. There are no places listed on the NHL within the study area.

#### **Commonwealth Heritage List**

The CHL is a list of places managed or owned by the Australian Government. There are no places listed on the CHL within the study area.

#### **Register of the National Estate**

The Register of the National Estate (RNE) is an evolving record of Australia's natural, cultural and Aboriginal heritage places that are worth keeping for the future. The AHC compiles and maintains the RNE under the *Australian Heritage Council Act* 2003. Places on the RNE that are in Commonwealth areas, or subject to actions by the Australian Government, are protected under the EPBC Act by the same provisions that protect Commonwealth heritage places (see above).

Following amendments to the *Australian Heritage Council Act* 2003, the RNE was frozen on 19 February 2007, meaning no new places can be added, or removed. From 2012 all references to the RNE were removed from the EPBC Act and the AHC Act. The RNE is now maintained on a non-statutory basis as a publicly available archive. No Aboriginal sites were listed for Olympic Park on the RNE.

#### 2.2.2 Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Heritage Protection Act 1984

The Commonwealth *Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Heritage Protection Act 1984* (ATSIHP Act), deals with Aboriginal cultural property (intangible heritage) in a wider sense. Such intangible heritage includes any places, objects and folklore that 'are of particular significance to Aboriginals in accordance with Aboriginal tradition'. These values are not currently protected under the NPW Act.

There is no cut-off date and the ATSIHP Act may apply to contemporary Aboriginal cultural property as well as ancient sites. The ATSIHP Act takes precedence over state cultural heritage legislation where there is conflict. The Commonwealth Minister who is responsible for administering the ATSIHP Act can make declarations to protect these areas and objects from specific threats of injury or desecration. The responsible Minister may make a declaration under Section 10 of the Commonwealth Act in situations where state or territory laws do not provide adequate protection of intangible heritage.

Where an Aboriginal individual or organisation is concerned that intangible values within the proposal are not being adequately protected they can apply to the Minister for a declaration over a place. No intangible places were identified during any stage of the heritage investigations undertaken by Artefact Heritage.

## 3.0 CONSULTATION

Aboriginal community consultation has been conducted in accordance with the Consultation Requirements. A consultation log has been maintained which details all correspondence with the registered Aboriginal parties for the project (Appendix 1). Full records of consultation have also been provided in Appendix 2.

## 3.1 Registration of Aboriginal parties

In accordance with step 4.1.2 of the Consultation Requirements, Artefact Heritage corresponded with the following organisations by letter and email on the 14 September 2018 requesting the details of Aboriginal people who may hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the Aboriginal significance of Aboriginal objects and/or places within the local area:

- Greater Sydney Local Land Services
- Parramatta City Council
- Native Title Service Corporation
- Metropolitan LALC
- Office of Environment and Heritage Greater Sydney Office
- National Native Title Tribunal
- Office of the Registrar, Aboriginal Land Rights Act 1983

In addition to this, and in accordance with Step 4.1.3 of the Consultation Requirements, an advertisement was placed in the Parramatta Advertiser on the 14 September 2018, inviting the participation of Aboriginal people who may hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the Aboriginal significance of Aboriginal objects and/or places within the local area.

In accordance with Step 4.1.3 of the Consultation Requirements, on 18 September 2018, emails or letters were sent to all Aboriginal persons or organisations identified through advertisement or through responses from agencies contacted as part of Step 4.1.2. In accordance with Step 4.2 the letters provided details about the location and nature of the proposal, as well as an invitation to register as an Aboriginal stakeholder.

As a result of that process 17 groups and individuals registered their interest (Table 3.1). A copy of the proposed assessment methodology was sent to registered Aboriginal parties (RAPs) by email and post on 2 October 2018, requesting comments by 30 October 2018. At the end of this period, 11 RAPs had responded, supporting the methodology. Jamie Workman (Darug Land Observations) commented that any artefacts retrieved during the project should be reburied on country (the study area).

Contact	Organisation
Lilly Carroll	Didge Ngunawal Clan
Amanda Dezwart	Amanda Hickey Cultural Services

#### Table 3.1: Registered Aboriginal parties for the study area

#### 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report

Contact	Organisation
Marilyn Caroll-Johnson	Corroboree Aboriginal Corporation
Gordon Workman	Darug Boorooberongal Elders Aboriginal Corporation
Jesse Johnson	Muragadi Heritage Indigenous Corporation
Scott Franks	Tocomwall
Andrew Williams	Aboriginal Archaeology Service Incorporated
Justine Coplin	Darug Custodian Aboriginal Corporation
Lee Field	Barraby Cultural Services
Arika Jalomaki	Yulay Cultural Services
Bo Field	Yurrandaali Cultural Services
Carolyn Hickey	A1 Indigenous Services
Anna Workman	Darug Land Observations
Steven Hickey	Widescope Indigenous Group
Desmond Dyer	Darug Aboriginal Landcare Inc
Jody Kulakowski	Barking Owl Aboriginal Corporation
Philip Boney	Wailwan Aborigianl Diging Group

### 3.2 Participation in survey

Metropolitan LALC was engaged to participate in the archaeological survey. Kevin Telford (Aboriginal Site Officer, Metropolitan LALC) participated in the survey on 24 September 2018. Kevin noted that the study area had been significantly modified and that the natural undulation of the land was still visible east of the study area in the Badu Mangroves. Kevin mentioned that due to the high levels of disturbance the study area was unlikely to retain Aboriginal objects.

## 3.3 Review of reports

On 30 October 2018 a copy of the ASR (Artefact Heritage 2018a) and this report was forwarded to the RAPs for a 28-day review. By the end of the review period four groups had provided comment, see Table 3.2 for a summary of the RAP comments.

#### Table 3.2: Summary of RAP comments

Organisation	Comments	
Justine Coplin (Darug Custodian Aboriginal Corporation)	The study area is significant to the Darug people due to the evidence of continued occupation, within close proximity to this project site there is a complex of significant sites. Darug sites are all connected and are part of a complex that hold heritage and history. Due to the rapid development of Sydney many sites have been destroyed. These sites are thousands of years old and within the short period of time that Australia has been developed pre-contact sites have disappeared.	
Desmond Dyer (Darug Aboriginal Landcare Inc)	Any artefacts recovered should be reburied on site out of harm's way or in the local museum or displayed in the foyer of new building with signage on where they came from.	
Amanda Dezwart (Amanda Hickey Cultural Services)	Agrees with the findings of the report	
Marilyn Caroll-Johnson (Corroboree Aboriginal Corporation)	Update contact details	

## 4.0 ENVIRONMENTAL CONTEXT

The following information is primarily derived from Artefact Heritage (2018a).

#### 4.1 Geotechnical investigations

#### 1 Murray Rose Avenue

Geotechnical investigations were conducted on 1 and 5 September 2017 and was comprised of the auger drilling of four boreholes (BH1 to BH4) to depths between 5.64 metres (m) and 7.94 m below existing surface levels using a Tungsten Carbide ('TC') bit (JK Geotechnics 2017). The investigation found that the subsurface profile was generally comprised of a sandy and clayey fill over residual silty clay and shale bedrock. The depth of fill ranged from 0.9 m (BH4) to 3.3 m (BH1 and BH3). Natural residual clays were encountered below the fill extending to the underlying bedrock. The natural silty clays were generally of medium to high plasticity and were assessed as very stiff to hard strength. The clays contained varying amounts of fine to medium grained ironstone gravel.

#### 2 Murray Rose Avenue

Geotechnical investigations were conducted on 9 and 10 September 2017 and was comprised of the auger drilling of four boreholes (BH1 to BH4) to depths between 5.68 m and 6.77 m below existing surface levels using a Tungsten Carbide ('TC') bit (JK Geotechnics 2017). The investigation found that the subsurface profile was generally comprised of a sandy and clayey fill over residual silty clay and shale bedrock. Fill was encountered at the surface in all boreholes and extended to depths ranging from 1.2 m (BH2 and BH3) to 1.4 m (BH1). Natural residual clays were encountered below the fill and extended to the underlying shale bedrock. The natural silty clays were generally of medium to high plasticity and were assessed to be of very stiff to hard strength. The clays contained varying amounts of fine to medium grained ironstone and shale gravel.

#### 4.2 Landscape, geology and soils

The study area is located on a mild southward sloping hill located near to Homebush Bay. The local area has low relief with slopes usually less than <5 per cent. The underlying geology of the study area consists of middle Triassic epoch black to dark-grey shale and laminate deposits belonging to the Wianamatta Group.

The study area was originally located on Blacktown soils. The Blacktown soils are shallow (<1000 mm) hard setting mottled red and brown podzolic soils on crests and yellow podzolic soils on lower slopes and along drainage lines. The Blacktown soil landscape is generally associated with gently undulating rises. The soils are primarily poorly drained with very little erosional activity with minor sheet and gully erosion in zones stripped of vegetation.

The study area today has had extensive modern ground disturbance however, and the natural Blacktown soil profile is almost entirely absent from the area. The soils in the study area, from geotechnical studies, are predominantly degrading organic landfill deposits. Areas of Blacktown soil profiles may still exist in isolated areas of the study area, but these would be at considerable depth.

### 4.3 Hydrology

The study area is located less than 50 m west from the Bennelong Pond, which is serviced by Powell's Creek and 755 m south of Haslam's Creek.

Prior to the use of the Homebush Bay area as a landfill in the late twentieth century, A tributary of Powells Boundary Creek, Boundary Creek, was present to the south of the study area. The study area is located approximately 887 m north of the present course of Boundary Creek. The present course of Boundary Creek is located between landfill mounds and is not an intact natural creek bank (Figure 4.1, Figure 4.2).



## 4.4 Vegetation

All of the vegetation zones which are likely to have characterised the pre - European environmental context of the region have been reduced during the post-contact period, much of this impact having occurred during comparatively recent periods (Steele and Carney 1997: 13). The original landscape included eucalyptus forest on Wianamatta shale soils and wetlands in the lower reaches of Haslams Creek and Powells Creek and on the shores of Homebush Bay and the Parramatta River. Remnants of the Ironbark and scribbly gum eucalyptus forest and Aboriginal archaeological sites are preserved in the Newington Armoury (Dictionary of Sydney – Homebush 2015). The first European observations of the land recorded trees far apart and noted there was long grass and no underwood.

The vegetation fringing the mangrove and saltmarsh wetlands included Casurina (Swamp oak), Maleluca (paper bark) and leptospermum (tea tree) species. In the late 19th century extensive salt marsh and mud flats dominated the estuary and mangrove was widespread. The silt and alluvial deposits from Powells and Haslams Creek and the original shoreline of the bay and river are now completely overlain by reclamation fill (Fox and Assoc 1986: 5).

During the site visit the subject site's vegetation was observed to have a majority native tree canopy, with a native shrub midstorey and a native groundcover layer. Plantings within the car park consist of native grasses and shrubs and semi-mature Ficus, Sheoak, Spotted Gum and Ironbark trees. The majority of plantings on the site are the result of landscaping during the 1980s and 90s.

Arboreport Vegetation Management Consultants (2015) identified three significant trees on the site which include a mature Morton Bay Fig on the western boundary and a mature Morton Bay Fig and Port Jackson Fig on the northeast corner (Fig and Australia Streets). These trees could be around 100 years old as they are present in 1943 aerial images of the site and appear to be mature specimens at that time.

#### 4.5 Natural resources

Aboriginal people were highly mobile hunter-gatherers utilising different landscapes and resource strategies across the Sydney basin. Different resources may have been available seasonally,

necessitating movement or trade across the landscape (Attenbrow 2010: 78). Aboriginal people hunted kangaroo and wallaby and snared possums and other small animals and birds for food and skins. Plants were likewise an important source of nutrition for past Aboriginal peoples with numerous plant species utilised for food, manufacture and medicinal purposes (Attenbrow 2010: 41).

Given the location of the study area within close proximity to fresh water sources as well as the shore of Homebush Bay it is likely that Aboriginal people would have employed a range of subsistence activities to take advantage of their local environment. Coastal resources such as saltwater fish and shellfish would have been available to groups as well as small animals, plants, freshwater fish and eels (Tench 1793:230; Kohen 1986:77). Banksia flowers, wild honey, varieties of wild yam and Burrawong nut were recorded as important food sources, particularly for inland groups. Small animals such as bandicoots and wallabies were hunted with traps and snares (Collins 1798, Kohen 1985:9).

#### 4.6 Land use

#### 4.6.1 Overview

A full overview of the history of the study area has been provided in the HAA (Artefact Heritage 2018c). The HAA identified four major phases of land use associated with the study area:

- Phase 1: Vegetation clearance for European farming, including the construction of a farmhouse and horse racing track, and later subdivision.
- Phase 2: The area was part of the State Abattoir and continued to be used as a cleared farming area up until the mid- twentieth century.
- Phase 3: Used for waste disposal in the late twentieth century.
- Phase 4: Remediation of contaminated landfill involved extensive earthworks in the study area. Subsequently redeveloped into a carpark prior to the 2000 Olympic Games, with excavation for services and surface landscaping.

The most pertinent land-use activities to the Aboriginal archaeological are the phases of waste disposal and the remediation works.

#### 4.6.2 Twentieth century industries 1907-1988

An area of Homebush was resumed for the State Abattoir in 1907 and was built on the site in 1910 after the Glebe Island Abattoir was deemed as publicly unsafe following the plague. This saw development of servicing roads for the abattoir and associated buildings. A branch railway line through the abattoir site was constructed by 1908, which included the levelling of the site (GML 1990: 5). This railway line was further developed in 1910, with site levelling, excavating, and roadways and platforms being constructed. After poor management practices the abattoir ran into a deficit and closed in 1988.



Figure 4.3: 1916 St John Parish map of area with approximate study area shown in red. State Abattoir located to the southwest, and the brick works to the north (Source: LPI)

A State Brick Works was located at the northern side of Homebush from 1911. Access roads were constructed, and a railway line was developed to provide access to the Brick Works. The Brick Works was used until its closure in 1940, when it was taken over by the Naval Armament Depot as a munitions store. It was later reopened following the end of World War Two until it ceased trading in 1988. The area has been rehabilitated as a wetland area with a raised walkway for visitors.

The Newington Armament Depot, which lay to the north of Homebush, was expanded after World War One, and took over some of the facilities in Homebush such as the Brick Works pit and some land that was part of the State Abattoir for storage of munitions.

As industrial development in Sydney expanded in the mid-twentieth century, locations to discard industrial waste were required. Homebush, at that time relatively undeveloped, was chosen as a dumping location for toxic waste, including waste from factories such as Timbrol and Union Carbide that were located nearby in Rhodes. Wentworth Bay was filled in with industrial waste and the natural ecology of the area was severely damaged. The area nearest Homebush Bay became a shipbreaking yard in 1966, with many of the wrecks still visible today. By 1988, there was an estimated 9 million cubic metres of waste and contaminated soils spread over 400-hectares (ha) within the 760 ha site (Figure 4.4).

Figure 4.4: View of the waste deposited in Homebush Bay taken in 1972 (Source: State Library of NSW)



Figure 4.5: View of the study area in 1943 (Source: Six Maps)



#### 4.6.3 Sydney Olympic Park Redevelopment 1990s

The southern portion of Homebush was developed as Sydney Olympic Park following the 1993 successful bid for Sydney to host the 2000 Olympic and Paralympic Games. Part of this development was the construction of sports facilities, competitor housing, roads, and rejuvenation of parklands and

streetscapes. Rehabilitation and stabilisation of the area was conducted due to the contamination from prior industrial use.

In July 2001, the Sydney Olympic Park Authority was established, a statutory body of the NSW Government under the *Sydney Olympic Park Authority Act 2001*. The Authority's charter is to manage and promote the 640-hectare Sydney Olympic Park site, including protection of the 425-hectare Millennium Parklands, which included the Newington Armament Depot and Nature Reserve.

From at least 2002 up until 2014, the study area was used as a car park when Murray Rose Avenue was constructed.



Figure 4.6: View of the study area in 2005 (Source: Google Earth)



Figure 4.7: View of the study area in 2014 (Source: Google Earth)

## 5.0 ARCHAEOLOGICAL CONTEXT

Assumptions about Aboriginal land use patterns are made on the basis of archaeological information gained from the local area, from observations made by colonists and settlers after settlement of the area, and from information known about available natural resources. The following information is primarily derived from Artefact Heritage (2018a).

### 5.1 Aboriginal ethnohistorical context

Prior to the appropriation of their land by Europeans, Aboriginal people lived in small family or clan groups that were associated with particular territories or places. It seems that territorial boundaries were fairly fluid, although details are not known. The language group spoken across Sydney was known as Darug (Dharruk – alternate spelling). The first written use of this term was in 1900, as before the late 1800s language groups or dialects were not discussed in the literature (Mathews and Everitt 1900). The Darug language group is thought to have extended from Appin in the south to the Hawkesbury River, west of the Georges River, Parramatta, the Lane Cove River and to Berowra Creek (Attenbrow 2010: 34). This area was home to a number of different clan groups throughout the Cumberland Plain.

Early historical accounts of Aboriginal people are inevitably subject to the writer's bias, however, they do provide valuable observations of Aboriginal customs and life during the early period of European occupation. Language dialects varied across the Cumberland Plain, although early Europeans recorded observations of interaction and mutual intelligibility between Darug speakers from different regions. Captain Watkin Tench detailed an interaction between two Aboriginal men, one from the coast and one from inland, and noted the range of variability between dialects. Tench observed that though the men conversed on par and understood each other perfectly, many words for common things bore no similarities, yet other words were only slightly different (Tench 1793:122).

There are two possible groups or clans associated with the local area. Bediagal or Bidjigal were observed in association with Arrowanelly 'Island at the Flats' an island originally on the western side of Botany Bay near the mouth of the Bay (Attenbrow 2010: 24). Alternatively, Wangal, Wann-gal or Won-gal were observed from the southern shore of the Parramatta River from near Darling Harbour to Rose Hill (Attenbrow 2010: 26). Woollarawarre Bennelong (c. 1764 – 3 January 1813), the first Aboriginal man to visit Europe and return, was a member of the Wangal. He was captured in November 1789 and brought to the settlement at Sydney Cove by order of Governor Arthur Phillip, who hoped to learn more about Aboriginal customs and language (Australian Dictionary of Biography).

The existing archaeological record is limited to certain materials and objects that were able to withstand degradation and decay. As a result, the most common type of Aboriginal objects remaining in the archaeological record are stone artefacts, followed by bone and shell. The locality of the study area along an undulating landscape within close proximity to fresh water sources indicates that the predominant site type would be stone artefact sites and open camp sites.

## 5.2 Regional archaeological context

The archaeological understanding of the early Aboriginal settlement of the Sydney Basin and surrounds is constantly expanding and developing. The oldest evidence of human occupation in the vicinity of the study area comes from RTA-G1 (AHIMS ID 45-6-2673), Parramatta, located 4.9 km north west of the study area (Attenbrow 2010: 18-20). RTA-G1 (AHIMS ID 45-6-2673), Parramatta has been dated to 30,735 years Before Present (BP) (WK-17435).

The existing archaeological record is limited to certain materials and objects that were able to withstand degradation and decay. As a result, the most common type of Aboriginal objects remaining in the archaeological record are stone artefacts. Archaeological analyses of these artefacts in their contexts have provided the basis for the interpretation of change in material culture over time. Technologies used for making tools changed, along with preference of raw material. Different types of tools appeared at certain times, for example ground stone hatchets are first observed in the archaeological record around 4,000 years BP in the Sydney region (Attenbrow 2010: 102). It is argued that these changes in material culture were an indication of changes in social organisation and behaviour.

The Eastern Regional Sequence was first developed by McCarthy in 1948, to explain the typological differences he was seeing in stone tool technology in different stratigraphic levels during excavations such as Lapstone Creek near the foot of the Blue Mountains (McCarthy 1948). The sequence had three phases that corresponded to different technologies and tool types (the Capertian, Bondaian and Eloueran). The categories have been refined through the interpretation of further excavation data and radiocarbon dates (Hiscock and Attenbrow 2005; JMCHM 2005). It is now thought that prior to 8,500 years BP tool technology remained fairly static with a preference for silicified tuff, quartz and some unheated silcrete. Bipolar flaking was rare with unifacial flaking predominant. No backed artefacts have been found of this antiquity.

After 8,500 years BP silcrete was more dominant as a raw material, and bifacial flaking became the most common technique for tool manufacture. From about 4,000 years BP to 1,000 years BP backed artefacts appear more frequently. Tool manufacture techniques become more complex and bipolar flaking increases (JMCHM 2006). It has been argued that from 1,400 to 1,000 years before contact there is evidence of a decline in tool manufacture. This reduction may be the result of decreased tool making, an increase in the use of organic materials, changes in the way tools were made, or changes in what types of tools were preferred (Attenbrow 2010:102). The reduction in evidence coincides with the reduction in frequency of backed blades as a percentage of the assemblage.

After European colonisation Aboriginal people of the Cumberland Plain often continued to manufacture tools, sometimes with new materials such as bottle glass or ceramics. There are a number of sites in Western Sydney where flaked glass has been recorded, for example at Prospect (Ngara Consulting 2003) and Oran Park (JMCHM 2007).

## 5.3 Registered Aboriginal sites

The location of Aboriginal sites is considered culturally sensitive information. It is advised that this information, including the Aboriginal Heritage Information Management System (AHIMS) data appearing on the heritage map for the proposal be removed from this report if it is to enter the public domain.

An extensive search of the AHIMS database was undertaken on the 14 September 2018 (AHIMS search ID 370866).

An area of approximately 4 km surrounding the study area was included in the search. The AHIMS search provides archaeological context for the area and identifies whether any previously recorded Aboriginal sites are located within or near the study area. The parameters of the search were as follows:

GDA 1994 MGA 56	E 319938 - 323938
	N 6251485 - 6255485
Buffer	0 m
Number of sites	7
AHIMS Search ID	370866

A total of seven sites are listed on the AHIMS database within the search area. The distribution of recorded sites within the AHIMS search area is shown in Figure 5.1. OEH lists 20 standard site features that can be used to describe a site registered with AHIMS, and more than one feature can be used for each site. The frequency of recorded site types is summarised in Table 5.1 below. For the seven sites within the search area, three site features were recorded. The majority of site features recorded were PAD (n=5, 71.4 per cent), with lesser numbers of art sites (n=1, 14.3 per cent) and modified trees (n=1, 14.3 per cent).

The nature and location of the registered sites is a reflection of the past Aboriginal occupation from which they derive, but is also influenced by historical land-use, and the nature and extent of previous archaeological investigations. Although Aboriginal occupation covered the whole of the landscape, the availability of fresh water, and associated resources, was a significant factor in repeated and long-term occupation of specific areas within the landscape. Certain site types, such as culturally modified trees, are particularly vulnerable to destruction through historical occupation, while others, such as stone artefacts, are more resilient. Previous archaeological investigation has consisted of broad-scale survey. This type of survey is likely to target areas of high potential, such as land near water, and areas of high visibility, and to result in the identification of surface sites.

Site Feature	Frequency	Per cent
Art (Pigment or Engraved)	1	14.3
Modified Tree (Carved or Scarred)	1	14.3
PAD	5	71.4
Total	7	100

#### Table 5.1: Frequency of site features within the AHIMS extensive search results

The data available indicates that past Aboriginal occupation of the immediate region was focussed on the natural resources of Haslams Creek and Brays Bay. This is reflected in the predominance of PADs located in the vicinity of these watercourses. However, these watercourses have not been subject to significant modification. While the watercourses within the immediate vicinity of the study area have been heavily altered.

Irish 2004 recorded all of six of the identified AHIMS sites within Newington area. The 2004 report and the names of the sites demonstrates that the site details have been incorrectly entered into the AHIMS database (Table 5.2). There are only two PADs identified within the Newington area, and the remaining three sites are isolated artefacts. Irish (2004) identified the PADs within an environmental conservation area, and due to the low level of disturbance, concluded that the area held potential to retain intact deposits of Aboriginal artefacts.

#### Table 5.2: Newington sites

Site ID	Site name
45-6-2682	Wanngal Woodland Axe-Marked Tree
45-6-2683	Wanngal Woodland IF1
45-6-2684	Wanngal Woodland IF2

## 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report

45-6-2685	Wanngal Woodland IF3
45-6-2785	Wanngal Woodland PAD2
45-6-2786	Wanngal Woodland PAD1



#### Figure 5.1: Distribution of AHIMS sites within extensive search area

Document Path: C:\Users\GIS\Desktop\GIS\GIS\_Mapping\18177\_Olympic\_Park\MXD\AHIMS.mxd

## 5.4 Local archaeological context

A full description of previous studies was provided in the ASR (Artefact Heritage 2018a). Table 5.3 provides a summary of previous studies within close proximity of the study area. Overall, the results of the previous Aboriginal archaeological investigations within the wider area have identified that there is low potential for intact Aboriginal archaeological deposits to be identified due to high levels of past disturbance.

#### Table 5.3: Summary of key studies

Author and date	Title
Urbis 2015	2 Figtree Drive, Sydney Olympic Park, Historic and Aboriginal Archaeological Assessment, prepared for Mirvac.
AMBS 2012	Newington Armament Depot & Nature Reserve, Sydney Olympic Park, Aboriginal Heritage Assessment. Prepared for Tanner Architects Pty Ltd.
Paul Irish 2004	Aboriginal Archaeological Assessment Report Newington Armory Adaptive Re-Use and Rail Extension Project, Sydney Olympic Park, NSW. Report to the Sydney Olympic Park Authority.
Helen Brayshaw 1997	Olympic Village Site, Newington, Homebush Bay, Aboriginal Archaeology, Report to MIRVAC Village Consortium
Dominic Steele & Martin Carney Archaeological Management & Consulting Group Pty 1997	Aboriginal Heritage, Australia Avenue, Fig Tree Circuit, 2000 Olympic Site, Homebush, N.S.W. For The Olympic Co-Ordination Authority.

#### 5.5 Predictive model

Urbis (2015) produced the following predictive model which is applicable for the study area:

Resource distribution and availability such as the presence of drinking water, plant and animal foods, raw materials of stone, wood and vegetable fibre used for tool production and maintenance is strongly influenced by the nature of soils, the composition of vegetation cover and the climactic characteristics of a given region. The location of site-types such as open camp-sites and middens are strongly influenced by these factors, which are specific to different land systems and bedrock geologies. Understanding the environmental context of any given region is therefore an integral component necessary to modelling past Aboriginal land-use practices and/or predicting site distribution patterns within any given landscape (Carney and Steele 1997:12).

Current land use practices have the potential to affect the visibility of archaeological material; they may obscure or expose archaeological sites. In addition, previous disturbances may have also exposed archaeological material, such as excavation for dams or other ground disturbance. It is important that such factors are also considered in making assessments of archaeological resources in an area and understanding the distribution of observed sites. The majority of registered AHIMS sites in the region of the study area are stone artefact sites and middens, which occur along Sydney Harbour (AMBS 2001:16). Aboriginal occupation was often focussed on prominent landforms such as ridges, which were favourable locations for camping and travelling, and from which surrounding plant and animal resources could be viewed. However, they also camped on lower, elevated areas adjacent to reliable water sources, such as the Parramatta River. The subject site is located on high ground approximately 600 m to the west of Powells Creek and the same distance to the mangroves of Homebush Bay.

The land was extensively cleared before the 1840s resulting in the loss of the original topsoil. In addition, given the extensive disturbance to the original land surface within the current study area, it is considered that the site does not have any archaeological potential for Aboriginal heritage deposits. The site is not expected to contain Aboriginal cultural objects as the excavation and development of the site would have removed such items.

## 6.0 ARCHAEOLOGICAL SURVEY

#### 6.1 Aims

The aims of the archaeological survey were to:

- cover a representative sample of the study area and to include all landforms that will potentially be impacted by the proposed works
- record the landform, general soil information, surface conditions and vegetation conditions encountered during the survey and how these impact on the visibility of objects
- record any Aboriginal objects/sites observed during the survey
- to identify areas of potential archaeological deposit (PAD) that may be present in areas that have had no or minimal disturbance
- to collect information to ascertain whether further archaeological investigations are required.

### 6.2 Timing and personnel

The archaeological survey was undertaken over one day on the 24 September 2018. The survey was undertaken by Ryan Taddeucci (Senior Heritage Consultant, Artefact Heritage), Jennifer Norfolk (Heritage consultant, Artefact Heritage), and Kevin Telford (Aboriginal Site Officer, Metropolitan LALC).

#### 6.3 Survey strategy and methodology

The study area comprised of two Survey Units (SUs), defined by property boundary and landform (Figure 6.1).

The survey units were traversed on foot. A handheld Global Positioning System (GPS) was used to track the path of the survey team and record the coordinates of survey transects. The coordinate system projection used for all site recording was GDA94 MGA 56.

All ground exposures were examined for Aboriginal objects (stone artefacts, imported shell, or other traces of Aboriginal occupation). Old growth trees were examined for signs of cultural scarring and marking.

A photographic record was kept during the survey. Photographs were taken to record aspects of survey units including stone outcrops, stone platforms, vegetation, disturbance and recorded Aboriginal sites. Scales were used for photographs where appropriate.
### Figure 6.1: Location of survey units.



Document Path: C:\Users\GIS\Desktop\GIS\GIS\_Mapping\18177\_Olympic\_Park\MXD\Survey\_units.mxd

## 7.0 ABORIGINAL CULTURAL HERITAGE ASSESSMENT

## 7.1 Methodology

The cultural assessment in this report includes information collected through desktop assessment, consultation during the survey and through the consultation period for the RAP review of the ASR (Artefact Heritage 2018a). This information was collected by Ryan Taddeucci (Heritage Consultant, Artefact Heritage).

## 7.2 Cultural landscape

The World Heritage Convention of United Nations Educational, Scientific and Cultural Organisation (UNESCO) defines a cultural landscape as one which has 'powerful religious, artistic or cultural associations of the natural element rather than material cultural evidence, which may be insignificant or even absent' (UNESCO 1991). The relationship between Aboriginal Australians and the land is conceived in spiritual terms rather than primarily in material terms (Andrews et al 2006). Aboriginal cultural knowledge has been defined as:

Accumulated knowledge which encompasses spiritual relationships, relationships with the natural environment and the sustainable use of natural resources, and relationships between people, which are reflected in language, narratives, social organisation, values, beliefs and cultural laws and custom (Andrews et al 2006).

Aboriginal cultural knowledge was traditionally bequeathed through oral traditions from generation to generation. Within all Aboriginal communities there was a time of dislocation and upheaval associated with the arrival of colonial settlers. This widespread disruption resulted in much of the detailed knowledge and understanding of many of the elements of the cultural landscape being lost from the Aboriginal community, nonetheless many Aboriginal people maintain a strong connection to the land of their ancestors and collectively possess a wealth of knowledge passed down through the generations.

## 7.3 Identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values

Table 7.1 provides a summary of the Aboriginal cultural heritage values associated with the study area.

Cultural heritage value	Description	Source
Woollarawarre Bennelong	The study area is home to the Wangal (Wanngal or Wahngal) clan, of whom Woollarawarre Bennelong (c. 1764 – 3 January 1813) was a member. Bennelong was the first Aboriginal man to visit Europe and return. He was captured in November 1789 and brought to the settlement at Sydney Cove by order of Governor Arthur Phillip, who hoped to learn more about Aboriginal customs and language. The study area is bordered to the east by Bennelong Road, which was named after Woollarawarre Bennelong.	Australian Dictionary of Biography

## Table 7.1: Cultural heritage values identified for the study and surroundings

Cultural heritage value	Description	Source
Aboriginal stone artefacts	Aboriginal stone artefacts are representative of a tangible link between Aboriginal people and the land. The AMBS 2012 ACHAR found that AHIMS sites listed in section 5.3, to the northwest of the study area, are of local significance to Aboriginal people.	AMBS 2012
Landscape	Landscapes and landforms are significant to Aboriginal people for the information that it holds and the connection to Darug people.	Justine Coplin (Darug Custodian Aboriginal Corporation)

## 8.0 SIGNIFICANCE ASSESSMENT

No Aboriginal sites or areas of PAD have been identified throughout the pedestrian survey. A significance assessment of the scientific, social, historic and aesthetic values of the study area is included below.

## 8.1 Significance assessment criteria

An assessment of the cultural heritage significance of an item or place is required in order to form the basis of its management. The Guide (OEH 2011: 10) provides guidelines, in accordance with the Burra Charter (Australia ICOMOS 2013) for significance assessment with assessments being required to consider the following criteria:

- Social values does the area have a strong or special association with a particular community or cultural group for social, cultural or spiritual reasons
- Historic values is the area important to the cultural or natural history of the local area and/or region and/or state
- Scientific values does the area have the potential to yield information that will contribute to an understanding of the cultural and natural history of the local area and/or region and/or state
- Aesthetic values is the area important in demonstrating aesthetic characteristics in the local and/or region and/or state.

Scientific values should be considered in light of the following criteria:

- Research potential does the evidence suggest any potential to contribute to an understanding of the area and/or region and/or state's natural and cultural history?
- Representativeness how much variability (outside and/or inside the subject area) exists, what is already conserved, how much connectivity is there?
- Rarity is the subject area important in demonstrating a distinctive way of life, custom, process, land-use, function or design no longer practised? Is it in danger of being lost or of exceptional interest?
- Education potential does the subject area contain teaching sites or sites that might have teaching potential?

It is important to note that heritage significance is a dynamic value.

## 8.2 Significance assessment

### 8.2.1 Social and cultural value

Social/cultural heritage significance should be addressed by the Aboriginal people who have a connection to, or interest in, the area. As part of the consultation process the registered Aboriginal stakeholder groups were asked to provide appropriate information on the cultural significance of the study area.

The results of the consultation with the RAPs (Table 3.2) has identified that the wider landscape surrounding the study area is a significant cultural heritage value to Aboriginal people. However, no specific social or cultural values were identified for the study area.

### 8.2.2 Historic value

Historic values refer to the association of the place with aspects of Aboriginal history. Historic values are not necessarily reflected in physical objects, but may be intangible and relate to memories, stories or experiences.

The study area is home to the Wangal (Wanngal or Wahngal) clan, of whom Woollarawarre Bennelong (c. 1764 – 3 January 1813) was a member. Bennelong was the first Aboriginal man to visit Europe and return. He was captured in November 1789 and brought to the settlement at Sydney Cove by order of Governor Arthur Phillip, who hoped to learn more about Aboriginal customs and language (Australian Dictionary of Biography).

The study area is known to be associated with people, events and activities of historical importance to the Aboriginal community. Therefore, the study area is considered to possess moderate historic significance.

### 8.2.3 Aesthetic value

Aesthetic values refer to the sensory, scenic, architectural and creative aspects of the place. These values may be related to the landscape and are often closely associated with social/cultural values. The study area has undergone significant alteration and clearance from construction and demolition of past structures. Due to this construction and modification the study area no longer demonstrates aesthetic significance.

Portions of Sydney Olympic Park, which remain undeveloped, border the study area to the west across Bennelong Road. Those areas, which do not include the study area, demonstrate high aesthetic values and significance.

## 8.2.4 Scientific value

The ASR (Artefact Heritage 2018a) did not identify any Aboriginal sites or areas of PAD. Therefore, the study area is not considered to be hold any scientific significance.

## 8.3 Statement of significance

As no Aboriginal archaeological sites or areas of PAD were identified within the study area, the study area possesses low scientific significance. The study area has been subject to significant development and the current aesthetic is artificial, as a result the study area is of low aesthetic significance. The study area has a major connection to Bennelong and has been assessed as possessing moderate historical significance. No specific cultural values associated within the study area were identified. Overall, the study area is considered to be of low significance.

## 9.0 IMPACT ASSESSMENT

## 9.1 Proposed development

It is proposed that a 15 storey residential development, including three basement levels with a bulk excavation level of approximately 1.85 m will occur at 1 Murray Rose Avenue. A similar development is planned for 2 Murray Rose Avenue; however, the basement will only have two levels with a bulk excavation level of approximately 0.4 m.

The geotechnical investigations found that 1 Murray Rose Avenue has a fill depth of 0.9 m and 2 Murray Rose Avenue has a fill depth of 1.2 m. It was found that natural deposits were located immediately below the fill layer. Therefore, it is very unlikely that the proposed works will encounter intact historical deposits.

## 9.2 Potential Aboriginal heritage impact

The definition of harm is limited to impacts which '...destroys, defaces, damages an object or place or in relation to an object – moves the object from land on which is has been situated.' (s5 NPW Act).

As the proposal would not result in impacts to identified Aboriginal objects or a registered Aboriginal place the proposed works would not result in harm as identified under the NPW Act.

A summary of the proposed impact is provided in Table 9.1.

Table 9.1	: Summary	of impact
-----------	-----------	-----------

Site name	Type of harm	Degree of harm	Consequence of harm
1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park	None	None	No loss of value

It is acknowledged that the continued development of the Auburn LGA has the potential to result in a cumulative negative impact on the cultural values of the region. Potential measures to incorporate the cultural values of the study area are included in Section 10.0, below.

## 9.3 Management and mitigation measures

The overall guiding principle for cultural heritage management is that where possible Aboriginal sites should be conserved. The current study area is not considered to contain Aboriginal archaeological potential and subsequently management and mitigation measures related to this aspect of cultural heritage is not required.

The study area is located within a culturally significant precinct with regards to both pre-contact and post contact use of the region. This connection to the region resulted in high cultural values being ascribed to the Auburn region.

The proposed management measures, outlined below, are based on the assessed levels of cultural significance and the potential for ongoing development to detract from the cultural significance of the Auburn region.

## 9.3.1 Heritage interpretation strategy

The key aim of heritage interpretation would be to connect to contemporary experience of residents and the public with the Aboriginal cultural values associated with the Auburn region. Heritage interpretation would be undertaken in consultation with the RAPs to inform on appropriate.

- Incorporating Aboriginal design into the built form through design features such as: Client had agreed to engage Aboriginal artist. And would prefer to limit the extend of the artwork to the public domain
  - Facades
  - o Paving
  - o Murals
  - o Artwork
- Incorporating local Aboriginal language words into naming conventions within the building (room names, floor names)
- Incorporating native plant species into any plantings including bush tucker species
- Providing interpretive information regarding the Aboriginal history of the site within common areas

Any strategy for interpretation must be developed and implemented in consultation with the RAPs.

## 9.3.2 Changes to the proposed works

This ACHAR is based upon the most recent information made available to Artefact Heritage as of the date of preparation of this report. Any changes made to the proposal should be assessed by an archaeologist in consultation with the registered Aboriginal stakeholder groups. Any changes that may impact areas not assessed during the current study may warrant further investigation and result in changes to the recommended management and mitigation measures.

## 9.3.3 Unexpected finds

Unexpected Aboriginal objects remain protected by the *National Parks and Wildlife Act 1974*. If any such objects, or potential objects, are uncovered during works, all work in the vicinity should cease immediately. A qualified archaeologist should be contacted to assess the find and OEH and Metropolitan LALC must be notified.

## 9.4 Ecologically Sustainable Development principles

In accordance with the guide, Ecologically Sustainable Development principles have been considered in preparation of this ACHAR, including options to avoid impacts to Aboriginal cultural heritage, assessment of unavoidable impacts, identification of mitigation and management measures, and taking account of Aboriginal community views. The principles of Ecologically Sustainable Development are detailed in the NSW *Protection of the Environment Administration Act 1991*. Ecologically Sustainable Development principles relevant to assessment of the current proposal as it relates to Aboriginal cultural heritage are considered below.

### 9.4.1 The integration principle

Decision-making processes should effectively integrate both long term and short term economic, environmental, social and equitable considerations (the 'integration principle'). The proposal would comply with the integration principle in regard to Aboriginal heritage. There are no identified areas archaeological significance within the study area that will be impacted.

An in-depth assessment of cultural values of the region was included during the consultation process for the current ACHAR. During detailed design, an interpretive strategy will be developed to assess potential ways to incorporate cultural values into the built environment of the study area.

### 9.4.2 The precautionary principle

If there are threats of serious or irreversible environmental damage, lack of full scientific confidence should not be used as a reason for postponing measures to prevent environmental degradation (the 'precautionary principle'). Current and previous assessments of the study area have identified the study area as heavily disturbed and subsequently demonstrating low archaeological potential. Due to the regional nature of the cultural values associated with Redfern the proposed development will not result in significant impacts to the cultural values of the region.

## 9.4.3 The principle of intergenerational equity

The present generation should ensure that the health, diversity and productivity of the environment is maintained or enhanced for the benefit of future generations (the 'principle of intergenerational equity').

The implementation of interpretive elements to the design of the built environment will enhance the potential dissemination of information regarding the cultural values

## 9.5 Cumulative impacts

A cumulative impact is an impact on Aboriginal cultural heritage resulting from the incremental impact of the action/s of a development when added to other past, present and reasonably foreseeable future actions.

While no evidence of tangible cultural heritage is likely to be present within the study area, the study area contains identified intangible heritage values. To mitigate against the loss of heritage values, as a result of past, present and future developments, it is recommended that a heritage interpretation strategy be implemented.

## **10.0 MANAGEMENT AND MITIGATION MEASURES**

The overall guiding principle for cultural heritage management is that where possible Aboriginal sites should be conserved.

Where unavoidable impacts occur then measures to mitigate and manage impacts are proposed. Mitigation measures primarily concern preserving the heritage values of sites beyond the physical existence of the site. The most common methods involve detailed recording of Aboriginal objects, archaeological test and salvage excavations, artefact analysis and, where appropriate, reburial of Aboriginal objects in a location determined by the registered Aboriginal parties.

Mitigation measures vary depending on the assessment of archaeological significance of a particular Aboriginal site and are based on its research potential, rarity, representatives and educational value. In general, the significance of a site would influence the choice of preferred conservation outcomes and appropriate mitigation measures, usually on the following basis:

- Low archaeological significance- Conservation where possible, but usually no mitigation required if impacts are unavoidable.
- Moderate archaeological significance- Conservation where possible. If conservation is not practicable, salvage excavations or similar mechanisms determined in consultation with the Aboriginal community may be necessary.
- High archaeological significance- conservation as a priority. Only if all practicable alternatives have been exhausted would impacts be considered justified. Comprehensive salvage excavations may be necessary.

No evidence of Aboriginal cultural heritage material has been identified within the study area. Therefore, no further archaeological investigations will be required.

## 10.1 Discovery of human remains

If any human remains are discovered and/or harmed in, on or under the land, the following actions must be taken:

- The remains must not be harmed/ further harmed
- Immediately cease all works at the particular location
- Secure the area so as to avoid further harm to the remains
- Notify the NSW Police and OEH's Environment Line on 131 555 as soon as practicable and provide any available details of the remains and their location
- Do not recommence any work at the particular location unless authorised in writing by OEH.

## 10.2 Changes to the proposed works

This ACHAR is based upon the most recent information made available to Artefact Heritage as of the date of preparation of this report. Any changes made to the proposal should be assessed by an archaeologist in consultation with the registered Aboriginal stakeholder groups. Any changes that may impact on Aboriginal sites not assessed during the current study may warrant further investigation and result in changes to the recommended management and mitigation measures.

## 10.3 Heritage interpretation strategy

Impacts to intangible heritage can be mitigated through interpretation that acknowledges the Aboriginal occupation and utilisation of the study area. In consultation with RAPs, a Heritage Interpretation Strategy should be prepared, and the plan implemented, which addresses the cultural significance of this location within the Darug landscape. Methods of incorporating identified Aboriginal heritage values into the design process could include interpretive displays and artistic elements within the new premises, and external elements such as paving components and plantings, providing information on Aboriginal land-use and life-ways within the study area and surrounds. Samples or reconstructions of the archaeological finds could be considered for incorporation into the internal interpretive elements.

## 10.4 Ongoing consultation with Aboriginal stakeholder groups

Consultation with the registered Aboriginal stakeholders would continue throughout the life of the project, as necessary. Ongoing consultation with registered Aboriginal stakeholders will take place throughout all facets of the project, in the event of any unexpected Aboriginal objects being identified during works. To keep consultation current, the registered Aboriginal parties should be sent an update on the project everything six months.

## 11.0 RECOMMENDATIONS

The following recommendations are based on consideration of:

- Statutory requirements under the NPW Act
- SEARs SSD\_9403
- The results of the ACHAR and ASR
- The interests of the Aboriginal stakeholder groups
- The likely impacts of the proposed development.

It was found that:

- No Aboriginal sites or areas of PAD were identified within the study area.
- Intangible heritage values have been identified within the wider landscape.

The following recommendations are made:

- To keep consultation current, in the event of unexpected finds, the registered Aboriginal parties should be sent an update on the project everything six months until construction is complete
- Any strategy for interpretation must be developed in consultation with the RAPs. A Heritage
  Interpretation Strategy should be prepared, and a plan implemented, for the study area in
  consultation with Aboriginal stakeholders. This plan would include methods of incorporating
  identified Aboriginal heritage values into the design process, such as interpretative elements,
  signage and plantings providing information on Aboriginal lifeways within the study area and
  surrounding area. This recommendation is in line with the Ecologically Sustainable Development
  principles described in section 9.4.

## 12.0 REFERENCES

- Artefact Heritage 2018a 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park Archaeological Survey Report. Report to Austino Property Group.
- Artefact Heritage 2018b 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park Heritage Impact Statement. Report to Austino Property Group.
- Artefact Heritage 2018c 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park Historical Archaeological Assessment. Report to Austino Property Group.
- Attenbrow, V. 2010 Sydney's Aboriginal Past: Investigating the archaeological and historical records. UNSW Press.
- Collins, D (1798). *An Account of the English Colony of New South Wales.* (1975) Edited by. B. H. Fletcher and A. W. Reed. Terry Hills, NSW, Royal Australian Historical Society. Volume 1.
- Kohen, J.L. (1986). An Archaeological Study of Aboriginal Sites Within the City of Blacktown, Blacktown City Council.
- Matthews, R.H. and Everitt, M.M. (1900). "The organisation, language and initiation ceremonies of the Aborigines of the south-east coast of N.S. Wales." Journal and Proceedings of the Royal Society of NSW 34: 262-281.
- Tench, Watkin (1789). Sydney's First Four Years: Being a reprint of 'A narrative of the expedition to Botany Bay' and 'A complete account of the Settlement at Port Jackson', Angus & Robertson.

### Guides

- Department of Environment, Climate Change and Water [now OEH] 2010a. Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales.
- Department of Environment, Climate Change and Water [now OEH] 2010b. Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents.
- Office of Environment and Heritage 2011 *Guide to Investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW: Part 6 National Parks and Wildlife Act 1974.*

### Online

ESpade, Blacktown Soil Landscape,

http://www.environment.nsw.gov.au/Salisapp/resources/spade/reports/bty.pdf\_, accessed 29 January 2018

## **13.0 APPENDICES**

APPENDIX 1 – CURRENT CONSULTATION LOG

Contact/organisation	Contacted by/organisation	Method	Date/time Comments
OEH GS office	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Letter	14-September-2018 Requested for registered groups
MLALC	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	14-September-2018 Invitation for consultation
Greater Sydney LLS	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	14-September-2018 Requested for registered groups
Parramatta City Council	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	14-September-2018 Requested for registered groups
The registrar	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	14-September-2018 Requested for registered groups
NNTT	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	14-September-2018 Requested for registered groups
NTSCORP	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	14-September-2018 Requested for registered groups
Parramatta Advertiser	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	14-September-2018 Placed advertisement
Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Parramatta Advertiser	Email	14-September-2018 Receipt of email
Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Parramatta City Council	Email	14-September-2018 Receipt of email
Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	NNTT	Email	14-September-2018 Receipt of email
Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	OEH GS office	Email	18-September-2018 List of stakeholders
Deerubbin Local Aboriginal Land Council	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	18-September-2018 Invitation for consultation
Gandangara Local Aboriginal Land Council	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	18-September-2018 Invitation for consultation
Parramatta City Council ATSI Advisory Committee	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	18-September-2018 Invitation for consultation
Darug Custodian Aboriginal Corporation	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	18-September-2018 Invitation for consultation
Darug Tribal Aboriginal Corporation	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	18-September-2018 Invitation for consultation
Darug Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessments	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Letter	18-September-2018 Invitation for consultation
Darug Land Observations	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	18-September-2018 Invitation for consultation
Darug Aboriginal Landcare Inc	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	18-September-2018 Invitation for consultation
Gunjeewong Cultural Heritage Aboriginal Corporation	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	18-September-2018 Invitation for consultation
Merrigarn Indigenous Corporation	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	18-September-2018 Invitation for consultation
Corroboree Aboriginal Corporation	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	18-September-2018 Invitation for consultation
Murra Bidgee Mullangari Aboriginal Corporation	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	18-September-2018 Invitation for consultation
Muragadi Heritage Indigenous Corporation	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	18-September-2018 Invitation for consultation
Bidjawong Aboriginal Corporation	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Letter	18-September-2018 Invitation for consultation
Kamilaroi-Yankuntjatjara Working Group	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	18-September-2018 Invitation for consultation
Wurrumay Consultancy	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	18-September-2018 Invitation for consultation
Warragil Cultural Services	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	18-September-2018 Invitation for consultation
Kawul Cultural Services	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	18-September-2018 Invitation for consultation
Tocomwall	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	18-September-2018 Invitation for consultation
Amanda Hickey Cultural Services	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	18-September-2018 Invitation for consultation
Widescope Indigenous Group	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	18-September-2018 Invitation for consultation
HSB Consultants	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	18-September-2018 Invitation for consultation
Rane Consulting	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	18-September-2018 Invitation for consultation
Aboriginal Archaeology Service Incorporated	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	18-September-2018 Invitation for consultation
Dhinawan-Dhigaraa Culture and Heritage	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	18-September-2018 Invitation for consultation
Gunyuu	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	18-September-2018 Invitation for consultation
Walbunja	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	18-September-2018 Invitation for consultation
Badu	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	18-September-2018 Invitation for consultation
Goobah Developments	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	18-September-2018 Invitation for consultation
	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	18-September-2018 Invitation for consultation
Wullung Verramurra	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	18-September-2018 Invitation for consultation
	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	18-September-2018 Invitation for consultation
Nundagurri	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	18-September-2018 Invitation for consultation
Murrumbul	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	18-September-2018 Invitation for consultation
Jerringong			
Pemulwuy CHTS	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email Email	18-September-2018 Invitation for consultation
Bilinga	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	18-September-2018 Invitation for consultation
Munyunga	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact		18-September-2018 Invitation for consultation
Wingikara	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	18-September-2018 Invitation for consultation
Minnamunnung	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	18-September-2018 Invitation for consultation
Walgalu	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	18-September-2018 Invitation for consultation
Thauaira	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	18-September-2018 Invitation for consultation
Dharug	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	18-September-2018 Invitation for consultation
Bilinga Cultural Heritage Technical Services	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	18-September-2018 Invitation for consultation
Gunyuu Cultural Heritage Technical Services	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	18-September-2018 Invitation for consultation
Munyunga Cultural Heritage Technical Services	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	18-September-2018 Invitation for consultation
Murrumbul Cultural Heritage Technical Services	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	18-September-2018 Invitation for consultation

Marcade ControlNon-IndextocontrolControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlControlContro		Duran Taddauaa!/Artafaat	Email	40 Contempor 2040 Invitation for consultation
Bin-SigBin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table.Bin-Table. <th< td=""><td>Wingikara Cultural Heritage Technical Services</td><td>Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact</td><td>Email</td><td>18-September-2018 Invitation for consultation</td></th<>	Wingikara Cultural Heritage Technical Services	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	18-September-2018 Invitation for consultation
ChenkingName and second s	-	•		
MaringelMaringelseMaringelseFinal18Separate 2088Initiation for consultationBioloco Maringelse CorporationMaringelse CorporationMaringelse CorporationNational MaringelseNational MaringelseBioloco MaringelseMaringelse CorporationMaringelse CorporationNational MaringelseNational MaringelseBioloco MaringelseMaringelse CorporationMaringelse CorporationNational MaringelseNational MaringelseNational CorporationMaringelse CorporationMaringelse CorporationNational MaringelseNational MaringelseNational CorporationMaringelse CorporationMaringelse CorporationNational MaringelseNational MaringelseNational CorporationMaringelse CorporationMaringelse CorporationNational Maringelse CorporationNational CorporationMaringelse CorporationNational Maringelse CorporationNational Maringelse CorporationNational CorporationNational Maringelse Corporation </td <td>-</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>	-			
Bubb ConversionApon TardexxxXIndex1FindIt Sequence 2018Invation in consultationBubb Schward CanApon TardexxXIndex1End18 September 2018Invation in consultationBubb Schward CanMandacxXIndex1End18 September 2018Invation in consultationBubb Schward CanMandacxXIndex1End <td></td> <td>,</td> <td></td> <td></td>		,		
BackgroupApon Tardencol/AndraidFind18-September 2018 Instance for consultationGeneration Absental CorporationApon Tardencol/AndraidEnd18-September 2018 Instance for consultationGeneration Absental CorporationApon Tardencol/AndraidEnd18-September 2018 Instance for consultationBarting GenerationApon Tardencol/Andr	-	,		
Big Reguest DiscNon Tadouc/AnteniaFinalBig Reguest DiscBin Matter for consultationName and Logo		,		
BiomageniaNam Endelsect/ArticleFinalSelection-2018 Invitation for consultationWindow AdvergeniaNam Endelsection/HerberFinalSelection-2018 Invitation for consultationWindow AdvergeniaNam Endelsection/HerberFinalSelection-2018 Invitation for consultationWindow AdvergeniaNam Endelsection/HerberFinalSelection-2018 Invitation for consultationNam Endelsection/HerberNam Endelsection/HerberFinalSelection-2018 Invitation for consultationNam Endelsection/HerberNam EndelsectionFinalSelectionNam Endelsection/HerberNam EndelsectionFinalSelectionNam Endelsection/HerberNam EndelsectionFinalSelectionNam Endelsection/HerberNam EndelsectionFinalSelectionNam EndelsectionName EndelsectionFinalSelectionSelectionNam EndelsectionName EndelsectionFinalSelectionSelection <td>Butucarbin Aboriginal Corporation</td> <td>•</td> <td></td> <td></td>	Butucarbin Aboriginal Corporation	•		
NerrowshipYan Tadawac/ArteriaEmailSaparaba-2018 Invitation for consultationBarting Oxformal CorporationYan Tadawac/ArteriaEmailSaparaba-2018 Invitation for consultationBarting Oxformal CorporationYan Tadawac/ArteriaEmailSaparaba-2018 Invitation for consultationBarting Oxformal CorporationInvitation Yan CorporationEmailSaparaba-2018 Invitation for consultationBarting Oxformal CorporationInvitation Yan CorporationSaparaba-2018 Registeria for consultationBarting CorporationInvitationSaparaba-2018 Registeria for consultationBarting Cor	Didge Ngunawal Clan	•		
WaleWalePairTubbesci/UnitedEmail19.8 September 2018Invision for consulationBarling backscipated incrpanetionRyn Tubbesci/UnitedEmail18.8 September 2018Ryn TubbescipatedBarling backscipated incrpanetionRyn TubbescipatedEmail18.8 September 2018Ryn TubbescipatedBarling backscipated incrpanetionRyn TubbescipatedEmail18.8 September 2018Ryn Ryn Ryn Ryn Ryn Ryn Ryn Ryn Ryn Ryn	Ginninderra Aboriginal Corporation	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	18-September-2018 Invitation for consultation
Backer of AdargentPain Taddecon/ArtelactEmail18-September 2018 Induction for consultationDamage NumeRyan Taddecon/ArtelactEmail18-September 2018 Induction for consultationDamage NumeRyan Taddecon/ArtelactEmail18-September 2018 Induction for consultationDamage NumeRyan Taddecon/ArtelactEmail18-September 2018 Induction for consultationNum Taddecon/ArtelactBaryanEmail18-September 2018 Induction for consultationNum Taddecon/ArtelactBaryanEmail18-September 2018 Inductor for consultationNum Taddecon/ArtelactMaryanEmail18-September 2	Nerrigundah			
mon_PairPairTaddscu/ArletciEnalEnal19. Segnether-2018 invitation for consulationDang Bosciescomport [Bern storing of reduction of the store of the sto	Wailwan Aborigianl Diging Group		Email	18-September-2018 Invitation for consultation
Dynu Tadsucci/ArticleNam Tadsucci/ArticleFinalBis-September-2018 Registree interestNam Tadsucci/ArticleNamo NoteNam SectorNam SectorNam Tadsucci/ArticleNamo NoteNam SectorNam SectorNam Tadsucci/ArticleNamo NoteNamo NoteName NoteNam Tadsucci/ArticleNamo NoteNamo NoteName NoteNam Tadsucci/ArticleNamo NoteName NoteName NoteNam Tadsucci/ArticleNamo NoteName NoteName NoteNam Tadsucci/ArticleName NoteName Note <t< td=""><td>Barking Owl Aboriginal Corporation</td><td>Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact</td><td>Email</td><td>18-September-2018 Invitation for consultation</td></t<>	Barking Owl Aboriginal Corporation	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	18-September-2018 Invitation for consultation
Pam Taddaccu/ArticleUPFinal8 Approtende UR September 2018 Engl InterceivedPam Taddaccu/ArticlesGunyun 20Final8 September 2018 Engl InterceivedPam Taddaccu/ArticlesMurvanesuFinal8 September 2018 Engl InterceivedPam Taddaccu/ArticlesAmanda Decort8 September 2018 Engl InterceivedPam Taddaccu/ArticlesMurvanesuFinal8 September 2018 Engl InterceivedPam Taddaccu/ArticlesAmanda Decort8 September 2018 Engl InterceivedPam Taddaccu/ArticlesMurvanesuFinal8 September 2018 Engl InterceivedPam Taddaccu/ArticlesMurvanesuFinal8 September 2018 Engl InterceivedPam Taddaccu/ArticlesMurvanesuFinal8 September 2018 Engl InterceivedPam Taddaccu/ArticlesMurvanesuFinal9 September 2018 Engl InterceivedPam Tadda	Thoorga Nura	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	18-September-2018 Invitation for consultation
Byn Taddeccu/ArtefetBillingsFinal18 September/2018 Final not receivedByn Taddeccu/ArtefetMuryungsFinal15 September/2018 Final not receivedByn Taddeccu/ArtefetMuryungsFinal15 September/2018 Final not receivedByn Taddeccu/ArtefetWingbarnFinal18 September/2018 Final not receivedByn Taddeccu/ArtefetWingbarnFinal18 September/2018 Final not receivedByn Taddeccu/ArtefetAnnada Dezvari - Annada Hicky Cultural ServiceFinal18 September/2018 Engline receivedByn Taddeccu/ArtefetAnnada Dezvari - Annada Hicky Cultural ServiceFinal18 September/2018 Engline receivedByn Taddeccu/ArtefetAnnada Dezvari - Annada Hicky Cultural ServiceFinal18 September/2018 Engline receivedByn Taddeccu/ArtefetByn Taddeccu/ArtefetFinal18 September/2018 Engline receivedByn Taddeccu/ArtefetByn Taddeccu/ArtefetFinal18 September/2018 Engline receivedByn Taddeccu/ArtefetByn Taddeccu/ArtefetFinal18 September/2018 Engline receivedByn Taddeccu/ArtefetCoporationFinal19 September/2018 Engline receivedByn Taddeccu/ArtefetNUTFinal19 September/2018 Engline received </td <td>Darug Boorooberongal Elders Aboriginal Corporation</td> <td>Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact</td> <td>Email</td> <td>18-September-2018 Invitation for consultation</td>	Darug Boorooberongal Elders Aboriginal Corporation	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	18-September-2018 Invitation for consultation
NameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNameNa	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Lilly Carroll DNC	Email	18-September-2018 Registered interest
Namil Addeccul/ArtefactMumpinEmail18-Sequence/308 Enabling transmissionNamil Addeccul/ArtefactWingluanEnail18-Sequence/308 Enail indirecteredNamil Addeccul/ArtefactWingluanEnail18-Sequence/308 Enail indirecteredNamil Addeccul/ArtefactManil Addeccul/ArtefactEnail18-Sequence/308 Enail indirecteredNamil Addeccul/ArtefactManil Addeccul/ArtefactEnail18-Sequence/308 Engineera interacteredApenat Addeccul/ArtefactManila Addecul/ArtefactEnail18-Sequence/308 Engineera interacteredAminal Addecul/ArtefactManila Addecul/ArtefactEnail18-Sequence/308 Engineera interacteredManila Addecul/ArtefactAminal DefactoredInteractered18-Sequence/308 Engineera interacteredManila Addecul/ArtefactCopional MarteredInteractered18-Sequence/308 Engineera interacteredManila Addecul/ArtefactCopional MarteredInteractered18-Sequence/308 Engineera interacteredManila Addecul/ArtefactCopional MarteredInteractered18-Sequence/308 Engineera interacteredManila Addecul/ArtefactCopional MarteredInteracteredInteracteredManila Addecul/ArtefactNamila Addecul/ArtefactInteractered18-Sequence/308 Engineera interacteredManila Addecul/ArtefactNamila Addecul/ArtefactInteractered18-Sequence/308 Engineera interacteredManila Addecul/ArtefactNamila Addecul/ArtefactInteractered18-Sequence/308 Engineera interacteredManila Addecul/ArtefactNamila Addecul/ArtefactInteractered <td>Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact</td> <td>Bilinga</td> <td>Email</td> <td>18-September-2018 Email not received</td>	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Bilinga	Email	18-September-2018 Email not received
Big Nardbacker/ArteletMuryneginEmailSeptemer/2015 main int receivedNar Tadbacker/ArteletWingbarnFinalSeptemer/2015 main int receivedNar Tadbacker/ArteletWingbarnFinalSeptemer/2015 main int receivedNar Tadbacker/ArteletNar Tadbacker/ArteletFinalSeptemer/2015 main int receivedNar Tadbacker/ArteletNarabbacker/ArteletSeptemer/2015 main int receivedNarabbacker/ArteletNarabbacker/ArteletSeptemer/2015 main int receivedNarabbacker/ArteletNarabbacker/ArteletSeptemer/2015 mainNarabbacker/ArteletNarabbacker/ArteletSeptemer/2015 mainNarabbacker/ArteletNarabbacker/ArteletSeptemer/2015 mainNarabbacker/ArteletNarabbacker/ArteletSeptemer/2016 main<	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Gunyuu	Email	18-September-2018 Email not received
NamiaNamiaInalSequence 2018 Frail and necessedNamia Taddecc/ArtelectKengundaFrail34 Sequence 2018 frail in crecisedNamia Taddecc/ArtelectKengundaFrail34 Sequence 2018 frail in crecisedNamia Taddecc/ArtelectAnnia Dezveri - Anniada Hickey Cultural ServiceFrail34 Sequence 2018 Registered interestNamia Taddecc/ArtelectAnniada Dezveri - Anniada Hickey Cultural ServiceFrail34 Sequence 2018 Registered interestNamia Taddecc/ArtelectAnniada Dezveri - Anniada Hickey Cultural ServiceFrail34 Sequence 2018 Registered interestNamia Taddecc/ArtelectKenia Taddecc/ArtelectFrail34 Sequence 2018 Registered interestNamia Taddecc/ArtelectNTTFrail34 Se	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact		Email	18-September-2018 Email not received
Namiladioxec/ArtefactVinginamEnal14-Segmen-2018 Fmail interceevedNamiladioxec/ArtefactFmail14-Segmen-2018 fmail interceevedNamiladioxec/ArtefactFmail18-Segmen-2018 feasibered interestNamiladioxec/ArtefactMaring Carcell Active Activ		· -		
Nambabacc/ArefactNami Dabbacc/ArefactEnal18-September-2018 Registered interestRyn Taddecc/ArefactAnnanda Dezwart - Annanda Hickey Cultural ServicesEnal18-September-2018 Registered interestAnnanda Dezwart - Annanda Hickey Cultural ServicesEnal18-September-2018 Registered interestAnnanda Dezwart - Annanda Hickey Cultural ServicesEnal18-September-2018 Registered interestManifactorelic/ArefactKaning Carril-Dahoma - CACEnal18-September-2018 Registered interestManifactorelic/ArefactKaning Carril-Dahoma - CACEnal18-September-2018 Registered interestManifactorelic/ArefactCorporationEnal18-September-2018 Registered interestGardon Workman - DEACVenal Sectorelic/Arefact19-September-2018 Registered interestManifactorelic/ArefactJesse Johnson - Muragod Hietage IndigenousEnal19-September-2018 Registered interestRyn Taddeccul/ArefactNTTEnal19-September-2018 Registered interestRyn Taddeccul/ArefactSocit Franks - TocornwallEnal19-September-2018 Registered interestRyn Taddeccul/ArefactNNTEnal19-September-2018 Registered interestRyn Taddeccul/ArefactNorther ColumnaSocit Franks - TocornwallEnalRyn Taddeccul/ArefactNamina ColumnaSocit Franks - TocornwallEnalRyn Taddeccul/ArefactRyn Taddeccul/ArefactEnal29-September-2018 Registered interestRyn Taddeccul/ArefactRyn Taddeccul/ArefactEnal29-September-2018 Registered interestRyn Taddeccul/Ar				
Lihy Carol DNCPyan Taddecci/ArtefactEnail18-September-2018 RegisterationRyan Taddecci/ArtefactAmanda Dezwart - Amanda Hickey Cultural SeviesFinal18-September-2018 Registeration interestRyan Taddecci/ArtefactMarily Carol-Johnson - CACFinal18-September-2018 Registeration interestRyan Taddecci/ArtefactMarily Carol-Johnson - CACFinal18-September-2018 Registeration interestRyan Taddecci/ArtefactGordon Workman - DBEAFinal18-September-2018 Registeration interestRyan Taddecci/ArtefactGordon Workman - DBEAFinal19-September-2018 Registeration interestRyan Taddecci/ArtefactGordon Workman - DBEAFinal19-September-2018 Registeration interestRyan Taddecci/ArtefactNyan Taddecci/ArtefactFinal19-September-2018 Registeration interestRyan Taddecci/ArtefactNyan Taddecci/ArtefactFinal19-September-2018 Registeration interestRyan Taddecci/ArtefactNyan Taddecci/ArtefactFinal19-September-2018 Registeration interestRyan Taddecci/ArtefactSout Finals - TocomwallFinal19-September-2018 Registeration interestRya		-		
Ray Taddaucci/Artefact         Amanda Dezwart - Amanda Hickey Cultural Services         Email         18 September 2018 Registered interest           Amanda Dezwart - Amanda Hickey Cultural Services         Rayn Taddaucci/Artefact         Email         18 September 2018 Confirmed registeration           Mari Todaucci/Artefact         Rayn Taddaucci/Artefact         Email         18 September 2018 Confirmed registeration           Mari Todaucci/Artefact         Gordon Workman - DEAC         Email         18 September 2018 Confirmed registeration           Rayn Taddaucci/Artefact         Gordon Workman - DEAC         Email         19 September 2018 Registered interest           Sesse Johnson - Kart         Corporation         Email         19 September 2018 Registered interest           Rayn Taddaucci/Artefact         Corporation         Email         19 September 2018 Registered interest           Rayn Taddaucci/Artefact         NNTT         Email         19 September 2018 Registered interest           Rayn Taddaucci/Artefact         NOTT         Email         19 September 2018 Registered interest           Rayn Taddaucci/Artefact         Sociel Franks - Tocomwall         Email         20 September 2018 Registered interest           Rayn Taddaucci/Artefact         Andrew Williams - AAS         Email         20 September 2018 Registered interest           Rayn Taddaucci/Artefact         Andrew Williams - AAS </td <td></td> <td>-</td> <td></td> <td></td>		-		
Amada bazwart. Amanda Hickey Cultural ServicesWaring Carrell-Johnson - CACMaring Carrell			2	
Amada bazwart. Amanda Hickey Cultural ServicesWaring Carrell-Johnson - CACMaring Carrell	Rvan Taddeucci/Artefact	Amanda Dezwart - Amanda Hickey Cultural Services	Email	18-Sentember-2018 Registered interest
Byan Tadewace/ArtefactMainy Carroll-Johnson-CACFinal18-September-2018 Registered InterstRyan Tadewace/ArtefactGody Workman-DBACFinal18-September-2018 Registered InterstRyan Tadewace/ArtefactFinal18-September-2018 Registered InterstCordon Workman -DBACKyan Tadewace/Artefact19-September-2018 Registered InterstCordon Workman -DBACCordon Workman -DBAC19-September-2018 Registered InterstParn Tadewace/ArtefactCordon Workman -DBAC19-September-2018 Registered InterstRyan Tadewace/ArtefactNTTSeptember-2018 Registered InterstRyan Tadewace/ArtefactSott Franks - Tocomwall19-September-2018 Registered InterstRyan Tadewace/ArtefactSott Franks - Tocomwall19-September-2018 Registered InterstSott Franks - TocomwallVan Taddwace/Artefact19-September-2018 Registered InterstSott Franks - TocomwallVan Taddwace/Artefact19-September-20				
MaringMaringRani18-September 2018 Confirmed registerationGordon Workman - DBACRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail19-September 2018 Confirmed registerationGordon Workman - DBACNyan Taddeucci/Artefact19-September 2018 Registered interestRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactCorporationHuragel Inclingenous CorporationRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactCorporationFinal19-September 2018 Registered interestRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactNTTEmail19-September 2018 Confirmed registerationRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactSouf Franks - TocomwallEmail20-September 2018 Indigenous Land Use Agreements over the identified areaRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactSouf Franks - TocomwallEmail20-September 2018 Indigenous Land Use Agreements over the identified areaRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail20-September 2018 Indigenous Land Use Agreements over the identified areaRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactAndrew Williams - AASEmail20-September 2018 Registered interestRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactLastine Copin - DCACEmail20-September 2018 Registered interestAndrew Williams - ASEmail20-September 2018 Registered interestRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactLastine Copin - DCACEmail20-September 2018 Registered interestJustine Copin - DCACEmail20-September 2018 Registered interestRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactLastine Copin - DCACEmail20-September 2018 Registered interestRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactLastine Copin - DCACEmail20-September 2018 Registered interest				
Ryn Tadeucu/ArtefactGroin Workman-DBRACEmail18-september-2018 Registered interestGroin Workman-DBRACRyna Tadeucu/ArtefactEmail19-september-2018 Registered interestRyna Tadeucu/ArtefactCorporationEmail19-September-2018 Registered interestRyna Tadeucu/ArtefactNTTnatabeter 2018 Registered interestRyna Tadeucu/ArtefactNTTnatabeter 2018 Registered interestRyna Tadeucu/ArtefactScott Franks - To cornwallEmail19-September-2018 Registered interestRyna Tadeucu/ArtefactRyna Tadeucu/ArtefactEmail19-September-2018 Registered interestRyna Tadeucu/ArtefactRyna Tadeucu/ArtefactEmail20-September-2018 Registered interestRyna Tadeucu/ArtefactRyna Tadeucu/ArtefactEmail2-September-2018 Registered interestRyna Tadeucu/ArtefactRyna Tadeucu/ArtefactEmail2-September-2018 Registered interestRyna Tadeucu/ArtefactRyna Tadeucu/ArtefactEmail2-September-2018 Registered interestRyna Tadeucu/ArtefactRyna Tadeucu/Artefa	· · ·			· · ·
Gordon Workman - DBACPyn Taddeucc/ArtefactPail19-September-2018 Confirmed registerationRyan Taddeucc/ArtefactCorporationEmail19-September-2018 Registered interestJesse Johnson - Muragadi Heritage Indigenous CorporationRyan Taddeucc/ArtefactInstanceRyan Taddeucc/ArtefactNINTEmail19-September-2018 Registered interestRyan Taddeucc/ArtefactNINTEmail19-September-2018 Indigenous Land Use Agreements over the identified areaRyan Taddeucc/ArtefactNINTEmail19-September-2018 Confirmed registerationRyan Taddeucc/ArtefactNINTEmail20-September-2018 Confirmed registerationRyan Taddeucc/ArtefactNan Taddeucc/ArtefactEmail20-September-2018 Confirmed registerationRyan Taddeucc/ArtefactNan Taddeucc/ArtefactEmail20-September-2018 Registered interestAndrew Williams - ASNan Taddeucc/ArtefactEmail20-September-2018 Registered interestAndrew Williams - ASNan Taddeucc/ArtefactEmail20-September-2018 Registered interestJustine Copin - DCACRyan Taddeucc/ArtefactEmail21-September-2018 Registered interestNan Taddeucc/ArtefactArtika Jalomaki - Yulay Cultural ServicesEmail22-September-2018 Registered interestNan Taddeucc/ArtefactArtika Jalomaki - Yulay Cultural ServicesEmail22-September-2018 Registered interestNan Taddeucc/ArtefactArtika Jalomaki - Yulay Cultural ServicesEmail22-September-2018 Registered interestRyan Taddeucc/ArtefactNan Taddeucc/ArtefactEma	•			
Jesse Johnson - Muragadi Heritage Indigenous         Finit 49-September-2018 Registered interest           Jesse Johnson - Muragadi Heritage Indigenous Corporation         Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact         In Salve Tube Determination Applications, Determinations of Native Title, or no Native Title Determination Applications, Determinations of Native Title, or           Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact         NINT         Enrail         19-September-2018 Registered interest           Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact         Soott Franks - Tocomvall         Enrail         19-September-2018 Registered interest           Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact         Andrew Williams - AAS         Enrail         20-September-2018 Registered interest           Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact         Marter Williams - AAS         Enrail         20-September-2018 Registered interest           Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact         Usine Coplin - DCAC         Enrail         20-September-2018 Registered interest           Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact         Usine Coplin - DCAC         Enrail         22-September-2018 Registered interest           Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact         Enrail         22-September-2018 Registered interest	•			· · ·
Ryan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail19-September-2018 Registered interestJesse Johnson - Muragadi Heritage Indigenous CorporationRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail19-September-2018 Registered interestRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactSoot Franks - TocomwallEmail19-September-2018 Registered interestSoot Franks - TocomwallWilliams - AASEmail20-September-2018 Registered interestSoot Franks - TocomwallAndrew Williams - AASEmail20-September-2018 Registered interestAndrew Williams - AASPanil Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail20-September-2018 RegisterationAngra Taddeucci/ArtefactAndrew Williams - AASEmail20-September-2018 RegisterationAngra Taddeucci/ArtefactSoot Franks - TocomwallUsine Coplin - DCACEmailAngra Taddeucci/ArtefactByan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail20-September-2018 RegisterationAngra Taddeucci/ArtefactLeer Field - Barraby Cultural ServicesEmail22-September-2018 Registered interestAyan Taddeucci/ArtefactLeer Field - Barraby Cultural ServicesEmail22-September-2018 Registered interestRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactRogistered interest23-September-2018 Registered interestRyan Ta	Gordon Workman - DBEAC		Email	19-september-2018 Commed registeration
Jess Johnson - Muragadi Heritage Indigenous Corporation         Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact         Email         19-September-2018 Confirmed registeration           Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact         Scott Franks - Tocomwall         Email         19-September-2018 Indigenous Land Use Agreements over the identified area           Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact         Scott Franks - Tocomwall         Email         19-September-2018 Registered interest           Scott Franks - Tocomwall         Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact         Email         20-September-2018 Registered interest           Andrew Williams - AAS         Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact         Email         20-September-2018 Registered interest           Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact         Andrew Williams - AAS         Email         20-September-2018 Registered interest           Justine Coplin - DCAC         Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact         Email         21-September-2018 Registered interest           Justine Coplin - DCAC         Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact         Email         22-September-2018 Registered interest           Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact         Lee Field-Barraby Cultural Services         Email         22-September-2018 Registered interest           Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact         De Field - Varradadi Cultural Services         Email         22-September-2018 Registered interest           Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact         De Field - Varradadi Cultural Services         Email         24-September-2018 R	Dues Teddevesi (Artefest		Email	10 Contomber 2010 Desistant interest
no Native Title Determination Applications, Determinations of Native Title, or           Ryan Taddeucc/Artefact         Scott Franks - Tocomwall         Email         19-September-2018 Registered interest           Scott Franks - Tocomwall         Ryan Taddeucc/Artefact         Email         20-September-2018 Registered interest           Scott Franks - Tocomwall         Ryan Taddeucc/Artefact         Email         20-September-2018 Registered interest           Andrew Williams - AAS         Ryan Taddeucc/Artefact         Email         20-September-2018 Registered interest           Andrew Williams - AAS         Ryan Taddeucc/Artefact         Email         20-September-2018 Registered interest           Andrew Williams - AAS         Ryan Taddeucc/Artefact         Email         20-September-2018 Registered interest           Andrew Williams - AAS         Ryan Taddeucc/Artefact         Email         22-September-2018 Registered interest           Ayan Taddeucc/Artefact         Lee Field - Barraby Cultural Services         Email         22-September-2018 Registered interest           Ryan Taddeucc/Artefact         Bo Field - Vurrandasil Cultural Services         Email         22-September-2018 Registered interest           Ryan Taddeucc/Artefact         Carolyn Hickey - A1 Indigenous Services         Email         23-September-2018 Registered interest           Ryan Taddeucc/Artefact         Bo Field - Vurrandasil Cultural Services				
Ryan Taddeucc/ArtefactNNTFmail19-September-2018 Indigenous Land Use Agreements over the identified areaRyan Taddeucc/ArtefactSott Franks - Toomwall19-September-2018 Confirmed registerationRyan Taddeucc/ArtefactAndrew Williams - AASEmail20-September-2018 Registered interestRyan Taddeucc/ArtefactMaideucc/ArtefactEmail20-September-2018 Registered interestRyan Taddeucc/ArtefactJustine Copin - DCACEmail20-September-2018 Registered interestRyan Taddeucc/ArtefactJustine Copin - DCACEmail20-September-2018 Registered interestRyan Taddeucc/ArtefactLee Field-Barraby Cultural ServicesEmail22-September-2018 Registered interestRyan Taddeucc/ArtefactLee Field-Barraby Cultural ServicesEmail22-September-2018 Registered interestRyan Taddeucc/ArtefactCarolyn Hicky - A1 Indigenous ServicesEmail23-September-2018 Registered interestRyan Taddeucc/ArtefactRyan Taddeucc/ArtefactEmail24-September-2018 Registered interestRyan Taddeucc/ArtefactRyan Taddeucc/ArtefactEmail24-September-2018 Registered interestRyan Taddeucc/ArtefactRyan Taddeucc/ArtefactEmail24-September-2018 Confirmed registerationRyan Taddeucc/ArtefactRyan Taddeucc/ArtefactEmail24-September-2018 Registered interestRyan Taddeucc/ArtefactRyan Taddeucc/ArtefactEmail24-September-2018 Registered interestRyan Taddeucc/ArtefactRyan Taddeucc/ArtefactEmail24-September-2018 Registered interestRyan Taddeucc/Artefact	Jesse Johnson - Muragadi Hentage indigenous Corporation	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	
Ryan Taddeucc/ArtefactSoott Franks - TocomwallEmail19-September-2018 Registered interestSoott Franks - TocomwallRyan Taddeucc/ArtefactEmail20-September-2018 Registered interestAndrew Williams - AASRyan Taddeucc/ArtefactEmail20-September-2018 Registered interestAndrew Williams - AASRyan Taddeucc/ArtefactEmail20-September-2018 Registered interestAndrew Williams - AASRyan Taddeucc/ArtefactEmail20-September-2018 Registered interestJustine Coplin - DCACRyan Taddeucc/ArtefactEmail21-September-2018 Registered interestRyan Taddeucc/ArtefactArka Jalomak - Yulay Cultural ServicesEmail22-September-2018 Registered interestRyan Taddeucc/ArtefactBo Field - Yurandaal Cultural ServicesEmail22-September-2018 Registered interestRyan Taddeucc/ArtefactBo Field - Yurandaal Cultural ServicesEmail22-September-2018 Registered interestRyan Taddeucc/ArtefactBo Field - Yurandaal Cultural ServicesEmail24-September-2018 Registered interestRyan Taddeucc/ArtefactCarolyn Hickey - Al Indigenous ServicesRyan Taddeucc/ArtefactEmail24-September-2018 Confirmed registerationCarolyn Hickey - Al Indigenous ServicesRyan Taddeucc/ArtefactEmail24-September-2018 Confirmed registerationCarolyn Hickey - Al Indigenous ServicesRyan Taddeucc/ArtefactEmail24-September-2018 Confirmed registerationAnna Workman - DLORyan Taddeucc/ArtefactEmail24-September-2018 Confirmed registerationAndrew ConteresRyan Taddeucc/	Duran Tarahi ang si (Anta Gara)		F	
Socit Hranks - TocomwallRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail20-September-2018 Confirmed registerationRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactAndrew Williams - AASEmail20-September-2018 Registered interestAndrew Williams - AASRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactUstine Coplin - DCACEmail20-September-2018 Registered interestJustine Coplin - DCACRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactLee Field - Barraby Cultural ServicesEmail21-September-2018 Registered interestRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactLee Field - Barraby Cultural ServicesEmail22-September-2018 Registered interestRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactLee Field - Barraby Cultural ServicesEmail22-September-2018 Registered interestRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactBo Field - Vurrandali Cultural ServicesEmail22-September-2018 Registered interestRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactCarolyn Hickey - A1 Indigenous ServicesEmail23-September-2018 Registered interestRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactCarolyn Hickey - A1 Indigenous ServicesEmail24-September-2018 Confirmed registerationLee Field - Barraby Cultural ServicesRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail24-September-2018 Confirmed registerationCarolyn Hickey - A1 Indigenous ServicesRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail24-September-2018 Confirmed registerationRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactAnna Workman - DLOEmail24-September-2018 Confirmed registerationRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactAnna Workman - DLOEmail24-September-2018 Registered interestRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactCarolyn Hickey - A1 Indigenous ServicesRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEma				
Ryan Taddeucci/ArtefactAndrew Williams - AASEmail20-September-2018 Registered interestAndrew Williams - AASRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail20-September-2018 Confirmed registerationAndrew Williams - AASRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail20-September-2018 Confirmed registerationJustine Coplin - DCACRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail22-September-2018 Registered interestRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactLee Field- Barrahy Cultural ServicesEmail22-September-2018 Registered interestRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactBo Field - Vurrandaali Cultural ServicesEmail23-September-2018 Registered interestRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail24-September-2018 Confirmed registerationBo Field - Yurrandaali Cultural ServicesRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail24-September-2018 Confirmed registerationRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactAng Nava Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail24-September-2018 Registered interestAnna Norkman - DLORyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail24-September-2018 Registered interestAna Norkman - DLORyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail24-September-2018 Registered interestRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactGreater Sydney ULSEmail	· · ·			· •
Andrew Williams - AASRyan Taddeucc//ArtefactEmail20-September-2018 Confirmed registerationRyan Taddeucc//ArtefactJustine Coplin - DCACEmail20-September-2018 Registered interestJustine Coplin - DCACRyan Taddeucc//ArtefactEmail21-September-2018 Registered interestRyan Taddeucc//ArtefactLee Field - Barraby Cultural ServicesEmail22-September-2018 Registered interestRyan Taddeucc//ArtefactBo Field - Yurrandaal Cultural ServicesEmail22-September-2018 Registered interestRyan Taddeucc//ArtefactCarolyn Hickey - A1 Indigenous ServicesEmail23-September-2018 Registered interestLee Field - Barraby Cultural ServicesRyan Taddeucc//ArtefactEmail24-September-2018 Registered interestLee Field - Barraby Cultural ServicesRyan Taddeucc//ArtefactEmail24-September-2018 Confirmed registerationArika Jalomaki - Yulay Cultural ServicesRyan Taddeucc//ArtefactEmail24-September-2018 Confirmed registerationBo Field - Yurrandaali Cultural ServicesRyan Taddeucc//ArtefactEmail24-September-2018 Confirmed registerationBo Field - Yurrandaali Cultural ServicesRyan Taddeucc//ArtefactEmail24-September-2018 Confirmed registerationRyan Taddeucc//ArtefactAnna Workman - DLOEmail24-September-2018 Registered interestRyan Taddeucc//ArtefactAnna Workman - DLOEmail24-September-2018 Suggested that OEH be contactedRyan Taddeucc//ArtefactThe registrarEmail24-September-2018 Suggestered interestRyan Taddeucc//ArtefactThe				
Ryan Taddeucci/ArtefactJustine Coplin - DCACFmail20-September-2018 Registered interestJustine Coplin - DCACRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail21-September-2018 Registered interestRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactLer Field - Barraby Cultural ServicesEmail22-September-2018 Registered interestRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactBo Field - Yurrandaaii Cultural ServicesEmail22-September-2018 Registered interestRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactBo Field - Yurrandaaii Cultural ServicesEmail23-September-2018 Registered interestRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactCarolyn Hickey - Al Indigenous ServicesEmail24-September-2018 Confirmed registerationLee Field - Barraby Cultural ServicesRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail24-September-2018 Confirmed registerationArika Jalomaki - Yulay Cultural ServicesRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail24-September-2018 Confirmed registerationGorigh Hickey - AL Indigenous ServicesRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail24-September-2018 Confirmed registerationGorigh Hickey - AL Indigenous ServicesRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail24-September-2018 Confirmed registerationRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactAnna Workman - DLOEmail24-September-2018 Confirmed registerationRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactGreater Sydney LLSEmail24-September-2018 Confirmed registerationRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactGreater Sydney LLSEmail24-September-2018 Suggestered interestRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactDes Dyer - DALCEmail24-September-2018 Registered interestRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactDes Dyer				
Justine Coplin - DCACRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail21-September-2018Confirmed registerationRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactLee Field - Barraby Cultural ServicesEmail22-September-2018Registered interestRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactBo Field - Yurrandaali Cultural ServicesEmail22-September-2018Registered interestRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactBo Field - Yurrandaali Cultural ServicesEmail22-September-2018Registered interestRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactCarolyn Hickey - A1 Indigenous ServicesEmail24-September-2018Confirmed registerationArika Jalomaki - Yulay Cultural ServicesRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail24-September-2018Confirmed registerationBo Field - Yurrandaali Cultural ServicesRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail24-September-2018Confirmed registerationRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactAnna Workman - DLOEmail24-September-2018Confirmed registerationRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactGreater Sydney LLSEmail25-September-2018SongreeterRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactBe Sugreet O No registerationEmail26-September-2018No registered O No registerationRyan Taddeucci/Art				
Ryan Taddeucci/ArtefactLee Field - Barraby Cultural ServicesEmail22-September-2018 Registered interestRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactArika Jalomaki - Yulay Cultural ServicesEmail22-September-2018 Registered interestRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactBo Field - Yurrandaali Cultural ServicesEmail22-September-2018 Registered interestRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactCarolyn Hickey - A1 Indigenous ServicesEmail23-September-2018 Registered interestLee Field - Barraby Cultural ServicesRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail24-September-2018 Confirmed registerationBo Field - Yurrandaali Cultural ServicesRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail24-September-2018 Confirmed registerationBo Field - Yurrandaali Cultural ServicesRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail24-September-2018 Confirmed registerationRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail24-September-2018 Confirmed registerationCarolyn Hickey - A1 Indigenous ServicesRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail24-September-2018 Confirmed registerationCarolyn Hickey - A1 Indigenous ServicesRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail24-September-2018 Confirmed registerationAnna Workman - DLORyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail24-September-2018 Rogistered interestAnna Workman - DLORyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail25-September-2018 Rogistered interestRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactGrater Sydney LLSEmail26-September-2018 Noregistered owners, suggest Metro LALC be contactedRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactDe Syer - DALCEmail28-September-2018 Rogistered interestRyan Taddeucci/Artefact<	•	•		· · ·
Ryan Taddeucci/ArtefactArika Jalomaki - Yulay Cultural ServicesEmail22-September-2018 Registered interestRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactBo Field - Yurrandaali Cultural ServicesEmail23-September-2018 Registered interestRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactCarolyn Hickey - A1 Indigenous ServicesEmail24-September-2018 Confirmed registerationLee Field - Barraby Cultural ServicesRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail24-September-2018 Confirmed registerationArika Jalomaki - Yulay Cultural ServicesRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail24-September-2018 Confirmed registerationBo Field - Yurrandaali Cultural ServicesRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail24-September-2018 Confirmed registerationBo Field - Yurrandaali Cultural ServicesRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail24-September-2018 Confirmed registerationRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactAnna Workman - DLOEmail24-September-2018 Confirmed registerationRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactAnna Workman - DLOEmail24-September-2018 Confirmed registerationRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactGreater Synhop LLSEmail25-September-2018 NoregisterationRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactGreater Synhop LLSEmail25-September-2018 NoregisterationRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactThe registrarEmail26-September-2018 NoregisterationRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactDes Dyer - DALCEmail26-September-2018 NoregisterationRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactSteven Hickey - WidescopeEmail30-September-2018 Registered InterestRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactSteven Hickey - WidescopeEmail<	•			
Nyan Taddeucci/ArtefactBo Field - Yurrandaali Cultural ServicesEmail22-September-2018 Registered interestRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactCarolyn Hickey - A1 Indigenous ServicesEmail23-September-2018 Confirmed registerationLee Field - Barraby Cultural ServicesRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail24-September-2018 Confirmed registerationArika Jalomaki - Yulay Cultural ServicesRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail24-September-2018 Confirmed registerationBo Field - Yurrandaali Cultural ServicesRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail24-September-2018 Confirmed registerationRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactAna Workman - DLOEmail24-September-2018 Registered interestAna Workman - DLORyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail24-September-2018 Ronfirmed registerationRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactGreater Sydney LLSEmail24-September-2018 Ronfirmed registerationRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactThe registrarEmail24-September-2018 Ronfirmed registerationRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactGreater Sydney LLSEmail24-September-2018 Ronfirmed registerationRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactThe registrarEmail26-September-2018 Ronfirmed registerationRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactDes Dyer - DALCEmail26-September-2018 Ronfirmed registerationRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactSepter DiracciEmail28-September-2018 Ronfirmed registerationRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactDes Dyer - DALCEmail28-September-2018 Ronfirmed registerationRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactSepter DiracciSeptember-2018 Ronfirmed registeration <tr< td=""><td>Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact</td><td>Lee Field - Barraby Cultural Services</td><td>Email</td><td>22-September-2018 Registered interest</td></tr<>	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Lee Field - Barraby Cultural Services	Email	22-September-2018 Registered interest
Ryan Taddeucci/ArtefactCarolyn Hickey - A1 Indigenous ServicesEmail23-September-2018 Registered interestLee Field - Barraby Cultural ServicesRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail24-September-2018 Confirmed registerationArika Jalomaki - Yulay Cultural ServicesRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail24-September-2018 Confirmed registerationDo Field - Yurandaali Cultural ServicesRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail24-September-2018 Confirmed registerationCarolyn Hickey - A1 Indigenous ServicesRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail24-September-2018 Rofirmed registerationRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactAnna Workman - DLOEmail24-September-2018 Rofirmed registerationRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactGreater Sydney LLSEmail24-September-2018 Rofirmed registerationRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactGreater Sydney LLSEmail25-September-2018 Norigested that OEH be contactedRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail28-September-2018 Norigested owners, suggest Metro LALC be contactedRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail28-September-2018 Norigesterd interestRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactSepter DickSeptember-2018 Registered interestRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmailRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactSeptember-2018 Norigester dinterestRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactSeptember-2018 Norigester dinterestRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactSeptember-2018 Rofistered interestRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactSeptember-2018 Rofistered interestRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactSeptember	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Arika Jalomaki - Yulay Cultural Services	Email	22-September-2018 Registered interest
Lee Field - Barraby Cultural ServicesRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail24-September-2018 Confirmed registerationArika Jalomaki - Yulay Cultural ServicesRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail24-September-2018 Confirmed registerationBo Field - Yurrandaali Cultural ServicesRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail24-September-2018 Confirmed registerationCarolyn Hickey - A1 Indigenous ServicesRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail24-September-2018 Confirmed registerationRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactAnna Workman - DLOEmail24-September-2018 Registered interestAnna Workman - DLORyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail25-September-2018 Confirmed registerationRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactGreater Sydney LLSEmail26-September-2018 Norgistered owners, suggest Metro LALC be contactedRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactThe registrarEmail26-September-2018 Norgistered owners, suggest Metro LALC be contactedRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactDes Dyer - DALCEmail28-September-2018 Registered interestRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactDes Dyer - DALCEmail28-September-2018 Registered interestRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactDes Dyer - DALCEmail28-September-2018 Registered interestRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactJoty Kulakowski - Barking Owl Aboriginal CorporationEmail02-October-2018 Registered interestRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactJody Kulakowski - Barking Owl Aboriginal CorporationEmail02-October-2018 Registered interestRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactJody Kulakowski - Barking Owl Aboriginal CorporationEmail02-October-2018 Registered interest<	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Bo Field - Yurrandaali Cultural Services	Email	22-September-2018 Registered interest
Arika Jalomaki - Yulay Cultural ServicesRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail24-September-2018 Confirmed registerationBo Field - Yurrandaali Cultural ServicesRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail24-September-2018 Confirmed registerationCarolyn Hickey - A1 Indigenous ServicesRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail24-September-2018 Confirmed registerationRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactAnna Workman - DLOEmail24-September-2018 Registered interestAnna Workman - DLORyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail24-September-2018 Confirmed registerationRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactGreater Sydney LLSEmail25-September-2018 Suggested that OEH be contactedRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactThe registrarEmail26-September-2018 No registered onvers, suggest Metro LALC be contactedRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactBo S Dyer - DALCEmail28-September-2018 Roistered interestRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactSteven Hickey - WidescopeEmail30-September-2018 Registered interestRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactSteven Hickey - WidescopeEmail30-September-2018 Registered interestRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactSteven Hickey - WidescopeEmail30-September-2018 Registered interestDes Dyer - DALCEmail02-October-2018 Confirmed registerationSteven Hickey - WidescopeRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail02-October-2018 Roistered interestPyan Taddeucci/ArtefactJody Kulakowski - Barking Owl Aboriginal CorporationEmail02-October-2018 Registered interestDes Dyer - DALCEmail02-October-2018 Registered interest02-October-20	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Carolyn Hickey - A1 Indigenous Services	Email	23-September-2018 Registered interest
Bo Field - Yurrandaal Cultural ServicesRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail24-September-2018 Confirmed registerationCarolyn Hickey - A1 Indigenous ServicesRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail24-September-2018 Confirmed registerationRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactAnna Workman - DLOEmail24-September-2018 Registered interestAnna Workman - DLORyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail24-September-2018 Confirmed registerationRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactGreater Sydney LLSEmail25-September-2018 Suggested that OEH be contactedRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactThe registrarEmail26-September-2018 No registered owners, suggest Metro LALC be contactedEric KeidgeRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactLetter26-September-2018 No registered interestRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactDes Dyer - DALCEmail28-September-2018 Registered interestRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactDes Dyer - DALCEmail30-September-2018 Registered interestRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactSteven Hickey - WidescopeEmail30-September-2018 Registered interestDes Dyer - DALCRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail30-September-2018 Registered interestSteven Hickey - WidescopeRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail30-September-2018 Confirmed registerationSteven Hickey - WidescopeRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail30-September-2018 Confirmed registerationRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactJody Kulakowski - Barking Owl Aboriginal CorporationEmail30-September-2018 Confirmed registerationRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactJody Kulakowski - Barking Owl Aboriginal Corporation <td>Lee Field - Barraby Cultural Services</td> <td>Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact</td> <td>Email</td> <td>24-September-2018 Confirmed registeration</td>	Lee Field - Barraby Cultural Services	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	24-September-2018 Confirmed registeration
Carolyn Hickey - A1 Indigenous ServicesRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail24-September-2018 Confirmed registerationRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactAnna Workman - DLOEmail24-September-2018 Registered interestAnna Workman - DLORyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail24-September-2018 Confirmed registerationRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactGreater Sydney LLSEmail24-September-2018 No registered owners, suggest Metro LALC be contactedRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactThe registrarEmail26-September-2018 No registered owners, suggest Metro LALC be contactedEric KeidgeRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactLetter26-September-2018 No registered owners, suggest Metro LALC be contactedRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactDes Dyer - DALCEmail28-September-2018 Registered interestRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactDes Dyer - DALCEmail30-September-2018 Registered interestDes Dyer - DALCRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail02-October-2018 Confirmed registerationSteven Hickey - WidescopeRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail	Arika Jalomaki - Yulay Cultural Services	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	24-September-2018 Confirmed registeration
Ryan Taddeucci/ArtefactAnna Workman - DLOEmail24-September-2018 Registered interestAnna Workman - DLORyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail24-September-2018 Confirmed registerationRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactGreater Sydney LLSEmail25-September-2018 Suggested that OEH be contactedRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactThe registrarEmail26-September-2018 Nor egistered owners, suggest Metro LALC be contactedRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail26-September-2018 Invitation for consultationRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactDes Dyer - DALCEmail28-September-2018 Registered interestRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactSteven Hickey - WidescopeEmail30-September-2018 Registered interestDes Dyer - DALCRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail30-September-2018 Registered interestSteven Hickey - WidescopeRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail30-September-2018 Registered interestSteven Hickey - WidescopeRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail02-October-2018 Confirmed registerationSteven Hickey - WidescopeRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail02-October-2018 Confirmed registerationSteven Hickey - WidescopeRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail02-October-2018 Confirmed registerationSteven Hickey - WidescopeJody Kulakowski - Barking Owl Aboriginal CorporationEmail02-October-2018 Confirmed registerationJody Kulakowski - Barking Owl Aboriginal CorporationKemail02-October-2018 Confirmed registerationJody Kulakowski - Barking Owl Aboriginal CorporationEmail02-October-2018 Confirmed r	Bo Field - Yurrandaali Cultural Services	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	24-September-2018 Confirmed registeration
Ryan Taddeucci/ArtefactAnna Workman - DLOEmail24-September-2018 Registered interestAnna Workman - DLORyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail24-September-2018 Confirmed registerationRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactGreater Sydney LLSEmail25-September-2018 Suggested that OEH be contactedRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactThe registrarEmail26-September-2018 Nor egistered owners, suggest Metro LALC be contactedRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail26-September-2018 Invitation for consultationRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactDes Dyer - DALCEmail28-September-2018 Registered interestRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactSteven Hickey - WidescopeEmail30-September-2018 Registered interestDes Dyer - DALCRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail30-September-2018 Registered interestSteven Hickey - WidescopeRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail30-September-2018 Registered interestSteven Hickey - WidescopeRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail02-October-2018 Confirmed registerationSteven Hickey - WidescopeRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail02-October-2018 Confirmed registerationSteven Hickey - WidescopeRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail02-October-2018 Confirmed registerationSteven Hickey - WidescopeJody Kulakowski - Barking Owl Aboriginal CorporationEmail02-October-2018 Confirmed registerationJody Kulakowski - Barking Owl Aboriginal CorporationKemail02-October-2018 Confirmed registerationJody Kulakowski - Barking Owl Aboriginal CorporationEmail02-October-2018 Confirmed r	Carolyn Hickey - A1 Indigenous Services	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	24-September-2018 Confirmed registeration
Anna Workman - DLORyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail24-September-2018 Confirmed registerationRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactGreater Sydney LLSEmail25-September-2018 Suggested that OEH be contactedRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactThe registrarEmail26-September-2018 No registered owners, suggest Metro LALC be contactedEric KeidgeRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactLetter26-September-2018 Invitation for consultationRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactDes Dyer - DALCEmail28-September-2018 Registered interestRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactSteven Hickey - WidescopeEmail30-September-2018 Registered interestDes Dyer - DALCRyan Taddeucci/Artefact02-October-2018 Confirmed registerationSteven Hickey - WidescopeEmail02-October-2018 Confirmed registerationSteven Hickey - WidescopeRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmailRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactJody Kulakowski - Barking Owl Aboriginal CorporationEmailJody Kulakowski - Barking Owl Aboriginal CorporationEmail02-October-2018 Registered interestJody Kulakowski - Barking Owl Aboriginal CorporationEmail02-October-2018 Registered interestJody Kulakowski - Barking Owl Aboriginal CorporationEmail02-October-2018 Confirmed registeration			Email	
Ryan Taddeucci/ArtefactGreater Sydney LLSEmail25-September-2018 Suggested that OEH be contactedRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactThe registrarEmail26-September-2018 No registered owners, suggest Metro LALC be contactedEric KeidgeRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactLetter26-September-2018 Invitation for consultationRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactDes Dyer - DALCEmail28-September-2018 Registered interestRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactSteven Hickey - WidescopeEmail30-September-2018 Registered interestDes Dyer - DALCRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail02-October-2018 Confirmed registerationSteven Hickey - WidescopeRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail02-October-2018 Confirmed registerationSteven Hickey - WidescopeEmail02-October-2018 Confirmed registerationSteven Hickey - WidescopeEmail02-October-2018 Confirmed registerationSteven Hickey - WidescopeEmail02-October-2018 Confirmed registerationSteven Hickey - WidescopeIsody Kulakowski - Barking Owl Aboriginal CorporationEmailJody Kulakowski - Barking Owl Aboriginal CorporationEmail02-October-2018 Registered interestJody Kulakowski - Barking Owl Aboriginal CorporationEmail02-October-2018 Confirmed registeration	•			· · ·
Ryan Taddeucci/ArtefactThe registrarEmail26-September-2018 No registered owners, suggest Metro LALC be contactedEric KeidgeRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactLetter26-September-2018 Invitation for consultationRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactDes Dyer - DALCEmail28-September-2018 Registered interestRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactSteven Hickey - WidescopeEmail30-September-2018 Registered interestDes Dyer - DALCRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail30-September-2018 Confirmed registered interestDes Dyer - DALCRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail02-October-2018 Confirmed registerationSteven Hickey - WidescopeRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail02-October-2018 Confirmed registerationSteven Hickey - WidescopeIody Kulakowski - Barking Owl Aboriginal CorporationEmail02-October-2018 Registered interestJody Kulakowski - Barking Owl Aboriginal CorporationEmail02-October-2018 Registered interestJody Kulakowski - Barking Owl Aboriginal CorporationEmail02-October-2018 Confirmed registeration				
Eric KeidgeRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactLetter26-September-2018 Invitation for consultationRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactDes Dyer - DALCEmail28-September-2018 Registered interestRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactSteven Hickey - WidescopeEmail30-September-2018 Registered interestDes Dyer - DALCRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail30-September-2018 Registered interestDes Dyer - DALCRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail30-September-2018 Confirmed registerationSteven Hickey - WidescopeRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail02-October-2018 Confirmed registerationSteven Hickey - WidescopeJody Kulakowski - Barking Owl Aboriginal CorporationEmail02-October-2018 Registered interestJody Kulakowski - Barking Owl Aboriginal CorporationRyan Taddeucci/Artefact02-October-2018 Registered interestJody Kulakowski - Barking Owl Aboriginal CorporationEmail02-October-2018 Confirmed registeration	•		Fmail	
Ryan Taddeucci/ArtefactDes Dyer - DALCEmail28-September-2018 Registered interestRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactSteven Hickey - WidescopeEmail30-September-2018 Registered interestDes Dyer - DALCRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail02-October-2018 Confirmed registerationDes Dyer - DALCRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail02-October-2018 Confirmed registerationSteven Hickey - WidescopeRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail02-October-2018 Confirmed registerationRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactJody Kulakowski - Barking Owl Aboriginal CorporationEmail02-October-2018 Registered interestJody Kulakowski - Barking Owl Aboriginal CorporationRyan Taddeucci/Artefact02-October-2018 Registered interest				
Ryan Taddeucci/ArtefactSteven Hickey - WidescopeEmail30-September-2018 Registered interestDes Dyer - DALCRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail02-October-2018 Confirmed registerationSteven Hickey - WidescopeRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail02-October-2018 Confirmed registerationRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactJody Kulakowski - Barking Owl Aboriginal CorporationEmail02-October-2018 Registered interestJody Kulakowski - Barking Owl Aboriginal CorporationRyan Taddeucci/Artefact02-October-2018 Registered interestJody Kulakowski - Barking Owl Aboriginal CorporationEmail02-October-2018 Confirmed registeration	5			
Des Dyer - DALC     Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact     Email     02-October-2018 Confirmed registeration       Steven Hickey - Widescope     Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact     Email     02-October-2018 Confirmed registeration       Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact     Jody Kulakowski - Barking Owl Aboriginal Corporation     Email     02-October-2018 Confirmed registeration       Jody Kulakowski - Barking Owl Aboriginal Corporation     Kyan Taddeucci/Artefact     02-October-2018 Registered interest       Jody Kulakowski - Barking Owl Aboriginal Corporation     Kyan Taddeucci/Artefact     02-October-2018 Confirmed registeration				
Steven Hickey - WidescopeRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail02-October-2018 Confirmed registerationRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactJody Kulakowski - Barking Owl Aboriginal CorporationEmail02-October-2018 Registered interestJody Kulakowski - Barking Owl Aboriginal CorporationRyan Taddeucci/Artefact02-October-2018 Registered interestJody Kulakowski - Barking Owl Aboriginal CorporationRyan Taddeucci/Artefact02-October-2018 Confirmed registeration				
Ryan Taddeucci/ArtefactJody Kulakowski - Barking Owl Aboriginal CorporationEmail02-October-2018 Registered interestJody Kulakowski - Barking Owl Aboriginal CorporationRyan Taddeucci/ArtefactEmail02-October-2018 Confirmed registeration		•		
Jody Kulakowski - Barking Owl Aboriginal Corporation Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact Email 02-October-2018 Confirmed registeration				
				-
Liliy Larroli - DNC kyan laddeucci/Artefact Email U2-October-2018 ACHAK methodology - due 30/10/2018		•		
		kyan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	02-0000e1-2010 ACHAK methodology - due 30/10/2018

Amanda Dezwart - Amanda Hickey Cultural S	ervices Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	02-October-2018 ACHAR methodology - due 30/10/2018
Marilyn Carroll-Johnson - CAC	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	02-October-2018 ACHAR methodology - due 30/10/2018
Gordon Workman - DBEAC	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	02-October-2018 ACHAR methodology - due 30/10/2018
Jesse Johnson - Muragadi Heritage Indigenou	is Corporation Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	02-October-2018 ACHAR methodology - due 30/10/2018
Scott Franks - Tocomwall	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	02-October-2018 ACHAR methodology - due 30/10/2018
Andrew Williams - AAS	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	02-October-2018 ACHAR methodology - due 30/10/2018
Justine Coplin - DCAC	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	02-October-2018 ACHAR methodology - due 30/10/2018
Lee Field - Barraby Cultural Services	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	02-October-2018 ACHAR methodology - due 30/10/2018
Arika Jalomaki - Yulay Cultural Services	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	02-October-2018 ACHAR methodology - due 30/10/2018
Bo Field - Yurrandaali Cultural Services	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	02-October-2018 ACHAR methodology - due 30/10/2018
Carolyn Hickey - A1 Indigenous Services	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	02-October-2018 ACHAR methodology - due 30/10/2018
Anna Workman - DLO	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	02-October-2018 ACHAR methodology - due 30/10/2018
Des Dyer - DALC	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	02-October-2018 ACHAR methodology - due 30/10/2018
Steven Hickey - Widescope	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	02-October-2018 ACHAR methodology - due 30/10/2018
Jody Kulakowski - Barking Owl Aboriginal Cor		Email	02-October-2018 ACHAR methodology - due 30/10/2018
Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Lilly Carroll - DNC	Email	02-October-2018 Agrees with methodology
Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Lee Field - Barraby Cultural Services	Email	02-October-2018 Agrees with methodology
	Arika Jalomaki - Yulay Cultural Services		
Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	,		02-October-2018 Agrees with methodology
Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Bo Field - Yurrandaali Cultural Se		02-October-2018 Agrees with methodology
Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Phillip Boney - Wailwan Aborigianl D		03-October-2018 Registered interest (1 day late)
Phillip Boney - Wailwan Aborigianl Diging Gro		Email	03-October-2018 ACHAR methodology - due 30/10/2018
Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Marilyn Carroll-Johnson - CAC	Email	06-October-2018 Agrees with methodology
Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Des Dyer - DALC	Email	07-October-2018 Agrees with methodology
Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Steven Hickey - Widescope	Email	07-October-2018 Agrees with methodology
Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Justine Coplin - DCAC	Email	08-October-2018 Agrees with methodology
Jody Kulakowski - Barking Owl Aboriginal Cor	poration Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	09-October-2018 Additional confirmation that details can be released to MLALC
Lilly Carroll - DNC	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	09-October-2018 Additional confirmation that details can be released to MLALC
Amanda Dezwart - Amanda Hickey Cultural S	ervices Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	09-October-2018 Additional confirmation that details can be released to MLALC
Marilyn Carroll-Johnson - CAC	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	09-October-2018 Additional confirmation that details can be released to MLALC
Gordon Workman - DBEAC	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	09-October-2018 Additional confirmation that details can be released to MLALC
Jesse Johnson - Muragadi Heritage Indigenou	s Corporation Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	09-October-2018 Additional confirmation that details can be released to MLALC
Scott Franks - Tocomwall	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	09-October-2018 Additional confirmation that details can be released to MLALC
Andrew Williams - AAS	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	09-October-2018 Additional confirmation that details can be released to MLALC
Justine Coplin - DCAC	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	09-October-2018 Additional confirmation that details can be released to MLALC
Lee Field - Barraby Cultural Services	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	09-October-2018 Additional confirmation that details can be released to MLALC
Arika Jalomaki - Yulay Cultural Services	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	09-October-2018 Additional confirmation that details can be released to MLALC
Bo Field - Yurrandaali Cultural Services	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	09-October-2018 Additional confirmation that details can be released to MLALC
Carolyn Hickey - A1 Indigenous Services	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	09-October-2018 Additional confirmation that details can be released to MLACC
Anna Workman - DLO	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	09-October-2018 Additional confirmation that details can be released to MLALC
Des Dyer - DALC	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact		09-October-2018 Additional confirmation that details can be released to MLACC
		Email	
Steven Hickey - Widescope	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	09-October-2018 Additional confirmation that details can be released to MLALC
Phillip Boney - Wailwan Aborigianl Diging Gro		Email	09-October-2018 Additional confirmation that details can be released to MLALC
Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Carolyn Hickey - A1 Indigenous Servi		09-October-2018 Fine to release details
Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Marilyn Carroll-Johnson - CAC	Email	09-October-2018 Do not release details
Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Lilly Carroll - DNC	Phone	09-October-2018 Fine to release details
Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Andrew Williams - AAS	Email	10-October-2018 Agrees with methodology
Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Anna Workman - DLO	Email	15-October-2018 Fine to release details
Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Anna Workman - DLO	Email	16-October-2018 Agrees with methodology - Artefacts should be buried on country
Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Des Dyer - DALC	Email	20-October-2018 Fine to release details
Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Jody Kulakowski - Barking Owl Abori	ginal Corporation Email	29-October-2018 Agrees with methodology
Jody Kulakowski - Barking Owl Aboriginal Cor		Email	30-October-2018 ACHAR and ASR for review
Lilly Carroll - DNC	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	30-October-2018 ACHAR and ASR for review
Amanda Dezwart - Amanda Hickey Cultural S	•	Email	30-October-2018 ACHAR and ASR for review
Marilyn Carroll-Johnson - CAC	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	30-October-2018 ACHAR and ASR for review
Gordon Workman - DBEAC	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	30-October-2018 ACHAR and ASR for review
Jesse Johnson - Muragadi Heritage Indigenou		Email	30-October-2018 ACHAR and ASR for review
Scott Franks - Tocomwall	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	30-October-2018 ACHAR and ASR for review
Andrew Williams - AAS	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	30-October-2018 ACHAR and ASR for review
Justine Coplin - DCAC	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	30-October-2018 ACHAR and ASR for review

Lee Field - Barraby Cultural Services	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	30-October-2018 ACHAR and ASR for review
Arika Jalomaki - Yulay Cultural Services	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	30-October-2018 ACHAR and ASR for review
Bo Field - Yurrandaali Cultural Services	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	30-October-2018 ACHAR and ASR for review
Carolyn Hickey - A1 Indigenous Services	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	30-October-2018 ACHAR and ASR for review
Anna Workman - DLO	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	30-October-2018 ACHAR and ASR for review
Des Dyer - DALC	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	30-October-2018 ACHAR and ASR for review
Steven Hickey - Widescope	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	30-October-2018 ACHAR and ASR for review
Phillip Boney - Wailwan Aborigianl Diging Group	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	30-October-2018 ACHAR and ASR for review
MLALC	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	30-October-2018 ACHAR and ASR for review
MLALC	Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Email	30-October-2018 4.1.6 Letter
Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Carolyn Hickey - A1 Indigenous Services	Email	31-October-2018 Agrees with ACHAR and ASR
Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Justine Coplin - DCAC	Email	05-November-2018 Agrees with ACHAR and ASR
Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Des Dyer - DALC	Email	05-November-2018 Agrees with ACHAR and ASR
Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Marilyn Carroll-Johnson - CAC	Email	07-November-2018 Update contact details
Ryan Taddeucci/Artefact	Metro LALC	Email	07-November-2018 Late registeration - ACHAR and ASR already sent

## APPENDIX 2 – FULL CONSULTATION RECORDS



## **Request for Search of Tribunal Registers**

Search for overlapping interests **DO NOT** use for searches over freehold land.

## 1. Your details

NAME:	Ryan Taddeucci
POSITION:	Senior Heritage Consultant
COMPANY/ORGANISATION:	Artefact Heritage Services
POSTAL ADDRESS:	Level 4, Building B, 35 Saunders Street, Pyrmont NSW 2009
TELEPHONE:	02 9518 8411
EMAIL:	ryan.taddeucci@artefact.net.au
YOUR REFERENCE:	18117
DATE OF REQUEST:	14 September 2018
2. Reason for your request	

Are you a party to a native title	
proceeding?	Yes No
Please provide Federal Court/Tribunal file	
number/or application name:	
OR	
Do you need to identify existing native	

title interests to comply with the Native Title Act 1993 (Cth) or other State/Territory legislation? Please provide brief details of these obligations here:

Yes No

Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010 (NSW DECCW 2010)

## 3. Identify the area to be searched

## **Mining tenure**

If there is insufficient room please attach a clearly typed list of tenement references. State/Territory: Tenement ref/s:

OR	
Crown land / non freehold tenure	
Tenure type:	Lease Reserve or other Crown land
State/Territory:	
Lot and plan details:	Lot 1/ DP1185060 and Lot 2/ DP1185969
Pastoral Lease number or name:	
Other details: (Town/County/Parish/	
Section/Hundred/Portion):	Parish of Concord, County of Camden

Please refer to the link to our website for further information: <u>http://www.nntt.gov.au/nativetitleclaims/Pages/Native-title-claims-and-freehold-land.aspx</u>

From:	Ryan Taddeucci
Sent:	Friday, September 14, 2018 2:55 PM
То:	'gs.service@lls.nsw.gov.au'
Subject:	Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park
Attachments:	Study_area.jpg

Dear Sir or Madam,

### Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for Austino Property Group. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403. The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Olympic Park area. The purpose of the community consultation is to assist the proponent in the preparation of an ACHAR in compliance with SSD\_9403.

In line with the relevant consultation guidelines, I am writing to you to request names and contact details that your organisation has for Aboriginal people or groups that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects or places within the Schofields area. Please forward any information available before **28 September 2018** to:

#### ARTEFACT

Telephone: **(02) 9518 8411** Mobile: 0423 381 482 Address: Level 4, Building B, 35 Saunders Street, Pyrmont NSW 2009 Web: <u>www.artefact.net.au</u>

Cultural Heritage Management | Archaeology | Heritage Interpretation

We acknowledge the Traditional Custodians of Country in which we live and work, and pay our respects to them, their culture and their Elders past, present and future

From:	Ryan Taddeucci
Sent:	Friday, September 14, 2018 2:54 PM
То:	metrolalc@metrolalc.org.au
Subject:	Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park
Attachments:	Study_area.jpg

Dear Sir or Madam,

### Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for Austino Property Group. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403. The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Olympic Park area. The purpose of the community consultation is to assist the proponent in the preparation of an ACHAR in compliance with SSD\_9403.

In line with the relevant consultation guidelines, I am writing to you to request names and contact details that your organisation has for Aboriginal people or groups that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects or places within the Schofields area. Please forward any information available before **28 September 2018** to:

#### ARTEFACT

Telephone: **(02) 9518 8411** Mobile: 0423 381 482 Address: Level 4, Building B, 35 Saunders Street, Pyrmont NSW 2009 Web: <u>www.artefact.net.au</u>

Cultural Heritage Management | Archaeology | Heritage Interpretation

We acknowledge the Traditional Custodians of Country in which we live and work, and pay our respects to them, their culture and their Elders past, present and future

From:	Ryan Taddeucci
Sent:	Friday, September 14, 2018 2:53 PM
То:	'information@ntscorp.com.au'
Subject:	Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park
Attachments:	Study_area.jpg

Dear Sir or Madam,

### Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for Austino Property Group. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403. The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Olympic Park area. The purpose of the community consultation is to assist the proponent in the preparation of an ACHAR in compliance with SSD\_9403.

In line with the relevant consultation guidelines, I am writing to you to request names and contact details that your organisation has for Aboriginal people or groups that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects or places within the Schofields area. Please forward any information available before **28 September 2018** to:

#### ARTEFACT

Telephone: **(02) 9518 8411** Mobile: 0423 381 482 Address: Level 4, Building B, 35 Saunders Street, Pyrmont NSW 2009 Web: <u>www.artefact.net.au</u>

Cultural Heritage Management | Archaeology | Heritage Interpretation

We acknowledge the Traditional Custodians of Country in which we live and work, and pay our respects to them, their culture and their Elders past, present and future

From:	Ryan Taddeucci
Sent:	Friday, September 14, 2018 3:11 PM
То:	'GeospatialSearch@NNTT.gov.au'
Subject:	Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park
Attachments:	Study_area.jpg; Olympic Park Search Form_Request for Search of Tribunal Registers 2016.pdf

Dear Sir or Madam,

### Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for Austino Property Group. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403. The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Olympic Park area. The purpose of the community consultation is to assist the proponent in the preparation of an ACHAR in compliance with SSD\_9403.

In line with the relevant consultation guidelines, I am writing to you to request names and contact details that your organisation has for Aboriginal people or groups that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects or places within the Schofields area. Please forward any information available before **28 September 2018** to:

#### ARTEFACT

Telephone: **(02) 9518 8411** Mobile: 0423 381 482 Address: Level 4, Building B, 35 Saunders Street, Pyrmont NSW 2009 Web: <u>www.artefact.net.au</u>

Cultural Heritage Management | Archaeology | Heritage Interpretation

We acknowledge the Traditional Custodians of Country in which we live and work, and pay our respects to them, their culture and their Elders past, present and future

From:	Ryan Taddeucci
Sent:	Friday, September 14, 2018 2:57 PM
То:	'Council@cityofparramatta.nsw.gov.au'
Subject:	Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park
Attachments:	Study_area.jpg

Dear Sir or Madam,

### Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for Austino Property Group. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403. The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Olympic Park area. The purpose of the community consultation is to assist the proponent in the preparation of an ACHAR in compliance with SSD\_9403.

In line with the relevant consultation guidelines, I am writing to you to request names and contact details that your organisation has for Aboriginal people or groups that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects or places within the Schofields area. Please forward any information available before **28 September 2018** to:

#### ARTEFACT

Telephone: **(02) 9518 8411** Mobile: 0423 381 482 Address: Level 4, Building B, 35 Saunders Street, Pyrmont NSW 2009 Web: <u>www.artefact.net.au</u>

Cultural Heritage Management | Archaeology | Heritage Interpretation

We acknowledge the Traditional Custodians of Country in which we live and work, and pay our respects to them, their culture and their Elders past, present and future

From:	Ryan Taddeucci
Sent:	Friday, September 14, 2018 2:52 PM
То:	'OEH ROD GSB Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Mailbox'
Subject:	Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park
Attachments:	Study_area.jpg

Dear Sir or Madam,

### Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for Austino Property Group. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403. The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Olympic Park area. The purpose of the community consultation is to assist the proponent in the preparation of an ACHAR in compliance with SSD\_9403.

In line with the relevant consultation guidelines, I am writing to you to request names and contact details that your organisation has for Aboriginal people or groups that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects or places within the Schofields area. Please forward any information available before **28 September 2018** to:

#### ARTEFACT

Telephone: **(02) 9518 8411** Mobile: 0423 381 482 Address: Level 4, Building B, 35 Saunders Street, Pyrmont NSW 2009 Web: <u>www.artefact.net.au</u>

Cultural Heritage Management | Archaeology | Heritage Interpretation

We acknowledge the Traditional Custodians of Country in which we live and work, and pay our respects to them, their culture and their Elders past, present and future

# **REQUEST FOR SEARCH OF** LAND CLAIM REGISTER



					P. 02 9562 6327	7 <b>F.</b> 02 9562 6350
Please print all deta	ils clearly us	ing block let	ters			
Full name of person rec	questing searc	:h: ( <i>name for c</i>	orresponde	nce)		
RYAN TADDEUCCI						
Name of company:	ARTEFACT HERITAGE SERVICES					
Postal address:	LEVEL 4, BUILDING B, 35 SAUNDERS STREET PYRMONT NSW 2009					
Telephone number:	02 9518 8411		Fax nu	mber:		

Land identifiers: (lot, dp, reserve number – not crown plan number or vol id)		Lot 1/ DP1185060 and Lot 2/ DP1185969
Parish name:	CONCORD	
County name:	Cumberland	

### To assist the office in assigning priorities, please answer the following:

1) Purpose for which information is required:

To comply with the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010)

2) If urgent consideration is required, reason for urgency:

Signature, position and date:

Anno

Senior Heritage Consultant 14 September 2018

### **Please note:**

- 1. Searches are completed within 5 working days and returned by ordinary mail.
- 2. The register covers only crown land.
- 3. All information is required including a name for correspondence before the search will be completed.
- 4. The person to whom correspondence is addressed must sign the form.

From:	Ryan Taddeucci
Sent:	Friday, September 14, 2018 3:21 PM
То:	'adminofficer@oralra.nsw.gov.au'
Subject:	Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park
Attachments:	Study_area.jpg; OfficeOfTheRegistrar_SearchRequestForm.pdf

Dear Sir or Madam,

### Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for Austino Property Group. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403. The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Olympic Park area. The purpose of the community consultation is to assist the proponent in the preparation of an ACHAR in compliance with SSD\_9403.

In line with the relevant consultation guidelines, I am writing to you to request names and contact details that your organisation has for Aboriginal people or groups that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects or places within the Schofields area. Please forward any information available before **28 September 2018** to:

#### ARTEFACT

Telephone: **(02) 9518 8411** Mobile: 0423 381 482 Address: Level 4, Building B, 35 Saunders Street, Pyrmont NSW 2009 Web: <u>www.artefact.net.au</u>

Cultural Heritage Management | Archaeology | Heritage Interpretation

We acknowledge the Traditional Custodians of Country in which we live and work, and pay our respects to them, their culture and their Elders past, present and future
From:Margaret Bottrell <margaret.bottrell@lls.nsw.gov.au>Sent:Tuesday, September 25, 2018 7:25 AMTo:Ryan TaddeucciSubject:Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

To Ryan Taddeucci,

# RE: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Thank you for your email dated 14 September 2018, requesting assistance with identifying Aboriginal stakeholder groups or persons who may have an interest in your project area.

Greater Sydney Local Land Services (GS LLS) acknowledges that Local Land Services have been listed in *Section 4.1.2 (g)* of the *Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010,* under *Part 6, National Parks and Wildlife Act 1974* as a source of information to obtain the "names of Aboriginal people who may hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and/or *places*".

GS LLS is a partner with many Aboriginal communities in the region on many natural resource management (NRM) projects. However, GS LLS is not the primary source for contacting or managing contact lists for Aboriginal communities or persons that may inform or provide comment on planning issues. GS LLS considers cultural heritage issues that relate to land-use planning in general and only considers culture and heritage issues in the context of NRM.

We strongly recommend that you make contact with the Office of Environment and Heritage (OEH), Cultural Heritage Division, for all-inclusive contact lists of persons and organisations that may assist with your investigation.

**Note:** Hawkesbury Nepean Catchment Management Authority (HNCMA) no longer exists. All work previously carried out by HNCMA in now delivered by Greater Sydney Local Land Services (GS LLS).

Regards,

Margaret Bottrell Senior Strategic Land Services Officer (Aboriginal Communities) Greater Sydney Local Land Service Level 4, 2-6 Station Street Penrith PO Box 4515 Penrith Westfields NSW 2750 T: 02 47242111 E:margaret.bottrell@lls.nsw.gov.au W: http://www.lls.nsw.gov.au





This message is intended for the addressee named and may contain confidential information. If you are not the intended recipient, please delete it and notify the sender. Views expressed in this message are those of the individual sender, and are not necessarily the views of their organisation.



Our reference: SF1

SF18/7188

Ryan Taddeucci Artefact Heritage Ryan.taddeucci@artefact.net.au

Dear Ryan,

Thank you for your email dated 14/09/2018 to the Office of Environment and Heritage (OEH) regarding obtaining a list of the Aboriginal stakeholders that may have an interest in a proposed residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park.

Please find attached the list of Aboriginal stakeholders known to OEH that may have an interest in the project.

As the Department of Planning and Environment is the approval authority for this project, the consultation process should be in accordance with the relevant guidelines as stipulated by the Department of Planning and Environment.

If you wish to discuss any of the above matter further please email gs.ach@environment.nsw.gov.au.

Yours sincerely

S. Hannuson 17/09/18

Susan Harrison Senior Team Leader Planning Greater Sydney Branch Communities and Greater Sydney Division

PO Box 644 Parramatta NSW 2124 Level 2, 10 Valentine Avenue Parramatta NSW 2150 Tel: (02) 9995 5477 ABN 30 841 387 271 www.environment.nsw.gov.au

LIST OF ABORIGINAL STAKEHOLDERS FOR THE <u>GREATER SYDNEY BRANCH</u> HELD BY OEH FOR THE PURPOSES OF THE <i>ABORIGINAL CULTURAL</i> HERITAGE CONSULTATION REQUIREMENTS FOR PROPONENTS 2010	These lists are provided to proponents in accordance with section 4.1.2 of the Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Consultation Requirements for Proponents 2010 (the "Consultation Requirements") which commenced on 12 April 2010.	The consultation process involves getting the views of, and information from, Aboriginal people and reporting on these. It is not to be confused with other field assessment processes involved in preparing a proposal and an application. Consultation does not include the employment of Aboriginal people to assist in field assessment and/or site monitoring. Aboriginal people may provide services to proponents through a contractual arrangement however, this is separate from consultation. The proponent is not obliged to employ those Aboriginal people registered for consultation. Consultation as per requirements will continue irrespective of potential or actual employment opportunities for Aboriginal people.	A copy of the Consultation Requirements can be found on the OEH website at: http://www.environment.nsw.gov.au/resources/cultureheritage/commconsultation/09781ACHconsultreg.pdf.	Under the Consultation Requirements; a proponent is required to provide Aboriginal people who hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the cultural significance of Aboriginal objects and/or places as relevant to the proposed project area, with an opportunity to be involved in consultation. Section 3.3.1 of the Consultation Requirements states that Aboriginal people who can provide this information are, based on Aboriginal lore and custom, the traditional owners or custodians of the land that is the subject of the proposed project.	The Consultation Requirements also state that:	<ul> <li>Traditional owners or custodians with appropriate cultural heritage knowledge to inform decision making who seek to register their interest as an Aboriginal party are those people who:</li> <li>continue to maintain a deep respect for their ancestral belief system, traditional lore and custom</li> <li>recognise their responsibilities and obligations to protect and conserve their culture and heritage and care for their traditional lands or Country</li> <li>have the trust of their community, knowledge and understanding of their culture, and permission to speak about it.</li> </ul>	Please note: the placement of an organisation's name on any OEH Aboriginal stakeholder list for the Consultation Requirements does not override a proponent's requirement to also advertise in the local newspaper and to seek from other sources the names of any other Aboriginal people who may hold cultural knowledge as required under clause 80C of the <u>National Parks and Wildlife Regulation 2009</u> .	How to use this list	<ol> <li>Determine which Local Government Area/s (LGA/s) your project area falls into</li> <li>Identify which organisations and individuals on the list have an interest in the LGA/s relevant to your project – identified in column 6 of the list</li> <li>Contact the organisations/individuals who have indicated an interest in the relevant LGA/s and invite them to register an interest in your project</li> </ol>	Do not reproduce the attached list in publicly available reports and other documents. Your report should only contain the names of the organisations and individuals who you have invited to register an interest in your project and those who have registered as stakeholders for your project.	PLEASE NOTE: THE STAKEHOLDER LIST HAS NOT BEEN UPDATED TO INCLUDE THE RECENT	COUNCIL MERGERS AND NAME CHANGES. PLEASE CONSIDER THE PRE-MERGER COUNCIL	BOUNDARIES WHEN DETERMINING WHO SHOULD BE INVITED TO REGISTER FOR YOUR	PROJECT.
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------	-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------	----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------	----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------	-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------	------------------------------------------------	-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------	---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------	----------------------	----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------	---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------	------------------------------------------------------------------------------	--------------------------------------------------------------------------	------------------------------------------------------------------------	----------

Organisation/ Individual	Contact Name	Phone Number	Email Address/ Fax	Postal Address	LGA's		Additional information
Deerubbin Local Aboriginal Land Council	Kevin Cavanagh	(02) 4724 5600	Not provided	2/9 Tindale St, Penrith NSW 2750	Hawkesbury Blacktown Penrith Fairfield	Holroyd Blue Mountains The Hills Shire Parramatta	
Tharawal Local Aboriginal Land Council	Rebecca Ede (CEO)	(02) 46810059	ceo@tharawal.com.au reception@tharawal.com.au	PO Box 245 Thirlmere NSW 2572	Camden Campbelltown Wollondilly	Sutherland Liverpool	
Metropolitan Local Aboriginal Land Council	Nathan Moran	(02) 83949666	Not provided	PO Box 1103 Strawberry Hills NSW 2016	The Hills Shire Sydney Kogarah Hurstville Rockdale Canterbury Marrickville Bankstown Strathfield Ashfield Auburn Auburn Canada Bay	Leichhardt Manly Mosman North Sydney Lane Cove Lane Cove Hunters Hill Hornsby Ku-Ring-Gai Pittwater Botany Bay Ryde Warringah Warringah	
Gandangara Local Aboriginal Land Council	Not provided	(02) 96025280	Not provided	PO Box 1038 Liverpool NSW 2170	Liverpool Fairfield Holroyd Parramatta	Auburn Bankstown Sutherland	
La Perouse Local Aboriginal Land Council	Chris Ingrey	(02) 9311 4282	Not provided	PO Box 365 Matraville NSW 2036	Sutherland Randwick Botany Bay Waverly	Woollahra Sydney Rockdale	
Parramatta City Council Aboriginal Advisory Committee	Parramatta City Council	(02)9806 5050	Not provided	PO Box 32, Parramatta, NSW, 2124.	Parramatta		
Holroyd City Council Advisory Committee	Holroyd City Council	(02) 9840 9840	Not provided	P.O. Box 42, Merrylands, NSW 2160	Holroyd		
Darug Custodian Aboriginal Corporation	Justine Coplin	0414 962 766	justinecoplin@optusnet.com.a	PO Box 81, Windsor NSW 2756	Hawkesbury Blacktown Penrith Fairfield Holroyd Blue Mountains	Camden Campbelltown The Hills Shire Liverpool Parramatta	
Darug Tribal Aboriginal Corporation	Not provided	02 9622 4081	Not provided	PO Box 441, Blacktown NSW 2148	Hawkesbury Blacktown Penrith Fairfield Holroyd Blue Mountains	Camden Campbelltown The Hills Shire Liverpool Parramatta	
Darug Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessments	Gordon Morton	02 9410 3665 or 0422 865 831	Not provided	Unit 9, 6 Chapman Avenue, Chatswood, NSW 2067	Hawkesbury Blacktown Penrith Fairfield Holroyd Blue Mountains Camden Camden The Hills Shire	Strathfield Burwood Ashfield Auburn Canada Bay Leichhardt Manly Mosman North Sydney	

Organisation/ Individual	Contact Name	Phone Number	Email Address/ Fax	Postal Address	LGA's		Additional information
					Liverpool Parramatta Sydney Kogarah Hurstville Rockdale Canterbury Marrickville Bankstown	Lane Cove Hunters Hill Hornsby Ku-Ring-Gai Pittwater Pittwater Ryde Warringah Willoughby	
Darug Land Observations	Jamie Workman and Anna Workman	0418 494 951 0413 687 279	daruglandobservations@gmail. com	PO Box 173, Ulladulla, NSW 2539	Ashfield Auburn Bankstown Blacktown Blue Mountains Botany Bay Burwood	Leichhardt Liverpool Manly Marrickville Mosman North Sydney Parramatta	
		4 			ltown 3ay ry ury	Penrith Pittwater Randwick Rockdale Ryde Strathfield Sutherland Sydney	
					Hornsby Hunter's Hill Hurstville Ku-ring-gai Lane Cove	Warringah Waverley Willoughby Woollahra Wollondilly	
Des Dyer		0408 360 814	Not provided	18a Perigee Close, Doonside 2767	Hawkesbury Blacktown Penrith Fairfield Holroyd	Camden Campbelltown The Hills Shire Liverpool Parramatta	
Ken Foster		0411 818 091	Not provided	68 Australia St Matraville	Sutherland	1	
La Perouse Botany Bay Corporation	Yvonne Simms	04660 94491	Fax (02) 9311 3440	10 Murrong Place, La Perouse NSW 2036	Sutherland	te la eset e la nore	
Norma Simms		04660 94491	Not provided	10 Murrong Place, La Perouse NSW 2036	Sutherland		
Matthew and Andrew Coe		(08)83442196	Not provided	37 Derlanger Avenue, Collingswood, South Australia 5081	Sutherland	er i Tan	
Gundungurra Aboriginal Heritage Association Inc	Merl Williams	02 4757 3223	Not provided	PO Box 31, Lawson NSW 2783	Blue Mountains		
Gundungurra Tribal Council Aboriginal Corporation	Sharon Brown	02 4729 3713	Not provided	PO Box 7244, Leura NSW 2780	Blue Mountains		
Trevor Robinson		Not provided	Not provided	PO Box 73, Peak Hill, NSW 2869	Blue Mountains		
Tania Matthews		0409 193 612/ (02) 67924038	<u>aboriginalhistoryhunter@gmail.</u> com	U2 11 Walowa Street, Narrabri, NSW 2390	Blue Mountains		
A1 Indigenous Services	Carolyn Hickey	0411 650 057	cazadirect@live.com	73 Russell Street, Emu Plains, NSW 2750.	Blue Mountains		Carolyn is Wonnarua

З

Organisation/ Individual	Contact Name	Phone Number	Email Address/ Fax	Postal Address	LGA's		Additional information
Cubbitch Barta	Glenda Chalker	0427 218 425	Not provided	55 Nightingale Rd, Pheasants Nest NSW 2574	Camden Campbelltown	Liverpool Wollondillv	
	Rebecca Chalker	Not Provided	Not provided	99 Menangle street, Picton 2571			
Eric Keidge		04311 66423	Not provided	11 Olsson Close Hornsby Heights NSW 2077	The Hills Shire Sydney Kogarah Hurstville Rockdale Canterbury Marrickville Bankstown Strathfield Burwood Ashfield Auburn Canada Bay	Leichhardt Manly Mosman North Sydney Lane Cove Hunters Hill Hornsby Ku-Ring-Gai Pittwater Botany Bay Ryde Warringah Warringah	
Gunjeewong Cultural Heritage Aboriginal Corporation	Cherie Carroll Turrise	(02) 6355 4110 0456 116 408	cheriecarroll68@yahoo.com	1 Bellvue Place, Portland NSW, 2847	Hawkesbury Blacktown Penrith Fairfield	Holroyd Camden Campbelltown Parramatta	Cherie is a Ngunnawal Elder however lived in the Western Sydney area during her
	Contact details have changed as the above contact details have been hacked as of January 2018	0438 428 805 or 0409 558 846	<u>Gunjeewong53@hotmail.com</u>				childhood. She recognises she is not from the area but has associations
Merrigarn Indigenous Corporation	Shaun Carroll	0435 040 842	Not provided	GPO Box 158, Canberra City, ACT, 2601	Hawkesbury Blacktown Penrith Fairfield	Holroyd Camden Campbelltown Parramatta	Shaun is Ngunnawal and is Cherie's brother. NOTE: It has been reported to OEH that the contact details for this group are incorrect; however, OEH has not been provided with revised contact details.
Corroboree Aboriginal Corporation	Steve Johnson	0406 991 221	Not provided	PO Box 3340, Rouse Hill, NSW 2155	Western Sydney Camden	Campbelltown Parramatta	Ngunnawal and lives in Western Sydney
Murra Bidgee Mullangari Aboriginal Corporation	Darleen Johnson	0490 051 102	Not provided	PO Box 246, Seven Hills, NSW, 2147	Hawkesbury Blacktown Penrith Fairfield	Holroyd Camden Campbelltown Parramatta	Ngunnawal and lives in Western Sydney
Muragadi Heritage Indigenous Corporation	Jesse Johnson	0447 970 049	Not provided	5 Hession Road, Nelson, NSW 2765	Western Sydney Camden	Campbelltown Parramatta	Ngunnawal and lives in Western Sydney
Bidjawong Aboriginal Corporation	James Carroll	0433 224 324	Not provided	PO Box 124, Round Corner, NSW 2158	Hawkesbury Blacktown Penrith Fairfield	Holroyd Camden Cambelltown Parramatta	9
Phil Kahn		0434 545 982	Not provided	78 Forbes Street, Emu Plains, NSW 2750	Hawkesbury Blacktown Penrith	Camden Campbelltown Liverpool	

Organisation/ Individual	Contact Name	Phone Number	Email Address/ Fax	Postal Address	LGA's		Additional information
					Fairfield Holroyd	Parramatta	
Wurrumay Consultancy	Kerrie Slater	0423 935 556	wurrumay@hotmail.com; Vicki.slater@hotmail.com	89 Pyramid street, Emu Plains NSW	Hawkesbury Blacktown Penrith Fairfield Holroyd	Camden Campbelltown Liverpool Parramatta Wollondilly	
Warragil Cultural Services	Aaron Slater (Manager)	0481 280 067	Warragil c.s@hotmail.com		Hawkesbury Blacktown Penrith Fairfield	Holroyd Camden Campbelltown Liverpool Parramatta	
Kawul Cultural Services	Vicky Slater (Manager)	0431 720 887	Vicki.slater@hotmail.com	89 Pyramid Street, Emu Plains NSW 2750	Hawkesbury Blacktown Fairfield Holroyd Blue Mountains Sutherland Liverpool	Camden Campbelltown Parramatta Wollondiily The Hills Shire Auburn Bankstown	
Tocomwall D'harawal Mens Aboriginal Corporation Amanda Hirkey Cruthural Services	Scott Franks Elwyn Brown Amanda Hickev	0404 171 544 0401920982 0401920982	Not provided Not provided	PO Box 76, Caringbah NSW 1495 187 Riverside Drive, Airds NSW 2560	Hawkesbury Blacktown Penrith Fairfield Holroyd Campbelltown The Hills Shire Liverpool Parramatta Sydney Kogarah Hurstville Rockdale Canter Bankstown Camden Camden Cambelltown	Strathfrield Burwood Ashfield Auburn Canada Bay Leichhardt Manly Manly Morth Sydney Lane Cove Hunters Hill Hunters Hill Hunters Hill Hunters Hill Ku-Ring-Gai Pittwater Botany Bay Ryde Warringah Wollondilly Wollondilly	Amanda is Wonnarua
Amanda nickey Cuitural Services Widescope Indigenous Group	Amanua mokey Steven Hickey and	0425 230 693	Not provided	Al Denipsey Sueet, child heights, NSW 2750 73 Russell Street, Emu Plains, NSW	lawresoury Blacktown Penrith Blue Mountains Hawkesbury	rainteu Parramatta Fairfield	
	Donna Hickey	(Steven) 0425 232 056 (Donna)		2750	Blacktown Penrith	Holroyd Parramatta Blue Mountains	
HSB Consultants	Patricia Hampton	0424 142 216	Not provided	62 Ropes Crossing Boulevard, Ropes Crossing 2760	Hawkesbury Blacktown Penrith	Fairfield Holroyd Parramatta	

Organisation/ Individual	Contact Name	Phone Number	Email Address/ Fax	Postal Address	LGA's		Additional information
Rane Consulting	Tony Williams	02 88246991	ajw1901@bigpond.com	1 Pyrenees Way Beaumont Hills NSW 2155	Hawkesbury Blacktown Penrith	Fairfield Holroyd Parramatta	
Anthony Williams		0456 399 687	Not provided	Unit 2 / 24 Goodwin Street Narrabeen NSW 2101	Hawkesbury Blacktown Penrith	Fairfield Holroyd Parramatta	
Dhinawan-Dhigaraa Culture & Heritage Pty Ltd	Ricky Fields	0402 942 572	dhinawan.fields@gmail.com	Not provided	Hawkesbury Blacktown	Fairfield Holrovd	Ŧ
	Athol Smith	0449 665 715	Not provided	16 Yantara Place, Woodcroft, NSW, 2767	Penrith	Parramatta	
Gunyuu	Kylie Ann Bell	Not provided	<u>gunyuuchts@gmail.com</u>	Not provided	Hawkesbury Blacktown	Burwood Ashfield	This group states that their boundaries (Murrin
				,	Penrith Fairfield	Auburn Canada Bay	Peoples) extend from
12	2		¢5		Holroyd	Leichhardt	the Snowy River.
10			2		Campbelltown	Mosman	
				5+ 30	Liverpool Parramatta	North Sydney Lane Cove	
		2			Sutherland	Hunters Hill Hornsby	
					Sogarah	Ku-Ring-Gai	
				12	Hurstville Rockdale	Pittwater Botany Bay	
					Canterbury	Ryde	
7					Marrickville Bankstown Strathfield	Warringah Willoughby	
Walbunja	Hika Te Kowhai	0402 730 612	walbunja@gmail.com	Not provided	Hawkesbury	Burwood	This group states that
				4	Blacktown	Ashfield	their boundaries (Murrin
	2				Penrith Fairfield	Auburn Canada Bav	Peoples) extend from the Hawkeshury River to
			12		Holroyd		the Snowy River
		2			Campbelltown	Mosman	
0	40 10			a)	Liverpool	North Sydney	
1			22		Parramatta Sutherland	Lane Cove Hunters Hill	
					Sydney	Hornsby	
					Kogarah Hurstville	Ku-Ring-Gai Pittwater	
				,	Rockdale	Botany Bay	
					Canterbury	Ryde	
			<u>j</u> e		Bankstown	Willoughby	
Badu	Karia Lea Bond	0476 381 207	Not provided	11 Jeffery Place, Moruva, NSW	Hawkesbury	Burwood	This group states that
				2537	Blacktown	Ashfield	their boundaries (Murrin
					Fairfield	Aupurn Canada Bay	Peoples) extend from the Hawkesbury River to
		14	ř.		Holroyd Camden	Leichhardt Manlv	the Snowy River
					Campbelltown	Mosman	

Organisation/ Individual	Contact Name	Phone Number	Email Address/ Fax	Postal Address	LGA's		Additional information
					Liverpool Parramatta Sutherland Sydney Kogarah Hurstville Rockale Canterbury Marrickville Bankstown Strathfield	North Sydney Lane Cove Hunters Hill Hornsby Ku-Ring-Gai Pittwater Pittwater Botany Bay Ryde Warringah Warringah	
Goobah Developments	Basil Smith	0405 995 725	Not provided	66 Grantham Road, Batehaven NSW, 2536	Hawkesbury Blacktown Penrith Fairfield Holroyd Cambelltown Liverpool Parramatta Sydney Sydney Kogarah Hurstville Rockdale Rockdale Canterbury Marrickville Bankstown Strathfield	Burwood Ashfield Auburn Canada Bay Leichhardt Manly Mosman North Sydney Lane Cove Hunters Hill Hornsby Lane Cove Hunter Aill Hornsby Ru-Ring-Gai Pittwater Botany Bay Ryde Warringah Warringah	This group states that their boundaries (Murrin Peoples) extend from the Hawkesbury River to the Snowy River the Snowy River
Mullung	Lee-Roy James Boota	0403 703 942	Not provided	54 Blackwood Street, Gerringong, NSW, 2534	Hawkesbury Blacktown Penrith Fairfield Holroyd Camden Cambelltown Liverpool Parramatta Sydney Kogarah Hurstville Rockdale Canterbury Marrickville Bankstown Strathfield	Burwood Ashfield Auburn Canada Bay Leichhardt Manly Mosman North Sydney Lane Cove Hunters Hill Hornsby Ku-Ring-Gai Pittwater Botany Bay Ryde Waringah Willoughby	This group states that their boundaries (Murrin Peoples) extend from the Hawkesbury River to the Snowy River the Snowy River
Yerramurra	Robert Parson	Not provided	<u>yerramurra@gmail.com</u>	Not provided	Hawkesbury Blacktown Penrith Fairfield Holroyd Camden Campbelltown	Burwood Ashfield Auburn Canada Bay Leichhardt Manly Mosman	This group states that their boundaries (Murrin Peoples) extend from the Hawkesbury River to the Snowy River

Organisation/ Individual	Contact Name	Phone Number	Email Address/ Fax	Postal Address	LGA's		Additional information
					Liverpool Parramatta Sutherland Sydney Kogarah Hurstville Rockdale Canterbury Marrickville Bankstown Strathfield	North Sydney Lane Cove Hunters Hill Hornsby Ku-Ring-Gai Pittwater Pittwater Ryde Warringah Warringah	
Nundagurri	Newton Carriage	Not Provided	nundagurri@gmail.com	Not Provided	Hawkesbury Blacktown Penrith Fairfield Holroyd Camden Cambelltown Liverpool Liverpool Parramatta Sydney Kogarah Hurstville Rockdale Canterbury Marrickville Bankstown Strathfield	Burwood Ashfield Auburn Canada Bay Leichhardt Manly Mosman North Sydney Lane Cove Lane Cove Hunters Hill Hornsby Ku-Ring-Gai Pittwater Botany Bay Ryde Warringah Warringah	This group states that their boundaries (Murrin Peoples) extend from the Hawkesbury River to the Snowy River the Snowy River
Murrumbul	Mark Henry	Not provided	murrumbul@gmail.com	Not provided	Hawkesbury Blacktown Penrith Fairfield Holroyd Camden Cambelltown Liverpool Parramatta Sydney Kogarah Hurstville Rockdale Canterbury Marrickville Bankstown Strathfield	Burwood Ashfield Auburn Canada Bay Leichhardt Manly Mosman North Sydney Lane Cove Hunters Hill Hornsby Ku-Ring-Gai Pittwater Botany Bay Ryde Warringah Willoughby	This group states that their boundaries (Murrin Peoples) extend from the Hawkesbury River to the Snowy River.
Jerringong	Joanne Anne Stewart	0422 800 184	jerringong@gmail.com	Not provided	Hawkesbury Blacktown Penrith Fairfield Holroyd Camden Cambelltown	Burwood Ashfield Auburn Canada Bay Leichhardt Manly Mosman	This group states that their boundaries (Murrin Peoples) extend from the Hawkesbury River to the Snowy River

 $\infty$ 

Organisati <i>on/</i> Individual	Contact Name	Phone Number	Email Address/ Fax	Postal Address	LGA's		Additional information
					Liverpool Parramatta Sutherland Sydney Kogarah Hurstville Rockdale Canterbury Marrickville Bankstown Strathfield	North Sydney Lane Cove Hunters Hill Hornsby Ku-Ring-Gai Pittwater Botany Bay Ryde Warringah Warringah	
Pemulwuy CHTS	Pemulwuy Johnson	0425 066 100	pemulwuyd@gmail.com	14 Top Place, Mt Annan	Hawkesbury Blacktown Fainfield Holroyd Cambelltown The Hills Shire Liverpool Parramatta Sydney Kogarah Hurstville Rockdale Canterbury Marrickville Bankstown	Strathfield Burwood Ashfield Auburn Canada Bay Leichhardt Manly North Sydney Lane Cove Hunters Hill Hornsby Ku-Ring-Gai Pittwater Botany Bay Ryde Warringah	This group states that their boundaries (Murrin Peoples) extend from the Hawkesbury River to the Snowy River
Bilinga	Simalene Carriage	Not provided	bilingachts@gmail.com	Not provided	Hawkesbury Blacktown Penrith Fairfield Holroyd Cambelltown Liverpool Parramatta Sydney Sydney Kogarah Hurstville Rockdale Canterbury Marrickville Bankstown Strathfield	Burwood Ashfield Auburn Canada Bay Leichhardt Manly Mosman North Sydney Lane Cove Hunters Hill Hornsby Ku-Ring-Gai Pittwater Ryde Warringah Warringah	This group states that their boundaries (Murrin Peoples) extend from the Hawkesbury River to the Snowy River.
Munyunga	Kaya Dawn Bell	Not provided	munyungachts@gmail.com	Not provided	Hawkesbury Blacktown Penrith Fairfield Holroyd Camden Campbelltown	Burwood Ashfield Auburn Canada Bay Leichhardt Manly Mosman	This group states that their boundaries (Murrin Peoples) extend from the Hawkesbury River to the Snowy River.

ົ

Organisation/ Individual	Contact Name	Phone Number	Email Address/ Fax	Postal Address	LGA's		Additional information
					Liverpool Parramatta Sutherland Sydney Kogarah Hurstville Rockdale Canterbury Marrickville Bankstown Strathfield	North Sydney Lane Cove Hunters Hill Hornsby Ku-Ring-Gai Pittwater Pittwater Ryde Warringah Wilarringah	
Wingikara	Hayley Bell	Not provided	wingikarachts@gmail.com	Not provided	Hawkesbury Blacktown Penrith Fairfield Holroyd Cambelltown Liverpool Parramatta Sutherland Sydney Kogarah Hurstville Rockdale Canterbury Marrickville Bankstown Strathfield	Burwood Ashfield Auburn Canada Bay Leichhardt Many Mosman North Sydney Lane Cove Hunters Hill Hornsby Ku-Ring-Gai Pittwater Pittwater Pittwater Ryde Warringah Wilarughby	This group states that their boundaries (Murrin Peoples) extend from the Hawkesbury River to the Snowy River.
Minnamunug	Aaron Broad	0402 526 888	Not provided	1 Waratah Avenue, Albion Park Rail NSW 2527	Hawkesbury Blacktown Penrith Fairfield Holroyd Cambelltown Liverpool Parramatta Sytherland Sydney Kogarah Hurstville Canterbury Marrickville Bankstown Strathfield	Burwood Ashfield Auburn Canada Bay Leichhardt Manly Mosman North Sydney Lane Cove Hunters Hill Hornsby Ku-Ring-Gai Pittwater Pittwater Pittwater Warringah Willoughby	
Walgalu	Ronald Stewart	Not provided	walgaluchts@gmail.com	Not provided	Hawkesbury Blacktown Penrith Fairfield Holroyd Camden Campbelltown	Ashfield Auburn Canada Bay Leichhardt Manly Mosman North Sydney	This group states that their boundaries (Murrin Peoples) extend from the Hawkesbury River to the Snowy River

Organisation/ Individual	Contact Name	Phone Number	Email Address/ Fax	Postal Address	LGA's		Additional information
					Liverpool Parramatta Sutherland Sydney Kogarah Hurstville Rockdale Canterbury Marrickville Bankstown Strathfield Randwick Woollahra	Lane Cove Hunters Hill Hornsby Ku-Ring-Gai Pittwater Botany Bay Warringah Wiloughby Blue Mountains Burwood The Hills Waverly Wollondilly	
Thauaira	Shane Carriage	Not provided	thauairachts@gmail.com	Not provided	Hawkesbury Blacktown Penrith Fairfield Holroyd Camden Cambelltown Liverpool Parramatta Sutherland Sydney Kogarah Hurstville Rockdale Canterbury Marrickville Bankstown Strathfield Randwick Woollahra	Ashfield Auburn Canada Bay Leichhardt Manly Morth Sydney Lane Cove Hunters Hill Hornsby Ku-Ring-Gai Pittwater Bytany Bay Ryde Waringah Waverly Waverly Wollondilly	This group states that their boundaries (Murrin Peoples) extend from the Hawkesbury River to the Snowy River the Snowy River
Dharug	Andrew Bond	Not provided	dharugchts@gmail.com	Not provided	Hawkesbury Blacktown Fairfield Holroyd Camden Camabelltown Liverpool Parramatta Sydney Kogarah Hurstville Rockdale Canterbury Marrickville Bankstown Strathfield Randwick	Ashfield Auburn Canada Bay Leichhardt Manly Mosman North Sydney Lane Cove Hunters Hill Hornsby Ku-Ring-Gai Pittwater Pittwater Pittwater Pittwater Burany Bay Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Waringah Warringah Warringah	This group states that their boundaries (Murrin Peoples) extend from the Hawkesbury River to the Snowy River

Organisation/ Individual	Contact Name	Phone Number	Email Address/ Fax	Postal Address	LGA's		Additional information
					Woollahra	Waverly Wollondilly	
Bilinga Cultural Heritage Technical Services	Robert Brown	Not Provided	bilinga@mirramajah.com	Not Provided	Hawkesbury Blacktown Penrith Fairfield Holroyd Camden Camden Camden Liverpool Parramatta Sydney Kogarah Hurstville Ruckdale Canterbury Rockdale Canterbury Rardwick Randwick Woollahra	Ashfield Auburn Canada Bay Leichhardt Manly Mosman North Sydney Lane Cove Hunters Hill Hornsby Lane Cove Hunters Hill Hornsby Ku-Ring-Gai Pittwater Botany Bay Warringah Waverly Waverly Woollondilly	This group is a member of the Mirramajah Group of RAPs
Gunyuu Cultural Heritage Technical Services	Darlene Hoskins- McKenzie	Not Provided	gunyuu@mirramajah.com management@mirramajah.co m (management & administrative email address for the Mirramajah Group of RAPs).	Not Provided	Hawkesbury Blacktown Penrith Fairfield Holroyd Cambbelltown Liverpool Parramatta Sydney Kogarah Hurstville Rockdale Canterbury Marrickville Bankstown Strathfield Randwick Woollahra	Ashfield Auburn Canada Bay Leichhardt Manly Mornaby Lane Cove Hunters Hill Hornsby Ku-Ring-Gai Ryde Pittwater Botany Bay Warringah Warringah Warringah Waverly Waverly Wollondilly	This group is a member of the Mirramajah Group of RAPs
Munyunga Cultural Heritage Technical Services	Suzannah McKenzie	Not Provided	munyunga@mirmajah.com	Not Provided	Hawkesbury Blacktown Penrith Fairfield Holroyd Campbelltown Liverpool Parramatta Sutherland	Ashfield Auburn Canada Bay Leichhardt Manly Manly Morth Sydney Lane Cove Hunters Hill Hornsby	This group is a member of the Mirramajah Group of RAPs

Organisation/ Individual	Contact Name	Phone Number	Email Address/ Fax	Postal Address	LGA's		Additional information
					Sydney Kogarah Hurstville Rockdale Canterbury Marrickville Bankstown Strathfield Randwick Woollahra	Ku-Ring-Gai Pittwater Botany Bay Ryde Warringah Willoughby Blue Mountains Burwood The Hills Waverly Wollondilly	
Murrumbul Cultural Heritage Technical Services	Levi McKenzie- Kirkbright	Not Provided	murrumbul@mirramajah.com	Not Provided	Hawkesbury Blacktown Penrith Fairfield Holroyd Campbelltown Liverpool Parramatta Sydney Kogarah Hurstville Rockdale Rockdale Rockdale Rantstown Strathfield Rantstown Strathfield Randwick Woollahra	Ashfield Auburn Canada Bay Leichhardt Manly Mosman North Sydney Lane Cove Hunters Hill Hornsby Ku-Ring-Gai Pittwater Botany Bay Ryde Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Waverly Blue Mountains Blue Mountains Waverly	This group is a member of the Mirramajah Group of RAPs
Wingikara Cultural Heritage Technical Services	Wandai Kirkbright	Not Provided	wingikara@mirramajah.com	Not Provided	Hawkesbury Blacktown Penrith Fairfield Holroyd Campbelltown Liverpool Parramatta Sydney Kogarah Hurstville Rockdale Canterbury Marrickville Bankstown Strathfield Randwick Woollahra	Ashfield Auburn Canada Bay Leichhardt Manly Mosman North Sydney Lane Cove Hunters Hill Hornsby Lane Cove Hunters Hill Hornsby Ku-Ring-Gai Pittwater Pittwater Ryde Warringah Warringah Willoughby Blue Mountains Burwood The Hills Waverly Waverly	This group is a member of the Mirramajah Group of RAPs

Organisation/ Individual	Contact Name	Phone Number	Email Address/ Fax	Postal Address	LGA's		Additional information
Gulaga	Wendy Smith	Not Provided	gulagachts@gmail.com	Not Provided	Hawkesbury Blacktown Fairfield Holroyd Cambaelltown Liverpool Parramatta Sydney Kogarah Hurstville Ruckdale Canterbury Marrickville Bankstown Strathfield Randwick Woollahra	Ashfield Auburn Canada Bay Leichhardt Manly Mosman North Sydney Lane Cove Hunters Hill Hornsby Ku-Ring-Gai Pittwater Ku-Ring-Gai Pittwater Ryde Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah	This group states that their boundaries (Murrin Peoples) extend from the Hawkesbury River to the Snowy River
Biamanga	Seli Storer	Not Provided	biamangachts@gmail.com	Not Provided	Hawkesbury Blacktown Fairfield Holroyd Campbelltown Liverpool Parramatta Sydney Kogarah Hurstville Runterbury Marrickville Banksrown Strathfield Randwick Woollahra	Ashfield Auburn Canada Bay Leichhardt Manly Mosman North Sydney Lane Cove Hunters Hill Hornsby Lane Cove Hunters Hill Hornsby Ku-Ring-Gai Pittwater Botany Bay Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warring	This group states that their boundaries (Murrin Peoples) extend from the Hawkesbury River to the Snowy River the Snowy River
Callenduila	Corey Smith	Not Provided	cullendullachts@gmail.com	Not Provided	Hawkesbury Blacktown Penrith Fairfield Holroyd Cambelltown Cambelltown Liverpool Parramatta Sutherland Sydney Sydney	Ashfield Auburn Canada Bay Leichhardt Manly Mosman North Sydney Lane Cove Hunters Hill Hornsby Ku-Ring-Gai Pittwater	This group states that their boundaries (Murrin Peoples) extend from the Hawkesbury River to the Snowy River

Organisation/ Individual	Contact Name	Phone Number	Email Address/ Fax	Postal Address	LGA's		Additional information
					Hurstville Rockdale Canterbury Marrickville Bankstown Strathfield Randwick Woollahra	Botany Bay Ryde Warringah Willoughby Blue Mountains Burwood The Hills Waverly Wollondilly	
Murramarang	Roxanne Smith	Not Provided	murramarangchts@gmail.com	Not Provided	Hawkesbury Blacktown Penrith Fairfield Holroyd Camden Camden Liverpool Parramatta Sydney Kogarah Hurstville Rockdale Canterbury Marrickville Bankstown Strathfield Randwick Woollahra	Ashfield Auburn Canada Bay Leichhardt Manly Mornsh Morth Sydney Lane Cove Hunters Hill Hornsby Ku-Ring-Gai Pittwater Botany Bay Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Walondilly	This group states that their boundaries (Murrin Peoples) extend from the Hawkesbury River to the Snowy River
DJMD Consultancy	Darren Duncan	0410 510 397	darrenjohnduncan@gmail.com	Not Provided	Hawkesbury Blacktown Penrith Parramatta Sydney Marrickville Strathfield Warringah Willoughby Blue Mountains Burwood The Hills Ryde	Ashfield Auburn Canada Bay Leichhardt Manly Mosman North Sydney Lane Cove Hunters Hill Hoursby Ku-Ring-Gai Pittwater	Darren is associated with Metro and Deerubbin LALCs
Butucarbin Aboriginal Corporation	Jennifer Beale	(02)9832 7167	koori@ozemail.com.au	PO Box E18, Emerton, NSW 2770	Hawkesbury Blacktown Penrith Fairfield Holroyd Cambel Campbelltown Liverpool Parramatta	Ashfield Auburn Canada Bay Leichhardt Manly Mosman North Sydney Lane Cove Hunters Hill	Preferred contact via email

Organisation/ Individual	Contact Name	Phone Number	Email Address/ Fax	Postal Address	LGA's		Additional information
					Sutherland Sydney Kogarah Hurstville Rockdale Canterbury Marrickville Bankstown Strathfield Randwick Woollahra	Hornsby Ku-Ring-Gai Pittwater Botany Bay Ryde Warringah Warringah Willoughby Blue Mountains Blue Mountains Waverly Wollondrilly	
Didge Ngunawal Clan	Lillie Carroll Paul Boyd	0426 823 944	didgengunawalclan@yahoo.co m.au	7 Siskin St, Quakers Hill NSW 2763	Hawkesbury Blacktown Penrith Fairfield Holroyd Camden Cambelltown Liverpool Parramatta Sydney Kogarah Hurstville Rockdale Rockdale Rockdale Rockdale Bankstown Strathfield Strathfield Marrickville Bankstown	Ashfield Auburn Canada Bay Leichhardt Manly Mosman North Sydney Lane Cove Hunters Hill Hurnsby Ku-Ring-Gai Pittwater Botany Bay Ryde Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah	
Ginninderra Aboriginal Corporation	Steven Johnson and Krystle Carroll	0406991221	Ginninderra.corp@gmail.com	PO BOX 3143 Grose Vale NSW 2754	Woollahra Hawkesbury Blacktown Penrith Fairfield Holitown Camden Cambelltown Liverpool Parramatta Sydney Kogarah Hurstville Rockdale Canterbury Marrickville Bankstown Strathfield Randwick Woollahra	Waverly Wollondilly Ashfield Auburn Canada Bay Leichhardt Manly North Sydney Lane Cove Hunters Hill Hornsby Ku-Ring-Gai Pittwater Botany Bay Ryde Bilue Mountains Burwood The Hills Waverly Wollondilly	

Organisation/ Individual	Contact Name	Phone Number	Email Address/ Fax	Postal Address	LGA's		Additional information
Garrara Aboriginal Corporation	Raymond Ingrey		raymond@bariyu.org.au		Sutherland Liverpool Camden Campbelltown Wollondilly		
Nerrigundah	Newton Carriage	0421 253 677	nerrigundachts@gmail.com		Hawkesbury Ashfield Blacktown Auburn Penrith Canada E Fairfield Leichhard Holroyd Manly Camden Mosman Camden North Svy Cambelltown North Svy Liverpool Hunters H Sydney Ku-Ring- Ku-Ring- Ku-Ring- Ku-Ring- Marrickville Botany B Rockdale Ryde Canterbury Warringal Marrickville Burwood Randwick The Hills Woollahra Waverly	Ashfield Auburn Canada Bay Leichhardt Manly Morth Sydney North Sydney Lane Cove Hunters Hill Hornsby Ku-Ring-Gai Pittwater Pittwater Ryde Ryde Warringah Willoughby Blue Mountains Burwood The Hills Waverly	
Duncan Falk Consultancy	Duncan Falk	0406 610 644	duncanfalk@hotmail.com	34 Robinia Drive, Bowral NSW 2576	Campbelltown		
Sharon Hodgetts	-	0405288814	sharonhodgetts@hotmail.com	21/29 Central Coast Hwy West Gosford 2250	Hawkesbury		
Wailwan Aboriginal Group	Philip Boney	0436 483 210	waarlan12@outlook.com		und the standard and a second	Ashfield Auburn Canada Bay Leichhardt Manly Mosma North Sydney Lane Cove Hunters Hill Hornsby Ku-Ring-Gai Pittwater Pittwater Botany Bay Ryde Botany Bay Waringah Willoughy Blue Mountains Burwood The Hills Waverly	
Guntawang Aboriginal Resources Incorporated	Wendy Morgan	0414 964 657 9601 7183	<u>Wenlissa01@hotmail.com</u>	113 Reservoir Road Mt Pritchard NSW 2170	Camden Campbelltown Liverpool Fairfield		

Organisation/ Individual	Contact Name	Phone Number	Email Address/ Fax	Postal Address	LGA's	Additional	Additional information
Luce building					Holroyd Wollondilly Blue Mountains		
Barking Owl Aboriginal Corporation	Mrs Jody Kulakowski (Director)	0426 242 015	barkingowlcorp@gmail.com	2-65/69 Wehlow St. Mt Druitt	Hawkesbury Ashfield Blacktown Auburn Penrith Canada Bay Fairfield Leichhardt Holroyd Manly Camden Mosman Cambelltown North Sydney Liverpool Lane Cove Parramatta Hunters Hill Sydney Ku-Ring-Gai Kogarah Hunters Hill Sydney Ku-Ring-Gai Kogarah Botany Bay Rockdale Ryde Canterbury Warringah Marrickville Botany Bay Rockdale Ryde Canterbury Warringah Marrickville Burwood Randwick The Hills Woollahra Wolondilly	Bay rdt rdt /dney vve Bay say say liv untains	
Yulay Cultural Services	Arika Jalomaki (Manager)	0411 048 794	yulayculturalservices@gmail.c	15 Rowley Place, Airds NSW 2560	Deerubbin LALC Tharawal LALC Gandangarra LALC	LGAs of interest not specified, rather, LALC boundaries within which the organisation wish to be consulted	erest not ther, LALC within which ttion wish to
Thoorga Nura	John Carriage (Chief Executive Officer)	0401 641 299	thoorganura@gmail.com	50B Hiltop Crescent, Surf Beach, 2536, NSW	Ashfield Leichhardt Auburn Liverpool Bankstown Manly Blacktown Marrickville Blue Mountains Mosman Burwood Parramatta Camden Parramatta Cambelltown Pittwater Canada Bay Rockdale Fairfield The Hills Sydney Hawkesbury Strathfield The Hills Sydney Hunter's Hill Waverley Hurstville Wollahra Ku-ring-gai Wollondilly Lane Cove	e e	
Barraby Cultural Services	Lee Field (Manager)	0423 906 606	barrabyculturalservices@gmail .com	6 Macgibbon Parade, Old Erowal Bay, NSW 2540	Tharawai LALC	LGAs of interest not specified, rather, LALC	rrest not ther, LALC

Organisation/ Individual	Contact Name	Phone Number	Email Address/ Fax	Postal Address	LGA's		Additional information
					Gandagarra LALC	12 23	boundaries within which the organisation wish to be consulted
Yurrandaali Cultural Services	Bo Field (Manager)	0457 546 643	yurrandaali_cs@hotmail.com	3 Sheeran Street, Old Erowal Bay NSW 2540	Tharawal LALC Gandagarra LALC		LGAs of interest not specified, rather, LALC boundaries within which the organisation wish to
Darug Boorooberongal Elders Aboriginal Corporation	Gordon Workman	0415 663 763	fax 02 9831 8868 boorooberongal@outlook.com	73 Judith Anderson Drive, Doonside NSW 2767	Ashfield Auburn Bankstown Blue Mountains Burwood Camden Camden Camdel Canada Bay Canterbury Fairfield Hawkesbury Hurter's Hill Hunter's Hill Hurter's Hill Ku-rino-caai	Leichhardt Liverpool Maniy Marrickville Mosman North Sydney Penrith Penrith Penrith Penrith Penrith Rockdale Ryde Strathfield Sydney Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Warringah Wollondilhra	
					Lane Cove		

From:Geospatial Search Requests <GeospatialSearch@NNTT.gov.au>Sent:Friday, September 14, 2018 3:12 PMTo:Ryan TaddeucciSubject:RE: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Your email has been received and is being actioned. For information regarding timeframes and what you will receive in response please refer to our website at this address:

http://www.nntt.gov.au/assistance/Pages/Searches-and-providing-Register-information.aspx

Geospatial Searches National Native Title Tribunal | Perth Email: <u>GeospatialSearch@nntt.gov.au</u> | <u>www.nntt.gov.au</u> Shared country, shared future

From:council@cityofparramatta.nsw.gov.auSent:Friday, September 14, 2018 2:58 PMTo:Ryan TaddeucciSubject:City of Parramatta Council Acknowledgement - PLEASE DO NOT REPLY TO THIS EMAIL

Thank you very much for your message. Your message is important to Council, and we will respond to your request in a timely manner.

Council treats email messages as a form of correspondence and has adopted Policies identifying timelines for how all mail from any source will be dealt with.

# PLEASE DO NOT REPLY TO THIS EMAIL

# ×

126 Church Street Parramatta NSW 2150PO Box 32, Parramatta NSW 2124☎ (02) 9806 5050☎ council@cityofparramatta.nsw.gov.auLinkswww.cityofparramatta.nsw.gov.au

Visit http://www.cityofparramatta.nsw.gov.au

Attention: This e-mail is privileged and confidential. If you are not the intended recipient please delete this message and notify the sender. The use, copying or distribution of this message or any information it contains, by anyone other than the intended recipient is prohibited by the City of Parramatta. Any views or opinions presented are solely those of the individual sender, except where the sender specifically states them to be the views of the Council.

Think before you print - help save our environment!

From:Geospatial Search Requests <GeospatialSearch@NNTT.gov.au>Sent:Wednesday, September 19, 2018 2:42 PMTo:Ryan TaddeucciSubject:RE: SR4865 Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park -<br/>SR4865

# UNCLASSIFIED

Native title search – *NSW Parcels* – *Lot 1 on DP1185060 and Lot 2 on DP1185969* Your ref: 18117 - Our ref: SR4865

# **Change of e-mail address for Geospatial Searches**

Please ensure that from 14<sup>th</sup> August 2018 your search requests are forwarded to <u>GeospatialSearch@NNTT.gov.au</u> with a *completed search request form*. The form is available from the Tribunal's website at this address: <u>http://www.nntt.gov.au/News-and-Publications/Pages/Forms.aspx</u>

Dear Ryan Taddeucci,

Thank you for your search request received on 14 September 2018 in relation to the above area. Based on the records held by the National Native Title Tribunal as at 19 September 2018 it would appear that there are no Native Title Determination Applications, Determinations of Native Title, or Indigenous Land Use Agreements over the identified area.

# Search Results

The results provided are based on the information you supplied and are derived from a search of the following Tribunal databases:

- Schedule of Native Title Determination Applications
- Register of Native Title Claims
- National Native Title Register
- Register of Indigenous Land Use Agreements
- Notified Indigenous Land Use Agreements

At the time this search was carried out, there were **<u>no relevant entries</u>** in the above databases.

**Please note**: There may be a delay between a native title determination application being lodged in the Federal Court and its transfer to the Tribunal. As a result, some native title determination applications recently filed with the Federal Court may not appear on the Tribunal's databases.

# The Tribunal accepts no liability for reliance placed on enclosed information

The enclosed information has been provided in good faith. Use of this information is at your sole risk. The National Native Title Tribunal makes no representation, either express or implied, as to the accuracy or suitability of the information enclosed for any particular purpose and accepts no liability for use of the information or reliance placed on it.

If you have any further queries, please do not hesitate to contact us on the free call number 1800 640 501.

Regards,

Geospatial Searches National Native Title Tribunal | Perth Email: <u>GeospatialSearch@nntt.gov.au</u> | <u>www.nntt.gov.au</u> Shared country, shared future

From: Ryan Taddeucci <ryan.taddeucci@artefact.net.au>
Sent: Friday, 14 September 2018 1:11 PM
To: Geospatial Search Requests <GeospatialSearch@NNTT.gov.au>
Subject: SR4865 Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear Sir or Madam,

# Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for Austino Property Group. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403. The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Olympic Park area. The purpose of the community consultation is to assist the proponent in the preparation of an ACHAR in compliance with SSD\_9403.

In line with the relevant consultation guidelines, I am writing to you to request names and contact details that your organisation has for Aboriginal people or groups that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects or places within the Schofields area. Please forward any information available before **28 September 2018** to:

Ryan Taddeucci Artefact Heritage Building B, Level 4, 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009 or email <u>ryan.taddeucci@artefact.net.au</u>

#### Yours sincerely,

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant

#### ARTEFACT

Telephone: **(02) 9518 8411** Mobile: 0423 381 482 Address: Level 4, Building B, 35 Saunders Street, Pyrmont NSW 2009 Web: <u>www.artefact.net.au</u>

Cultural Heritage Management | Archaeology | Heritage Interpretation

We acknowledge the Traditional Custodians of Country in which we live and work, and pay our respects to them, their culture and their Elders past, present and future

Notice: This message contains privileged and confidential information intended only for the use of the addressee. If you are not the intended recipient you must not disseminate, copy or take any action in reliance upon it. If you received this in error, please notify us immediately.



19 September 2018

Ryan Taddeucci Artefact Heritage Building B, Level 4 35 Saunders Street PYRMONT NSW 2009

Dear Ryan

# **Re: Request - Search for Registered Aboriginal Owners**

I refer to your email dated 14 September 2018 regarding an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment for the proposed residential development located at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park NSW.

I have searched the Register of Aboriginal Owners and the project area described does not have Registered Aboriginal Owners pursuant to Division 3 of the *Aboriginal Land Rights Act 1983*.

I suggest that you contact Metropolitan Local Aboriginal Land Council on 02 8394 9666 regarding the project. They may also be able to assist you in identifying other Aboriginal stakeholders that wish to participate.

Yours sincerely

Jodie Rikiti Administration Officer Office of the Registrar, ALRA



09.18.2018 12:51 NewsCorp Australia - Tearsheet

# min

# TRAINING FOR THE FUTURE. CALL 13 19 79. VISIT CAREERS@NEWSLOCAL.COM.AU

# HOSPITALITY

# Skills shortage serves more opportunities

#### **Cara Jenkin**

THE number of workers needed in the hospitality industry is growing at an average annual rate of 20,000 and hospitality educators are needed to teach them.

Jobs department data shows 97,600 more jobs are forecast to be created in the accommodation and food services sector in the five years to May 2022.

Le Cordon Bleu Australia chief executive Derrick Casey says hospitality workers gain operational, busi-

ness, teamwork and people skills that make them appealing candidates for jobs in other sectors, so many of those intending on a hospitality career are poached, leaving even more openings at the senior and experienced level.

"The lack of good quality, long-term career managers and supervisors in the industry is reflected in a similar shortage of good quality teachers," Casey says. "We need people with the industry experience to return to become good teachers.'

Le Cordon Bleu Advanced Diploma of Hospitality Management (Patisserie) graduate Gunawan Wu is studying to become a lecturer while working as head chef at 2nd &6th restaurant in Adelaide. When he was younger, he

wanted to be an artist, but after his parents would not let him study multimedia design after finishing school, he found another way to express his creativity.

"I love creating stuff from my mind," he says. "I enjoy teaching because it uses my creativity as well."



Gunawan Wu studied and Advanced Diploma of Hospitality Management (Patisserie) at Le Cordon Bleu. Picture: Liz Daniels

# **Hospitality & Tourism**



VIPeople is a company providing Casual Event Staff to some o Australia's leading Sporting and Entertainment venues throughout NSW, VIC & WA.

Plans are in place to expand our team in preparation for the A-League and Cricket seasons at venues including, Sydney Cricket Ground, Spotless Stadium (Sydney Showground) and UOW Jubilee Stadium (Kogarah).

We are looking for staff who share our enthusiasm and passion for excellence, are dependable, and committed to working the majority of events for the season at one or more of these venues in roles such as ushers, turnstile operators, corporate hosts, cashiers and car parking.

Outstanding grooming and personal presentation, exceptional customer service skills, a positive attitude and an interest in the venue/event industry are essential if you are to be considered for these positions

This is a great opportunity to work in a fun environment where you will have the opportunity to work at many major sporting events, concerts and festivals.

For further information, relating to this position and other venues and events available to you as a VIPeople team member visit the "Jobs" section at www.vipeople.com.au and complete an online application form for "Casual Event Staff - Sydney."

Applications close Wednesday 17 October 2018



**C**ars Wanted WE WILL BEAT ANY PRICE IN NSW! - WE PAY 4 UR VEHICLE -We are Local & Reliable • PAYMENT on the Spot from \$250 - \$40,000 100% Free Removal Depending on Make & Model of the Vehicle ALL Vehicles! 1 Hour Pick-up! All Areas Cars, Vans, Utes, 4WDS, **Trucks, Boats & More** eall Frank 0404 045 993



Heritage is undertaking an Aboriginal cultural heritage assessment of an area on Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park, in advance of the proposed residential development. The proponent's contact details are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

We are inviting registrations of interest in the project from Aboriginal groups and individuals who hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and/or places in the locality. The purpose of the community consultation is to assist the proponent in the preparation of an ACHAR for the proposed development of the property.

Please register your interest in the project by 3 October 2018 by contacting:

# GENERAL FOR SALE

**Garage Sales, Fetes** & Markets

BIG RECORD & COLLECTABLE \*\*SALE\*\*

\*CDs \*DVDs \*Books \*Vintage \*Antiques AND MUCH MORE **Glenbrook Community Hall** cnr. Great Western Highway & Ross Street. This Long Weekend

Ermington

Sat 29th 7:30am - 2:30pm Household Items, Bric-a-Brac, Kitchenware, Outdoor Setting **8 Fitzgerald Rd** 

# **MERRYLANDS**

Barking Owl Aboriginal Corporation ICN 8822 barkingowlcorp@gmail.com



13 October 2018

Dear Ryan

# **<u>RE: 1 & 2 MURRAY ROSE AVE OLYMPIC PARK NSW</u> <u>ABORIGINAL CULTURAL HERITAGE ASSESSMENT</u>**

We would like to register interest for full consultation and involvement in the study area.

<b>Registering Aboriginal Party:</b>	Barking Owl Aboriginal Corporation
Contact Person:	Jody Kulakowski
Phone:	0426 242 015
Email:	<u>barkingowlcorp@gmail.com</u> (preferred contact method)

We are able to provide fit and hardworking site officers to assist with work that may involve physical labour with current white cards and all PPE equipment.

We can provide copies of relevant certificates of currency for business insurances on request.

Members put forward have experience in a variety of community consultation projects through other Registered Corporations.

Please feel free to contact by email <u>barkingowlcorp@gmail.com</u> if you require any further information.

kind regards

Jody Kulakowski Director Barking Owl Aboriginal Corporation 0426 242 015

From:	Caza X <cazadirect@live.com></cazadirect@live.com>
Sent:	Sunday, September 23, 2018 1:36 PM
То:	Ryan Taddeucci
Subject:	Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park
Attachments:	A1PLInsurance2019.pdf; A1WC2019.pdf

# **A1 Indigenous Services**

Contact: Carolyn M: 0411650057 E: Cazadirect@live.com A: 10 Marie Pitt Place, 2745 ABN: 20 616 970 327

Hi Ryan,

I would like to register for consultation and any field work for this project, I hold a cultural connection to this area. insurances are attached. Thank you Carolyn Hickey

18 September 2018

# Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010).

The contact details for the proponent are: Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:

Ryan Taddeucci Artefact Heritage Building B, Level 4, 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009

or email ryan.taddeucci@artefact.net.au

Please note that the consultation guidelines require us to provide details of the Registered Aboriginal Parties to the Office of Environment and Heritage and Deerubbin Local Aboriginal Land Council. Please let me know if you would not like your details to be provided.

As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

• Name and contact details of the organisation registering.

• An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.

If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent). If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me. Yours sincerely,

nam

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au P: 02 9518 8411 M: 0423 381 482 W: www.artefact.net.au A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009 Figure 1: Location of study area.



# Yurrandaali Cultural Services

ABN: 52 618 794 088 3 Sheeran Street, Old Erowal Bay NSW 2540 T: 0457 546 643 E: yurrandaali\_cs@hotmail.com

21/09/2018

Ryan Taddeucci Artefact Heritage Level 4, Building B 35 Saunder Street Pyrmont NSW 2009

Att: Ryan Taddeucci

# Re: I am writing in regards to Express my Interest to register for consultation -Residential Development at Murray Rose Ave, Olympic Park NSW

Yurrandaali Cultural Services would like to register interest for the Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment for the project mentioned above.

Yurrandaali Cultural Services wishes to be involved in all aspects of this project such as any upcoming Consultation Meetings, heritage identification, assessment and management and Fieldwork. Attached are our Certificates of Currency for your records.

Yurrandaali Cultural Services is an Aboriginal owned company and I have been working within Aboriginal Heritage Work for over 10 years throughout the South Coast and Sydney Basin Regions.

I would like to be given an opportunity to further my knowledge and skills where I have great experience identifying Aboriginal heritage values and I am aware of the impacts of any changes to the land uses on those values.

I have completed all the tasks as directed and meet the physical labour and all the requirements listed below

- Transects
- Science excavation
- Artefacts analysis
- Wet and dry seiving
- Monitoring
- White Card –
- Experience in Aboriginal Cultural Heritage in Aboriginal Archaeology
- RMS on the Hunter Expressway (15-18 months)
- South Coast Regions & Western Sydney / South Western Sydney
- Mt Gillard Project
- Western Sydney Airport
- RMS M12

I have great pride in my culture and I acknowledge the lands that I live and work on and I pay my respects to the elders past and present and I am a active member within the Campbelltown and South Coast Aboriginal Communities.

Kind Regards Bo Field Yurrandaali Cultural Services

# Ryan Taddeucci

From:Amanda Hickey <amandahickey@live.com.au>Sent:Tuesday, September 18, 2018 1:32 PMTo:Ryan TaddeucciSubject:Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Hi Rayn

Thank you for your email

AHCS would like to register a interest in 1and 2 Murray Avenue Olympic Park

AHCS holds cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects

Thank you for your time look forward to hear from you.

If you need anything please let me know

Thank you

Amanda Dezwart

1 & 2 Murray Avenue Olympic Park

Get Outlook for Android

From: Ryan Taddeucci <ryan.taddeucci@artefact.net.au> Sent: Tuesday, September 18, 2018 12:36:02 PM **To:** amandahickey@live.com.au **Subject:** Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

18 September 2018

#### Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear Amanda Hickey,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010).

The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:

Ryan Taddeucci

Artefact Heritage

Building B, Level 4, 35 Saunders Street

Pyrmont NSW 2009

or email ryan.taddeucci@artefact.net.au

Please note that the consultation guidelines require us to provide details of the Registered Aboriginal Parties to the Office of Environment and Heritage and Deerubbin Local Aboriginal Land Council. Please let me know if you would not like your details to be provided.

As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

- Name and contact details of the organisation registering.
- An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.
- If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

hant

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au

P: 02 9518 8411

M: 0423 381 482

W: www.artefact.net.au

A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009

Figure 1: Location of study area.



Document Path: C/iUsers/GIS/Desktop/GIS/GIS\_Mapping/18117\_Olympic\_Park/MXD/Study\_area.mxd



# Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear Steven Randall,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010). The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:

As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

- Name and contact details of the organisation registering.
- An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.
- If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

hans

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au P: 02 9518 8411 M: 0423 381 482 W: www.artefact.net.au A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009





# Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear Sir or Madam,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010). The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:

As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

- Name and contact details of the organisation registering.
- An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.
- If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

hans

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au P: 02 9518 8411 M: 0423 381 482 W: www.artefact.net.au A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009





# Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear Maggie Kyle,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010). The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:

As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

- Name and contact details of the organisation registering.
- An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.
- If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

hans

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au P: 02 9518 8411 M: 0423 381 482 W: www.artefact.net.au A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009





# Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear Justine Coplin,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010). The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:

As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

- Name and contact details of the organisation registering.
- An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.
- If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

hans

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au P: 02 9518 8411 M: 0423 381 482 W: www.artefact.net.au A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009





# Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear Denise Newham,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010). The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:

As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

- Name and contact details of the organisation registering.
- An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.
- If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

hans

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au P: 02 9518 8411 M: 0423 381 482 W: www.artefact.net.au A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009





# Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear John Reilly,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010). The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:

As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

- Name and contact details of the organisation registering.
- An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.
- If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

hans

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au P: 02 9518 8411 M: 0423 381 482 W: www.artefact.net.au A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009





# Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear Julie Jones,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010). The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:

As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

- Name and contact details of the organisation registering.
- An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.
- If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

hans

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au P: 02 9518 8411 M: 0423 381 482 W: www.artefact.net.au A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009





# Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear Corina Marino,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010). The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:

As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

- Name and contact details of the organisation registering.
- An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.
- If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

hans

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au P: 02 9518 8411 M: 0423 381 482 W: www.artefact.net.au A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009





# Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear Celestine Everingham,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010). The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:

As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

- Name and contact details of the organisation registering.
- An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.
- If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

hans

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au P: 02 9518 8411 M: 0423 381 482 W: www.artefact.net.au A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009





# Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear Gordon Morton,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010). The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:

As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

- Name and contact details of the organisation registering.
- An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.
- If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

hans

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au P: 02 9518 8411 M: 0423 381 482 W: www.artefact.net.au A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009





# Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear Anna Workman,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010). The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:

As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

- Name and contact details of the organisation registering.
- An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.
- If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

hans

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au P: 02 9518 8411 M: 0423 381 482 W: www.artefact.net.au A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009





# Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear Gordon Workman,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010). The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:

As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

- Name and contact details of the organisation registering.
- An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.
- If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

hans

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au P: 02 9518 8411 M: 0423 381 482 W: www.artefact.net.au A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009





# Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear Desmond Dyer,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010). The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:

As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

- Name and contact details of the organisation registering.
- An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.
- If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

hans

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au P: 02 9518 8411 M: 0423 381 482 W: www.artefact.net.au A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009





# Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear Cherie Carroll Turrise,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010). The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:

As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

- Name and contact details of the organisation registering.
- An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.
- If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

hans

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au P: 02 9518 8411 M: 0423 381 482 W: www.artefact.net.au A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009





# Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear Shaun Carroll,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010). The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:

As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

- Name and contact details of the organisation registering.
- An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.
- If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

hans

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au P: 02 9518 8411 M: 0423 381 482 W: www.artefact.net.au A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009





# Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear Marilyn Caroll-Johnson,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010). The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:
As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

- Name and contact details of the organisation registering.
- An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.
- If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

hans

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au P: 02 9518 8411 M: 0423 381 482 W: www.artefact.net.au A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009





# Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear Steve Johnson,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010). The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:

As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

- Name and contact details of the organisation registering.
- An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.
- If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

hans

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au P: 02 9518 8411 M: 0423 381 482 W: www.artefact.net.au A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009





# Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear Darleen Johnson,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010). The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:

As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

- Name and contact details of the organisation registering.
- An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.
- If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

hans

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au P: 02 9518 8411 M: 0423 381 482 W: www.artefact.net.au A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009





# Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear Jesse Johnson,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010). The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:

As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

- Name and contact details of the organisation registering.
- An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.
- If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

hans

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au P: 02 9518 8411 M: 0423 381 482 W: www.artefact.net.au A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009





# Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear James Carroll,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010). The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:

As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

- Name and contact details of the organisation registering.
- An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.
- If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

hans

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au P: 02 9518 8411 M: 0423 381 482 W: www.artefact.net.au A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009





# Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear Phillip Khan,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010). The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:

As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

- Name and contact details of the organisation registering.
- An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.
- If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

hans

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au P: 02 9518 8411 M: 0423 381 482 W: www.artefact.net.au A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009





# Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear Kerrie Slater,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010). The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:

As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

- Name and contact details of the organisation registering.
- An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.
- If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

hans

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au P: 02 9518 8411 M: 0423 381 482 W: www.artefact.net.au A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009





# Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear Aaron Slater,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010). The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:

As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

- Name and contact details of the organisation registering.
- An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.
- If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

hans

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au P: 02 9518 8411 M: 0423 381 482 W: www.artefact.net.au A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009





# Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear Vicky Slater,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010). The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:

As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

- Name and contact details of the organisation registering.
- An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.
- If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

hans

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au P: 02 9518 8411 M: 0423 381 482 W: www.artefact.net.au A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009





# Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear Scott Franks,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010). The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:

As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

- Name and contact details of the organisation registering.
- An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.
- If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

hans

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au P: 02 9518 8411 M: 0423 381 482 W: www.artefact.net.au A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009





# Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear Amanda Hickey,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010). The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:

As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

- Name and contact details of the organisation registering.
- An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.
- If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

hans

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au P: 02 9518 8411 M: 0423 381 482 W: www.artefact.net.au A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009





# Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear Donna Hickey,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010). The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:

As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

- Name and contact details of the organisation registering.
- An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.
- If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

hans

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au P: 02 9518 8411 M: 0423 381 482 W: www.artefact.net.au A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009





# Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear Steven Hickey,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010). The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:

As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

- Name and contact details of the organisation registering.
- An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.
- If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

hans

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au P: 02 9518 8411 M: 0423 381 482 W: www.artefact.net.au A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009





# Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear Patricia Hampton,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010). The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:

As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

- Name and contact details of the organisation registering.
- An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.
- If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

hans

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au P: 02 9518 8411 M: 0423 381 482 W: www.artefact.net.au A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009





# Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear Tony Williams,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010). The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:

As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

- Name and contact details of the organisation registering.
- An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.
- If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

hans

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au P: 02 9518 8411 M: 0423 381 482 W: www.artefact.net.au A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009





# Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear Anthony Williams,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010). The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:

As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

- Name and contact details of the organisation registering.
- An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.
- If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

hans

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au P: 02 9518 8411 M: 0423 381 482 W: www.artefact.net.au A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009





# Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear Ricky Fields,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010). The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:

As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

- Name and contact details of the organisation registering.
- An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.
- If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

hans

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au P: 02 9518 8411 M: 0423 381 482 W: www.artefact.net.au A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009





# Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear Kylie Ann Bell,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010). The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:

As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

- Name and contact details of the organisation registering.
- An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.
- If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

hans

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au P: 02 9518 8411 M: 0423 381 482 W: www.artefact.net.au A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009





# Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear Hika Te Kowhai,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010). The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:
As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

- Name and contact details of the organisation registering.
- An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.
- If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

hans

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au P: 02 9518 8411 M: 0423 381 482 W: www.artefact.net.au A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009





# Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear Karia Lea Bond,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010). The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:

As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

- Name and contact details of the organisation registering.
- An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.
- If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

hans

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au P: 02 9518 8411 M: 0423 381 482 W: www.artefact.net.au A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009





# Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear Basil Smith,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010). The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:

As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

- Name and contact details of the organisation registering.
- An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.
- If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

hans

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au P: 02 9518 8411 M: 0423 381 482 W: www.artefact.net.au A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009





## Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear Lee-Roy James Boota,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010). The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:

As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

- Name and contact details of the organisation registering.
- An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.
- If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

hans

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au P: 02 9518 8411 M: 0423 381 482 W: www.artefact.net.au A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009





# Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear Robert Parson,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010). The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:

As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

- Name and contact details of the organisation registering.
- An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.
- If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

hans

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au P: 02 9518 8411 M: 0423 381 482 W: www.artefact.net.au A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009





# Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear Newton Carriage,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010). The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:

As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

- Name and contact details of the organisation registering.
- An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.
- If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

hans

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au P: 02 9518 8411 M: 0423 381 482 W: www.artefact.net.au A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009





# Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear Mark Henry,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010). The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:

As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

- Name and contact details of the organisation registering.
- An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.
- If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

hans

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au P: 02 9518 8411 M: 0423 381 482 W: www.artefact.net.au A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009





## Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear Joanne Anne Stewart,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010). The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:

As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

- Name and contact details of the organisation registering.
- An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.
- If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

hans

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au P: 02 9518 8411 M: 0423 381 482 W: www.artefact.net.au A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009





## Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear Pemulwuy Johnson,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010). The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:

As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

- Name and contact details of the organisation registering.
- An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.
- If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

hans

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au P: 02 9518 8411 M: 0423 381 482 W: www.artefact.net.au A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009





## Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear Simalene Carriage,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010). The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:

As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

- Name and contact details of the organisation registering.
- An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.
- If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

hans

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au P: 02 9518 8411 M: 0423 381 482 W: www.artefact.net.au A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009





# Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear Kaya Dawn Bell,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010). The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:

As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

- Name and contact details of the organisation registering.
- An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.
- If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

hans

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au P: 02 9518 8411 M: 0423 381 482 W: www.artefact.net.au A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009





# Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear Hayley Bell,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010). The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:

As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

- Name and contact details of the organisation registering.
- An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.
- If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

hans

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au P: 02 9518 8411 M: 0423 381 482 W: www.artefact.net.au A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009





# Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear Aaron Broad,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010). The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:

As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

- Name and contact details of the organisation registering.
- An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.
- If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

hans

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au P: 02 9518 8411 M: 0423 381 482 W: www.artefact.net.au A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009





# Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear Ronald Stewart,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010). The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:

As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

- Name and contact details of the organisation registering.
- An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.
- If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

hans

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au P: 02 9518 8411 M: 0423 381 482 W: www.artefact.net.au A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009





# Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear Shane Carriage,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010). The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:

As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

- Name and contact details of the organisation registering.
- An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.
- If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

hans

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au P: 02 9518 8411 M: 0423 381 482 W: www.artefact.net.au A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009





# Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear Andrew Bond,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010). The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:

As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

- Name and contact details of the organisation registering.
- An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.
- If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

hans

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au P: 02 9518 8411 M: 0423 381 482 W: www.artefact.net.au A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009





# Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear Robert Brown,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010). The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:

As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

- Name and contact details of the organisation registering.
- An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.
- If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

hans

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au P: 02 9518 8411 M: 0423 381 482 W: www.artefact.net.au A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009





## Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear Darlene Hoskins-McKenzie,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010). The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:

As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

- Name and contact details of the organisation registering.
- An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.
- If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

hans

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au P: 02 9518 8411 M: 0423 381 482 W: www.artefact.net.au A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009





## Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear Suzannah McKenzie,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010). The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:
As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

- Name and contact details of the organisation registering.
- An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.
- If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

hans

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au P: 02 9518 8411 M: 0423 381 482 W: www.artefact.net.au A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009





#### Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear Levi McKenzie-Kirkbright,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010). The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:

As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

- Name and contact details of the organisation registering.
- An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.
- If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

hans

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au P: 02 9518 8411 M: 0423 381 482 W: www.artefact.net.au A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009





#### Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear Wandai Kirkbright,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010). The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:

As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

- Name and contact details of the organisation registering.
- An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.
- If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

hans

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au P: 02 9518 8411 M: 0423 381 482 W: www.artefact.net.au A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009





#### Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear Wendy Smith,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010). The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:

As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

- Name and contact details of the organisation registering.
- An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.
- If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

hans

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au P: 02 9518 8411 M: 0423 381 482 W: www.artefact.net.au A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009





#### Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear Seli Storer,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010). The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:

As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

- Name and contact details of the organisation registering.
- An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.
- If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

hans

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au P: 02 9518 8411 M: 0423 381 482 W: www.artefact.net.au A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009





#### Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear Corey Smith,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010). The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:

As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

- Name and contact details of the organisation registering.
- An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.
- If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

hans

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au P: 02 9518 8411 M: 0423 381 482 W: www.artefact.net.au A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009





#### Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear Roxanne Smith,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010). The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:

As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

- Name and contact details of the organisation registering.
- An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.
- If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

hans

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au P: 02 9518 8411 M: 0423 381 482 W: www.artefact.net.au A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009





#### Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear Darren Duncan,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010). The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:

As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

- Name and contact details of the organisation registering.
- An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.
- If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

hans

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au P: 02 9518 8411 M: 0423 381 482 W: www.artefact.net.au A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009





#### Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear Jennifer Beale,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010). The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:

As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

- Name and contact details of the organisation registering.
- An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.
- If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

hans

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au P: 02 9518 8411 M: 0423 381 482 W: www.artefact.net.au A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009





#### Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear Paul Boyd,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010). The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:

As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

- Name and contact details of the organisation registering.
- An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.
- If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

hans

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au P: 02 9518 8411 M: 0423 381 482 W: www.artefact.net.au A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009





#### Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear Steven Johnson,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010). The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:

As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

- Name and contact details of the organisation registering.
- An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.
- If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

hans

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au P: 02 9518 8411 M: 0423 381 482 W: www.artefact.net.au A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009





#### Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear Newton Carriage,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010). The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:

As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

- Name and contact details of the organisation registering.
- An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.
- If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

hans

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au P: 02 9518 8411 M: 0423 381 482 W: www.artefact.net.au A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009





#### Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear Philip Boney,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010). The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:

As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

- Name and contact details of the organisation registering.
- An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.
- If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

hans

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au P: 02 9518 8411 M: 0423 381 482 W: www.artefact.net.au A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009





#### Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear Jody Kulakowski,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010). The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:

As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

- Name and contact details of the organisation registering.
- An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.
- If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

hans

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au P: 02 9518 8411 M: 0423 381 482 W: www.artefact.net.au A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009





#### Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear John Carriage,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010). The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:

As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

- Name and contact details of the organisation registering.
- An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.
- If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

hans

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au P: 02 9518 8411 M: 0423 381 482 W: www.artefact.net.au A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009





#### Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear Gordon Workman,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010). The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:

As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

- Name and contact details of the organisation registering.
- An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.
- If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

hans

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au P: 02 9518 8411 M: 0423 381 482 W: www.artefact.net.au A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009



Barking Owl Aboriginal Corporation ICN 8822 barkingowlcorp@gmail.com



2nd October 2018

Dear Ryan

### <u>RE: MURRAY ROSE AVE OLYMPIC PARK NSW</u> <u>ABORIGINAL CULTURAL HERITAGE ASSESSMENT</u>

We would like to register interest for full consultation and involvement in the study area.

<b>Registering Aboriginal Party:</b>	Barking Owl Aboriginal Corporation
Contact Person:	Jody Kulakowski
Phone:	0426 242 015
Email:	<u>barkingowlcorp@gmail.com</u> (preferred contact method)

We are able to provide fit and hardworking site officers to assist with work that may involve physical labour with current white cards and all PPE equipment.

We can provide copies of relevant certificates of currency for business insurances on request.

Members put forward have experience in a variety of community consultation projects through other Registered Corporations.

Please feel free to contact by email <u>barkingowlcorp@gmail.com</u> if you require any further information.

kind regards

Jody Kulakowski Director Barking Owl Aboriginal Corporation 0426 242 015



#### Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear Eric,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010). The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **9 October 2018** to:

As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

- Name and contact details of the organisation registering.
- An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Olympic Park region.
- If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

Mans

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au P: 02 9518 8411 M: 0423 381 482 W: www.artefact.net.au A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009



Aboriginal Archaeology Service INC: 1400988 2/24 Goodwin Street Narrabeen <u>Mobile</u>: 0456 399 687 Email: aas.info@bigpond.com



20<sup>th</sup> September 2018

Artefact Heritage Pty Ltd

## Attention: Ryan Taddeucci

# Registration for consultation for Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Aboriginal Archaeology Service is seeking *involvement* in all consultation meetings and fieldwork for the above-mentioned project, as we are registered traditional owners of the area. AAS immediate family has lived in the area from 1897 and retains local and oral history on behalf of its first nation people. We have no objection to our information being provided to the Office of Environment and Heritage and the Local Aboriginal Land Council.

AAS can assist with input that can be incorporated into a written assessment of cultural values of the area. We are also able to provide fit staff to assist with work that may involve physical labour. We can provide our schedule of rates and copies of relevant certificates of currency for business insurances on request.

All correspondence should be emailed to <u>AAS.info@bigpond.com</u> and. The area is an important part of our culture and valued by our family.

Yours truly

Lew altis

Andrew Williams
From:	Corroboree Aboriginal Corporation <corroboreecorp@bigpond.com></corroboreecorp@bigpond.com>
Sent:	Tuesday, September 18, 2018 1:38 PM
То:	Ryan Taddeucci
Subject:	Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park. Steve Johnson
-	is no longer contact person

Hi Ryan

I hope all is well. Just to let you know Steve Johnson is no longer doing cultural heritage. He is doing studies. Therefore the contact for all past projects or future is Marilyn Carroll-Johnson on 0415911159 @ this email. If you could amend the contact on any pending projects this would be much appreciated. I shall forward EOI soon. Thanks very much.

Kind regards Marilyn Carroll-Johnson

Director CAC

On 18 Sep 2018, at 12:35 pm, Ryan Taddeucci <<u>ryan.taddeucci@artefact.net.au</u>> wrote:

18 September 2018

Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park Dear Steve Johnson, Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010). The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:

Ryan Taddeucci Artefact Heritage Building B, Level 4, 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009 or email <u>ryan.taddeucci@artefact.net.au</u>

Please note that the consultation guidelines require us to provide details of the Registered Aboriginal Parties to the Office of Environment and Heritage and Deerubbin Local Aboriginal Land Council. Please let me know if you would not like your details to be provided.

As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

Name and contact details of the organisation registering.

An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.

If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

<image001.jpg>

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: <u>ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au</u> P: 02 9518 8411 M: 0423 381 482 W: <u>www.artefact.net.au</u> A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009

Figure 1: Location of study area.

<image002.jpg>



Old Erowal Bay NSW 2540 M: 0423 906 606 E: barrabyculturalservices@gmail.com

21/09/2018

Ryan Taddeucci Artefact Heritage Level 4, Building B, 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009

Dear Ryan,

### Re: I am writing in regards to Express my Interest to register for consultation -Residential Development Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Barraby Cultural Services would like to register interest for the Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment for the project mentioned above.

Barraby Cultural Services wishes to be involved in all aspects of this project such as any upcoming Consultation Meetings, heritage identification, assessment and management and Fieldwork. Attached are our Certificates of Currency for your records.

Barraby Cultural Services is an Aboriginal owned company and I have been working within Aboriginal Heritage Work for over 8 years throughout the Sydney Basin Regions and South Coast Regions. I would like to be given an opportunity to further my knowledge and skills where I have great experience identifying Aboriginal heritage values and I am aware of the impacts of any changes to the land uses on those values.

I have great pride in my culture and I acknowledge the lands that I live and work on and I pay my respects to the elders past and present and I am a active member within the Campbelltown and South Coast Aboriginal Communities.

I have completed all the tasks as directed and meet the physical labour and all the requirements listed below

- Transects
- Science excavation
- Artefacts analysis
- Wet and dry seiving
- Monitoring
- White Card CGI01239564SEQ1

- •

- Experience in Aboriginal Cultural Heritage in Aboriginal Archaeology Western Sydney Airport Project Mt Gilead Project South Coast Regions NSW & Western Sydney / South Western Sydney Regions •

Kind Regards Lee Field Barraby Cultural Services

Environme nt & Heritage

# Darug Aboriginal Land Care

# (Uncle Des Dyer)

18a Perigee Close Doonside 2767NSW ABN 71 301 006 047

Ryan Taddeucci Archaeologist Artefact Heritage Building B Level 4, 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont 2009 NSW

Re: 1&2 Murray Avenue Olympic Park .

Dear Ryan,

Darug Aboriginal Land care / Uncle Des Dyer. Have no objections to the planned development.

The Darug Aboriginal Land care would like to **register** for this project and be consulted and take part in survey and test excavations. This project falls within the Darug land.

We are Traditional Owner, our members have lived on Darug land for most of their lives and worked in the area. We have responsibility to look after the plants, creeks and rivers on Darug land. We have been doing Cultural Heritage Assessments for over 20 year and still do today.

Our members are family and have lived in the area, we consult with them by Email and phone.

We would like to take part in any field survey and test excavations. Attend any meetings.

We have over 20years experience and all our works have White cards Our preferred method of communication is by Email. Our Site Officer Ricky Fields Mobile 0402942572. Email fields.r@outlook.com

# For all Survey test excavation and salvage works please contact him for all work matters. please contact him

We agree and understand you can give our contacted details to others.

The area is an important part of our culture and valued by the community as most of the people that lived there were Darug. We can provide cultural knowledge during the survey.

# Our preferred option to receive the project information is by E-mail.

Thank you Kind regards Des Dyer. Manager. Darug Elder Email desmond4552@hotmail.com Mobile 0408360814





ICN: 8890 ABN: 76 170 262 247 E-mail: <u>Boorooberongal@outlook.com</u> Address: PO Box 14 Doonside NSW 2767 Phone: 0415 663 763



18/9/2018

# TO: Ryan Taddeucci

Artefact Heritage

# **RE:** Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

# Notification and Registration of ALL Darug Aboriginal Interests Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Please be advice that Darug Boorooberongal Elders Aboriginal Corporation (DBEAC) is seeking to be involved in any and all consultation meetings and field work.

This office specialises in Darug Aboriginal and community consultation. The membership comprises of traditional owners from the area in question who retain strong story, song lines, oral history and continued contact. We have a continued spiritual connection to Darug nation territories. We would also like to state, that we do not except or support any person or organisation that are NOT from the DARUG Nation to have input on the project area.

Please also be advised that this Aboriginal organisation does not do volunteer work or attend unpaid meetings. I hope that you advise your client of this, so that, this group will not be discriminated against and refused paid field work.

We will be delighted to discuss this project with you in the near future. Please do not hesitate to send all correspondence should be emailed to our email <u>boorooberongal@outlook.com</u>.

Yours faithfully

Uncle Gordon Workman Darug Elder

**Sites Officer** 



DARUG CUSTODIAN ABORIGINAL CORPORATION

PO BOX 81 WINDSOR 2756 PHONE: 0245775181 FAX: 0245775098 MOBILE: 0415770163 Leanne Watson 0414962766 Justine Coplin EMAIL: mulgokiwi@bigpond.com / justinecoplin@optusnet.com.au

### Attention artefacts

Subject: Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear Ryan

Our group is a non- profit organisation that has been active for over forty years in Western Sydney, we are a Darug community group with over three hundred members. The main aim in our constitution is the care of Darug sites, places, wildlife and to promote our culture and provide education on the Darug history.

The Olympic Park area is an area that our group has a vast knowledge of, we have worked and lived in for many years, this area is significant to the Darug people due to the connection of sites and the continued occupation. Our group has been involved in all previous assessments and works in this area as a traditional owner Darug group for the past 40 plus years.

Therefore we would like to register our interest for full consultation and involvement in the above project area.

Please contact us with all further enquiries on the above contacts.

Regards

Justine Coplin



### EMAIL: DARUGLANDOBSERVATIONS@GMAIL.COM PO BOX 173 ULLADULLA NSW 2539 MOBILE: 0413 687 279

24<sup>th</sup> September, 2018

Att: Ryan Taddeucci Artefact Heritage Building B, Level 44, 35 Saunders Street PYRMONT NSW 2009

### **Notification and Registration of ALL Aboriginal Interests**

### RE: RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT - MURRAY ROSE AVE, OLYMPIC PARK

Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment

Dear Ryan,

Please be advised that Darug Land Observations Pty Ltd is seeking to be involved in any and all consultation meetings and fieldwork.

This office specialises in Aboriginal and community consultations, and has a membership that comprises of Traditional owners from the area in question. Those retain strong story, song lines, oral history and continued contact.

We would also like to state that we do not accept or support any person or organisation that are NOT from the DARUG Nation that comments regarding the said area.

Please also be advised that this Aboriginal organisation does not do volunteer work or attend unpaid meetings. I hope that you advise your client of this so that, 'This Group', will not be discriminated against and refused paid fieldwork. DLO's rate is \$440 half day (less than 4 hours) and \$880 per day (flat rate), including GST.

All correspondence should be emailed to: <u>daruglandobservations@gmail.com</u> and any further consultation during this project can be directed to Anna O'Hara on mobile 0413 687 279.

Yours sincerely,

Janie Wotzuan

Jamie Workman Darug Land Observations Pty Ltd

Uncle Gordon Workman Darug Elder

From:	Muragadi <muragadi@yahoo.com.au></muragadi@yahoo.com.au>	
Sent:	Wednesday, September 19, 2018 12:28 PM	
То:	Ryan Taddeucci	
Subject:	RE: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park	

Hi Ryan,

Please register our corporation for the above project.

Thanks

Jesse

From: Ryan Taddeucci [mailto:ryan.taddeucci@artefact.net.au]
Sent: Tuesday, 18 September 2018 12:36 PM
To: muragadi@yahoo.com.au
Subject: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

18 September 2018

Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear Jesse Johnson,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010). The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:

Ryan Taddeucci Artefact Heritage Building B, Level 4, 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009 or email <u>ryan.taddeucci@artefact.net.au</u>

Please note that the consultation guidelines require us to provide details of the Registered Aboriginal Parties to the Office of Environment and Heritage and Deerubbin Local Aboriginal Land Council. Please let me know if you would not like your details to be provided.

As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

- Name and contact details of the organisation registering.
- An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.
- If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

Anno

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: <u>ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au</u> P: 02 9518 8411 M: 0423 381 482 W: <u>www.artefact.net.au</u> A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009

Figure 1: Location of study area.



Document Path: C:Users/GIS/Desktop/GIS/GIS\_Mapping/18117\_Olympic\_Park/MXD/Study\_area.mxd

From:	Scott Franks <scott@tocomwall.com.au></scott@tocomwall.com.au>
Sent:	Wednesday, September 19, 2018 4:52 PM
To:	Ryan Taddeucci
Subject:	Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park
Importance:	High

Ryan,

Please register Tocomwall's interest in this project, with regard to your questions please see provided,

· Name and contact details of the organisation registering. Tocomwall Pty Limited

An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region. My mother is a T/O from the area

If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent). This needs to be requested from <a href="mailto:accounts@tocomwall.com.au">accounts@tocomwall.com.au</a> could you please contact that section for that information.

Regards Scott Franks

Native Title & Environmental Services Consultant

Tocomwall Pty Ltd PO Box 76 CARINGBAH NSW 1495 m: 0404 171544 p: 02 9542 7714 f: 02 9524 4146 e: <u>scott@tocomwall.com.au</u> www.tocomwall.com.au



The information contained in this e-mail message and any attached files may be confidential and may contain copyright material of Tocomwall Pty Ltd or third parties. Any unauthorised use, disclosure or copying of this e-mail and/or its attachments is prohibited. If you have received this e-mail in error, please notify the sender immediately by return e-mail and delete all copies of the message and attachments. Before opening or using attachments, please check them for viruses or defects. Our liability is limited to resupplying the e-mail and attached files. Content and views expressed in this e-mail may be those of the sender, and are not necessarily endorsed by Tocomwall Pty Ltd.

From: Ryan Taddeucci <ryan.taddeucci@artefact.net.au>
Date: Tuesday, 18 September 2018 at 12:36 pm
To: Scott Franks <scott@tocomwall.com.au>
Subject: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

- · Name and contact details of the organisation registering.
- · An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.
- · If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

From:	WIDESCOPE . <widescope.group@live.com></widescope.group@live.com>	
Sent:	Sunday, September 30, 2018 5:40 PM	
То:	Ryan Taddeucci	
Subject:	RE: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park	
Attachments:	Certificate of Currency Widescope 2018.pdf; Widescope Cert of Currency Workers Comp.pdf	

Hi Ryan,

Please Register my Expression of Interest Re: Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) For the Proposed Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park NSW

I am a Aboriginal cultural knowledge holder I have knowledge relevant in determining Aboriginal objects and places I hold a cultural connection to Olympic Park and surrounding areas

I would like to be involved in meeting and field survey works I hold relevant Insurances, please see attachments

Contact person is myself Steven Hickey: mobile number 042 523 0693 Administration Donna Hickey 042 523 2056 Landline 4735 2629 Preferred method of contact is via email widescope.group@live.com

Regards Steven Hickey

From: Ryan Taddeucci <ryan.taddeucci@artefact.net.au> Sent: Tuesday, September 18, 2018 12:36:04 PM **To:** Widescope.group@live.com **Subject:** Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

18 September 2018

Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park Dear Steven Hickey,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403. Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010).

The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values. Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:

Ryan Taddeucci Artefact Heritage Building B, Level 4, 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009 or email ryan.taddeucci@artefact.net.au

Please note that the consultation guidelines require us to provide details of the Registered Aboriginal Parties to the Office of Environment and Heritage and Deerubbin Local Aboriginal Land Council. Please let me know if you would not like your details to be provided.

As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

- ) Name and contact details of the organisation registering.
- An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.
- If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me. Yours sincerely,

hans

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au P: 02 9518 8411 M: 0423 381 482 W: www.artefact.net.au A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009

### Figure 1: Location of study area.



# YULAY CULTURAL SERVICES

ABN: 20 192 216 560 15 Rowley place, Airds NSW 2560 Phone: 0411 048 794 Email: yulayculturalservices@gmail.com

21st September 2018

Ryan Taddeucci Artefact Heritage Level 4, Building B 35 Saunder Street Pyrmont NSW 2009

Dear Ryan,

### RE: I am writing in regards to Express my Interest to register for consultation -Residential Development at Murray Rose Ave, Olympic Park NSW

Yulay Cultural Services would like to register interest for the Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment for the project mentioned above.

Yulay Cultural Services wishes to be involved in all aspects of this project such as any upcoming Consultation Meetings, heritage identification, assessment and management and Fieldwork. Attached are our Certificates of Currency for your records.

Yulay Cultural Services is an Aboriginal owned company and I have been working within Aboriginal Heritage Work for over 8 years throughout the Hunter, Sydney Basin and South Coast Regions in which I have already completed field work on the M12 and Western Sydney Airport and I would like to be given an opportunity to further my knowledge and skills where I have great experience identifying Aboriginal heritage values and I am aware of the impacts of any changes to the land uses on those values.

I have great pride in my culture and I acknowledge the lands that I live and work on and I pay my respects to the elders past and present and I am a active member within the Campbelltow, Blacktown and South Coast Aboriginal Communities.

I have completed all the tasks as directed and meet the physical labour and all the requirements listed below

- Transects
- Science excavation
- Artefacts analysis
- Wet and dry seiving
- Monitoring
- White Card On request
- Experience in Aboriginal Cultural Heritage in Aboriginal Archaeology
- RMS on the Hunter Expressway (15-18 months)

- Various Mines in the Hunter Region
- Local Sydney Basin Western Sydney / South Western Sydney Regions
- Mt Gillard Project
- Western Sydney Airport
- RMS M12
- Casual Sites Officer Tharawal Aboriginal Land Council

If you require any further information regarding this letter please don't hesitate in contacting me or the following references

Name: Andrew Costello Company: SNR Archaeologist Jacob Pty Ltd Heritage Pty Ltd Phone: 0458 325 345 Name: Vanessa Hardy Company: Archaeologist Virtus

Phone: 02 6676 4354

Kind Regards

Arika Jalomaki Yulay Cultural Services

From:	lilly carroll <didgengunawalclan@yahoo.com.au></didgengunawalclan@yahoo.com.au>	
Sent:	Tuesday, September 18, 2018 12:44 PM	
То:	Ryan Taddeucci	
Subject:	Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park	

Hi Ryan,

DNC would like to register an interest into Murray Rose Ave, Olympic Park, thanks Ryan

Kind regards Paul Boyd & Lilly Carroll Directors DNC

### Sent from Yahoo Mail for iPhone

On Tuesday, September 18, 2018, 12:36 pm, Ryan Taddeucci <ryan.taddeucci@artefact.net.au> wrote:

18 September 2018

#### Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear Paul Boyd,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010).

The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:

Ryan Taddeucci

Artefact Heritage

Building B, Level 4, 35 Saunders Street

### Pyrmont NSW 2009

### or email ryan.taddeucci@artefact.net.au

Please note that the consultation guidelines require us to provide details of the Registered Aboriginal Parties to the Office of Environment and Heritage and Deerubbin Local Aboriginal Land Council. Please let me know if you would not like your details to be provided.

As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

- ) Name and contact details of the organisation registering.
- An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.
- J If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

hant

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au

P: 02 9518 8411

M: 0423 381 482

W: www.artefact.net.au

A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009

Figure 1: Location of study area.



From:	lilly carroll <didgengunawalclan@yahoo.com.au></didgengunawalclan@yahoo.com.au>	
Sent:	Tuesday, September 18, 2018 9:31 PM	
То:	Ryan Taddeucci	
Subject:	Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park	

Hi Ryan,

Name and contact details of Didge Ngunawal Clan is Paul Boyd : 0426823944

Connection to Schofields as stated is that DNC's elder Phillip Carroll used to live in humpys throughout Schofields, Riverstone and surrounding areas, and still to this day on Perth St Vineyard, used to bathe in a well.

Phillip has now passed away and is buried @ Riverstone Cemetery along with other family members.

Other family members still live here and can provide historical stories.

We would love to be part of the up-coming fieldwork and will charge \$800 day rate & \$450 half day rate.

Kind regards Paul Boyd & Lilly Carroll Directors DNC

Sent from Yahoo Mail for iPhone

On Tuesday, September 18, 2018, 12:58 pm, Ryan Taddeucci <ryan.taddeucci@artefact.net.au> wrote:

Hi Lilly,

Thanks for getting in touch so quickly. I've added DNC to the list of registered parties.

Cheers,

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant

ARTEFACT Telephone: (02) 9518 8411 Mobile: 0423 381 482

Address: Level 4, Building B, 35 Saunders Street, Pyrmont NSW 2009

Web: www.artefact.net.au

Cultural Heritage Management | Archaeology | Heritage Interpretation

We acknowledge the Traditional Custodians of Country in which we live and work, and pay our respects to them, their culture and their Elders past, present and future

Notice: This message contains privileged and confidential information intended only for the use of the addressee.

If you are not the intended recipient you must not disseminate, copy or take any action in reliance upon it.

If you received this in error, please notify us immediately.

From: lilly carroll <didgengunawalclan@yahoo.com.au>

Sent: Tuesday, September 18, 2018 12:44 PM

To: Ryan Taddeucci <ryan.taddeucci@artefact.net.au>

Subject: Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Hi Ryan,

DNC would like to register an interest into Murray Rose Ave, Olympic Park, thanks Ryan

Kind regards

Paul Boyd & Lilly Carroll

Directors DNC

Sent from Yahoo Mail for iPhone

On Tuesday, September 18, 2018, 12:36 pm, Ryan Taddeucci <<u>ryan.taddeucci@artefact.net.au</u>> wrote:

18 September 2018

Re: Identification of Interested Aboriginal Parties - Residential development at Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

Dear Paul Boyd,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group has engaged Artefact Heritage to complete an Aboriginal archaeological assessment for the project, including consultation following the 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (DECCW 2010).

The contact details for the proponent are:

Will Wang Austino Property Group Suite 603, Level 6, 377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia 02 9113 0806

In accordance with SEARs SSD\_9403, the assessment of Aboriginal heritage will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the NPW Act 1974, the OEH 'Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales' (the OEH code of practice), the OEH 'Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW', and the OEH 'Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010' (the OEH consultation requirements).

The key outcome of this approach will be the preparation of an ACHAR, that includes comprehensive Aboriginal stakeholder consultation, archaeological survey in accordance with the OEH code of practice, and a detailed assessment of significance and potential impacts to identified Aboriginal cultural heritage values.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Parramatta region.

I would like to invite you to register an interest in the project, if you would like to be involved in the community consultation process. Please send your registration by **2 October 2018** to:

Ryan Taddeucci

Artefact Heritage

Building B, Level 4, 35 Saunders Street

Pyrmont NSW 2009

or email ryan.taddeucci@artefact.net.au

Please note that the consultation guidelines require us to provide details of the Registered Aboriginal Parties to the Office of Environment and Heritage and Deerubbin Local Aboriginal Land Council. Please let me know if you would not like your details to be provided.

As part of your registration of interest, I would appreciate it if you could address the following points:

Name and contact details of the organisation registering.

An outline of the connection of the organisation to the Schofields region.

) If you would like to be involved in any fieldwork, details of rates and insurances (Public Liability and Workers Compensation or equivalent).

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

hant

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact

E: ryan.taddeuci@artefact.net.au

P: 02 9518 8411

M: 0423 381 482

W: www.artefact.net.au

A: Level 4 Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009

Figure 1: Location of study area.



Document Path: C:IUsers/GIS/Desktop/GIS/GIS\_Mapping/18117\_Olympic\_Park/MXD/Study\_area.mxd

From:	Bo Field <yurrandaali_cs@hotmail.com></yurrandaali_cs@hotmail.com>
Sent:	Wednesday, October 3, 2018 10:15 AM
То:	Ryan Taddeucci
Subject:	Re: Olympic Park ACHAR methodology

Dear ryan,

Yurrandaali Cultural Services supports the methodology for this project.

Kind Regards Bo Field

Sent from Outlook

From: Ryan Taddeucci <ryan.taddeucci@artefact.net.au>
Sent: Tuesday, 2 October 2018 4:43 PM
To: yurrandaali\_cs@hotmail.com
Subject: Olympic Park ACHAR methodology

02/10/2018

Dear Bo Field,

Re: Residential development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park: Notification of Registered Aboriginal Stakeholders

Thank you for registering as a stakeholder for the 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park Aboriginal heritage assessment. I am looking forward to working with you on this project. Included below are details of the project, and the proposed assessment methodology for your review.

If you would like to comment on the Aboriginal cultural heritage of the study area or the proposed methodology, please provide your response by **30 October 2018**. Please address your response to me at:

Ryan Taddeucci Artefact Heritage Level 4, Building B, 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009

Or via email: ryan.taddeucci@artefact.net.au

In your response, please consider the following points:

Do you know of any objects or places of value to Aboriginal people in the study area or locality?

Are there any protocols that you would like incorporated into the assessment methodology?

Are there any access requirements or restrictions that should be applied to the information you are providing?

Please also note that consultation will not necessarily involve paid engagement, as this is not a requirement of the consultation guidelines issued by the Office of Environment and Heritage.

### 1.1 Proposed development

### 1 Murray Rose Avenue

The proposed development involves the construction of a 15-storey residential development including three (3) basement levels with a bulk excavation level of approximately 1.85 m.

### 2 Murray Rose Avenue

The proposed development includes the construction of a 15-storey residential development with two (2) basement levels with a bulk excavation level of approximately 0.4 m.

# 1.2 Background

Austino Property Group are proposing a residential development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park. The proposed development has been assessed as a State Significant Development (SSD), and Secretary's Environmental Assessment Requirements (SEARs) have been issued for the site (SSD\_9403). The requirements for heritage are as follows:

- Prepare a Historical Archaeological Assessment (HAA) detailing the likely impacts and outline the proposed management and mitigation measures to protect and preserve the non-Aboriginal archaeology
- Prepare a Heritage Impact Statement (HIS) addressing impacts of the proposed development on any state or local heritage Items in the vicinity
- Prepare an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) identifying any cultural heritage values, impacts and mitigation measures.

Artefact Heritage have been engaged by Austino Property Group to undertake an ACHAR for a proposed development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park.

The proposal will be assessed under Part 4, Division 4.1 of the EP&A Act, which establishes an assessment and approval regime for SSD. Part 4, Division 4.1 applies to development that is declared to be SSD by a State Environmental Planning Policy (SEPP). Section 4.41 (previously section 89J(c)) of the EP&A Act specifies that approvals or permits under section 90 (AHIP) of the NPW Act 1974 are not required for approved SSD.

### 1.3 Proposed assessment methodology

The ACHAR, in compliance with SSD\_9403, will be completed in accordance with the relevant OEH guidelines:

- Guide to Investigating, Assessing and Reporting on Aboriginal Cultural Heritage in NSW
- Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Consultation Requirements for Proponents
- Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales

The initial stages of this process have been completed, and a list of Registered Aboriginal Parties (RAPs) has been compiled. The present letter provides the RAPs with project information and the proposed assessment methodology for review.

An Archaeological Survey Report (ASR) will be completed for the study area. The objectives of ASR will be to:

Assess the Aboriginal cultural heritage values of the study area in accordance with the Code of Practice

Identify Aboriginal archaeological and cultural heritage values that may be impacted by the proposed works

Identify any further investigations, and mitigation and management measures that may be required, should the project proceed.

This ASR will include:

A description of the project and the extent of the study area

An archaeological significance assessment of the study area

A description of the statutory requirements for the protection of Aboriginal heritage

An impact assessment for recorded Aboriginal sites and areas of archaeological potential

Provision of measures to avoid, minimise, and if necessary, offset the predicted impacts on Aboriginal heritage values.

An ACHAR would be completed, which assesses Aboriginal heritage significance of the study area, based on comments received from the RAPs and the results of the ASR. The potential impact of the proposed development on this significance would be assessed, and management recommendations would be developed accordingly. A draft copy of the ACHAR will be sent out for your review, prior to finalisation of the document.

I would like to ask you to review the above information and let me know if you have any comments to make. As mentioned, I would appreciate if you could provide comments by **30 October 2018**.

Thank you very much for your involvement in the project. If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Kind Regards,

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact Heritage

ryan.taddeucci@artefact.net.au 02 9518 8411

Figure 1: Map of study area




Dear Lilly Carroll,

# Re: Residential development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park: Notification of Registered Aboriginal Stakeholders

Thank you for registering as a stakeholder for the 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park Aboriginal heritage assessment. I am looking forward to working with you on this project. Included below are details of the project, and the proposed assessment methodology for your review.

If you would like to comment on the Aboriginal cultural heritage of the study area or the proposed methodology, please provide your response by **30 October 2018**. Please address your response to me at:

Ryan Taddeucci Artefact Heritage Level 4, Building B, 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009

Or via email: ryan.taddeucci@artefact.net.au

In your response, please consider the following points:

- Do you know of any objects or places of value to Aboriginal people in the study area or locality?
- Are there any protocols that you would like incorporated into the assessment methodology?
- Are there any access requirements or restrictions that should be applied to the information you are providing?

Please also note that consultation will not necessarily involve paid engagement, as this is not a requirement of the consultation guidelines issued by the Office of Environment and Heritage.

## 1.1 Proposed development

#### 1 Murray Rose Avenue

The proposed development involves the construction of a 15-storey residential development including three (3) basement levels with a bulk excavation level of approximately 1.85 m.

#### 2 Murray Rose Avenue



Austino Property Group are proposing a residential development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park. The proposed development has been assessed as a State Significant Development (SSD), and Secretary's Environmental Assessment Requirements (SEARs) have been issued for the site (SSD\_9403). The requirements for heritage are as follows:

- Prepare a Historical Archaeological Assessment (HAA) detailing the likely impacts and outline the proposed management and mitigation measures to protect and preserve the non-Aboriginal archaeology
- Prepare a Heritage Impact Statement (HIS) addressing impacts of the proposed development on any state or local heritage Items in the vicinity
- Prepare an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) identifying any cultural heritage values, impacts and mitigation measures.

Artefact Heritage have been engaged by Austino Property Group to undertake an ACHAR for a proposed development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park.

The proposal will be assessed under Part 4, Division 4.1 of the EP&A Act, which establishes an assessment and approval regime for SSD. Part 4, Division 4.1 applies to development that is declared to be SSD by a State Environmental Planning Policy (SEPP). Section 4.41 (previously section 89J(c)) of the EP&A Act specifies that approvals or permits under section 90 (AHIP) of the NPW Act 1974 are not required for approved SSD.

## 1.3 Proposed assessment methodology

The ACHAR, in compliance with SSD\_9403, will be completed in accordance with the relevant OEH guidelines:

- Guide to Investigating, Assessing and Reporting on Aboriginal Cultural Heritage in NSW
- Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Consultation Requirements for Proponents
- Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales

The initial stages of this process have been completed, and a list of Registered Aboriginal Parties (RAPs) has been compiled. The present letter provides the RAPs with project information and the proposed assessment methodology for review.

An Archaeological Survey Report (ASR) will be completed for the study area. The objectives of ASR will be to:

- Assess the Aboriginal cultural heritage values of the study area in accordance with the Code of Practice
- Identify Aboriginal archaeological and cultural heritage values that may be impacted by the proposed works
- Identify any further investigations, and mitigation and management measures that may be required, should the project proceed.

- A description of the project and the extent of the study area
- An archaeological significance assessment of the study area
- A description of the statutory requirements for the protection of Aboriginal heritage
- An impact assessment for recorded Aboriginal sites and areas of archaeological potential
- Provision of measures to avoid, minimise, and if necessary, offset the predicted impacts on Aboriginal heritage values.

I would like to ask you to review the above information and let me know if you have any comments to make. As mentioned, I would appreciate if you could provide comments by **30 October 2018**.

Thank you very much for your involvement in the project. If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Kind Regards,

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact Heritage



### Figure 1: Map of study area







Dear Amanda Dezwart,

# Re: Residential development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park: Notification of Registered Aboriginal Stakeholders

Thank you for registering as a stakeholder for the 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park Aboriginal heritage assessment. I am looking forward to working with you on this project. Included below are details of the project, and the proposed assessment methodology for your review.

If you would like to comment on the Aboriginal cultural heritage of the study area or the proposed methodology, please provide your response by **30 October 2018**. Please address your response to me at:

Ryan Taddeucci Artefact Heritage Level 4, Building B, 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009

Or via email: ryan.taddeucci@artefact.net.au

In your response, please consider the following points:

- Do you know of any objects or places of value to Aboriginal people in the study area or locality?
- Are there any protocols that you would like incorporated into the assessment methodology?
- Are there any access requirements or restrictions that should be applied to the information you are providing?

Please also note that consultation will not necessarily involve paid engagement, as this is not a requirement of the consultation guidelines issued by the Office of Environment and Heritage.

## 1.1 Proposed development

#### 1 Murray Rose Avenue

The proposed development involves the construction of a 15-storey residential development including three (3) basement levels with a bulk excavation level of approximately 1.85 m.

#### 2 Murray Rose Avenue



Austino Property Group are proposing a residential development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park. The proposed development has been assessed as a State Significant Development (SSD), and Secretary's Environmental Assessment Requirements (SEARs) have been issued for the site (SSD\_9403). The requirements for heritage are as follows:

- Prepare a Historical Archaeological Assessment (HAA) detailing the likely impacts and outline the proposed management and mitigation measures to protect and preserve the non-Aboriginal archaeology
- Prepare a Heritage Impact Statement (HIS) addressing impacts of the proposed development on any state or local heritage Items in the vicinity
- Prepare an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) identifying any cultural heritage values, impacts and mitigation measures.

Artefact Heritage have been engaged by Austino Property Group to undertake an ACHAR for a proposed development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park.

The proposal will be assessed under Part 4, Division 4.1 of the EP&A Act, which establishes an assessment and approval regime for SSD. Part 4, Division 4.1 applies to development that is declared to be SSD by a State Environmental Planning Policy (SEPP). Section 4.41 (previously section 89J(c)) of the EP&A Act specifies that approvals or permits under section 90 (AHIP) of the NPW Act 1974 are not required for approved SSD.

## 1.3 Proposed assessment methodology

The ACHAR, in compliance with SSD\_9403, will be completed in accordance with the relevant OEH guidelines:

- Guide to Investigating, Assessing and Reporting on Aboriginal Cultural Heritage in NSW
- Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Consultation Requirements for Proponents
- Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales

The initial stages of this process have been completed, and a list of Registered Aboriginal Parties (RAPs) has been compiled. The present letter provides the RAPs with project information and the proposed assessment methodology for review.

An Archaeological Survey Report (ASR) will be completed for the study area. The objectives of ASR will be to:

- Assess the Aboriginal cultural heritage values of the study area in accordance with the Code of Practice
- Identify Aboriginal archaeological and cultural heritage values that may be impacted by the proposed works
- Identify any further investigations, and mitigation and management measures that may be required, should the project proceed.

- A description of the project and the extent of the study area
- An archaeological significance assessment of the study area
- A description of the statutory requirements for the protection of Aboriginal heritage
- An impact assessment for recorded Aboriginal sites and areas of archaeological potential
- Provision of measures to avoid, minimise, and if necessary, offset the predicted impacts on Aboriginal heritage values.

I would like to ask you to review the above information and let me know if you have any comments to make. As mentioned, I would appreciate if you could provide comments by **30 October 2018**.

Thank you very much for your involvement in the project. If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Kind Regards,

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact Heritage



### Figure 1: Map of study area







Dear Marilyn Caroll-Johnson,

# Re: Residential development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park: Notification of Registered Aboriginal Stakeholders

Thank you for registering as a stakeholder for the 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park Aboriginal heritage assessment. I am looking forward to working with you on this project. Included below are details of the project, and the proposed assessment methodology for your review.

If you would like to comment on the Aboriginal cultural heritage of the study area or the proposed methodology, please provide your response by **30 October 2018**. Please address your response to me at:

Ryan Taddeucci Artefact Heritage Level 4, Building B, 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009

Or via email: ryan.taddeucci@artefact.net.au

In your response, please consider the following points:

- Do you know of any objects or places of value to Aboriginal people in the study area or locality?
- Are there any protocols that you would like incorporated into the assessment methodology?
- Are there any access requirements or restrictions that should be applied to the information you are providing?

Please also note that consultation will not necessarily involve paid engagement, as this is not a requirement of the consultation guidelines issued by the Office of Environment and Heritage.

## 1.1 Proposed development

#### 1 Murray Rose Avenue

The proposed development involves the construction of a 15-storey residential development including three (3) basement levels with a bulk excavation level of approximately 1.85 m.

#### 2 Murray Rose Avenue



Austino Property Group are proposing a residential development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park. The proposed development has been assessed as a State Significant Development (SSD), and Secretary's Environmental Assessment Requirements (SEARs) have been issued for the site (SSD\_9403). The requirements for heritage are as follows:

- Prepare a Historical Archaeological Assessment (HAA) detailing the likely impacts and outline the proposed management and mitigation measures to protect and preserve the non-Aboriginal archaeology
- Prepare a Heritage Impact Statement (HIS) addressing impacts of the proposed development on any state or local heritage Items in the vicinity
- Prepare an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) identifying any cultural heritage values, impacts and mitigation measures.

Artefact Heritage have been engaged by Austino Property Group to undertake an ACHAR for a proposed development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park.

The proposal will be assessed under Part 4, Division 4.1 of the EP&A Act, which establishes an assessment and approval regime for SSD. Part 4, Division 4.1 applies to development that is declared to be SSD by a State Environmental Planning Policy (SEPP). Section 4.41 (previously section 89J(c)) of the EP&A Act specifies that approvals or permits under section 90 (AHIP) of the NPW Act 1974 are not required for approved SSD.

## 1.3 Proposed assessment methodology

The ACHAR, in compliance with SSD\_9403, will be completed in accordance with the relevant OEH guidelines:

- Guide to Investigating, Assessing and Reporting on Aboriginal Cultural Heritage in NSW
- Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Consultation Requirements for Proponents
- Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales

The initial stages of this process have been completed, and a list of Registered Aboriginal Parties (RAPs) has been compiled. The present letter provides the RAPs with project information and the proposed assessment methodology for review.

An Archaeological Survey Report (ASR) will be completed for the study area. The objectives of ASR will be to:

- Assess the Aboriginal cultural heritage values of the study area in accordance with the Code of Practice
- Identify Aboriginal archaeological and cultural heritage values that may be impacted by the proposed works
- Identify any further investigations, and mitigation and management measures that may be required, should the project proceed.

- A description of the project and the extent of the study area
- An archaeological significance assessment of the study area
- A description of the statutory requirements for the protection of Aboriginal heritage
- An impact assessment for recorded Aboriginal sites and areas of archaeological potential
- Provision of measures to avoid, minimise, and if necessary, offset the predicted impacts on Aboriginal heritage values.

I would like to ask you to review the above information and let me know if you have any comments to make. As mentioned, I would appreciate if you could provide comments by **30 October 2018**.

Thank you very much for your involvement in the project. If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Kind Regards,

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact Heritage



### Figure 1: Map of study area







Dear Gordon Workman,

# Re: Residential development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park: Notification of Registered Aboriginal Stakeholders

Thank you for registering as a stakeholder for the 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park Aboriginal heritage assessment. I am looking forward to working with you on this project. Included below are details of the project, and the proposed assessment methodology for your review.

If you would like to comment on the Aboriginal cultural heritage of the study area or the proposed methodology, please provide your response by **30 October 2018**. Please address your response to me at:

Ryan Taddeucci Artefact Heritage Level 4, Building B, 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009

Or via email: ryan.taddeucci@artefact.net.au

In your response, please consider the following points:

- Do you know of any objects or places of value to Aboriginal people in the study area or locality?
- Are there any protocols that you would like incorporated into the assessment methodology?
- Are there any access requirements or restrictions that should be applied to the information you are providing?

Please also note that consultation will not necessarily involve paid engagement, as this is not a requirement of the consultation guidelines issued by the Office of Environment and Heritage.

## 1.1 Proposed development

#### 1 Murray Rose Avenue

The proposed development involves the construction of a 15-storey residential development including three (3) basement levels with a bulk excavation level of approximately 1.85 m.

#### 2 Murray Rose Avenue



Austino Property Group are proposing a residential development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park. The proposed development has been assessed as a State Significant Development (SSD), and Secretary's Environmental Assessment Requirements (SEARs) have been issued for the site (SSD\_9403). The requirements for heritage are as follows:

- Prepare a Historical Archaeological Assessment (HAA) detailing the likely impacts and outline the proposed management and mitigation measures to protect and preserve the non-Aboriginal archaeology
- Prepare a Heritage Impact Statement (HIS) addressing impacts of the proposed development on any state or local heritage Items in the vicinity
- Prepare an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) identifying any cultural heritage values, impacts and mitigation measures.

Artefact Heritage have been engaged by Austino Property Group to undertake an ACHAR for a proposed development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park.

The proposal will be assessed under Part 4, Division 4.1 of the EP&A Act, which establishes an assessment and approval regime for SSD. Part 4, Division 4.1 applies to development that is declared to be SSD by a State Environmental Planning Policy (SEPP). Section 4.41 (previously section 89J(c)) of the EP&A Act specifies that approvals or permits under section 90 (AHIP) of the NPW Act 1974 are not required for approved SSD.

## 1.3 Proposed assessment methodology

The ACHAR, in compliance with SSD\_9403, will be completed in accordance with the relevant OEH guidelines:

- Guide to Investigating, Assessing and Reporting on Aboriginal Cultural Heritage in NSW
- Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Consultation Requirements for Proponents
- Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales

The initial stages of this process have been completed, and a list of Registered Aboriginal Parties (RAPs) has been compiled. The present letter provides the RAPs with project information and the proposed assessment methodology for review.

An Archaeological Survey Report (ASR) will be completed for the study area. The objectives of ASR will be to:

- Assess the Aboriginal cultural heritage values of the study area in accordance with the Code of Practice
- Identify Aboriginal archaeological and cultural heritage values that may be impacted by the proposed works
- Identify any further investigations, and mitigation and management measures that may be required, should the project proceed.

- A description of the project and the extent of the study area
- An archaeological significance assessment of the study area
- A description of the statutory requirements for the protection of Aboriginal heritage
- An impact assessment for recorded Aboriginal sites and areas of archaeological potential
- Provision of measures to avoid, minimise, and if necessary, offset the predicted impacts on Aboriginal heritage values.

I would like to ask you to review the above information and let me know if you have any comments to make. As mentioned, I would appreciate if you could provide comments by **30 October 2018**.

Thank you very much for your involvement in the project. If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Kind Regards,

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact Heritage



### Figure 1: Map of study area







Dear Jesse Johnson,

# Re: Residential development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park: Notification of Registered Aboriginal Stakeholders

Thank you for registering as a stakeholder for the 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park Aboriginal heritage assessment. I am looking forward to working with you on this project. Included below are details of the project, and the proposed assessment methodology for your review.

If you would like to comment on the Aboriginal cultural heritage of the study area or the proposed methodology, please provide your response by **30 October 2018**. Please address your response to me at:

Ryan Taddeucci Artefact Heritage Level 4, Building B, 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009

Or via email: ryan.taddeucci@artefact.net.au

In your response, please consider the following points:

- Do you know of any objects or places of value to Aboriginal people in the study area or locality?
- Are there any protocols that you would like incorporated into the assessment methodology?
- Are there any access requirements or restrictions that should be applied to the information you are providing?

Please also note that consultation will not necessarily involve paid engagement, as this is not a requirement of the consultation guidelines issued by the Office of Environment and Heritage.

## 1.1 Proposed development

#### 1 Murray Rose Avenue

The proposed development involves the construction of a 15-storey residential development including three (3) basement levels with a bulk excavation level of approximately 1.85 m.

#### 2 Murray Rose Avenue



Austino Property Group are proposing a residential development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park. The proposed development has been assessed as a State Significant Development (SSD), and Secretary's Environmental Assessment Requirements (SEARs) have been issued for the site (SSD\_9403). The requirements for heritage are as follows:

- Prepare a Historical Archaeological Assessment (HAA) detailing the likely impacts and outline the proposed management and mitigation measures to protect and preserve the non-Aboriginal archaeology
- Prepare a Heritage Impact Statement (HIS) addressing impacts of the proposed development on any state or local heritage Items in the vicinity
- Prepare an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) identifying any cultural heritage values, impacts and mitigation measures.

Artefact Heritage have been engaged by Austino Property Group to undertake an ACHAR for a proposed development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park.

The proposal will be assessed under Part 4, Division 4.1 of the EP&A Act, which establishes an assessment and approval regime for SSD. Part 4, Division 4.1 applies to development that is declared to be SSD by a State Environmental Planning Policy (SEPP). Section 4.41 (previously section 89J(c)) of the EP&A Act specifies that approvals or permits under section 90 (AHIP) of the NPW Act 1974 are not required for approved SSD.

## 1.3 Proposed assessment methodology

The ACHAR, in compliance with SSD\_9403, will be completed in accordance with the relevant OEH guidelines:

- Guide to Investigating, Assessing and Reporting on Aboriginal Cultural Heritage in NSW
- Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Consultation Requirements for Proponents
- Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales

The initial stages of this process have been completed, and a list of Registered Aboriginal Parties (RAPs) has been compiled. The present letter provides the RAPs with project information and the proposed assessment methodology for review.

An Archaeological Survey Report (ASR) will be completed for the study area. The objectives of ASR will be to:

- Assess the Aboriginal cultural heritage values of the study area in accordance with the Code of Practice
- Identify Aboriginal archaeological and cultural heritage values that may be impacted by the proposed works
- Identify any further investigations, and mitigation and management measures that may be required, should the project proceed.

- A description of the project and the extent of the study area
- An archaeological significance assessment of the study area
- A description of the statutory requirements for the protection of Aboriginal heritage
- An impact assessment for recorded Aboriginal sites and areas of archaeological potential
- Provision of measures to avoid, minimise, and if necessary, offset the predicted impacts on Aboriginal heritage values.

I would like to ask you to review the above information and let me know if you have any comments to make. As mentioned, I would appreciate if you could provide comments by **30 October 2018**.

Thank you very much for your involvement in the project. If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Kind Regards,

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact Heritage



### Figure 1: Map of study area







Dear Scott Franks,

# Re: Residential development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park: Notification of Registered Aboriginal Stakeholders

Thank you for registering as a stakeholder for the 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park Aboriginal heritage assessment. I am looking forward to working with you on this project. Included below are details of the project, and the proposed assessment methodology for your review.

If you would like to comment on the Aboriginal cultural heritage of the study area or the proposed methodology, please provide your response by **30 October 2018**. Please address your response to me at:

Ryan Taddeucci Artefact Heritage Level 4, Building B, 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009

Or via email: ryan.taddeucci@artefact.net.au

In your response, please consider the following points:

- Do you know of any objects or places of value to Aboriginal people in the study area or locality?
- Are there any protocols that you would like incorporated into the assessment methodology?
- Are there any access requirements or restrictions that should be applied to the information you are providing?

Please also note that consultation will not necessarily involve paid engagement, as this is not a requirement of the consultation guidelines issued by the Office of Environment and Heritage.

## 1.1 Proposed development

#### 1 Murray Rose Avenue

The proposed development involves the construction of a 15-storey residential development including three (3) basement levels with a bulk excavation level of approximately 1.85 m.

#### 2 Murray Rose Avenue



Austino Property Group are proposing a residential development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park. The proposed development has been assessed as a State Significant Development (SSD), and Secretary's Environmental Assessment Requirements (SEARs) have been issued for the site (SSD\_9403). The requirements for heritage are as follows:

- Prepare a Historical Archaeological Assessment (HAA) detailing the likely impacts and outline the proposed management and mitigation measures to protect and preserve the non-Aboriginal archaeology
- Prepare a Heritage Impact Statement (HIS) addressing impacts of the proposed development on any state or local heritage Items in the vicinity
- Prepare an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) identifying any cultural heritage values, impacts and mitigation measures.

Artefact Heritage have been engaged by Austino Property Group to undertake an ACHAR for a proposed development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park.

The proposal will be assessed under Part 4, Division 4.1 of the EP&A Act, which establishes an assessment and approval regime for SSD. Part 4, Division 4.1 applies to development that is declared to be SSD by a State Environmental Planning Policy (SEPP). Section 4.41 (previously section 89J(c)) of the EP&A Act specifies that approvals or permits under section 90 (AHIP) of the NPW Act 1974 are not required for approved SSD.

## 1.3 Proposed assessment methodology

The ACHAR, in compliance with SSD\_9403, will be completed in accordance with the relevant OEH guidelines:

- Guide to Investigating, Assessing and Reporting on Aboriginal Cultural Heritage in NSW
- Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Consultation Requirements for Proponents
- Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales

The initial stages of this process have been completed, and a list of Registered Aboriginal Parties (RAPs) has been compiled. The present letter provides the RAPs with project information and the proposed assessment methodology for review.

An Archaeological Survey Report (ASR) will be completed for the study area. The objectives of ASR will be to:

- Assess the Aboriginal cultural heritage values of the study area in accordance with the Code of Practice
- Identify Aboriginal archaeological and cultural heritage values that may be impacted by the proposed works
- Identify any further investigations, and mitigation and management measures that may be required, should the project proceed.

- A description of the project and the extent of the study area
- An archaeological significance assessment of the study area
- A description of the statutory requirements for the protection of Aboriginal heritage
- An impact assessment for recorded Aboriginal sites and areas of archaeological potential
- Provision of measures to avoid, minimise, and if necessary, offset the predicted impacts on Aboriginal heritage values.

I would like to ask you to review the above information and let me know if you have any comments to make. As mentioned, I would appreciate if you could provide comments by **30 October 2018**.

Thank you very much for your involvement in the project. If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Kind Regards,

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact Heritage



### Figure 1: Map of study area







Dear Andrew Williams,

# Re: Residential development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park: Notification of Registered Aboriginal Stakeholders

Thank you for registering as a stakeholder for the 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park Aboriginal heritage assessment. I am looking forward to working with you on this project. Included below are details of the project, and the proposed assessment methodology for your review.

If you would like to comment on the Aboriginal cultural heritage of the study area or the proposed methodology, please provide your response by **30 October 2018**. Please address your response to me at:

Ryan Taddeucci Artefact Heritage Level 4, Building B, 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009

Or via email: ryan.taddeucci@artefact.net.au

In your response, please consider the following points:

- Do you know of any objects or places of value to Aboriginal people in the study area or locality?
- Are there any protocols that you would like incorporated into the assessment methodology?
- Are there any access requirements or restrictions that should be applied to the information you are providing?

Please also note that consultation will not necessarily involve paid engagement, as this is not a requirement of the consultation guidelines issued by the Office of Environment and Heritage.

## 1.1 Proposed development

#### 1 Murray Rose Avenue

The proposed development involves the construction of a 15-storey residential development including three (3) basement levels with a bulk excavation level of approximately 1.85 m.

#### 2 Murray Rose Avenue



Austino Property Group are proposing a residential development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park. The proposed development has been assessed as a State Significant Development (SSD), and Secretary's Environmental Assessment Requirements (SEARs) have been issued for the site (SSD\_9403). The requirements for heritage are as follows:

- Prepare a Historical Archaeological Assessment (HAA) detailing the likely impacts and outline the proposed management and mitigation measures to protect and preserve the non-Aboriginal archaeology
- Prepare a Heritage Impact Statement (HIS) addressing impacts of the proposed development on any state or local heritage Items in the vicinity
- Prepare an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) identifying any cultural heritage values, impacts and mitigation measures.

Artefact Heritage have been engaged by Austino Property Group to undertake an ACHAR for a proposed development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park.

The proposal will be assessed under Part 4, Division 4.1 of the EP&A Act, which establishes an assessment and approval regime for SSD. Part 4, Division 4.1 applies to development that is declared to be SSD by a State Environmental Planning Policy (SEPP). Section 4.41 (previously section 89J(c)) of the EP&A Act specifies that approvals or permits under section 90 (AHIP) of the NPW Act 1974 are not required for approved SSD.

## 1.3 Proposed assessment methodology

The ACHAR, in compliance with SSD\_9403, will be completed in accordance with the relevant OEH guidelines:

- Guide to Investigating, Assessing and Reporting on Aboriginal Cultural Heritage in NSW
- Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Consultation Requirements for Proponents
- Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales

The initial stages of this process have been completed, and a list of Registered Aboriginal Parties (RAPs) has been compiled. The present letter provides the RAPs with project information and the proposed assessment methodology for review.

An Archaeological Survey Report (ASR) will be completed for the study area. The objectives of ASR will be to:

- Assess the Aboriginal cultural heritage values of the study area in accordance with the Code of Practice
- Identify Aboriginal archaeological and cultural heritage values that may be impacted by the proposed works
- Identify any further investigations, and mitigation and management measures that may be required, should the project proceed.

- A description of the project and the extent of the study area
- An archaeological significance assessment of the study area
- A description of the statutory requirements for the protection of Aboriginal heritage
- An impact assessment for recorded Aboriginal sites and areas of archaeological potential
- Provision of measures to avoid, minimise, and if necessary, offset the predicted impacts on Aboriginal heritage values.

I would like to ask you to review the above information and let me know if you have any comments to make. As mentioned, I would appreciate if you could provide comments by **30 October 2018**.

Thank you very much for your involvement in the project. If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Kind Regards,

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact Heritage



### Figure 1: Map of study area







Dear Justine Coplin,

# Re: Residential development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park: Notification of Registered Aboriginal Stakeholders

Thank you for registering as a stakeholder for the 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park Aboriginal heritage assessment. I am looking forward to working with you on this project. Included below are details of the project, and the proposed assessment methodology for your review.

If you would like to comment on the Aboriginal cultural heritage of the study area or the proposed methodology, please provide your response by **30 October 2018**. Please address your response to me at:

Ryan Taddeucci Artefact Heritage Level 4, Building B, 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009

Or via email: ryan.taddeucci@artefact.net.au

In your response, please consider the following points:

- Do you know of any objects or places of value to Aboriginal people in the study area or locality?
- Are there any protocols that you would like incorporated into the assessment methodology?
- Are there any access requirements or restrictions that should be applied to the information you are providing?

Please also note that consultation will not necessarily involve paid engagement, as this is not a requirement of the consultation guidelines issued by the Office of Environment and Heritage.

## 1.1 Proposed development

#### 1 Murray Rose Avenue

The proposed development involves the construction of a 15-storey residential development including three (3) basement levels with a bulk excavation level of approximately 1.85 m.

#### 2 Murray Rose Avenue



Austino Property Group are proposing a residential development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park. The proposed development has been assessed as a State Significant Development (SSD), and Secretary's Environmental Assessment Requirements (SEARs) have been issued for the site (SSD\_9403). The requirements for heritage are as follows:

- Prepare a Historical Archaeological Assessment (HAA) detailing the likely impacts and outline the proposed management and mitigation measures to protect and preserve the non-Aboriginal archaeology
- Prepare a Heritage Impact Statement (HIS) addressing impacts of the proposed development on any state or local heritage Items in the vicinity
- Prepare an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) identifying any cultural heritage values, impacts and mitigation measures.

Artefact Heritage have been engaged by Austino Property Group to undertake an ACHAR for a proposed development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park.

The proposal will be assessed under Part 4, Division 4.1 of the EP&A Act, which establishes an assessment and approval regime for SSD. Part 4, Division 4.1 applies to development that is declared to be SSD by a State Environmental Planning Policy (SEPP). Section 4.41 (previously section 89J(c)) of the EP&A Act specifies that approvals or permits under section 90 (AHIP) of the NPW Act 1974 are not required for approved SSD.

## 1.3 Proposed assessment methodology

The ACHAR, in compliance with SSD\_9403, will be completed in accordance with the relevant OEH guidelines:

- Guide to Investigating, Assessing and Reporting on Aboriginal Cultural Heritage in NSW
- Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Consultation Requirements for Proponents
- Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales

The initial stages of this process have been completed, and a list of Registered Aboriginal Parties (RAPs) has been compiled. The present letter provides the RAPs with project information and the proposed assessment methodology for review.

An Archaeological Survey Report (ASR) will be completed for the study area. The objectives of ASR will be to:

- Assess the Aboriginal cultural heritage values of the study area in accordance with the Code of Practice
- Identify Aboriginal archaeological and cultural heritage values that may be impacted by the proposed works
- Identify any further investigations, and mitigation and management measures that may be required, should the project proceed.

- A description of the project and the extent of the study area
- An archaeological significance assessment of the study area
- A description of the statutory requirements for the protection of Aboriginal heritage
- An impact assessment for recorded Aboriginal sites and areas of archaeological potential
- Provision of measures to avoid, minimise, and if necessary, offset the predicted impacts on Aboriginal heritage values.

I would like to ask you to review the above information and let me know if you have any comments to make. As mentioned, I would appreciate if you could provide comments by **30 October 2018**.

Thank you very much for your involvement in the project. If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Kind Regards,

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact Heritage



### Figure 1: Map of study area







Dear Lee Field,

# Re: Residential development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park: Notification of Registered Aboriginal Stakeholders

Thank you for registering as a stakeholder for the 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park Aboriginal heritage assessment. I am looking forward to working with you on this project. Included below are details of the project, and the proposed assessment methodology for your review.

If you would like to comment on the Aboriginal cultural heritage of the study area or the proposed methodology, please provide your response by **30 October 2018**. Please address your response to me at:

Ryan Taddeucci Artefact Heritage Level 4, Building B, 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009

Or via email: ryan.taddeucci@artefact.net.au

In your response, please consider the following points:

- Do you know of any objects or places of value to Aboriginal people in the study area or locality?
- Are there any protocols that you would like incorporated into the assessment methodology?
- Are there any access requirements or restrictions that should be applied to the information you are providing?

Please also note that consultation will not necessarily involve paid engagement, as this is not a requirement of the consultation guidelines issued by the Office of Environment and Heritage.

## 1.1 Proposed development

#### 1 Murray Rose Avenue

The proposed development involves the construction of a 15-storey residential development including three (3) basement levels with a bulk excavation level of approximately 1.85 m.

#### 2 Murray Rose Avenue



Austino Property Group are proposing a residential development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park. The proposed development has been assessed as a State Significant Development (SSD), and Secretary's Environmental Assessment Requirements (SEARs) have been issued for the site (SSD\_9403). The requirements for heritage are as follows:

- Prepare a Historical Archaeological Assessment (HAA) detailing the likely impacts and outline the proposed management and mitigation measures to protect and preserve the non-Aboriginal archaeology
- Prepare a Heritage Impact Statement (HIS) addressing impacts of the proposed development on any state or local heritage Items in the vicinity
- Prepare an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) identifying any cultural heritage values, impacts and mitigation measures.

Artefact Heritage have been engaged by Austino Property Group to undertake an ACHAR for a proposed development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park.

The proposal will be assessed under Part 4, Division 4.1 of the EP&A Act, which establishes an assessment and approval regime for SSD. Part 4, Division 4.1 applies to development that is declared to be SSD by a State Environmental Planning Policy (SEPP). Section 4.41 (previously section 89J(c)) of the EP&A Act specifies that approvals or permits under section 90 (AHIP) of the NPW Act 1974 are not required for approved SSD.

## 1.3 Proposed assessment methodology

The ACHAR, in compliance with SSD\_9403, will be completed in accordance with the relevant OEH guidelines:

- Guide to Investigating, Assessing and Reporting on Aboriginal Cultural Heritage in NSW
- Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Consultation Requirements for Proponents
- Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales

The initial stages of this process have been completed, and a list of Registered Aboriginal Parties (RAPs) has been compiled. The present letter provides the RAPs with project information and the proposed assessment methodology for review.

An Archaeological Survey Report (ASR) will be completed for the study area. The objectives of ASR will be to:

- Assess the Aboriginal cultural heritage values of the study area in accordance with the Code of Practice
- Identify Aboriginal archaeological and cultural heritage values that may be impacted by the proposed works
- Identify any further investigations, and mitigation and management measures that may be required, should the project proceed.

- A description of the project and the extent of the study area
- An archaeological significance assessment of the study area
- A description of the statutory requirements for the protection of Aboriginal heritage
- An impact assessment for recorded Aboriginal sites and areas of archaeological potential
- Provision of measures to avoid, minimise, and if necessary, offset the predicted impacts on Aboriginal heritage values.

I would like to ask you to review the above information and let me know if you have any comments to make. As mentioned, I would appreciate if you could provide comments by **30 October 2018**.

Thank you very much for your involvement in the project. If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Kind Regards,

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact Heritage


#### Figure 1: Map of study area







02/10/2018

Dear Arika Jalomaki,

# Re: Residential development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park: Notification of Registered Aboriginal Stakeholders

Thank you for registering as a stakeholder for the 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park Aboriginal heritage assessment. I am looking forward to working with you on this project. Included below are details of the project, and the proposed assessment methodology for your review.

If you would like to comment on the Aboriginal cultural heritage of the study area or the proposed methodology, please provide your response by **30 October 2018**. Please address your response to me at:

Ryan Taddeucci Artefact Heritage Level 4, Building B, 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009

Or via email: ryan.taddeucci@artefact.net.au

In your response, please consider the following points:

- Do you know of any objects or places of value to Aboriginal people in the study area or locality?
- Are there any protocols that you would like incorporated into the assessment methodology?
- Are there any access requirements or restrictions that should be applied to the information you are providing?

Please also note that consultation will not necessarily involve paid engagement, as this is not a requirement of the consultation guidelines issued by the Office of Environment and Heritage.

## 1.1 Proposed development

#### 1 Murray Rose Avenue

The proposed development involves the construction of a 15-storey residential development including three (3) basement levels with a bulk excavation level of approximately 1.85 m.

#### 2 Murray Rose Avenue

The proposed development includes the construction of a 15-storey residential development with two (2) basement levels with a bulk excavation level of approximately 0.4 m.



## 1.2 Background

Austino Property Group are proposing a residential development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park. The proposed development has been assessed as a State Significant Development (SSD), and Secretary's Environmental Assessment Requirements (SEARs) have been issued for the site (SSD\_9403). The requirements for heritage are as follows:

- Prepare a Historical Archaeological Assessment (HAA) detailing the likely impacts and outline the proposed management and mitigation measures to protect and preserve the non-Aboriginal archaeology
- Prepare a Heritage Impact Statement (HIS) addressing impacts of the proposed development on any state or local heritage Items in the vicinity
- Prepare an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) identifying any cultural heritage values, impacts and mitigation measures.

Artefact Heritage have been engaged by Austino Property Group to undertake an ACHAR for a proposed development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park.

The proposal will be assessed under Part 4, Division 4.1 of the EP&A Act, which establishes an assessment and approval regime for SSD. Part 4, Division 4.1 applies to development that is declared to be SSD by a State Environmental Planning Policy (SEPP). Section 4.41 (previously section 89J(c)) of the EP&A Act specifies that approvals or permits under section 90 (AHIP) of the NPW Act 1974 are not required for approved SSD.

## 1.3 Proposed assessment methodology

The ACHAR, in compliance with SSD\_9403, will be completed in accordance with the relevant OEH guidelines:

- Guide to Investigating, Assessing and Reporting on Aboriginal Cultural Heritage in NSW
- Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Consultation Requirements for Proponents
- Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales

The initial stages of this process have been completed, and a list of Registered Aboriginal Parties (RAPs) has been compiled. The present letter provides the RAPs with project information and the proposed assessment methodology for review.

An Archaeological Survey Report (ASR) will be completed for the study area. The objectives of ASR will be to:

- Assess the Aboriginal cultural heritage values of the study area in accordance with the Code of Practice
- Identify Aboriginal archaeological and cultural heritage values that may be impacted by the proposed works
- Identify any further investigations, and mitigation and management measures that may be required, should the project proceed.

This ASR will include:

- A description of the project and the extent of the study area
- An archaeological significance assessment of the study area
- A description of the statutory requirements for the protection of Aboriginal heritage
- An impact assessment for recorded Aboriginal sites and areas of archaeological potential
- Provision of measures to avoid, minimise, and if necessary, offset the predicted impacts on Aboriginal heritage values.

An ACHAR would be completed, which assesses Aboriginal heritage significance of the study area, based on comments received from the RAPs and the results of the ASR. The potential impact of the proposed development on this significance would be assessed, and management recommendations would be developed accordingly. A draft copy of the ACHAR will be sent out for your review, prior to finalisation of the document.

I would like to ask you to review the above information and let me know if you have any comments to make. As mentioned, I would appreciate if you could provide comments by **30 October 2018**.

Thank you very much for your involvement in the project. If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Kind Regards,

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact Heritage

ryan.taddeucci@artefact.net.au 02 9518 8411



#### Figure 1: Map of study area







02/10/2018

Dear Bo Field,

# Re: Residential development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park: Notification of Registered Aboriginal Stakeholders

Thank you for registering as a stakeholder for the 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park Aboriginal heritage assessment. I am looking forward to working with you on this project. Included below are details of the project, and the proposed assessment methodology for your review.

If you would like to comment on the Aboriginal cultural heritage of the study area or the proposed methodology, please provide your response by **30 October 2018**. Please address your response to me at:

Ryan Taddeucci Artefact Heritage Level 4, Building B, 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009

Or via email: ryan.taddeucci@artefact.net.au

In your response, please consider the following points:

- Do you know of any objects or places of value to Aboriginal people in the study area or locality?
- Are there any protocols that you would like incorporated into the assessment methodology?
- Are there any access requirements or restrictions that should be applied to the information you are providing?

Please also note that consultation will not necessarily involve paid engagement, as this is not a requirement of the consultation guidelines issued by the Office of Environment and Heritage.

## 1.1 Proposed development

#### 1 Murray Rose Avenue

The proposed development involves the construction of a 15-storey residential development including three (3) basement levels with a bulk excavation level of approximately 1.85 m.

#### 2 Murray Rose Avenue

The proposed development includes the construction of a 15-storey residential development with two (2) basement levels with a bulk excavation level of approximately 0.4 m.



## 1.2 Background

Austino Property Group are proposing a residential development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park. The proposed development has been assessed as a State Significant Development (SSD), and Secretary's Environmental Assessment Requirements (SEARs) have been issued for the site (SSD\_9403). The requirements for heritage are as follows:

- Prepare a Historical Archaeological Assessment (HAA) detailing the likely impacts and outline the proposed management and mitigation measures to protect and preserve the non-Aboriginal archaeology
- Prepare a Heritage Impact Statement (HIS) addressing impacts of the proposed development on any state or local heritage Items in the vicinity
- Prepare an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) identifying any cultural heritage values, impacts and mitigation measures.

Artefact Heritage have been engaged by Austino Property Group to undertake an ACHAR for a proposed development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park.

The proposal will be assessed under Part 4, Division 4.1 of the EP&A Act, which establishes an assessment and approval regime for SSD. Part 4, Division 4.1 applies to development that is declared to be SSD by a State Environmental Planning Policy (SEPP). Section 4.41 (previously section 89J(c)) of the EP&A Act specifies that approvals or permits under section 90 (AHIP) of the NPW Act 1974 are not required for approved SSD.

## 1.3 Proposed assessment methodology

The ACHAR, in compliance with SSD\_9403, will be completed in accordance with the relevant OEH guidelines:

- Guide to Investigating, Assessing and Reporting on Aboriginal Cultural Heritage in NSW
- Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Consultation Requirements for Proponents
- Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales

The initial stages of this process have been completed, and a list of Registered Aboriginal Parties (RAPs) has been compiled. The present letter provides the RAPs with project information and the proposed assessment methodology for review.

An Archaeological Survey Report (ASR) will be completed for the study area. The objectives of ASR will be to:

- Assess the Aboriginal cultural heritage values of the study area in accordance with the Code of Practice
- Identify Aboriginal archaeological and cultural heritage values that may be impacted by the proposed works
- Identify any further investigations, and mitigation and management measures that may be required, should the project proceed.

This ASR will include:

- A description of the project and the extent of the study area
- An archaeological significance assessment of the study area
- A description of the statutory requirements for the protection of Aboriginal heritage
- An impact assessment for recorded Aboriginal sites and areas of archaeological potential
- Provision of measures to avoid, minimise, and if necessary, offset the predicted impacts on Aboriginal heritage values.

An ACHAR would be completed, which assesses Aboriginal heritage significance of the study area, based on comments received from the RAPs and the results of the ASR. The potential impact of the proposed development on this significance would be assessed, and management recommendations would be developed accordingly. A draft copy of the ACHAR will be sent out for your review, prior to finalisation of the document.

I would like to ask you to review the above information and let me know if you have any comments to make. As mentioned, I would appreciate if you could provide comments by **30 October 2018**.

Thank you very much for your involvement in the project. If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Kind Regards,

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact Heritage

ryan.taddeucci@artefact.net.au 02 9518 8411



#### Figure 1: Map of study area







02/10/2018

Dear Carolyn Hickey,

# Re: Residential development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park: Notification of Registered Aboriginal Stakeholders

Thank you for registering as a stakeholder for the 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park Aboriginal heritage assessment. I am looking forward to working with you on this project. Included below are details of the project, and the proposed assessment methodology for your review.

If you would like to comment on the Aboriginal cultural heritage of the study area or the proposed methodology, please provide your response by **30 October 2018**. Please address your response to me at:

Ryan Taddeucci Artefact Heritage Level 4, Building B, 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009

Or via email: ryan.taddeucci@artefact.net.au

In your response, please consider the following points:

- Do you know of any objects or places of value to Aboriginal people in the study area or locality?
- Are there any protocols that you would like incorporated into the assessment methodology?
- Are there any access requirements or restrictions that should be applied to the information you are providing?

Please also note that consultation will not necessarily involve paid engagement, as this is not a requirement of the consultation guidelines issued by the Office of Environment and Heritage.

## 1.1 Proposed development

#### 1 Murray Rose Avenue

The proposed development involves the construction of a 15-storey residential development including three (3) basement levels with a bulk excavation level of approximately 1.85 m.

#### 2 Murray Rose Avenue

The proposed development includes the construction of a 15-storey residential development with two (2) basement levels with a bulk excavation level of approximately 0.4 m.



## 1.2 Background

Austino Property Group are proposing a residential development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park. The proposed development has been assessed as a State Significant Development (SSD), and Secretary's Environmental Assessment Requirements (SEARs) have been issued for the site (SSD\_9403). The requirements for heritage are as follows:

- Prepare a Historical Archaeological Assessment (HAA) detailing the likely impacts and outline the proposed management and mitigation measures to protect and preserve the non-Aboriginal archaeology
- Prepare a Heritage Impact Statement (HIS) addressing impacts of the proposed development on any state or local heritage Items in the vicinity
- Prepare an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) identifying any cultural heritage values, impacts and mitigation measures.

Artefact Heritage have been engaged by Austino Property Group to undertake an ACHAR for a proposed development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park.

The proposal will be assessed under Part 4, Division 4.1 of the EP&A Act, which establishes an assessment and approval regime for SSD. Part 4, Division 4.1 applies to development that is declared to be SSD by a State Environmental Planning Policy (SEPP). Section 4.41 (previously section 89J(c)) of the EP&A Act specifies that approvals or permits under section 90 (AHIP) of the NPW Act 1974 are not required for approved SSD.

## 1.3 Proposed assessment methodology

The ACHAR, in compliance with SSD\_9403, will be completed in accordance with the relevant OEH guidelines:

- Guide to Investigating, Assessing and Reporting on Aboriginal Cultural Heritage in NSW
- Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Consultation Requirements for Proponents
- Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales

The initial stages of this process have been completed, and a list of Registered Aboriginal Parties (RAPs) has been compiled. The present letter provides the RAPs with project information and the proposed assessment methodology for review.

An Archaeological Survey Report (ASR) will be completed for the study area. The objectives of ASR will be to:

- Assess the Aboriginal cultural heritage values of the study area in accordance with the Code of Practice
- Identify Aboriginal archaeological and cultural heritage values that may be impacted by the proposed works
- Identify any further investigations, and mitigation and management measures that may be required, should the project proceed.

This ASR will include:

- A description of the project and the extent of the study area
- An archaeological significance assessment of the study area
- A description of the statutory requirements for the protection of Aboriginal heritage
- An impact assessment for recorded Aboriginal sites and areas of archaeological potential
- Provision of measures to avoid, minimise, and if necessary, offset the predicted impacts on Aboriginal heritage values.

An ACHAR would be completed, which assesses Aboriginal heritage significance of the study area, based on comments received from the RAPs and the results of the ASR. The potential impact of the proposed development on this significance would be assessed, and management recommendations would be developed accordingly. A draft copy of the ACHAR will be sent out for your review, prior to finalisation of the document.

I would like to ask you to review the above information and let me know if you have any comments to make. As mentioned, I would appreciate if you could provide comments by **30 October 2018**.

Thank you very much for your involvement in the project. If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Kind Regards,

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact Heritage

ryan.taddeucci@artefact.net.au 02 9518 8411



#### Figure 1: Map of study area







02/10/2018

Dear Anna Workman,

# Re: Residential development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park: Notification of Registered Aboriginal Stakeholders

Thank you for registering as a stakeholder for the 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park Aboriginal heritage assessment. I am looking forward to working with you on this project. Included below are details of the project, and the proposed assessment methodology for your review.

If you would like to comment on the Aboriginal cultural heritage of the study area or the proposed methodology, please provide your response by **30 October 2018**. Please address your response to me at:

Ryan Taddeucci Artefact Heritage Level 4, Building B, 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009

Or via email: ryan.taddeucci@artefact.net.au

In your response, please consider the following points:

- Do you know of any objects or places of value to Aboriginal people in the study area or locality?
- Are there any protocols that you would like incorporated into the assessment methodology?
- Are there any access requirements or restrictions that should be applied to the information you are providing?

Please also note that consultation will not necessarily involve paid engagement, as this is not a requirement of the consultation guidelines issued by the Office of Environment and Heritage.

## 1.1 Proposed development

#### 1 Murray Rose Avenue

The proposed development involves the construction of a 15-storey residential development including three (3) basement levels with a bulk excavation level of approximately 1.85 m.

#### 2 Murray Rose Avenue

The proposed development includes the construction of a 15-storey residential development with two (2) basement levels with a bulk excavation level of approximately 0.4 m.



## 1.2 Background

Austino Property Group are proposing a residential development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park. The proposed development has been assessed as a State Significant Development (SSD), and Secretary's Environmental Assessment Requirements (SEARs) have been issued for the site (SSD\_9403). The requirements for heritage are as follows:

- Prepare a Historical Archaeological Assessment (HAA) detailing the likely impacts and outline the proposed management and mitigation measures to protect and preserve the non-Aboriginal archaeology
- Prepare a Heritage Impact Statement (HIS) addressing impacts of the proposed development on any state or local heritage Items in the vicinity
- Prepare an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) identifying any cultural heritage values, impacts and mitigation measures.

Artefact Heritage have been engaged by Austino Property Group to undertake an ACHAR for a proposed development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park.

The proposal will be assessed under Part 4, Division 4.1 of the EP&A Act, which establishes an assessment and approval regime for SSD. Part 4, Division 4.1 applies to development that is declared to be SSD by a State Environmental Planning Policy (SEPP). Section 4.41 (previously section 89J(c)) of the EP&A Act specifies that approvals or permits under section 90 (AHIP) of the NPW Act 1974 are not required for approved SSD.

## 1.3 Proposed assessment methodology

The ACHAR, in compliance with SSD\_9403, will be completed in accordance with the relevant OEH guidelines:

- Guide to Investigating, Assessing and Reporting on Aboriginal Cultural Heritage in NSW
- Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Consultation Requirements for Proponents
- Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales

The initial stages of this process have been completed, and a list of Registered Aboriginal Parties (RAPs) has been compiled. The present letter provides the RAPs with project information and the proposed assessment methodology for review.

An Archaeological Survey Report (ASR) will be completed for the study area. The objectives of ASR will be to:

- Assess the Aboriginal cultural heritage values of the study area in accordance with the Code of Practice
- Identify Aboriginal archaeological and cultural heritage values that may be impacted by the proposed works
- Identify any further investigations, and mitigation and management measures that may be required, should the project proceed.

This ASR will include:

- A description of the project and the extent of the study area
- An archaeological significance assessment of the study area
- A description of the statutory requirements for the protection of Aboriginal heritage
- An impact assessment for recorded Aboriginal sites and areas of archaeological potential
- Provision of measures to avoid, minimise, and if necessary, offset the predicted impacts on Aboriginal heritage values.

An ACHAR would be completed, which assesses Aboriginal heritage significance of the study area, based on comments received from the RAPs and the results of the ASR. The potential impact of the proposed development on this significance would be assessed, and management recommendations would be developed accordingly. A draft copy of the ACHAR will be sent out for your review, prior to finalisation of the document.

I would like to ask you to review the above information and let me know if you have any comments to make. As mentioned, I would appreciate if you could provide comments by **30 October 2018**.

Thank you very much for your involvement in the project. If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Kind Regards,

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact Heritage

ryan.taddeucci@artefact.net.au 02 9518 8411



#### Figure 1: Map of study area







02/10/2018

Dear Steven Hickey,

# Re: Residential development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park: Notification of Registered Aboriginal Stakeholders

Thank you for registering as a stakeholder for the 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park Aboriginal heritage assessment. I am looking forward to working with you on this project. Included below are details of the project, and the proposed assessment methodology for your review.

If you would like to comment on the Aboriginal cultural heritage of the study area or the proposed methodology, please provide your response by **30 October 2018**. Please address your response to me at:

Ryan Taddeucci Artefact Heritage Level 4, Building B, 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009

Or via email: ryan.taddeucci@artefact.net.au

In your response, please consider the following points:

- Do you know of any objects or places of value to Aboriginal people in the study area or locality?
- Are there any protocols that you would like incorporated into the assessment methodology?
- Are there any access requirements or restrictions that should be applied to the information you are providing?

Please also note that consultation will not necessarily involve paid engagement, as this is not a requirement of the consultation guidelines issued by the Office of Environment and Heritage.

## 1.1 Proposed development

#### 1 Murray Rose Avenue

The proposed development involves the construction of a 15-storey residential development including three (3) basement levels with a bulk excavation level of approximately 1.85 m.

#### 2 Murray Rose Avenue

The proposed development includes the construction of a 15-storey residential development with two (2) basement levels with a bulk excavation level of approximately 0.4 m.



## 1.2 Background

Austino Property Group are proposing a residential development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park. The proposed development has been assessed as a State Significant Development (SSD), and Secretary's Environmental Assessment Requirements (SEARs) have been issued for the site (SSD\_9403). The requirements for heritage are as follows:

- Prepare a Historical Archaeological Assessment (HAA) detailing the likely impacts and outline the proposed management and mitigation measures to protect and preserve the non-Aboriginal archaeology
- Prepare a Heritage Impact Statement (HIS) addressing impacts of the proposed development on any state or local heritage Items in the vicinity
- Prepare an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) identifying any cultural heritage values, impacts and mitigation measures.

Artefact Heritage have been engaged by Austino Property Group to undertake an ACHAR for a proposed development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park.

The proposal will be assessed under Part 4, Division 4.1 of the EP&A Act, which establishes an assessment and approval regime for SSD. Part 4, Division 4.1 applies to development that is declared to be SSD by a State Environmental Planning Policy (SEPP). Section 4.41 (previously section 89J(c)) of the EP&A Act specifies that approvals or permits under section 90 (AHIP) of the NPW Act 1974 are not required for approved SSD.

## 1.3 Proposed assessment methodology

The ACHAR, in compliance with SSD\_9403, will be completed in accordance with the relevant OEH guidelines:

- Guide to Investigating, Assessing and Reporting on Aboriginal Cultural Heritage in NSW
- Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Consultation Requirements for Proponents
- Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales

The initial stages of this process have been completed, and a list of Registered Aboriginal Parties (RAPs) has been compiled. The present letter provides the RAPs with project information and the proposed assessment methodology for review.

An Archaeological Survey Report (ASR) will be completed for the study area. The objectives of ASR will be to:

- Assess the Aboriginal cultural heritage values of the study area in accordance with the Code of Practice
- Identify Aboriginal archaeological and cultural heritage values that may be impacted by the proposed works
- Identify any further investigations, and mitigation and management measures that may be required, should the project proceed.

This ASR will include:

- A description of the project and the extent of the study area
- An archaeological significance assessment of the study area
- A description of the statutory requirements for the protection of Aboriginal heritage
- An impact assessment for recorded Aboriginal sites and areas of archaeological potential
- Provision of measures to avoid, minimise, and if necessary, offset the predicted impacts on Aboriginal heritage values.

An ACHAR would be completed, which assesses Aboriginal heritage significance of the study area, based on comments received from the RAPs and the results of the ASR. The potential impact of the proposed development on this significance would be assessed, and management recommendations would be developed accordingly. A draft copy of the ACHAR will be sent out for your review, prior to finalisation of the document.

I would like to ask you to review the above information and let me know if you have any comments to make. As mentioned, I would appreciate if you could provide comments by **30 October 2018**.

Thank you very much for your involvement in the project. If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Kind Regards,

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact Heritage

ryan.taddeucci@artefact.net.au 02 9518 8411



#### Figure 1: Map of study area







02/10/2018

Dear Desmond Dyer,

# Re: Residential development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park: Notification of Registered Aboriginal Stakeholders

Thank you for registering as a stakeholder for the 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park Aboriginal heritage assessment. I am looking forward to working with you on this project. Included below are details of the project, and the proposed assessment methodology for your review.

If you would like to comment on the Aboriginal cultural heritage of the study area or the proposed methodology, please provide your response by **30 October 2018**. Please address your response to me at:

Ryan Taddeucci Artefact Heritage Level 4, Building B, 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009

Or via email: ryan.taddeucci@artefact.net.au

In your response, please consider the following points:

- Do you know of any objects or places of value to Aboriginal people in the study area or locality?
- Are there any protocols that you would like incorporated into the assessment methodology?
- Are there any access requirements or restrictions that should be applied to the information you are providing?

Please also note that consultation will not necessarily involve paid engagement, as this is not a requirement of the consultation guidelines issued by the Office of Environment and Heritage.

## 1.1 Proposed development

#### 1 Murray Rose Avenue

The proposed development involves the construction of a 15-storey residential development including three (3) basement levels with a bulk excavation level of approximately 1.85 m.

#### 2 Murray Rose Avenue

The proposed development includes the construction of a 15-storey residential development with two (2) basement levels with a bulk excavation level of approximately 0.4 m.



## 1.2 Background

Austino Property Group are proposing a residential development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park. The proposed development has been assessed as a State Significant Development (SSD), and Secretary's Environmental Assessment Requirements (SEARs) have been issued for the site (SSD\_9403). The requirements for heritage are as follows:

- Prepare a Historical Archaeological Assessment (HAA) detailing the likely impacts and outline the proposed management and mitigation measures to protect and preserve the non-Aboriginal archaeology
- Prepare a Heritage Impact Statement (HIS) addressing impacts of the proposed development on any state or local heritage Items in the vicinity
- Prepare an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) identifying any cultural heritage values, impacts and mitigation measures.

Artefact Heritage have been engaged by Austino Property Group to undertake an ACHAR for a proposed development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park.

The proposal will be assessed under Part 4, Division 4.1 of the EP&A Act, which establishes an assessment and approval regime for SSD. Part 4, Division 4.1 applies to development that is declared to be SSD by a State Environmental Planning Policy (SEPP). Section 4.41 (previously section 89J(c)) of the EP&A Act specifies that approvals or permits under section 90 (AHIP) of the NPW Act 1974 are not required for approved SSD.

## 1.3 Proposed assessment methodology

The ACHAR, in compliance with SSD\_9403, will be completed in accordance with the relevant OEH guidelines:

- Guide to Investigating, Assessing and Reporting on Aboriginal Cultural Heritage in NSW
- Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Consultation Requirements for Proponents
- Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales

The initial stages of this process have been completed, and a list of Registered Aboriginal Parties (RAPs) has been compiled. The present letter provides the RAPs with project information and the proposed assessment methodology for review.

An Archaeological Survey Report (ASR) will be completed for the study area. The objectives of ASR will be to:

- Assess the Aboriginal cultural heritage values of the study area in accordance with the Code of Practice
- Identify Aboriginal archaeological and cultural heritage values that may be impacted by the proposed works
- Identify any further investigations, and mitigation and management measures that may be required, should the project proceed.

This ASR will include:

- A description of the project and the extent of the study area
- An archaeological significance assessment of the study area
- A description of the statutory requirements for the protection of Aboriginal heritage
- An impact assessment for recorded Aboriginal sites and areas of archaeological potential
- Provision of measures to avoid, minimise, and if necessary, offset the predicted impacts on Aboriginal heritage values.

An ACHAR would be completed, which assesses Aboriginal heritage significance of the study area, based on comments received from the RAPs and the results of the ASR. The potential impact of the proposed development on this significance would be assessed, and management recommendations would be developed accordingly. A draft copy of the ACHAR will be sent out for your review, prior to finalisation of the document.

I would like to ask you to review the above information and let me know if you have any comments to make. As mentioned, I would appreciate if you could provide comments by **30 October 2018**.

Thank you very much for your involvement in the project. If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Kind Regards,

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact Heritage

ryan.taddeucci@artefact.net.au 02 9518 8411



#### Figure 1: Map of study area







02/10/2018

Dear Jody Kulakowski,

# Re: Residential development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park: Notification of Registered Aboriginal Stakeholders

Thank you for registering as a stakeholder for the 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park Aboriginal heritage assessment. I am looking forward to working with you on this project. Included below are details of the project, and the proposed assessment methodology for your review.

If you would like to comment on the Aboriginal cultural heritage of the study area or the proposed methodology, please provide your response by **30 October 2018**. Please address your response to me at:

Ryan Taddeucci Artefact Heritage Level 4, Building B, 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009

Or via email: ryan.taddeucci@artefact.net.au

In your response, please consider the following points:

- Do you know of any objects or places of value to Aboriginal people in the study area or locality?
- Are there any protocols that you would like incorporated into the assessment methodology?
- Are there any access requirements or restrictions that should be applied to the information you are providing?

Please also note that consultation will not necessarily involve paid engagement, as this is not a requirement of the consultation guidelines issued by the Office of Environment and Heritage.

## 1.1 Proposed development

#### 1 Murray Rose Avenue

The proposed development involves the construction of a 15-storey residential development including three (3) basement levels with a bulk excavation level of approximately 1.85 m.

#### 2 Murray Rose Avenue

The proposed development includes the construction of a 15-storey residential development with two (2) basement levels with a bulk excavation level of approximately 0.4 m.



## 1.2 Background

Austino Property Group are proposing a residential development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park. The proposed development has been assessed as a State Significant Development (SSD), and Secretary's Environmental Assessment Requirements (SEARs) have been issued for the site (SSD\_9403). The requirements for heritage are as follows:

- Prepare a Historical Archaeological Assessment (HAA) detailing the likely impacts and outline the proposed management and mitigation measures to protect and preserve the non-Aboriginal archaeology
- Prepare a Heritage Impact Statement (HIS) addressing impacts of the proposed development on any state or local heritage Items in the vicinity
- Prepare an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) identifying any cultural heritage values, impacts and mitigation measures.

Artefact Heritage have been engaged by Austino Property Group to undertake an ACHAR for a proposed development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park.

The proposal will be assessed under Part 4, Division 4.1 of the EP&A Act, which establishes an assessment and approval regime for SSD. Part 4, Division 4.1 applies to development that is declared to be SSD by a State Environmental Planning Policy (SEPP). Section 4.41 (previously section 89J(c)) of the EP&A Act specifies that approvals or permits under section 90 (AHIP) of the NPW Act 1974 are not required for approved SSD.

## 1.3 Proposed assessment methodology

The ACHAR, in compliance with SSD\_9403, will be completed in accordance with the relevant OEH guidelines:

- Guide to Investigating, Assessing and Reporting on Aboriginal Cultural Heritage in NSW
- Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Consultation Requirements for Proponents
- Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales

The initial stages of this process have been completed, and a list of Registered Aboriginal Parties (RAPs) has been compiled. The present letter provides the RAPs with project information and the proposed assessment methodology for review.

An Archaeological Survey Report (ASR) will be completed for the study area. The objectives of ASR will be to:

- Assess the Aboriginal cultural heritage values of the study area in accordance with the Code of Practice
- Identify Aboriginal archaeological and cultural heritage values that may be impacted by the proposed works
- Identify any further investigations, and mitigation and management measures that may be required, should the project proceed.

This ASR will include:

- A description of the project and the extent of the study area
- An archaeological significance assessment of the study area
- A description of the statutory requirements for the protection of Aboriginal heritage
- An impact assessment for recorded Aboriginal sites and areas of archaeological potential
- Provision of measures to avoid, minimise, and if necessary, offset the predicted impacts on Aboriginal heritage values.

An ACHAR would be completed, which assesses Aboriginal heritage significance of the study area, based on comments received from the RAPs and the results of the ASR. The potential impact of the proposed development on this significance would be assessed, and management recommendations would be developed accordingly. A draft copy of the ACHAR will be sent out for your review, prior to finalisation of the document.

I would like to ask you to review the above information and let me know if you have any comments to make. As mentioned, I would appreciate if you could provide comments by **30 October 2018**.

Thank you very much for your involvement in the project. If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Kind Regards,

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact Heritage

ryan.taddeucci@artefact.net.au 02 9518 8411



#### Figure 1: Map of study area





Aboriginal Archaeology Service INC: 1400988 2/24 Goodwin Street Narrabeen <u>Mobile</u>: 0456 399 687 Email: aas.info@bigpond.com



10<sup>th</sup> October 2018

Artefact Pty Ltd

Attention: Ryan Taddeucci

# Project Information and proposed Assessment Methodology – Residential development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park

A.A.S agrees with the recommendations as documented in the methodology by Artefact Pty Ltd. A.A.S would like to see Aboriginal participation included through test excavations in the proposed areas.

AAS would like to see any artefacts collected displayed for all to see in the local library or local government building or reburied in close proximity of the area (outside new development).

Aboriginal Archaeology Service is seeking *involvement* in all consultation meetings and fieldwork for the above-mentioned project, as we are registered traditional owners of the area. AAS immediate family has lived in the area from 1897 and retains local and oral history on behalf of its first nation people. We have no objection to our information being provided to the Office of Environment and Heritage and the Local Aboriginal Land Council.

AAS can assist with input that can be incorporated into a written assessment of cultural values of the area. We are also able to provide fit staff to assist with work that may involve physical labour. We can provide our schedule of rates and copies of relevant certificates of currency for business insurances on request.

All correspondence should be emailed to <u>AAS.info@bigpond.com</u> and. The area is an important part of our culture and valued by our family.

Yours truly

den alles

Andrew Williams

## Ryan Taddeucci

From:	lee field <barrabyculturalservices@gmail.com></barrabyculturalservices@gmail.com>
Sent:	Wednesday, October 3, 2018 10:13 AM
То:	Ryan Taddeucci
Subject:	Re: Olympic Park ACHAR methodology
Attachments:	image001.jpg

Dear Ryan,

Barraby Cultural Services supports the methodology for this project.

Kind regards Lee Field

On Tue, Oct 2, 2018 at 4:43 PM Ryan Taddeucci <<u>ryan.taddeucci@artefact.net.au</u>> wrote:

02/10/2018

Dear Lee Field,

Re: Residential development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park: Notification of Registered Aboriginal Stakeholders

Thank you for registering as a stakeholder for the 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park Aboriginal heritage assessment. I am looking forward to working with you on this project. Included below are details of the project, and the proposed assessment methodology for your review.

If you would like to comment on the Aboriginal cultural heritage of the study area or the proposed methodology, please provide your response by **30 October 2018**. Please address your response to me at:

Ryan Taddeucci Artefact Heritage Level 4, Building B, 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009

Or via email: ryan.taddeucci@artefact.net.au

In your response, please consider the following points:

- Do you know of any objects or places of value to Aboriginal people in the study area or locality?
- Are there any protocols that you would like incorporated into the assessment methodology?
- Are there any access requirements or restrictions that should be applied to the information you are providing?

Please also note that consultation will not necessarily involve paid engagement, as this is not a requirement of the consultation guidelines issued by the Office of Environment and Heritage.

## **1.1** Proposed development

## 1 Murray Rose Avenue

The proposed development involves the construction of a 15-storey residential development including three (3) basement levels with a bulk excavation level of approximately 1.85 m.

## 2 Murray Rose Avenue

The proposed development includes the construction of a 15-storey residential development with two (2) basement levels with a bulk excavation level of approximately 0.4 m.

## 1.2 Background

Austino Property Group are proposing a residential development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park. The proposed development has been assessed as a State Significant Development (SSD), and Secretary's Environmental Assessment Requirements (SEARs) have been issued for the site (SSD\_9403). The requirements for heritage are as follows:

Prepare a Historical Archaeological Assessment (HAA) detailing the likely impacts and outline the proposed management and mitigation measures to protect and preserve the non-Aboriginal archaeology

Prepare a Heritage Impact Statement (HIS) addressing impacts of the proposed development on any state or local heritage Items in the vicinity

Prepare an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) identifying any cultural heritage values, impacts and mitigation measures.

Artefact Heritage have been engaged by Austino Property Group to undertake an ACHAR for a proposed development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park.

The proposal will be assessed under Part 4, Division 4.1 of the EP&A Act, which establishes an assessment and approval regime for SSD. Part 4, Division 4.1 applies to development that is declared to be SSD by a State Environmental Planning Policy (SEPP). Section 4.41 (previously section 89J(c)) of the EP&A Act specifies that approvals or permits under section 90 (AHIP) of the NPW Act 1974 are not required for approved SSD.

## 1.3 Proposed assessment methodology

The ACHAR, in compliance with SSD\_9403, will be completed in accordance with the relevant OEH guidelines:

- Guide to Investigating, Assessing and Reporting on Aboriginal Cultural Heritage in NSW
- Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Consultation Requirements for Proponents
- Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales

The initial stages of this process have been completed, and a list of Registered Aboriginal Parties (RAPs) has been compiled. The present letter provides the RAPs with project information and the proposed assessment methodology for review.

An Archaeological Survey Report (ASR) will be completed for the study area. The objectives of ASR will be to:

- Assess the Aboriginal cultural heritage values of the study area in accordance with the Code of Practice
- Identify Aboriginal archaeological and cultural heritage values that may be impacted by the proposed works

Identify any further investigations, and mitigation and management measures that may be required, should the project proceed.

This ASR will include:

- A description of the project and the extent of the study area
- An archaeological significance assessment of the study area
- A description of the statutory requirements for the protection of Aboriginal heritage
- An impact assessment for recorded Aboriginal sites and areas of archaeological potential
- Provision of measures to avoid, minimise, and if necessary, offset the predicted impacts on Aboriginal heritage values.

An ACHAR would be completed, which assesses Aboriginal heritage significance of the study area, based on comments received from the RAPs and the results of the ASR. The potential impact of the proposed development on this significance would be assessed, and management recommendations would be developed accordingly. A draft copy of the ACHAR will be sent out for your review, prior to finalisation of the document.

I would like to ask you to review the above information and let me know if you have any comments to make. As mentioned, I would appreciate if you could provide comments by **30 October 2018**.

Thank you very much for your involvement in the project. If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Kind Regards,

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact Heritage

ryan.taddeucci@artefact.net.au 02 9518 8411

Figure 1: Map of study area

The detail in type center for diployed. The de may have been



#### EMAIL: DARUGLANDOBSERVATIONS@GMAIL.COM PO BOX 173 ULLADULLA NSW 2539 MOBILE: 0413 687 279

16<sup>th</sup> October, 2018

Ryan Taddeucci Artefact Heritage Level 4, Building B, 35 Saunders Street PYRMONT NSW 2009

Email: ryan.taddeucci@artefact.net.au

Dear Ryan,

## **RE: 1 & 2 MURRAY ROSE AVENUE, SYDNEY OLYMPIC PARK**

Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment – Project Information & Proposed Methodology

Darug Land Observations Pty Ltd (DLO) has reviewed the project information and the proposed methodology, and supports the methodology for the proposed residential redevelopment of 1 & 2 Murray Rose Avenue, in Sydney Olympic Park, into a fifteen (15) storey residential building including basement levels.

In regards to the long-term storage of recovered artefacts, if any, we believe recovered artefacts should be reburied on Country (the study area).

Furthermore, we would like to be involved in the archaeological test excavations, site surveys and/or other forms of works to be carried out on the site.

Look forward to working with you on this project.

Yours sincerely,

Gamil Wotzuan

Jamie Workman Darug Land Observations Pty Ltd

liht

Uncle Gordon Workman Darug Elder
From:	arika jalomaki <yulayculturalservices@gmail.com></yulayculturalservices@gmail.com>
Sent:	Wednesday, October 3, 2018 10:14 AM
То:	Ryan Taddeucci
Subject:	Re: Olympic Park ACHAR methodology
Attachments:	image001.jpg

Dear Ryan,

Yulay Cultural services supports the methodology for this project

Kind Regards Arika Jalomaki

On Tue, Oct 2, 2018 at 4:43 PM Ryan Taddeucci <<u>ryan.taddeucci@artefact.net.au</u>> wrote:

02/10/2018

Dear Arika Jalomaki,

Re: Residential development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park: Notification of Registered Aboriginal Stakeholders

Thank you for registering as a stakeholder for the 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park Aboriginal heritage assessment. I am looking forward to working with you on this project. Included below are details of the project, and the proposed assessment methodology for your review.

If you would like to comment on the Aboriginal cultural heritage of the study area or the proposed methodology, please provide your response by **30 October 2018**. Please address your response to me at:

Ryan Taddeucci Artefact Heritage Level 4, Building B, 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009

Or via email: ryan.taddeucci@artefact.net.au

In your response, please consider the following points:

- Do you know of any objects or places of value to Aboriginal people in the study area or locality?
- Are there any protocols that you would like incorporated into the assessment methodology?
- Are there any access requirements or restrictions that should be applied to the information you are providing?

Please also note that consultation will not necessarily involve paid engagement, as this is not a requirement of the consultation guidelines issued by the Office of Environment and Heritage.

# **1.1** Proposed development

## 1 Murray Rose Avenue

The proposed development involves the construction of a 15-storey residential development including three (3) basement levels with a bulk excavation level of approximately 1.85 m.

## 2 Murray Rose Avenue

The proposed development includes the construction of a 15-storey residential development with two (2) basement levels with a bulk excavation level of approximately 0.4 m.

# 1.2 Background

Austino Property Group are proposing a residential development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park. The proposed development has been assessed as a State Significant Development (SSD), and Secretary's Environmental Assessment Requirements (SEARs) have been issued for the site (SSD\_9403). The requirements for heritage are as follows:

Prepare a Historical Archaeological Assessment (HAA) detailing the likely impacts and outline the proposed management and mitigation measures to protect and preserve the non-Aboriginal archaeology

Prepare a Heritage Impact Statement (HIS) addressing impacts of the proposed development on any state or local heritage Items in the vicinity

Prepare an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) identifying any cultural heritage values, impacts and mitigation measures.

Artefact Heritage have been engaged by Austino Property Group to undertake an ACHAR for a proposed development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park.

The proposal will be assessed under Part 4, Division 4.1 of the EP&A Act, which establishes an assessment and approval regime for SSD. Part 4, Division 4.1 applies to development that is declared to be SSD by a State Environmental Planning Policy (SEPP). Section 4.41 (previously section 89J(c)) of the EP&A Act specifies that approvals or permits under section 90 (AHIP) of the NPW Act 1974 are not required for approved SSD.

# 1.3 Proposed assessment methodology

The ACHAR, in compliance with SSD\_9403, will be completed in accordance with the relevant OEH guidelines:

- Guide to Investigating, Assessing and Reporting on Aboriginal Cultural Heritage in NSW
- Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Consultation Requirements for Proponents
- Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales

The initial stages of this process have been completed, and a list of Registered Aboriginal Parties (RAPs) has been compiled. The present letter provides the RAPs with project information and the proposed assessment methodology for review.

An Archaeological Survey Report (ASR) will be completed for the study area. The objectives of ASR will be to:

- Assess the Aboriginal cultural heritage values of the study area in accordance with the Code of Practice
- Identify Aboriginal archaeological and cultural heritage values that may be impacted by the proposed works

Identify any further investigations, and mitigation and management measures that may be required, should the project proceed.

This ASR will include:

- A description of the project and the extent of the study area
- An archaeological significance assessment of the study area
- A description of the statutory requirements for the protection of Aboriginal heritage
- An impact assessment for recorded Aboriginal sites and areas of archaeological potential
- Provision of measures to avoid, minimise, and if necessary, offset the predicted impacts on Aboriginal heritage values.

An ACHAR would be completed, which assesses Aboriginal heritage significance of the study area, based on comments received from the RAPs and the results of the ASR. The potential impact of the proposed development on this significance would be assessed, and management recommendations would be developed accordingly. A draft copy of the ACHAR will be sent out for your review, prior to finalisation of the document.

I would like to ask you to review the above information and let me know if you have any comments to make. As mentioned, I would appreciate if you could provide comments by **30 October 2018**.

Thank you very much for your involvement in the project. If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Kind Regards,

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact Heritage

ryan.taddeucci@artefact.net.au 02 9518 8411

Figure 1: Map of study area

The detail in operand is a diployed. The decay have been

From:	Barking Owl Aboriginal Corporation <barkingowlcorp@gmail.com></barkingowlcorp@gmail.com>
Sent:	Monday, October 29, 2018 6:18 PM
То:	Ryan Taddeucci
Subject:	Re: Olympic Park ACHAR methodology

Dear Ryan

Myself and the members of Barking Owl Aboriginal Corporation have agreed and are satisfied with the methodology **RE: 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue**, **Olympic Park** and have no further comments or recommendations.

Kind regards

Jody Kulakowski

Director

Barking Owl Aboriginal Corporation

barkingowlcorp@gmail.com

On 2 Oct 2018, at 4:43 pm, Ryan Taddeucci <ryan.taddeucci@artefact.net.au> wrote:

02/10/2018

Dear Jody Kulakowski,

#### Re: Residential development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park: Notification of Registered Aboriginal Stakeholders

Thank you for registering as a stakeholder for the 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park Aboriginal heritage assessment. I am looking forward to working with you on this project. Included below are details of the project, and the proposed assessment methodology for your review.

If you would like to comment on the Aboriginal cultural heritage of the study area or the proposed methodology, please provide your response by **30 October 2018**. Please address your response to me at:

Ryan Taddeucci Artefact Heritage Level 4, Building B, 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009

Or via email: <u>ryan.taddeucci@artefact.net.au</u>

In your response, please consider the following points:

- Do you know of any objects or places of value to Aboriginal people in the study area or locality?
- Are there any protocols that you would like incorporated into the assessment methodology?
- Are there any access requirements or restrictions that should be applied to the information you are providing?

Please also note that consultation will not necessarily involve paid engagement, as this is not a requirement of the consultation guidelines issued by the Office of Environment and Heritage.

## 1.1 Proposed development

#### 1 Murray Rose Avenue

The proposed development involves the construction of a 15-storey residential development including three (3) basement levels with a bulk excavation level of approximately 1.85 m.

#### 2 Murray Rose Avenue

The proposed development includes the construction of a 15-storey residential development with two (2) basement levels with a bulk excavation level of approximately 0.4 m.

## 1.2 Background

Austino Property Group are proposing a residential development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park. The proposed development has been assessed as a State Significant Development (SSD), and Secretary's Environmental Assessment Requirements (SEARs) have been issued for the site (SSD\_9403). The requirements for heritage are as follows:

- Prepare a Historical Archaeological Assessment (HAA) detailing the likely impacts and outline the proposed management and mitigation measures to protect and preserve the non-Aboriginal archaeology
- Prepare a Heritage Impact Statement (HIS) addressing impacts of the proposed development on any state or local heritage Items in the vicinity
- Prepare an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) identifying any cultural heritage values, impacts and mitigation measures.

Artefact Heritage have been engaged by Austino Property Group to undertake an ACHAR for a proposed development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park.

The proposal will be assessed under Part 4, Division 4.1 of the EP&A Act, which establishes an assessment and approval regime for SSD. Part 4, Division 4.1 applies to development that is declared to be SSD by a State Environmental Planning Policy (SEPP). Section 4.41 (previously section 89J(c)) of the EP&A Act specifies that approvals or permits under section 90 (AHIP) of the NPW Act 1974 are not required for approved SSD.

# 1.3 Proposed assessment methodology

The ACHAR, in compliance with SSD\_9403, will be completed in accordance with the relevant OEH guidelines:

- Guide to Investigating, Assessing and Reporting on Aboriginal Cultural Heritage in NSW
- Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Consultation Requirements for Proponents
- Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales

The initial stages of this process have been completed, and a list of Registered Aboriginal Parties (RAPs) has been compiled. The present letter provides the RAPs with project information and the proposed assessment methodology for review.

An Archaeological Survey Report (ASR) will be completed for the study area. The objectives of ASR will be to:

- Assess the Aboriginal cultural heritage values of the study area in accordance with the Code of Practice
- Identify Aboriginal archaeological and cultural heritage values that may be impacted by the proposed works
- Identify any further investigations, and mitigation and management measures that may be required, should the project proceed.

This ASR will include:

- A description of the project and the extent of the study area
- An archaeological significance assessment of the study area
- A description of the statutory requirements for the protection of Aboriginal heritage
- An impact assessment for recorded Aboriginal sites and areas of archaeological potential
- Provision of measures to avoid, minimise, and if necessary, offset the predicted impacts on Aboriginal heritage values.

An ACHAR would be completed, which assesses Aboriginal heritage significance of the study area, based on comments received from the RAPs and the results of the ASR. The potential impact of the proposed development on this significance would be assessed, and management recommendations would be developed accordingly. A draft copy of the ACHAR will be sent out for your review, prior to finalisation of the document.

I would like to ask you to review the above information and let me know if you have any comments to make. As mentioned, I would appreciate if you could provide comments by **30 October 2018**.

Thank you very much for your involvement in the project. If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Kind Regards,

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact Heritage

ryan.taddeucci@artefact.net.au 02 9518 8411

Figure 1: Map of study area



Document Path: C:\Users\GIS\Desktop\GIS\GIS\_Mapping\18117\_Olympic\_Park\MXD\Study\_area.mxd

Barking Owl Aboriginal Corporation barkingowlcorp@gmail.com



DARUG CUSTODIAN ABORIGINAL CORPORATION

PO BOX 81 WINDSOR 2756 PHONE: 0245775181 FAX: 0245775098 MOBILE: 0415770163 Leanne Watson 0414962766 Justine Coplin EMAIL: mulgokiwi@bigpond.com / justinecoplin@optusnet.com.au

Attention: artefact

Subject: 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park:

Dear Ryan

Our group is a non- profit organisation that has been active for over forty years in Western Sydney, we are a Darug community group with over three hundred members. The main aim in our constitution is the care of Darug sites, places, wildlife and to promote our culture and provide education on the Darug history.

Our group promotes Darug Culture and works on numerous projects that are culturally based as a proud and diverse group. It has been discussed by our group and with many consultants and researches that our history is generic and is usually from an early colonists perspective or solely based on archaeology and sites. These histories are adequate but they lack the people's stories and parts of important events and connections of the Darug people and also other Aboriginal people that now call this area home and have done so for numerous generations.

This area is significant to the Darug people due to the evidence of continued occupation, within close proximity to this project site there is a complex of significant sites.

Landscapes and landforms are significant to us for the information that they hold and the connection to Darug people. Aboriginal people (Darug) had a complex lifestyle that was based on respect and belonging to the land, all aspects of life and survival did not impact on the land but helped to care for and conserve land and the sustenance that the land provided. As Darug people moved through the land there were no impacts left, although

there was evidence of movement and lifestyle, the people moved through areas with knowledge of their areas

and followed signs that were left in the landscape. Darug people knew which areas were not to be entered and respected the areas that were sacred.

Knowledge of culture, lifestyle and lore have been part of Darug people's lives for thousands of years, this was passed down to the next generations and this started with birth and continued for a lifetime. Darug people spent a lifetime learning and as people grew older they passed through stages of knowledge, elders became elders with the learning of stages of knowledge not by their age, being an elder is part of the kinship system this was a very complicated system based on respect.

Darug sites are all connected, our country has a complex of sites that hold our heritage and past history, evidence of the Darug lifestyle and occupation are all across our country, due to the rapid development of Sydney many of our sites have been destroyed, our sites are thousands of years old and within the short period of time that Australia has been developed pre contact our sites have disappeared.

The Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents Section 4.1.8 refers to "Aboriginal organisations representing Aboriginal people who hold cultural knowledge". Recent consultation meetings have revealed that many of these Aboriginal organisations and individuals do not hold cultural knowledge of the Western Sydney area. The increasing involvement of such parties in cultural heritage management means that genuine local Aboriginal organisations are unable to properly care for our cultural heritage.

Many Aboriginal organisations listed in the OEH response letter do not contribute to the Aboriginal community of Western Sydney. Individuals listed in the OEH response letter do not represent the community and while they may be consulted with, should not be employed for their own personal financial benefit.

Our organisation is committed to providing benefits back to our local Aboriginal community through such measures as funding the local Aboriginal juniors' touch football team, painting classes for the local children and donating money to various charities. Employment in cultural heritage activities is source of income that organisations such as ours can use to contribute to beneficial activities and support within the community.

Darug custodian Aboriginal Corporation's site officers have knowledge of Darug land, Darug Culture,Oral histories, landforms, sites, Darug history, wildlife, flora and legislative requirements. We have worked with consultants and developers for many years in Western Sydney (Darug Land) for conservation, site works, developments and interpretation/education strategie

Darug Custodian Aboriginal Corporation have received and reviewed the report for 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park:

We support the recommendations set out in this report.

Please contact us with all further enquiries on the above contacts.

Regards

gp--

Justine Coplin

From:	lilly carroll <didgengunawalclan@yahoo.com.au></didgengunawalclan@yahoo.com.au>
Sent:	Tuesday, October 2, 2018 6:05 PM
То:	Ryan Taddeucci
Subject:	Re: Olympic Park ACHAR methodology

Hi Ryan,

DNC has read the methodology and agrees to all proposals,

Kind regards Paul Boyd & Lilly Carroll Directors DNC

## Sent from Yahoo Mail for iPhone

On Tuesday, October 2, 2018, 4:43 pm, Ryan Taddeucci <ryan.taddeucci@artefact.net.au> wrote:

02/10/2018

Dear Lilly Carroll,

Re: Residential development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park: Notification of Registered Aboriginal Stakeholders

Thank you for registering as a stakeholder for the 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park Aboriginal heritage assessment. I am looking forward to working with you on this project. Included below are details of the project, and the proposed assessment methodology for your review.

If you would like to comment on the Aboriginal cultural heritage of the study area or the proposed methodology, please provide your response by **30 October 2018**. Please address your response to me at:

Ryan Taddeucci Artefact Heritage Level 4, Building B, 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009

Or via email: <a href="mailto:ryan.taddeucci@artefact.net.au">ryan.taddeucci@artefact.net.au</a>

In your response, please consider the following points:

Do you know of any objects or places of value to Aboriginal people in the study area or locality?

Are there any protocols that you would like incorporated into the assessment methodology?

Are there any access requirements or restrictions that should be applied to the information you are providing?

Please also note that consultation will not necessarily involve paid engagement, as this is not a requirement of the consultation guidelines issued by the Office of Environment and Heritage.

# 1.1 Proposed development

## 1 Murray Rose Avenue

The proposed development involves the construction of a 15-storey residential development including three (3) basement levels with a bulk excavation level of approximately 1.85 m.

## 2 Murray Rose Avenue

The proposed development includes the construction of a 15-storey residential development with two (2) basement levels with a bulk excavation level of approximately 0.4 m.

# 1.2 Background

Austino Property Group are proposing a residential development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park. The proposed development has been assessed as a State Significant Development (SSD), and Secretary's Environmental Assessment Requirements (SEARs) have been issued for the site (SSD\_9403). The requirements for heritage are as follows:

Prepare a Historical Archaeological Assessment (HAA) detailing the likely impacts and outline the proposed management and mitigation measures to protect and preserve the non-Aboriginal archaeology

Prepare a Heritage Impact Statement (HIS) addressing impacts of the proposed development on any state or local heritage Items in the vicinity

Prepare an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) identifying any cultural heritage values, impacts and mitigation measures.

Artefact Heritage have been engaged by Austino Property Group to undertake an ACHAR for a proposed development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park.

The proposal will be assessed under Part 4, Division 4.1 of the EP&A Act, which establishes an assessment and approval regime for SSD. Part 4, Division 4.1 applies to development that is declared to be SSD by a State Environmental Planning Policy (SEPP). Section 4.41 (previously section 89J(c)) of the EP&A Act specifies that approvals or permits under section 90 (AHIP) of the NPW Act 1974 are not required for approved SSD.

# **1.3** Proposed assessment methodology

The ACHAR, in compliance with SSD\_9403, will be completed in accordance with the relevant OEH guidelines:

Guide to Investigating, Assessing and Reporting on Aboriginal Cultural Heritage in NSW

- Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Consultation Requirements for Proponents
- Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales

The initial stages of this process have been completed, and a list of Registered Aboriginal Parties (RAPs) has been compiled. The present letter provides the RAPs with project information and the proposed assessment methodology for review.

An Archaeological Survey Report (ASR) will be completed for the study area. The objectives of ASR will be to:

Assess the Aboriginal cultural heritage values of the study area in accordance with the Code of Practice

Identify Aboriginal archaeological and cultural heritage values that may be impacted by the proposed works

Identify any further investigations, and mitigation and management measures that may be required, should the project proceed.

This ASR will include:

- A description of the project and the extent of the study area
- An archaeological significance assessment of the study area
- A description of the statutory requirements for the protection of Aboriginal heritage
- An impact assessment for recorded Aboriginal sites and areas of archaeological potential
- Provision of measures to avoid, minimise, and if necessary, offset the predicted impacts on Aboriginal heritage values.

An ACHAR would be completed, which assesses Aboriginal heritage significance of the study area, based on comments received from the RAPs and the results of the ASR. The potential impact of the proposed development on this significance would be assessed, and management recommendations would be developed accordingly. A draft copy of the ACHAR will be sent out for your review, prior to finalisation of the document.

I would like to ask you to review the above information and let me know if you have any comments to make. As mentioned, I would appreciate if you could provide comments by **30 October 2018**.

Thank you very much for your involvement in the project. If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Kind Regards,

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact Heritage

ryan.taddeucci@artefact.net.au 02 9518 8411

### Figure 1: Map of study area



Document Path: C:\Users\GIS\Desktop\GIS\GIS\_Mapping\18117\_Olympic\_Park\MXD\Study\_area.mxd

From:Corroboree Aboriginal Corporation <corroboreecorp@bigpond.com>Sent:Saturday, October 6, 2018 6:56 PMTo:Ryan TaddeucciSubject:Re: Olympic Park ACHAR methodology

Hi Ryan

We see no issues with the methodology. Thanks.

Kind regards Marilyn Carroll-Johnson

Director CAC

On 2 Oct 2018, at 4:43 pm, Ryan Taddeucci <<u>ryan.taddeucci@artefact.net.au</u>> wrote:

02/10/2018

Dear Marilyn Caroll-Johnson,

Re: Residential development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park: Notification of Registered Aboriginal Stakeholders

Thank you for registering as a stakeholder for the 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park Aboriginal heritage assessment. I am looking forward to working with you on this project. Included below are details of the project, and the proposed assessment methodology for your review.

If you would like to comment on the Aboriginal cultural heritage of the study area or the proposed methodology, please provide your response by **30 October 2018**. Please address your response to me at:

Ryan Taddeucci Artefact Heritage Level 4, Building B, 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009

Or via email: ryan.taddeucci@artefact.net.au

In your response, please consider the following points:

- Do you know of any objects or places of value to Aboriginal people in the study area or locality?
- Are there any protocols that you would like incorporated into the assessment methodology?
- Are there any access requirements or restrictions that should be applied to the information you are providing?

Please also note that consultation will not necessarily involve paid engagement, as this is not a requirement of the consultation guidelines issued by the Office of Environment and Heritage.

## 1.1 Proposed development

#### 1 Murray Rose Avenue

The proposed development involves the construction of a 15-storey residential development including three (3) basement levels with a bulk excavation level of approximately 1.85 m.

#### 2 Murray Rose Avenue

The proposed development includes the construction of a 15-storey residential development with two (2) basement levels with a bulk excavation level of approximately 0.4 m.

## 1.2 Background

Austino Property Group are proposing a residential development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park. The proposed development has been assessed as a State Significant Development (SSD), and Secretary's Environmental Assessment Requirements (SEARs) have been issued for the site (SSD\_9403). The requirements for heritage are as follows:

Prepare a Historical Archaeological Assessment (HAA) detailing the likely impacts and outline the proposed management and mitigation measures to protect and preserve the non-Aboriginal archaeology

Prepare a Heritage Impact Statement (HIS) addressing impacts of the proposed development on any state or local heritage Items in the vicinity

Prepare an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) identifying any cultural heritage values, impacts and mitigation measures.

Artefact Heritage have been engaged by Austino Property Group to undertake an ACHAR for a proposed development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park.

The proposal will be assessed under Part 4, Division 4.1 of the EP&A Act, which establishes an assessment and approval regime for SSD. Part 4, Division 4.1 applies to development that is declared to be SSD by a State Environmental Planning Policy (SEPP). Section 4.41 (previously section 89J(c)) of the EP&A Act specifies that approvals or permits under section 90 (AHIP) of the NPW Act 1974 are not required for approved SSD.

## 1.3 Proposed assessment methodology

The ACHAR, in compliance with SSD\_9403, will be completed in accordance with the relevant OEH guidelines:

- Guide to Investigating, Assessing and Reporting on Aboriginal Cultural Heritage in NSW
- Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Consultation Requirements for Proponents
- Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales

The initial stages of this process have been completed, and a list of Registered Aboriginal Parties (RAPs) has been compiled. The present letter provides the RAPs with project information and the proposed assessment methodology for review.

An Archaeological Survey Report (ASR) will be completed for the study area. The objectives of ASR will be to:

- Assess the Aboriginal cultural heritage values of the study area in accordance with the Code of Practice
- Identify Aboriginal archaeological and cultural heritage values that may be impacted by the proposed works
- J Identify any further investigations, and mitigation and management measures that may be required, should the project proceed.

This ASR will include:

- A description of the project and the extent of the study area
- An archaeological significance assessment of the study area
- A description of the statutory requirements for the protection of Aboriginal heritage
- An impact assessment for recorded Aboriginal sites and areas of archaeological potential
- Provision of measures to avoid, minimise, and if necessary, offset the predicted impacts on Aboriginal heritage values.

An ACHAR would be completed, which assesses Aboriginal heritage significance of the study area, based on comments received from the RAPs and the results of the ASR. The potential impact of the proposed development on this significance would be assessed, and management recommendations would be developed accordingly. A draft copy of the ACHAR will be sent out for your review, prior to finalisation of the document.

I would like to ask you to review the above information and let me know if you have any comments to make. As mentioned, I would appreciate if you could provide comments by **30 October 2018**.

Thank you very much for your involvement in the project. If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Kind Regards,

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact Heritage

ryan.taddeucci@artefact.net.au 02 9518 8411

Figure 1: Map of study area <image001.jpg>

From:	WIDESCOPE . <widescope.group@live.com></widescope.group@live.com>
Sent:	Sunday, October 7, 2018 6:36 PM
То:	Ryan Taddeucci
Subject:	RE: Olympic Park ACHAR methodology

Hi Ryan

Thank you, Widescope has reviewed the proposed methodology report and are in agreement with the recommendations provided

Regards

Steven Hickey

From: Ryan Taddeucci <ryan.taddeucci@artefact.net.au>
Sent: Tuesday, October 2, 2018 4:43:35 PM
To: Widescope.group@live.com
Subject: Olympic Park ACHAR methodology

### 02/10/2018

Dear Steven Hickey,

Re: Residential development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park: Notification of Registered Aboriginal Stakeholders

Thank you for registering as a stakeholder for the 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Olympic Park Aboriginal heritage assessment. I am looking forward to working with you on this project. Included below are details of the project, and the proposed assessment methodology for your review.

If you would like to comment on the Aboriginal cultural heritage of the study area or the proposed methodology, please provide your response by **30 October 2018**. Please address your response to me at:

Ryan Taddeucci Artefact Heritage Level 4, Building B, 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009 Or via email: <u>ryan.taddeucci@artefact.net.au</u> In your response, please consider the following points: J Do you know of any objects or places of value to Aboriginal people in the study area or locality? J Are there any protocols that you would like incorporated into the assessment methodology? Are there any access requirements or restrictions that should be applied to the information you are providing?

Please also note that consultation will not necessarily involve paid engagement, as this is not a requirement of the consultation guidelines issued by the Office of Environment and Heritage.

# 1.1 Proposed development

### 1 Murray Rose Avenue

The proposed development involves the construction of a 15-storey residential development including three (3) basement levels with a bulk excavation level of approximately 1.85 m.

#### 2 Murray Rose Avenue

The proposed development includes the construction of a 15-storey residential development with two (2) basement levels with a bulk excavation level of approximately 0.4 m.

# 1.2 Background

Austino Property Group are proposing a residential development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park. The proposed development has been assessed as a State Significant Development (SSD), and Secretary's Environmental Assessment Requirements (SEARs) have been issued for the site (SSD\_9403). The requirements for heritage are as follows:

- Prepare a Historical Archaeological Assessment (HAA) detailing the likely impacts and outline the proposed management and mitigation measures to protect and preserve the non-Aboriginal archaeology
- Prepare a Heritage Impact Statement (HIS) addressing impacts of the proposed development on any state or local heritage Items in the vicinity
- Prepare an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) identifying any cultural heritage values, impacts and mitigation measures.

Artefact Heritage have been engaged by Austino Property Group to undertake an ACHAR for a proposed development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park.

The proposal will be assessed under Part 4, Division 4.1 of the EP&A Act, which establishes an assessment and approval regime for SSD. Part 4, Division 4.1 applies to development that is declared to be SSD by a State Environmental Planning Policy (SEPP). Section 4.41 (previously section 89J(c)) of the EP&A Act specifies that approvals or permits under section 90 (AHIP) of the NPW Act 1974 are not required for approved SSD.

## 1.3 Proposed assessment methodology

The ACHAR, in compliance with SSD\_9403, will be completed in accordance with the relevant OEH guidelines:

- Guide to Investigating, Assessing and Reporting on Aboriginal Cultural Heritage in NSW
- Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Consultation Requirements for Proponents
- Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales

The initial stages of this process have been completed, and a list of Registered Aboriginal Parties (RAPs) has been compiled. The present letter provides the RAPs with project information and the proposed assessment methodology for review.

An Archaeological Survey Report (ASR) will be completed for the study area. The objectives of ASR will be to:

Assess the Aboriginal cultural heritage values of the study area in accordance with the Code of Practice

Identify Aboriginal archaeological and cultural heritage values that may be impacted by the proposed works

Identify any further investigations, and mitigation and management measures that may be required, should the project proceed.

This ASR will include:

- A description of the project and the extent of the study area
- An archaeological significance assessment of the study area
- A description of the statutory requirements for the protection of Aboriginal heritage
- An impact assessment for recorded Aboriginal sites and areas of archaeological potential
- Provision of measures to avoid, minimise, and if necessary, offset the predicted impacts on Aboriginal heritage values.

An ACHAR would be completed, which assesses Aboriginal heritage significance of the study area, based on comments received from the RAPs and the results of the ASR. The potential impact of the proposed development on this significance would be assessed, and management recommendations would be developed accordingly. A draft copy of the ACHAR will be sent out for your review, prior to finalisation of the document.

I would like to ask you to review the above information and let me know if you have any comments to make. As mentioned, I would appreciate if you could provide comments by **30 October 2018**.

Thank you very much for your involvement in the project. If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Kind Regards, Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant Artefact Heritage ryan.taddeucci@artefact.net.au 02 9518 8411

Figure 1: Map of study area



Document Path: C:\Users\GIS\Desktop\GIS\GIS\_Mapping\18117\_Olympic\_Park\MXD\Study\_area.mxd

From:	Ryan Taddeucci
Sent:	Tuesday, October 30, 2018 10:55 AM
То:	'Cultural Heritage'
Subject:	Section 4.1.6 - Aboriginal heritage assessment for 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park.
Attachments:	AD_PAG19Sep18ST062.pdf

To whom this may concern,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Auburn region. The purpose of the community consultation is to assist the proponent in the preparation of an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report to satisfy the requirements of SEARs SSD\_9403.

In accordance with Section 4.1.6 of the OEH Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Consultation Requirements for Proponents (2010), please find below a list of Registered Stakeholders for the project.

The registered Aboriginal stakeholders include:

0 0	
Lilly Carroll	Didge Ngunawal Clan
Amanda Dezwart	Amanda Hickey Cultural Services
Gordon Workman	Darug Boorooberongal Elders Aboriginal Corporation
Jesse Johnson	Muragadi Heritage Indigenous Corporation
Scott Franks	Tocomwall
Andrew Williams	Aboriginal Archaeology Service Incorporated
Justine Coplin	Darug Custodian Aboriginal Corporation
Lee Field	Barraby Cultural Services
Arika Jalomaki	Yulay Cultural Services
Bo Field Yurrandaali	Cultural Services
Carolyn Hickey	A1 Indigenous Services
Anna Workman	Darug Land Observations
Steven Hickey	Widescope Indigenous Group
Desmond Dyer	Darug Aboriginal Landcare Inc
Jody Kulakowski	Barking Owl Aboriginal Corporation
Philip Boney	Wailwan Aborigianl Diging Group

Also included is a copy of the published Step 4.1.3 advertisement providing an invitation to register interest in the project. The advertisement was published in the Parramatta Advertiser on 19 September 2018.

If you would like to discuss any of these details, or have any comments, please do not hesitate to contact me.

#### Yours sincerely,

Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant

#### ARTEFACT

Telephone: **(02) 9518 8411** Mobile: 0423 381 482 Address: Level 4, Building B, 35 Saunders Street, Pyrmont NSW 2009 Web: <u>www.artefact.net.au</u>

Cultural Heritage Management | Archaeology | Heritage Interpretation

We acknowledge the Traditional Custodians of Country in which we live and work, and pay our respects to them, their culture and their Elders past, present and future

Notice: This message contains privileged and confidential information intended only for the use of the addressee. If you are not the intended recipient you must not disseminate, copy or take any action in reliance upon it. If you received this in error, please notify us immediately.

From:	Amanda Hickey <amandahickey@live.com.au></amandahickey@live.com.au>
Sent:	Tuesday, October 30, 2018 8:27 PM
То:	Ryan Taddeucci
Subject:	Re: 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue: Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) and Archaeological Survey Report (ASR).

Hi Ryan AHCS is happy with the ACHAR and ASR for 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park. AHCS holds cultural knowledge towards determining indigenous artefacts and holds cultural knowledge to the land Thank you for your email If there is anything you need please let me know Amanda Hickey from AHCS

Get Outlook for Android

From: Ryan Taddeucci <ryan.taddeucci@artefact.net.au>
Sent: Tuesday, October 30, 2018 4:24:02 PM
To: Ryan Taddeucci
Subject: 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue: Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) and Archaeological Survey Report (ASR).

Hi everyone,

Please find attached draft copies of the ACHAR and ASR for 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park.

The assessment has been completed in compliance with the Secretary's Environmental Assessment Requirements (SSD\_9403).

Artefact Heritage is seeking any additional information on the cultural value to Aboriginal people, or places of cultural value, related to the subject area. Please note the areas in the report which have been highlighted, Section 8.0 of the ACHAR in particular.

If you have any comments please provide your response by **Tuesday 27 November 2018**.

Please let me know if you have any questions,

Cheers, Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant

#### ARTEFACT

Telephone: **(02) 9518 8411** Mobile: 0423 381 482 Address: Level 4, Building B, 35 Saunders Street, Pyrmont NSW 2009 Web: <u>www.artefact.net.au</u>

#### Cultural Heritage Management | Archaeology | Heritage Interpretation

#### • We acknowledge the Traditional Custodians of Country in which we live and work, and pay our respects to them, their culture and their Elders past, present and future

Notice: This message contains privileged and confidential information intended only for the use of the addressee. If you are not the intended recipient you must not disseminate, copy or take any action in reliance upon it. If you received this in error, please notify us immediately.

From:	Ryan Taddeucci
Sent:	Wednesday, October 10, 2018 12:42 PM
То:	'OEH ROD GSB Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Mailbox'
Subject:	Section 4.1.6 - Aboriginal heritage assessment for 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park.
Attachments:	AD_PAG19Sep18ST062.pdf

To whom this may concern,

Artefact Heritage has been engaged by Austino Property Group to complete an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) for an area identified as 1 and 2 Murray Avenue, Olympic Park. Austino Property Group are working on a new residential development at Olympic Park under SEARs SSD\_9403.

Austino Property Group wishes to consult with any Aboriginal persons or organisations that hold cultural knowledge relevant to determining the significance of Aboriginal objects and places in the Auburn region. The purpose of the community consultation is to assist the proponent in the preparation of an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report to satisfy the requirements of SEARs SSD\_9403.

In accordance with Section 4.1.6 of the OEH Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Consultation Requirements for Proponents (2010), please find below a list of Registered Stakeholders for the project.

The 17 registered Aboriginal stakeholders include: Lilly Carroll **Didge Ngunawal Clan** Amanda Hickey Cultural Services Amanda Dezwart Marilyn Caroll-Johnson Corroboree Aboriginal Corporation Gordon Workman Darug Boorooberongal Elders Aboriginal Corporation Muragadi Heritage Indigenous Corporation Jesse Johnson Scott Franks Tocomwall Aboriginal Archaeology Service Incorporated Andrew Williams Darug Custodian Aboriginal Corporation Justine Coplin Lee Field Barraby Cultural Services Arika Jalomaki **Yulay Cultural Services Cultural Services** Bo Field Yurrandaali Carolyn Hickey A1 Indigenous Services Darug Land Observations Anna Workman Widescope Indigenous Group Steven Hickey Darug Aboriginal Landcare Inc Desmond Dyer Jody Kulakowski Barking Owl Aboriginal Corporation Wailwan Aborigianl Diging Group Philip Boney

Metropolitan LALC—did not respond to the registration request but have been placed on the consultation list as the study area is within their government boundary.

Also included is a copy of the published Step 4.1.3 advertisement providing an invitation to register interest in the project. The advertisement was published in the Parramatta Advertiser on 14 September 2018.

If you would like to discuss any of these details, or have any comments, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely, Ryan Taddeucci Senior Heritage Consultant

ARTEFACT

Telephone: **(02) 9518 8411** Mobile: 0423 381 482 Address: Level 4, Building B, 35 Saunders Street, Pyrmont NSW 2009 Web: <u>www.artefact.net.au</u>

Cultural Heritage Management | Archaeology | Heritage Interpretation

We acknowledge the Traditional Custodians of Country in which we live and work, and pay our respects to them, their culture and their Elders past, present and future

Notice: This message contains privileged and confidential information intended only for the use of the addressee. If you are not the intended recipient you must not disseminate, copy or take any action in reliance upon it. If you received this in error, please notify us immediately.

From:	Ryan Taddeucci
Sent:	Tuesday, October 30, 2018 4:24 PM
То:	Ryan Taddeucci
Subject:	1&2 Murray Rose Avenue: Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) and Archaeological Survey Report (ASR).
Attachments:	ASR-18177-Olympic Park-Final-181030.pdf; ACHAR_18177_Olympic Park_Draft_181030.pdf

Hi everyone,

Please find attached draft copies of the ACHAR and ASR for 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park.

The assessment has been completed in compliance with the Secretary's Environmental Assessment Requirements (SSD\_9403).

Artefact Heritage is seeking any additional information on the cultural value to Aboriginal people, or places of cultural value, related to the subject area. Please note the areas in the report which have been highlighted, Section 8.0 of the ACHAR in particular.

If you have any comments please provide your response by **Tuesday 27 November 2018**.

Please let me know if you have any questions,

**Cheers, Ryan Taddeucci** Senior Heritage Consultant

ARTEFACT

Telephone: **(02) 9518 8411** Mobile: 0423 381 482 Address: Level 4, Building B, 35 Saunders Street, Pyrmont NSW 2009 Web: <u>www.artefact.net.au</u>

Cultural Heritage Management | Archaeology | Heritage Interpretation

We acknowledge the Traditional Custodians of Country in which we live and work, and pay our respects to them, their culture and their Elders past, present and future

Notice: This message contains privileged and confidential information intended only for the use of the addressee. If you are not the intended recipient you must not disseminate, copy or take any action in reliance upon it. If you received this in error, please notify us immediately.



DARUG CUSTODIAN ABORIGINAL CORPORATION

PO BOX 81 WINDSOR 2756 PHONE: 0245775181 FAX: 0245775098 MOBILE: 0415770163 Leanne Watson 0414962766 Justine Coplin EMAIL: mulgokiwi@bigpond.com / justinecoplin@optusnet.com.au

Attention: artefact

Subject: 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue:

Dear Ryan

Our group is a non- profit organisation that has been active for over forty years in Western Sydney, we are a Darug community group with over three hundred members. The main aim in our constitution is the care of Darug sites, places, wildlife and to promote our culture and provide education on the Darug history.

Our group promotes Darug Culture and works on numerous projects that are culturally based as a proud and diverse group. It has been discussed by our group and with many consultants and researches that our history is generic and is usually from an early colonists perspective or solely based on archaeology and sites. These histories are adequate but they lack the people's stories and parts of important events and connections of the Darug people and also other Aboriginal people that now call this area home and have done so for numerous generations.

This area is significant to the Darug people due to the evidence of continued occupation, within close proximity to this project site there is a complex of significant sites.

Landscapes and landforms are significant to us for the information that they hold and the connection to Darug people. Aboriginal people (Darug) had a complex lifestyle that was based on respect and belonging to the land, all aspects of life and survival did not impact on

the land but helped to care for and conserve land and the sustenance that the land provided. As Darug people moved through the land there were no impacts left, although there was evidence of movement and lifestyle, the people moved through areas with knowledge of their areas

and followed signs that were left in the landscape. Darug people knew which areas were not to be entered and respected the areas that were sacred.

Knowledge of culture, lifestyle and lore have been part of Darug people's lives for thousands of years, this was passed down to the next generations and this started with birth and continued for a lifetime. Darug people spent a lifetime learning and as people grew older they passed through stages of knowledge, elders became elders with the learning of stages of knowledge not by their age, being an elder is part of the kinship system this was a very complicated system based on respect.

Darug sites are all connected, our country has a complex of sites that hold our heritage and past history, evidence of the Darug lifestyle and occupation are all across our country, due to the rapid development of Sydney many of our sites have been destroyed, our sites are thousands of years old and within the short period of time that Australia has been developed pre contact our sites have disappeared.

The Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents Section 4.1.8 refers to "Aboriginal organisations representing Aboriginal people who hold cultural knowledge". Recent consultation meetings have revealed that many of these Aboriginal organisations and individuals do not hold cultural knowledge of the Western Sydney area. The increasing involvement of such parties in cultural heritage management means that genuine local Aboriginal organisations are unable to properly care for our cultural heritage.

Many Aboriginal organisations listed in the OEH response letter do not contribute to the Aboriginal community of Western Sydney. Individuals listed in the OEH response letter do not represent the community and while they may be consulted with, should not be employed for their own personal financial benefit.

Our organisation is committed to providing benefits back to our local Aboriginal community through such measures as funding the local Aboriginal juniors' touch football team, painting classes for the local children and donating money to various charities. Employment in cultural heritage activities is source of income that organisations such as ours can use to contribute to beneficial activities and support within the community.

Darug custodian Aboriginal Corporation's site officers have knowledge of Darug land, Darug Culture,Oral histories, landforms, sites, Darug history, wildlife, flora and legislative requirements. We have worked with consultants and developers for many years in Western
Sydney (Darug Land) for conservation, site works, developments and interpretation/education strategie

Darug Custodian Aboriginal Corporation have received and reviewed the report for 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue.

We support the recommendations set out in this report.

Please contact us with all further enquiries on the above contacts.

Regards

gp=

Justine Coplin



# Darug Aboriginal Land care

Uncle Des Dyer

18 a Perigee Close Doonside NSW 2767 ABN 71 301 006 047

Ryan Taddeucci Archaeologist Artefact Level 4, Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont 2009 NSW

# Re: 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue Olympic Park .

Dear, Ryan,

The Darug Aboriginal Land care/ Uncle Des Dyer, has no objections to the planned development.

We have read your report and agree with the recommendations, in your report.

We ask that while the development is in progress if any Artefacts are uncovered that work stops until the Artefacts can be salvaged and moved.

We make Recommendation that this is strongly heard to for projects !!!!!

we ask that all artefacts be reburied on site out of harm's way, that any rock cravens, and scared tree be preserved, were possible, and be recorded.

Or Artefacts are put in the local museum, or displayed in the foyer of new building with signage on where they came from.

The Darug Aboriginal Land care have and always will hold all land specific social, spiritual and have a responsibility to look after the plants, animals creeks rivers on Darug land has cultural values to our organisation.

We are Traditional Owner, our members have lived on Darug land for most of their lives and worked in the area. We have been doing Cultural Heritage Assessments for over 20 years and still do today.

Respectfully yours, Uncle Des Dyer Darug Elder Darug Aboriginal Land Care Mobile 0408 360 814

### **Ryan Taddeucci**

From:	Marilyn Carroll-Johnson <corroboreecorp@bigpond.com></corroboreecorp@bigpond.com>
Sent:	Wednesday, November 7, 2018 5:47 PM
То:	Ryan Taddeucci
Cc:	Marilyn Carroll-Johnson; marilynjohnson2@me.com
Subject:	Re: 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue: Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) and Archaeological Survey Report (ASR).

Hi Ryan

If not already done, could you please update your database contact list for Corroboree Aboriginal Corporation. The contact is now Marilyn Carroll-JOHNSON. My contact number is: 0415911159. The OEH has been updated to reflect this. As Steve is no longer affiliated with our corporation. And our members see no problems ACHAR and ASR. Thank you.

Kind regards Marilyn Carroll-Johnson Director CAC

On 30 Oct 2018, at 4:24 pm, Ryan Taddeucci <<u>ryan.taddeucci@artefact.net.au</u>> wrote:

Hi everyone,

Please find attached draft copies of the ACHAR and ASR for 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park.

The assessment has been completed in compliance with the Secretary's Environmental Assessment Requirements (SSD\_9403).

Artefact Heritage is seeking any additional information on the cultural value to Aboriginal people, or places of cultural value, related to the subject area. Please note the areas in the report which have been highlighted, Section 8.0 of the ACHAR in particular.

If you have any comments please provide your response by **Tuesday 27 November 2018**.

Please let me know if you have any questions,

**Cheers, Ryan Taddeucci** Senior Heritage Consultant

ARTEFACT Telephone: (02) 9518 8411 Mobile: 0423 381 482 Address: Level 4, Building B, 35 Saunders Street, Pyrmont NSW 2009 Web: <a href="http://www.artefact.net.au">www.artefact.net.au</a>

#### Cultural Heritage Management | Archaeology | Heritage Interpretation

<image001.gif> We acknowledge the Traditional Custodians of Country in which we live and work, and pay our respects to them, their culture and their Elders past, present and future

Notice: This message contains privileged and confidential information intended only for the use of the addressee. If you are not the intended recipient you must not disseminate, copy or take any action in reliance upon it.

If you received this in error, please notify us immediately.

#### <ASR-18177-Olympic Park-Final-181030.pdf>

#### <ACHAR\_18177\_Olympic Park\_Draft\_181030.pdf>

# APPENDIX 3 – ARCHAEOLOGICAL SURVEY REPORT



1 & 2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park

Archaeological Survey Report

Report to Austino Property Group

Auburn Local Government Area

October 2018



# @ artefact

Artefact Heritage ABN 73 144 973 526 Level 4, Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009 Australia

+61 2 9518 8411 office@artefact.net.au

Revision	Date issued		Reviewed by	Approved by	Date approved	Review type	Revision type
1	3 October 20	)18	V Edmonds	V Edmonds	4 October 2018	PD Review	First draft
2	4 October 20	)18	W Wang	W Wang	23 October 2018	Client review	Second draft
3	30 October 2	2018					Final
Printed:							
Last saved	1:	30 October 2018					
File name:		Asr-18177-Olympic Park-Final-181030					
Author:		Ryan Taddeucci					
Project ma	anager:	Ryan Taddeucci					
Name of o	rganisation:	: Artefact Heritage Services Pty Ltd					
Name of p	roject:	1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park					
Name of d	ocument:	1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park Archaeological Survey					

#### **Document history and status**

© Artefact Heritage Services

Final

Document version:

This document is and shall remain the property of Artefact Heritage Services. This document may only be used for the purposes for which it was commissioned and in accordance with the Terms of the Engagement for the commission. Unauthorised use of this document in any form whatsoever is prohibited.

Disclaimer: Artefact Heritage Services has completed this document in accordance with the relevant federal, state and local legislation and current industry best practice. The company accepts no liability for any damages or loss incurred as a result of reliance placed upon the document content or for any purpose other than that for which it was intended.

# EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Austino Property Group are proposing a residential development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park. The proposed development has been assessed as a State Significant Development, and Secretary's Environmental Assessment Requirements (SEARs) have been issued for the site (SSD\_9403). The requirements for heritage are as follows:

- Prepare an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) identifying any cultural heritage values, impacts and mitigation measures (Artefact Heritage 2018a).
- Prepare a Heritage Impact Statement (HIS) addressing impacts of the proposed development on any state or local heritage Items in the vicinity (Artefact Heritage 2018b) Prepare a Historical Archaeological Assessment (HAA) detailing the likely impacts and outline the proposed management and mitigation measures to protect and preserve the non-Aboriginal archaeology (Artefact Heritage 2018c)

Artefact Heritage have been engaged by Austino Property Group to undertake an ACHAR for a proposed development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park. Key issue 1 of SSD\_9403 states that the assessment must be completed in compliance with the Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales (Code of Practice) (Department of Environment, Climate Change & Water [DECCW] 2010a) and the Guide to Investigating, Assessing and Reporting on Aboriginal Cultural Heritage in NSW (the Guide) (DECCW 2010b).

As per section 2.3 of the Code of Practice and section 3.2 of the Guide, an ACHAR must include a standalone technical report which provides evidence about the material traces of Aboriginal land use that is integrated with the other findings from the assessment of Aboriginal heritage to support the conclusions and management recommendations in the ACHAR. This Archaeological Survey Report (ASR) has been completed the fulfil this requirement.

The HAA and HIS will be provided in separate reports to meet the remaining heritage requirements of SSD\_9403.

## **Overview of findings**

• No Aboriginal archaeological sites or areas of PAD are located within the study area.

## Recommendations

- An Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) must be prepared in compliance with the heritage requirements of SSD\_9403
- The ACHAR would not recommend further Aboriginal archaeological investigations
- Any changes to the scope of the proposal, such as a change in impact footprint, may require further archaeological survey and addendum ASR reporting
- An unexpected finds policy should be implemented, with the following conditions:
  - Stop work within the affected area, protect the potential archaeological find, and inform environment staff or supervisor.
  - o Contact a suitable qualified archaeologist to assess the potential archaeological find.

 If Aboriginal archaeological material is identified, works in the affected area should cease, and the NSW OEH should be informed. Further archaeological mitigation may be required prior to works recommencing.

# CONTENTS

Executiv	e summaryii
Figures	vi
Tables	viii
Abbrevia	ationsix
1.0 In	troduction1
1.1	Background1
1.2	Study area1
1.3	Description of works 1
1.4	Study scope and objectives
1.5	Limitations2
1.6	Authorship2
2.0 Le	egislative context6
2.1	State legislation
2.1.1	National Parks and Wildlife Act 19746
2.1.2	Native Title Act 19946
2.1.3	Aboriginal Lands Right Act 19836
2.1.4	Environmental Planning & Assessment Act 19796
2.2	Commonwealth legislation7
2.2.1	Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999
2.2.2	Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Heritage Protection Act 1984
3.0 Ei	nvironmental context9
3.1	Geotechnical investigations9
3.2	Landscape, geology and soils 10
3.3	Hydrology10
3.4	Natural resources 10
3.5	Vegetation11
3.6	Historical background 11
3.6.1	Overview11
3.6.2	Twentieth century industries 1907-1988 12
3.6.3	Sydney Olympic Park Redevelopment 1990s 14
4.0 AI	ooriginal context16
4.1	Ethno-historical background 16
4.2	Archaeological context
4.2.1	Previous archaeological reports16
4.2.2	Summary
4.3	Aboriginal Heritage Information Management System

# 1 & 2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park Archaeological Survey Report

4.4	Predictive modelling21
5.0	Survey methodology
5.1	Aims
5.2	Site definition and recording
5.3	Protocol for recording Potential Archaeological Deposits
5.4	Sample survey
5.5	Method23
6.0	Survey results
6.1	Survey Unit 1
6.2	Survey Unit 2
6.3	Survey coverage
7.0	Discussion
7.1	Ground disturbance
7.2	Analysis of archaeological potential 30
8.0	Significance assessment
8.1	Significance assessment criteria
8.2	Archaeological significance assessment
9.0	Impact assessment32
9.1	Proposed development
9.2	Impacts to potential archaeological resources
10.0	Management measures
11.0	Recommendations
12.0	References

# FIGURES

Figure 1.1: Location of the study area	. 4
Figure 1.2: Proposed plans	. 5
Figure 3.1: View of modified creek banks of Boundary Creek, west aspect	10
Figure 3.2: Boundary Creek with artificial retaining embankment, northeast aspect	10
Figure 3.3: 1916 St John Parish map of area with approximate study area shown in red. State Abatte located to the southwest, and the brick works to the north (Source: LPI)	
Figure 3.4: View of the waste deposited in Homebush Bay taken in 1972 (Source: State Library of NSW)	13
Figure 3.5: View of the study area in 1943 (Source: Six Maps)	13
Figure 3.6: View of the study area in 2005 (Source: Google Earth)	14
Figure 3.7: View of the study area in 2014 (Source: Google Earth)	15
Figure 4.1: Distribution of AHIMS sites within extensive search area	20
Figure 5.1: Location of survey units	24
Figure 6.1: View of west of Samsung Electronics Australia (Photographed by R. Taddeucci, 24 September 2018)	25
Figure 6.2: View east of the artificial slope of the property down to Murray Rose Avenue (Photographed by R. Taddeucci, 24 September 2018)	25
Figure 6.3: View east of the bitumen footpath (Photographed by R. Taddeucci, 24 September 2018)	
Figure 6.4: Ground exposure(Photographed by R. Taddeucci, 24 September 2018)	25
Figure 6.5: Fallen telephone pole (Photographed by R. Taddeucci, 24 September 2018)	26
Figure 6.6: View west of garden bed (Photographed by R. Taddeucci, 24 September 2018)	26
Figure 6.7: Retaining wall located at the south of the property (facing northwest) (Photographed by F Taddeucci, 24 September 2018)	
Figure 6.8: Retaining wall located at the south of the property (facing west) (Photographed by R. Taddeucci, 24 September 2018)	26
Figure 6.9: Vegetated area at the south of the property (Photographed by R. Taddeucci, 24 September 2018)	27
Figure 6.10: View north west of the Landlease car park (Photographed by R. Taddeucci, 24 September 2018)	27
Figure 6.11: Ground exposure (Photographed by R. Taddeucci, 24 September 2018)	27
Figure 6.12: View west from the north of the property (Photographed by R. Taddeucci, 24 Septembe 2018)	
Figure 6.13: View west of retaining from outside the property (Photographed by R. Taddeucci, 24 September 2018)	27
Figure 6.14: View west of artificial slope along the south of the property (Photographed by R. Taddeucci, 24 September 2018)	27
Figure 6.15: Transects covered during survey	29

1 & 2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park Archaeological Survey Report

# TABLES

Table 4.1: Frequency of site features within the AHIMS extensive search results	19
Table 4.2: Newington sites	19
Table 6.1: Survey coverage summary	28
Table 6.2: Landform survey coverage	28

# ABBREVIATIONS

ACHAR	Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report
AHC	Australian Heritage Council
AHIP	Aboriginal Heritage Impact Permit
AHIMS	Aboriginal Heritage Information Systems
ALR	Aboriginal Land Rights Act 1983)
Artefact Heritage	Artefact Heritage Services Pty Ltd
ASR	Archaeological Survey Report
ATSIHP Act	Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Heritage Protection Act 1984
BP	Before Present (that is 1950)
Code of Practice	Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales
CHL	Commonwealth Heritage List
Consultation Requirements	Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010
DCP	Development Control Plan
DECCW	Department of Environment, Climate Change and Water (now OEH)
Due Diligence Code of Practice	Due Diligence Code of Practice for the Protection of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales
EP&A Act	Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979
EPBC Act	Environment Protection and Diversity Conservation Act 1999
GPS	Global Positioning System
Guide	Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW
ha	hectares
НАА	Historical Archaeological Assessment
HIS	Heritage Impact Statement
km	kilometres
LALC	Local Aboriginal Land Council
LEP	Local Environmental Plan
LGA	Local Government Area

m	metres
mm	millimetres
NHL	National Heritage List
NPW Act	National Parks and Wildlife Act 1974
OEH	Office of Environment and Heritage
PAD	Potential Archaeological Deposit
RAP	Registered Aboriginal Party
RNE	Register of the National Estate
SEARs	Secretary's Environmental Assessment Requirements
SSD	State Significant Development
SU	Survey Unit

# 1.0 INTRODUCTION

### 1.1 Background

Austino Property Group are proposing a residential development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park. The proposed development has been assessed as a State Significant Development, and Secretary's Environmental Assessment Requirements (SEARs) have been issued for the site (SSD\_9403). The requirements for heritage are as follows:

- Prepare a Historical Archaeological Assessment (HAA) detailing the likely impacts and outline the proposed management and mitigation measures to protect and preserve the non-Aboriginal archaeology
- Prepare a Heritage Impact Statement (HIS) addressing impacts of the proposed development on any state or local heritage Items in the vicinity
- Prepare an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) identifying any cultural heritage values, impacts and mitigation measures.

Artefact Heritage have been engaged by Austino Property Group to undertake an ACHAR for a proposed development at 1&2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park. Key issue 1 of SSD\_9403 states that the assessment must be completed in compliance with the Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales (Code of Practice) (Department of Environment, Climate Change & Water [DECCW] 2010a) and the Guide to Investigating, Assessing and Reporting on Aboriginal Cultural Heritage in NSW (the Guide) (DECCW 2010b).

As per section 2.3 of the Code of Practice and section 3.2 of the Guide, an ACHAR must include a standalone technical report which provides evidence about the material traces of Aboriginal land use that is integrated with the other findings from the assessment of Aboriginal heritage to support the conclusions and management recommendations in the ACHAR. This Archaeological Survey Report (ASR) has been completed the fulfil this requirement.

The HAA and HIS will be provided in separate reports to meet the remaining heritage requirements of SSD\_9403.

## 1.2 Study area

The study area consists of 1 Murray Rose Avenue (Lot 1/DP1185060) and 2 Murray Rose Avenue (Lot 2/DP1185060), located in the suburb of Sydney Olympic Park (Figure 1.1). 1 Murray Rose Avenue is 0.25 hectares (ha) in area and measures 60 m north south by 77 m east west. 2 Murray Rose Avenue is 0.39-ha in area and measures 56 m north south by 56 m east west.

The study area is located in the Local Government Area (LGA) of Auburn and the Metropolitan Local Aboriginal Land Council (LALC). The study area is within the Parish of St John and County of Cumberland.

## 1.3 Description of works

#### 1 Murray Rose Avenue

The proposed development involves the construction of a 15-storey residential development including three (3) basement levels with a bulk excavation level of approximately 1.85 m.

#### 2 Murray Rose Avenue

The proposed development includes the construction of a 15-storey residential development with two (2) basement levels with a bulk excavation level of approximately 0.4 m.

The proposed development design is shown in Figure 1.2.

### 1.4 Study scope and objectives

This ASR has been prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales (Code of Practice) (Department of Environment, Climate Change & Water [DECCW] 2010a). The scope of this project is to undertake an Aboriginal archaeological survey in conjunction with representatives from Metropolitan LALC to locate and identify Aboriginal sites and objects or areas of potential archaeological deposit (PAD) and provide recommendations in an ASR for mitigation to Aboriginal archaeological and cultural heritage values or where required recommendations for further assessment.

The objectives of this study are to provide an ASR which:

- Assess the Aboriginal cultural heritage values of the study area in accordance with the Code of Practice
- Identify Aboriginal archaeological and cultural heritage values that may be impacted by the proposed works
- Identify any further investigations, and mitigation and management measures that may be required, should the project proceed.

This report includes:

- A description of the project and the extent of the study area
- An archaeological significance assessment of the study area
- A description of the statutory requirements for the protection of Aboriginal heritage
- An impact assessment for recorded Aboriginal sites and areas of archaeological potential
- Provision of measures to avoid, minimise, and if necessary, offset the predicted impacts on Aboriginal heritage values.

#### 1.5 Limitations

Only the area within the provided disturbance boundary was surveyed for Aboriginal objects and sites. Areas outside the study area were not assessed for Aboriginal objects or archaeological potential.

#### 1.6 Authorship

This report was prepared by Jennifer Norfolk (Heritage Consultant, Artefact Heritage) and Ryan Taddeucci (Senior Heritage Consultant, Artefact Heritage), with management input and review from Vanessa Edmonds (Principal, Artefact Heritage).

Vanessa has graduate and post graduate qualifications in Aboriginal archaeology and palaeoanthropology and over 30 years of experience in cultural heritage management throughout Australia. Vanessa is a Full Member of the Australian Association of Consulting Archaeologists Inc.

Ryan has a Bachelor of Arts with Honours in Archaeology and a Master of Museum Studies. Ryan has six years archaeological consulting experience in NSW, Queensland and Western Australia.

Jennifer has a Master's degree in Archaeology and has five years' experience in Aboriginal cultural heritage management in NSW.

#### Figure 1.1: Location of the study area



Document Path: C:\Users\GIS\Desktop\GIS\GIS\_Mapping\18177\_Olympic\_Park\MXD\Study\_area.mxd

### Figure 1.2: Proposed plans



# 2.0 LEGISLATIVE CONTEXT

# 2.1 State legislation

### 2.1.1 National Parks and Wildlife Act 1974

The NPW Act, administered by the OEH provides statutory protection for all Aboriginal 'objects' (consisting of any material evidence of the Aboriginal occupation of NSW) under Section 90 of the Act, and for 'Aboriginal Places' (areas of cultural significance to the Aboriginal community) under Section 84.

The protection provided to Aboriginal objects applies irrespective of the level of their significance or issues of land tenure. However, areas are only gazetted as Aboriginal Places if the Minister is satisfied that sufficient evidence exists to demonstrate that the location was and/or is, of special significance to Aboriginal culture.

The NPW Act was amended in 2010 and as a result the legislative structure for seeking permission to impact on heritage items has changed. A Section 90 permit is now the only Aboriginal Heritage Impact Permit (AHIP) available and is granted by the OEH. Various factors are considered by OEH in the AHIP application process, such as site significance, Aboriginal consultation requirements, ESD principles, project justification and consideration of alternatives. The penalties and fines for damaging or defacing an Aboriginal object have also increased.

As this project is being assessed under Part 4 Division 4.1 of the EP&A Act 1979 permits issued under the NPW Act 1974 are not required.

#### 2.1.2 Native Title Act 1994

The *Native Title Act 1994* was introduced to work in conjunction with the Commonwealth *Native Title Act 1993*. Native Title claims, registers and Indigenous Land Use Agreements are administered under the Act. There are no Native Title claims currently registered in the study area.

### 2.1.3 Aboriginal Lands Right Act 1983

The *Aboriginal Land Rights Act 1983* (ALR Act) established Aboriginal Land Councils (at State and Local levels). These bodies have a statutory obligation under the ALR Act to:

(a) take action to protect the culture and heritage of Aboriginal persons in the council's area, subject to any other law, and

(b) promote awareness in the community of the culture and heritage of Aboriginal persons in the council's area.

The study area is within the boundary of the Metropolitan LALC.

#### 2.1.4 Environmental Planning & Assessment Act 1979

The proposal will be assessed under Part 4, Division 4.1 of the EP&A Act, which establishes an assessment and approval regime for State Significant Development (SSD). Part 4, Division 4.1 applies to development that is declared to be SSD by a State Environmental Planning Policy (SEPP). Section 4.41 (previously section 89J(c)) of the EP&A Act specifies that approvals or permits under section 90 of the NPW Act 1974 are not required for approved SSD.

# 2.2 Commonwealth legislation

#### 2.2.1 Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999

The Environment and Heritage Legislation Amendment Act (No. 1) 2003 amends the Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999 (EPBC Act) to include 'national heritage' as a matter of National Environmental Significance and protects listed places to the fullest extent under the Constitution. It also establishes the National Heritage List (NHL) and the Commonwealth Heritage List (CHL).

The Australian Heritage Council Act 2003 (AHC Act) establishes a new heritage advisory body - the Australian Heritage Council (AHC), to the Minister for the Environment and Heritage and retains the Register of the National Estate (RNE).

The Australian Heritage Council (Consequential and Transitional Provisions) Act 2003 repeals the Australian Heritage Commission Act 1975, amends various Acts as a consequence of this repeal and allows the transition to the current heritage system.

Together the above three Acts provide protection for Australia's natural, Indigenous and non-Indigenous heritage. The new features include:

- A new NHL of places of national heritage significance.
- A new CHL of heritage places owned or managed by the Commonwealth.
- The creation of the AHC, an independent expert body to advise the Minster on the listing and protection of heritage places.
- Continued management of the Register of the National Estate (RNE).

#### **National Heritage List**

The NHL is a list of places with outstanding heritage value to our nation, including places overseas. So important are the heritage values of these places that they are protected under the EPBC Act. This means that a person cannot take an action that has, will have, or is likely to have, a significant impact on the national heritage values of a national heritage place without the approval of the Australian Government Minister for the Environment and Heritage. It is a criminal offence not to comply with this law and there are significant penalties.

#### **Commonwealth Heritage List**

The CHL is a list of places managed or owned by the Australian Government and not of relevance to this project.

#### **Register of the National Estate**

The RNE is an evolving record of Australia's natural, cultural and Aboriginal heritage places that are worth keeping for the future. The AHC compiles and maintains the RNE under the *Australian Heritage Council Act* 2003. Places on the RNE that are in Commonwealth areas, or subject to actions by the Australian Government, are protected under the EPBC Act by the same provisions that protect Commonwealth heritage places (see above).

Following amendments to the *Australian Heritage Council Act* 2003, the RNE was frozen on 19 February 2007, meaning no new places can be added, or removed. From 2012, all references to the RNE were removed from the EPBC Act and the AHC Act. The RNE is now maintained on a nonstatutory basis as a publicly available archive. No Aboriginal sites were listed for Olympic Park on the RNE.

#### 2.2.2 Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Heritage Protection Act 1984

The Commonwealth Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Heritage Protection Act 1984 (ATSIHP Act), deals with Aboriginal cultural property (intangible heritage) in a wider sense. Such cultural property intangible heritage includes any places, objects and folklore that 'are of particular significance to Aboriginals in accordance with Aboriginal tradition'. These values are not currently protected under the NPW Act. In most cases, archaeological sites and objects registered under the State Act will also be Aboriginal places subject to the provisions of the Commonwealth Act. There is no cut-off date and the ATSIHP Act may apply to contemporary Aboriginal cultural property as well as ancient sites. The ATSIHP Act takes precedence over state cultural heritage legislation where there is conflict. The Commonwealth Minister who is responsible for administering the ATSIHP Act can make declarations to protect these areas and objects from specific threats of injury or desecration. The responsible Minister may make a declaration under Section 10 of the Commonwealth Act in situations where state or territory laws do not provide adequate protection of intangible heritage places.

# 3.0 ENVIRONMENTAL CONTEXT

The environmental context of the study area is to assist in the prediction of:

- The potential of the landscape over time to have accumulated and preserved Aboriginal objects
- The ways Aboriginal people have used the landscape in the past with reference to the presence of resource areas, surfaces for art, other focal points for activities and settlement
- The likely distribution of the material traces of Aboriginal land use based on the above.

### 3.1 Geotechnical investigations

#### 1 Murray Rose Avenue

Geotechnical investigations were conducted on 1 and 5 September 2017, and comprised the auger drilling of four boreholes (BH1 to BH4) to depths between 5.64 m and 7.94 m below existing surface levels using a Tungsten Carbide bit (JK Geotechnics 2017a). The investigation found that the subsurface profile was generally comprised of a sandy and clayey fill over residual silty clay and shale bedrock. The depth of fill ranged from 0.9 m (BH4) to 3.3 m (BH1 and BH3). Natural residual clays were encountered below the fill extending to the underlying bedrock. The natural silty clays were generally of medium to high plasticity and were assessed as very stiff to hard strength. The clays contained varying amounts of fine to medium grained ironstone gravel.

#### 2 Murray Rose Avenue

Geotechnical investigations were conducted on 9 and 10 September 2017, and comprised the auger drilling of four boreholes (BH1 to BH4) to depths between 5.68 m and 6.77 m below existing surface levels using a Tungsten Carbide bit (JK Geotechnics 2017b). The investigation found that the subsurface profile was generally comprised of a sandy and clayey fill over residual silty clay and shale bedrock. Fill was encountered at the surface in all boreholes and extended to depths ranging from 1.2 m (BH2 and BH3) to 1.4 m (BH1). Natural residual clays were encountered below the fill and extended to the underlying shale bedrock. The natural silty clays were generally of medium to high plasticity and were assessed to be of very stiff to hard strength. The clays contained varying amounts of fine to medium grained ironstone and shale gravel.

#### Summary

Overall, the geotechnical investigations found that the deposit within the study area was comprised of a sandy clay fill overlying the natural sediments (residual clay silt and bedrock) to depth of between 1 - 3.3 m.

Archaeological material may be located within the fill layer, however, this is difficult to assess the archaeological potential as it is unknown where the fill was obtained form. If archaeological material is identified within the fill layer, it would not hold any scientific significance, due to a loss of context.

Archaeological material cannot be located within or below the bedrock layer as it is comprised of solid stone. Clay is formed by the gradual chemical weathering of rock and the residual clay in the deposit is likely to be a degraded component of the underlaying bedrock, older than human occupation in Australia. Artefacts are unlikely to penetrate clay due to its high consistency. Therefore, there is nillow potential that Aboriginal artefacts will be located within the remnant natural deposit.

# 3.2 Landscape, geology and soils

The study area is located on a mild southward sloping hill located near to Homebush Bay. The local area has low relief with slopes usually less than <5 per cent. The underlying geology of the study area consists of middle Triassic epoch black to dark-grey shale and laminate deposits belonging to the Wianamatta Group.

The study area was originally located on Blacktown soils. The Blacktown soils are shallow (<1000 millimetres [mm]) hard setting mottled red and brown podzolic soils on crests and yellow podzolic soils on lower slopes and along drainage lines. The Blacktown soil landscape is generally associated with gently undulating rises. The soils are primarily poorly drained with very little erosional activity with minor sheet and gully erosion in zones stripped of vegetation.

The study area today has had extensive modern ground disturbance however, and the natural Blacktown soil profile is almost entirely absent from the area. The soils in the study area, from geotechnical studies, are predominantly degrading organic landfill deposits. Areas of Blacktown soil profiles may still exist in isolated areas of the study area.

# 3.3 Hydrology

The study area is located less than 50 metres (m) west from the Bennelong Pond, which is serviced by Powells Creek and 755 m south of Haslam's Creek.

Prior to the use of the Homebush Bay area as a landfill in the late twentieth century, A tributary of Powell's Creek, Boundary Creek, was present to the south of the study area. The study area is located approximately 887 m north of the present course of Boundary Creek. The present course of Boundary Creek is located between landfill mounds and is not an intact natural creek bank (Figure 3.1; Figure 3.2).



### 3.4 Natural resources

Aboriginal people were highly mobile hunter-gatherers utilising different landscapes and resource strategies across the Sydney basin. Different resources may have been available seasonally, necessitating movement or trade across the landscape (Attenbrow 2010: 78). Aboriginal people hunted kangaroo and wallaby and snared possums and other small animals and birds for food and skins. Plants were likewise an important source of nutrition for past Aboriginal peoples with numerous plant species utilised for food, manufacture and medicinal purposes (Attenbrow 2010: 41).

Given the location of the study area within close proximity to fresh water sources as well as the shore of Homebush Bay it is likely that Aboriginal people would have employed a range of subsistence activities to take advantage of their local environment. Coastal resources such as saltwater fish and shellfish would have been available to groups as well as small animals, plants, freshwater fish and eels (Tench 1793: 230, Kohen 1986: 77). Banksia flowers, wild honey, varieties of wild yam and Burrawong nut were recorded as important food sources, particularly for inland groups. Small animals such as bandicoots and wallabies were hunted with traps and snares (Collins 1798; Kohen 1985: 9).

# 3.5 Vegetation

All of the vegetation zones which are likely to have characterised the pre - European environmental context of the region have been reduced during the post-contact period, much of this impact having occurred during comparatively recent periods (Steele and Carney 1997: 13). The original landscape included eucalyptus forest on Wianamatta shale soils and wetlands in the lower reaches of Haslams Creek and Powells Creek and on the shores of Homebush Bay and the Parramatta River. Remnants of the Ironbark and scribbly gum eucalyptus forest and Aboriginal archaeological sites are preserved in the Newington Armoury (Dictionary of Sydney – Homebush 2015). The first European observations of the land recorded trees far apart and noted there was long grass and no underwood.

The vegetation fringing the mangrove and saltmarsh wetlands included Casurina (Swamp oak), Maleluca (paper bark) and leptospermum (tea tree) species. In the late 19th century extensive salt marsh and mud flats dominated the estuary and mangrove was widespread. The silt and alluvial deposits from Powells and Haslams Creek and the original shoreline of the bay and river are now completely overlain by reclamation fill (Fox and Assoc 1986: 5).

During the site visit the subject site's vegetation was observed to have a majority native tree canopy, with a native shrub midstorey and a native groundcover layer. Plantings within the car park consist of native grasses and shrubs and semi-mature Ficus, Sheoak, Spotted Gum and Ironbark trees. The majority of plantings on the site are the result of landscaping during the 1980s and 1990s.

Arboreport Vegetation Management Consultants (2015) identified three significant trees on the site which include a mature Morton Bay Fig on the western boundary and a mature Morton Bay Fig and Port Jackson Fig on the northeast corner (Fig and Australia Streets). These trees could be around 100 years old as they are present in 1943 aerial images of the site and appear to be mature specimens at that time.

## 3.6 Historical background

#### 3.6.1 Overview

A full overview of the history of the study area has been provided in the HAA (Artefact Heritage 2018c). The HAA identified four major phases of land use associated with the study area:

- Phase 1: Vegetation clearance for European farming, including the construction of a farmhouse and horse racing track, and later subdivision.
- Phase 2: The area was part of the State Abattoir and continued to be used as a cleared farming area up until the mid- twentieth century.
- Phase 3: Used for waste disposal in the late twentieth century.
- Phase 4: Remediation of contaminated landfill involved extensive earthworks in the study area. Subsequently redeveloped into a carpark prior to the 2000 Olympic Games, with excavation for services and surface landscaping.

The most pertinent land-use activities to the Aboriginal archaeological potential are the phases of waste disposal and the remediation works.

#### 3.6.2 Twentieth century industries 1907-1988

An area of Homebush was resumed for the State Abattoir in 1907 and was built on the site in 1910 after the Glebe Island Abattoir was deemed as publicly unsafe following the Plague. This saw development of servicing roads for the abattoir and associated buildings. A branch railway line through the abattoir site was constructed by 1908, which included the levelling of the site (GML 1990: 5). This railway line was further developed in 1910, with site levelling, excavating, and roadways and platforms being constructed. After poor management practices the abattoir ran into a deficit and closed in 1988.

Figure 3.3: 1916 St John Parish map of area with approximate study area shown in red. State Abattoir located to the southwest, and the brick works to the north (Source: LPI)



A State Brick Works was located at the northern side of Homebush from 1911. Access roads were constructed, and a railway line was developed to provide access to the Brick Works. The Brick Works was used until its closure in 1940, when it was taken over by the Naval Armament Depot as a munitions store. It was later reopened following the end of World War Two until it ceased trading in 1988. The area has been rehabilitated as a wetland area with a raised walkway for visitors.

The Newington Armament Depot, which lay to the north of Homebush, was expanded after World War One, and took over some of the facilities in Homebush such as the Brick Works pit and some land that was part of the State Abattoir for storage of munitions.

As industrial development in Sydney expanded in the mid-twentieth century, locations to discard industrial waste were required. Homebush, at that time relatively undeveloped, was chosen as a dumping location for toxic waste, including waste from factories such as Timbrol and Union Carbide

that were located nearby in Rhodes. Wentworth Bay was filled in with industrial waste and the natural ecology of the area was severely damaged. The area nearest Homebush Bay became a shipbreaking yard in 1966, with many of the wrecks still visible today. By 1988 there was an estimated 9 million cubic metres of waste and contaminated soils spread over 400-ha within the 760 ha site (Figure 3.4).

# Figure 3.4: View of the waste deposited in Homebush Bay taken in 1972 (Source: State Library of NSW)



Figure 3.5: View of the study area in 1943 (Source: Six Maps)



### 3.6.3 Sydney Olympic Park Redevelopment 1990s

The southern portion of Homebush was developed as Sydney Olympic Park following the 1993 successful bid for Sydney to host the 2000 Olympic and Paralympic Games. Part of this development was the construction of sports facilities, competitor housing, roads, and rejuvenation of parklands and streetscapes. Rehabilitation and stabilisation of the area was conducted due to the contamination from prior industrial use.

In July 2001, the Sydney Olympic Park Authority (SOPA) was established, a statutory body of the NSW Government under the *Sydney Olympic Park Authority Act 2001*. The Authority's charter is to manage and promote the 640 ha Sydney Olympic Park site, including protection of the 425 ha Millennium Parklands, which included the Newington Armament Depot and Nature Reserve.

From at least 2002 the study area was used as a car park up until 2014, when Murray Rose Avenue was constructed.

#### Figure 3.6: View of the study area in 2005 (Source: Google Earth)





Figure 3.7: View of the study area in 2014 (Source: Google Earth)

# 4.0 ABORIGINAL CONTEXT

# 4.1 Ethno-historical background

Prior to the appropriation of their land by Europeans, Aboriginal people lived in small family or clan groups that were associated with particular territories or places. It seems that territorial boundaries were fairly fluid, although details are not known. The language group spoken across Sydney was known as Darug (Dharruk – alternate spelling). The first written use of this term was in 1900, as before the late 1800s language groups or dialects were not discussed in the literature (Mathews and Everitt 1900). The Darug language group is thought to have extended from Appin in the south to the Hawkesbury River, west of the Georges River, Parramatta, the Lane Cove River and to Berowra Creek (Attenbrow 2010: 34). This area was home to a number of different clan groups throughout the Cumberland Plain.

Early historical accounts of Aboriginal people are inevitably subject to the writer's bias, however, they do provide valuable observations of Aboriginal customs and life during the early period of European occupation. Language dialects varied across the Cumberland Plain, although early Europeans recorded observations of interaction and mutual intelligibility between Darug speakers from different regions. Captain Watkin Tench detailed an interaction between two Aboriginal men, one from the coast and one from inland, and noted the range of variability between dialects. Tench observed that though the men conversed on par and understood each other perfectly, many words for common things bore no similarities, yet other words were only slightly different (Tench 1793:122).

There are two possible groups or clans associated with the local area. Bediagal or Bidjigal were observed in association with Arrowanelly 'Island at the Flats' an island originally on the western side of Botany Bay near the mouth of the Bay (Attenbrow 2010: 24). Alternatively, Wangal, Wann-gal or Won-gal were observed from the southern shore of the Parramatta River from near Darling Harbour to Rose Hill (Attenbrow 2010: 26).

The existing archaeological record is limited to certain materials and objects that were able to withstand degradation and decay. As a result, the most common type of Aboriginal objects remaining in the archaeological record are stone artefacts, followed by bone and shell. The locality of the study area along an undulating landscape within close proximity to fresh water sources indicates that the predominant site type would be stone artefact sites and open camp sites.

# 4.2 Archaeological context

### 4.2.1 Previous archaeological reports

# Urbis 2015, 2 Figtree Drive, Sydney Olympic Park, Historic and Aboriginal Archaeological Assessment. Report prepared for Mirvac

Urbis undertook a historic and Aboriginal archaeological assessment and prepared a heritage impact statement of 2 Figtree Drive, Sydney Olympic Park in August 2015. The assessment deemed the area to have no evidence of Aboriginal occupation and previous excavations of the site had revealed the ground surface was largely an introduced or reformed top soil. This site is located 550 m to the southwest of the study area.

# AMBS 2012, Newington Armament Depot & Nature Reserve, Sydney Olympic Park, Aboriginal Heritage Assessment. Report prepared for Tanner Architects Pty Ltd

The purpose of the survey was to verify the location of previously recorded sites within the study area, if possible, to inspect the area for any new archaeological sites and to identify the potential for

archaeologically sensitive areas to be present within the Newington area. The assessment location is 1.5 km north west of the study area. There are five registered Aboriginal sites within the Newington Armament Depot & Nature Reserve study area registered by Irish (2004). These sites were not relocated during the survey and were assessed as being of low significance. No new Aboriginal sites or areas of Aboriginal heritage sensitivity were identified during the survey. This confirms AMBS (2012) prediction that the early development of the Armoury in the area has strongly impacted Aboriginal archaeological potential.

Given the extent of disturbance to the original land surface within the study area, it is considered that only the woodland area of the Newington Nature Reserve has any archaeological potential for Aboriginal heritage deposits. No Aboriginal cultural issues or sensitivities were identified for the study area by a representative of the Metropolitan LALC.

#### Irish 2004, Aboriginal Archaeological Assessment Report Newington Armory Adaptive Re-Use and Rail Extension Project, Sydney Olympic Park, NSW. Report to the Sydney Olympic Park Authority

Irish (2004) surveyed the woodland and nature reserve buffer zone of the Newington Armory Precinct in 2003. He established that the trees within the woodland were of insufficient age to contain scars of Aboriginal cultural origin and he determined that the scarred trees identified in previous studies were not Aboriginal in origin. Surface visibility was generally low, but during the survey three isolated silcrete and chert artefacts and two potential archaeological deposits (PAD) were identified. Possible silcrete manuports (stone material thought to have been transported to the area by Aboriginal people) were also identified. However, the Aboriginal origin of the presence of these silcrete pieces could not be confirmed.

Irish states that the lack of archaeological material is likely to be a reflection of the early urban development of the Parramatta River, which would have precluded the preservation of sites and the necessity for archaeological assessment; rather than an indication of less intense Aboriginal occupation of the area. Irish (2004) also identified two PADs during this assessment within a woodland conservation zone.

#### Brayshaw 1997, Olympic Village Site, Newington, Homebush Bay, Aboriginal Archaeology. Report to MIRVAC Village Consortium

Brayshaw (1997) surveyed the Olympic Village Site and Newington in 1997. No Aboriginal sites were found, and previous isolated artefacts identified by Rich (1985) were unable to be located. Some unmodified silcrete was identified in the area of sensitivity identified by Rich. A high level of disturbance was noted on the lower slopes west of Haslams Creek and near armament stores, with landfill seen on the flat adjacent to the creek.

Brayshaw (1997) stated that lack of silcrete over the entire Olympic Village and Newington site suggests that the material may not have been an accessible source to Aboriginals occupying the area and has only been exposed by disturbance. Brayshaw (1997) concluded that the area was not archaeologically sensitive, as the disturbance was too great to allow any meaningful interpretation of Aboriginal use of the area, or to offer the possibility of further information being gained from subsurface investigation. Feedback from Metropolitan LALC indicated their desire to monitor excavations for construction works in the vicinity of the previously identified artefacts.

#### Dominic Steele & Martin Carney Archaeological Management & Consulting Group Pty 1997, Aboriginal Heritage, Australia Avenue, Fig Tree Circuit, 2000 Olympic Site, Homebush, NSW. Report to The Olympic Co-Ordination Authority

Steele and Carney surveyed the subject site in 1997 prior to the construction of the current building. The site was at that time functioning as a truck parking area. No evidence for Aboriginal use of the site was identified during the field-survey, however, archaeological visibility within the surveyed areas was poor. The investigations found that a Pre-European ground surface was likely to survive within the surveyed areas obscured by introduced fills and/or recently developed European soil-profiles. It was recommended that any impact to these subsurface areas be monitored for the presence of Aboriginal artefacts.

Note: Subsequent development works on the site to construct the current buildings involved site clearance and preparation, cut and fill excavation, levelling and grading, and subsequent construction works and service installation. These works are likely to have disturbed or destroyed any Pre-European ground surface.

#### 4.2.2 Summary

Overall, the results of the previous Aboriginal archaeological investigations within the wider area have identified that there is low potential for intact Aboriginal archaeological deposits to be identified due to high levels of past disturbance. The only area within the vicinity of the study area which held archaeological potential was Newington, located 1.5 km north west of the study area. Irish (2004) identified these PADs based on the presence of isolated surface artefacts and the assessment that the area had not been subject to ground disturbance.

# 4.3 Aboriginal Heritage Information Management System

The location of Aboriginal sites is considered culturally sensitive information. It is advised that this information, including the Aboriginal Heritage Information Management System (AHIMS) data appearing on the heritage map for the proposal be removed from this report if it is to enter the public domain.

An extensive search of the AHIMS database was undertaken on the 14 September 2018 (AHIMS search ID 370866).

An area of approximately 4 km surrounding the study area was included in the search. The AHIMS search provides archaeological context for the area and identifies whether any previously recorded Aboriginal sites are located within or near the study area. The parameters of the search were as follows:

GDA 1994 MGA 56	E 319938 - 323938
	N 6251485 - 6255485
Buffer	0 m
Number of sites	7
AHIMS Search ID	370866

A total of seven sites are listed on the AHIMS database within the search area. The distribution of recorded sites within the AHIMS search area is shown in Figure 4.1. OEH lists 20 standard site features that can be used to describe a site registered with AHIMS, and more than one feature can be used for each site. The frequency of recorded site types is summarised in Table 4.1 below. For the seven sites within the search area, three site features were recorded. The majority of site features recorded were PAD (n=5, 71.4 per cent), with lesser numbers of art sites (n=1, 14.3 per cent) and modified trees (n=1, 14.3 per cent).

The nature and location of the registered sites is a reflection of the past Aboriginal occupation from which they derive, but is also influenced by historical land-use, and the nature and extent of previous archaeological investigations. Although Aboriginal occupation covered the whole of the landscape, the availability of fresh water, and associated resources, was a significant factor in repeated and long-

term occupation of specific areas within the landscape. Certain site types, such as culturally modified trees, are particularly vulnerable to destruction through historical occupation, while others, such as stone artefacts, are more resilient. Previous archaeological investigation has consisted of broad-scale survey. This type of survey is likely to target areas of high potential, such as land near water, and areas of high visibility, and to result in the identification of surface sites.

Site Feature	Frequency	Per cent
Art (Pigment or Engraved)	1	14.3
Modified Tree (Carved or Scarred)	1	14.3
PAD	5	71.4
Total	7	100

#### Table 4.1: Frequency of site features within the AHIMS extensive search results

The data available indicates that past Aboriginal occupation of the immediate region was focussed on the natural resources of Haslams Creek and Brays Bay. This is reflected in the predominance of PADs located in the vicinity of these watercourses. However, these watercourses have not been subject to significant modification. While the watercourses within the immediate vicinity of the study area have been heavily altered.

Irish 2004 recorded all of six of the identified AHIMS sites within Newington area. The 2004 report and the names of the sites demonstrates that the site details have been incorrectly entered into the AHIMS database (Table 4.2). There are only two PADs identified within the Newington area, and the remaining three sites are isolated artefacts. Irish (2004) identified the PADs within an environmental conservation area, and due to the low level of disturbance, concluded that the area held potential to retain intact deposits of Aboriginal artefacts.

#### Table 4.2: Newington sites

Site ID	Site name
45-6-2682	Wanngal Woodland Axe-Marked Tree
45-6-2683	Wanngal Woodland IF1
45-6-2684	Wanngal Woodland IF2
45-6-2685	Wanngal Woodland IF3
45-6-2785	Wanngal Woodland PAD2
45-6-2786	Wanngal Woodland PAD1


### Figure 4.1: Distribution of AHIMS sites within extensive search area

Document Path: C:\Users\GIS\Desktop\GIS\GIS\_Mapping\18177\_Olympic\_Park\MXD\AHIMS.mxd

# 4.4 Predictive modelling

Urbis (2015) produced the following predictive model which is applicable for the study area:

Resource distribution and availability such as the presence of drinking water, plant and animal foods, raw materials of stone, wood and vegetable fibre used for tool production and maintenance is strongly influenced by the nature of soils, the composition of vegetation cover and the climactic characteristics of a given region. The location of site-types such as open camp-sites and middens are strongly influenced by these factors, which are specific to different land systems and bedrock geologies. Understanding the environmental context of any given region is therefore an integral component necessary to modelling past Aboriginal land-use practices and/or predicting site distribution patterns within any given landscape (Carney and Steele 1997:12).

Current land use practices have the potential to affect the visibility of archaeological material; they may obscure or expose archaeological sites. In addition, previous disturbances may have also exposed archaeological material, such as excavation for dams or other ground disturbance. It is important that such factors are also considered in making assessments of archaeological resources in an area and understanding the distribution of observed sites. The majority of registered AHIMS sites in the region of the study area are stone artefact sites and middens, which occur along Sydney Harbour (AMBS 2012:16).

Aboriginal occupation was often focussed on prominent landforms such as ridges, which were favourable locations for camping and travelling, and from which surrounding plant and animal resources could be viewed. However, they also camped on lower, elevated areas adjacent to reliable water sources, such as the Parramatta River. The subject site is located on high ground approximately 600 m to the west of Powells Creek and the same distance to the mangroves of Homebush Bay.

The land was extensively cleared before the 1840s resulting in the loss of the original topsoil. In addition, given the extensive disturbance to the original land surface within the current study area, it is considered that the site does not have any archaeological potential for Aboriginal heritage deposits. The site is not expected to contain Aboriginal cultural objects as the excavation and development of the site would have removed such items.

# 5.0 SURVEY METHODOLOGY

### 5.1 Aims

The aims of the archaeological survey were to:

- cover a representative sample of the study area and to include all landforms that will potentially be impacted by the proposed works
- record the landform, general soil information, surface conditions and vegetation conditions encountered during the survey and how these impact on the visibility of objects
- record any Aboriginal objects/sites observed during the survey
- to identify areas of potential archaeological deposit (PAD) that may be present in areas that have had no or minimal disturbance
- to collect information to ascertain whether further archaeological investigations are required.

# 5.2 Site definition and recording

An Aboriginal site is generally defined as an Aboriginal object or place. An Aboriginal object is the material evidence of Aboriginal land use, such as stone tools, scarred trees or rock art. Some sites, or Aboriginal places can also be intangible and although they might not be visible, these places have cultural significance to Aboriginal people.

Office of Environment and Heritage guidelines state in regard to site definition that one or more of the following criteria must be used when recording material traces of Aboriginal land use:

- The spatial extent of the visible objects, or direct evidence of their location
- Obvious physical boundaries where present, e.g. mound site and middens (if visibility is good), a ceremonial ground
- Identification by the Aboriginal community on the basis of cultural information.

For the purposes of this study an Aboriginal site would defined by recording the spatial extent of visible traces or the direct evidence of their location.

# 5.3 Protocol for recording Potential Archaeological Deposits

Where areas of PAD are identified towards the margins of each survey unit, efforts must made by the survey team to delineate each area of potential beyond the survey unit. Where the extent of the PAD extends beyond the survey unit, efforts must be made to map the extent of that feature up to approximately 70 m outside the survey unit. If it is likely that these PADs continue beyond that point, the survey team must justify that the distance is adequate to provide an accurate representation of the PAD with regard to future planning and design for the project.

# 5.4 Sample survey

The study area was comprised of two Survey Units (SUs), defined by property boundary and landform (Figure 5.1). A sample survey is acceptable, with justification, under the Code of Practice. Full coverage survey of each survey unit was not practicable due to dense, impenetrable vegetation and

steep slopes in SU1 and surface coverage from temporary infrastructure in SU2. Each survey unit was subject to sample survey, which included as much intensive investigation as was practicable given the access limitations.

Surface visibility was limited to small ground exposures within drainage channels, erosion scours and localised areas of disturbance. Other areas of surface visibility included vehicle tracks and exposures around tree bases. Exposed vertical soil sections could be observed in SU2 along Parkview Drive.

## 5.5 Method

Archaeological survey of the study area was conducted on foot, in accordance with the Code of Practice and SSD\_9403, on 24 September 2018. The survey was undertaken by Ryan Taddeucci (Senior Heritage Consultant, Artefact Heritage), Jennifer Norfolk (Heritage Consultant, Artefact Heritage), and Kevin Telford (Aboriginal Site Officer, Metropolitan LALC).

A handheld Global Positioning System (GPS) was used to track the path of the survey team and record the coordinates of survey transects, as well as, the locations of sandstone outcrops and and any Aboriginal sites. Detailed aerial maps marked with grid coordinates for each of the two survey units were carried by the survey team in the field. The coordinate system projection used for all data recording was GDA94 MGA 56. All ground exposures were examined for Aboriginal objects which may have been imported into the study area with the fill.

A photographic record was kept during the survey. Photographs were taken to record aspects of survey units including stone outcrops, stone platforms, vegetation, disturbance and recorded Aboriginal sites. Scales were used for photographs where appropriate.

### Figure 5.1: Location of survey units



Document Path: C:\Users\GIS\Desktop\GIS\GIS\_Mapping\18177\_Olympic\_Park\MXD\Survey\_units.mxd

#### SURVEY RESULTS 6.0

#### 6.1 Survey Unit 1

Survey Unit 1 is the mapped extent of 1 Murray Rose Avenue. The area is located north of Murray Rose Avenue and is boarded to the east by Bennelong Parkway and Samsung Electronics Australia to the west (Figure 6.1). To the west the area has been cut into and a retaining wall constructed to accommodate a loading dock for Samsung Electronics Australia. A chain-link fence boarded the entire property.

The area was densely covered by high grasses which restricted ground surface visibility (Figure 6.2). An east west oriented, bitumen footpath was located across the centre of 1 Murray Rose Avenue (Figure 6.3). A few areas of ground exposure were present across 1 Murray Rose Avenue, these areas did not contain evidence of Aboriginal artefacts (Figure 6.4). A concrete garden bed had been established in the centre of the property (Figure 6.6). A fallen telephone pole was also located within the property (Figure 6.5).

From the exterior of the property it was evident that the ground had been artificially elevated from the natural plain located to the east. A retaining wall had been constructed along the east and trees planted to stabilise the elevation of the property.

No Aboriginal objects or areas of PAD were identified within SU1.

Figure 6.1: View of west of Samsung Electronics Australia (Photographed by R. Taddeucci, 24 September 2018)

Figure 6.2: View east of the artificial slope of the property down to Murray Rose Avenue (Photographed by R. Taddeucci, 24 September 2018)





Figure 6.3: View east of the bitumen footpath (Photographed by R. Taddeucci, 24 September by R. Taddeucci, 24 September 2018) 2018)



Figure 6.4: Ground exposure(Photographed



#### Figure 6.5: Fallen telephone pole (Photographed by R. Taddeucci, 24 September 2018)



#### Figure 6.6: View west of garden bed (Photographed by R. Taddeucci, 24 September 2018)



#### 6.2 Survey Unit 2

Survey Unit 2 is the mapped extent of 2 Murray Rose Avenue. The area is located south of Murray Rose Avenue and is boarded to the east by Bennelong Parkway and an active construction area to the west. At the time of the site inspection the property was occupied by Landlease and a number of temporary buildings had been constructed within the property.

A large portion of the property had been covered in concrete. Due to the laying of concrete there were very few areas of exposed ground. In the south of the property, no concrete had been laid; however, dense foliage completely obscured surface visibility. Gravel had also been scattered across the study area, obscuring surface visibility (Figure 6.9).

A retaining wall had been established in the property (Figure 6.7). The east of the property was bordered by a large retaining wall, approximately 2 m high (Figure 6.13). At the southern edge of the property there was an artificial slope (Figure 6.14). The slope illustrated that the property was situated on top of fill above clay overlaying bedrock.

No Aboriginal objects or areas of PAD were identified within SU2.

Figure 6.7: Retaining wall located at the south Figure 6.8: Retaining wall located at the south of the property (facing northwest) (Photographed by R. Taddeucci, 24 September 2018)

of the property (facing west) (Photographed by R. Taddeucci, 24 September 2018)







Figure 6.9: Vegetated area at the south of the property (Photographed by R. Taddeucci, 24 September 2018)



Figure 6.11: Ground exposure (Photographed by R. Taddeucci, 24 September 2018)



Figure 6.13: View west of retaining from outside the property (Photographed by R. Taddeucci, 24 September 2018)



Figure 6.10: View north west of the Landlease car park (Photographed by R. Taddeucci, 24 September 2018)



Figure 6.12: View west from the north of the property (Photographed by R. Taddeucci, 24 September 2018)



Figure 6.14: View west of artificial slope along the south of the property (Photographed by R. Taddeucci, 24 September 2018)



# 6.3 Survey coverage

A summary of survey coverage, in accordance with the Code of Practice, is outlined in Table 6.1 and Table 6.2 below. It should be noted that because the area is entirely covered in fill, a calculation of survey coverage is not an accurate reflection of the potential for Aboriginal objects to occur unless they have been introduced with the fill.

Survey unit	Landform	Survey unit area (sq m)	Visibility (%)	Exposure (%)	Effective coverage Area (sq m)	Effective coverage (%)
1	Slope	3,931	90	20	707.58	18
2	Slope	2,546	90	5	114.57	4.5

### Table 6.1: Survey coverage summary

### Table 6.2: Landform survey coverage.

Landform	Landform Area (sq m)	Area effectively surveyed (sq m)	% of landform effectively surveyed	Number of sites
Slope	6,477	822.15	12.69	0

### Figure 6.15: Transects covered during survey



Document Path: C:\Users\GIS\Desktop\GIS\GIS\_Mapping\18177\_Olympic\_Park\MXD\Survey\_tracks.mxd

# 7.0 DISCUSSION

# 7.1 Ground disturbance

Based on previous studies in the locality, historical records and geotechnical reports, the study area has been subject to major subsurface disturbance, and therefore has low potential to contain intact archaeological resources.

Aerial photos of the study area illustrate that from at least 1943 a large building was present on SU2 and by 2002 the entire study area was used as a car park up until 2014, when Murray Rose Avenue was constructed. These previous disturbances account for the results of the geotechnical investigations, which found that the majority of the subsurface deposits had been removed and replaced with fill. The field survey identified the exposed profile of the deposit on the southern side of SU2, confirming that the subsurface deposit had been removed down to the clay layer.

Overall, based on the land use history and results of previous studies, there is low potential for archaeological remains to be present within the study area.

# 7.2 Analysis of archaeological potential

The archaeological potential of an area is determined by its landform, its location and the level of disturbance. Certain landforms, such as gentle slopes, are conducive to Aboriginal occupation while others, such as steep slopes, are not. The location of appropriate landforms in relation to natural resources, in particular their proximity to a permanent water source, increases levels of potential. Correlations between site location and proximity to a water source have been proven in previous archaeological investigations where the number of sites and their densities is highest in close proximity to a water source.

In areas where there is high level of disturbance however, the archaeological potential is lowered. It is unlikely that surface finds in these areas are in their original context and it is unlikely that subsurface archaeological deposits are intact. The archaeological potential of an area is rated high, moderate or low, based on all of the above considerations.

- High Intact archaeological material is likely to be found in this area.
- Moderate Intact archaeological material may be found in this area.
- Low It is unlikely that intact archaeological material will be found in this area.

The overall archaeological potential of the study area has been assessed as low. While the study area has been located on a slope in close proximity to a permanent waterway, previous studies and observations in the field indicate that the all potential artefact yielding deposit would have been removed by previous impacts to the area.

# 8.0 SIGNIFICANCE ASSESSMENT

# 8.1 Significance assessment criteria

An assessment of the cultural heritage significance of an item or place is required in order to form the basis of its management. The OEH (2011) provides guidelines for heritage assessment with reference to the Burra Charter (Australia ICOMOS 2013) and the Heritage Office guidelines (2001). OEH requires consideration that includes the following:

- Research potential: does the evidence suggest any potential to contribute to an understanding of the area and/or region and/or state's natural and cultural history?
- Representativeness: how much variability (outside and/or inside the subject area) exists, what is already conserved, how much connectivity is there?
- Rarity: is the subject area important in demonstrating a distinctive way of life, custom, process, land-use, function or design no longer practised? Is it in danger of being lost or of exceptional interest?
- Education potential: does the subject area contain teaching sites or sites that might have teaching potential?

It is important to note that heritage significance is a dynamic value.

# 8.2 Archaeological significance assessment

The survey did not result in the identification of any Aboriginal sites or areas of PAD. Therefore, the study area is of no archaeological significance.

Unexpected Aboriginal archaeological material may be present within the fill layer. Any Aboriginal objects retrieved from the fill would likely be assessed as holding low scientific significance due to a lack of archaeological context and integrity.

# 9.0 IMPACT ASSESSMENT

# 9.1 Proposed development

It is proposed that a 15-storey residential development, including three basement levels with a bulk excavation level of approximately 1.85 m will occur at 1 Murray Rose Avenue. A similar development is planned for 2 Murray Rose Avenue; however, the basement will only have two levels with a bulk excavation level of approximately 0.4 m.

The geotechnical investigations found that 1 Murray Rose Avenue has a fill depth of 0.9 m and 2 Murray Rose Avenue has a fill depth of 1.2 m. Aboriginal archaeological material may be present within the fill layer, redeposited from elsewhere. However, as the provenance of the fill is unknown, it is not possible to assess the potential for Aboriginal archaeological material to be present. If Aboriginal archaeological material is present within the fill, it would be of low scientific significance due to a lack of archaeological context and integrity. It was found that natural deposits were located immediately below the fill layer. However, as these natural deposits are comprised entirely of clay overlaying bedrock, it is very unlikely that the proposed works will encounter intact Aboriginal archaeological deposits.

### 9.2 Impacts to potential archaeological resources

Due to the highly disturbed nature of the ground, archaeological deposits are not likely to exist. The proposed development is unlikely to impact Aboriginal archaeological remains.

# 10.0 MANAGEMENT MEASURES

The proposal is unlikely to impact any intact archaeological remains therefore no further archaeological investigation or mitigation is required.

An unexpected finds policy would be implemented in the event of Aboriginal archaeological deposits being identified during ground works and excavation.

An unexpected finds policy would involve the following actions:

- Stop work within the affected area, protect the potential archaeological find, and inform environment staff or supervisor.
- Contact a suitable qualified archaeologist to assess the potential archaeological find.
- If Aboriginal archaeological material is identified, works in the affected area should cease, and the OEH should be informed. Further archaeological mitigation may be required prior to works recommencing.
- If human remains are found:
  - not further disturb or move these remains
  - immediately cease all work at the particular location
  - notify NSW Police
  - notify DECCW's Environment Line on 131 555 as soon as practicable and provide available details of the remains and their location
  - not recommence any work at the particular location unless authorised in writing by DECCW.

# 11.0 RECOMMENDATIONS

The following recommendations were based on consideration of:

- Statutory requirements under the National Parks and Wildlife Act 1974
- The requirements of the relevant guidelines: Guide (OEH 2011), Code of Practice (DECCW 2010a) Consultation Requirements (DECCW 2010b)
- The results of the background research and archaeological survey results
- SSD\_9403

It was found that:

• No Aboriginal archaeological site or areas of PAD are located within the study area

It is therefore recommended that:

- An Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) must be prepared in compliance with the heritage requirements of SSD\_9403
- The ACHAR would not recommend further Aboriginal archaeological investigations
- Where changes to the scope of the proposal result in impacts beyond the extent of the study area, further archaeological survey and addendum ASR reporting may be required
- An unexpected finds policy should be implemented, with the following conditions:
  - Stop work within the affected area, protect the potential archaeological find, and inform environment staff or supervisor.
  - Contact a suitable qualified archaeologist to assess the potential archaeological find.
  - If Aboriginal archaeological material is identified, works in the affected area should cease, and the OEH should be informed. Further archaeological mitigation may be required prior to works recommencing.
  - If human remains are found:
    - not further disturb or move these remains
    - immediately cease all work at the particular location
    - notify NSW Police
    - notify DECCW's Environment Line on 131 555 as soon as practicable and provide available details of the remains and their location
    - not recommence any work at the particular location unless authorised in writing by DECCW.

# 12.0 REFERENCES

- AMBS 2012 Newington Armament Depot & Nature Reserve, Sydney Olympic Park, Aboriginal Heritage Assessment. Report to Tanner Architects Pty Ltd.
- Arboreport<sup>™</sup> Vegetation Management Consultants 2015 *Arboricultural Impact Assessment* for Mirvac at 2 Figtree Drive, Sydney Olympic Park
- Artefact Heritage 2018a 1&2 Murray Rose, Sydney Olympic Park Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report. Report to Austino Propery Group.
- Artefact Heritage 2018b 1&2 Murray Rose, Sydney Olympic Park Heritage Impact Statement. Report to Austino Propery Group.
- Artefact Heritage 2018c 1&2 Murray Rose, Sydney Olympic Park Historical Archaeological Assessment. Report to Austino Propery Group.
- Attenbrow, V. 2010 Sydney's Aboriginal Past: Investigating the archaeological and historical records. UNSW Press.
- Brayshaw, H 1997 Olympic Village Site, Newington, Homebush Bay, Aboriginal Archaeology. Report to MIRVAC Village Consortium
- Collins, D (1798). An Account of the English Colony of New South Wales. (1975) Edited by. B. H. Fletcher and A. W. Reed. Terry Hills, NSW, Royal Australian Historical Society. Volume 1.
- Dominic Steele & Martin Carney Archaeological Management & Consulting Group Pty 1997 Aboriginal Heritage, Australia Avenue, Fig Tree Circuit, 2000 Olympic Site, Homebush, N.S.W. Report to The Olympic Co-Ordination Authority
- Fox & Associates 1986 Homebush Bay Conservation Study. Report to the Department of Environment and Planning.
- GML 1990 State Abattoir, Homebush: A history and record of the buildings structures and technology. Report to NSW Property Services Group.
- Irish, P (2004) When is a scar a scar? Evaluating scarred and marked trees at Sydney Olympic Park. Australian Archaeology 59: 59-61.
- JK Geotechnics 2017a Geotechnical investigation for proposed residential development at 1 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park, NSW. Report to Austino Property Group.
- JK Geotechnics 2017b Geotechnical investigation for proposed residential development at 2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park, NSW. Report to Austino Property Group.
- Kohen, J.L. (1986). An Archaeological Study of Aboriginal Sites Within the City of Blacktown, Blacktown City Council.
- Matthews, R.H. and Everitt, M.M. (1900). "The organisation, language and initiation ceremonies of the Aborigines of the south-east coast of N.S. Wales." Journal and Proceedings of the Royal Society of NSW 34: 262-281.
- Rich, E. 1985 Archaeological Sites In Parramatta River Heritage Study. Report to NSW Department of Environment and Planning.

- Tench, Watkin (1789). Sydney's First Four Years: Being a reprint of 'A narrative of the expedition to Botany Bay' and 'A complete account of the Settlement at Port Jackson', Angus & Robertson.
- Urbis 2015 *Historic and Aboriginal Archaeological Assessment 2 Figtree Drive, Sydney Olympic Park.* Report to Mirvac.

#### Guides

- Department of Environment, Climate Change and Water [now OEH] 2010a. Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigation of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales.
- Department of Environment, Climate Change and Water [now OEH] 2010b. Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents.
- Department of Environment, Climate Change and Water [now OEH] 2010c. Due Diligence Code of Practice for the Protection of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales
- Office of Environment and Heritage 2011 *Guide to Investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal cultural heritage in NSW: Part 6 National Parks and Wildlife Act 1974.*

#### Online

ESpade, Blacktown Soil Landscape,

http://www.environment.nsw.gov.au/Salisapp/resources/spade/reports/bty.pdf\_, accessed 29 January 2018



#### Artefact Heritage ABN 73 144 973 526 Level 4, Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009 Australia +61 2 9518 8411 office@artefact.net.au www.artefact.net.au

# APPENDIX 4 – AHIMS SEARCH DATA



# AHIMS Web Services (AWS)

Extensive search - Site list report

Client Service ID : 370866

<u>SiteID</u>	SiteName	Datum	<u>Zone</u>	Easting	<u>Northing</u>	<u>Context</u>	<u>Site Status</u>	<b>SiteFeatures</b>	<u>SiteTypes</u>	<u>Reports</u>
45-6-1894	Rivendell;	AGD	56	323800	6254800	Open site	Valid	Art (Pigment or Engraved) : -	Rock Engraving	
	<u>Contact</u>	<b>Recorders</b>	Rive	ndell School S	Students			Permits		
45-6-2682	Wanngal Woodland Axe-Marked Tree	AGD	56	321152	6254826	Open site	Not a Site	Modified Tree (Carved or Scarred) : -		
	Contact	<b>Recorders</b>	Paul	Irish Consult	ant Archaeolo	gist		Permits		
45-6-2683	Wanngal Woodland IF1	AGD	56	321154	6254823	Open site	Valid	Potential Archaeological Deposit (PAD) : -		102142,10219 6
	<u>Contact</u>	<b>Recorders</b>	Paul	Irish Consult	ant Archaeolo	gist		<u>Permits</u>		
45-6-2684	Wanngal Woodland IF2	AGD	56	321386	6255227	Open site	Valid	Potential Archaeological Deposit (PAD) : -		102142,10219 6
	<u>Contact</u>	<b><u>Recorders</u></b>	Paul	Irish Consult	ant Archaeolo	gist		Permits		
45-6-2685	Wanngal Woodland IF3	AGD	56	321319	6255192	Open site	Valid	Potential Archaeological Deposit (PAD) : -		102142,10219 6
	<u>Contact</u>	<b>Recorders</b>	Paul	Irish Consult	ant Archaeolo	gist		Permits		
45-6-2785	Wanngal Woodland PAD2	GDA	56	321185	6254699	Open site	Valid	Potential Archaeological Deposit (PAD) : 1		102196
	Contact T Russell	<b><u>Recorders</u></b>	Mr.P	aul Irish				Permits		
45-6-2786	Wanngal Woodland PAD1	GDA	56	320840	6254603	Open site	Valid	Potential Archaeological Deposit (PAD) : 1		102196
	Contact T Russell	<u>Recorders</u>	Mr.P	aul Irish				Permits		

Report generated by AHIMS Web Service on 14/09/2018 for Ryan Taddeucci for the following area at Datum :GDA, Zone : 56, Eastings : 319938 - 323938, Northings : 6251485 - 6255485 with a Buffer of 0 meters. Additional Info : ACHAR. Number of Aboriginal sites and Aboriginal objects found is 7 This information is not guaranteed to be free from error omission. Office of Environment and Heritage (NSW) and its employees disclaim liability for any act done or omission made on the information and consequences of such

# APPENDIX 5 – SECRETARY'S ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT REQUIREMENTS SSD\_9403



Our ref: SSD 9403

Austino Property Group C/- Ms Katie Weaver – Urbis Planning Consultant (Project Planner) 603/377 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000

Dear Ms Weaver

### SEARs for 1 & 2 Murray Rose Avenue Residential Development (SSD 9403) – Sydney Olympic Park

Please find attached a copy of the Secretary's environmental assessment requirements (SEARs) for the preparation of an Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) for the 1 & 2 Murray Rose Avenue Residential Development, Sydney Olympic Park. These requirements have been prepared in consultation with relevant public authorities based on the information you have provided to date. I have also attached a copy of the public authorities' comments for your information. Please note that the Secretary may modify these requirements at any time.

If you do not submit a development application (DA) and EIS for the development within 2 years, you must consult further with the Secretary in relation to the preparation of the EIS.

Prior to exhibiting the EIS, the Department of Planning and Environment (the Department) will review the document in consultation with relevant authorities to determine if it addresses the requirements in Schedule 2 of the *Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulation 2000*. You will be required to submit an amended EIS if it does not adequately address the requirements.

The Department wishes to emphasise the importance of effective and genuine community consultation where a comprehensive, detailed and genuine community consultation engagement process must be undertaken during the preparation of the EIS. This process must ensure that the community is provided with a good understanding of what is proposed, description of any potential impacts and they are actively engaged in issues of concern to them.

Please contact the Department at least two weeks before you propose to submit your DA and EIS. This will enable the Department to:

- confirm the applicable fee (see Division 1AA, Part 15 of the *Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulation 2000*); and
- determine the number of copies (hard-copy and USB) of the DA and EIS that will be required for reviewing purposes.

If your development is likely to have a significant impact on matters of National Environmental Significance, it will require an approval under the Commonwealth *Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999* (EPBC Act). This approval would be in addition to any approvals required under NSW legislation and it is your responsibility to contact the Commonwealth Department of the Environment to determine if an approval under the EPBC Act is required (http://www.environment.gov.au or 6274 1111).

If you have any questions, please contact Tim Green who can be contacted on (02) 8275 1065 or via email at <u>tim.green@planning.nsw.gov.au</u>

Yours sincerely 6/7/18.

Ben Lusher Director Key Sites Assessments as delegate of the Secretary

# Secretary's Environmental Assessment Requirements

# Section 4.12(8) of the *Environmental Planning and Assessment Act* 1979 Schedule 2 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulation 2000

Application Number	SSD 9403
Proposal Name	1 and 2 Murray Rose Avenue Residential Development
Location	1 and 2 Murray Rose Avenue, Sydney Olympic Park. Lot 1 DP 1185060, Lot 2 DP 1185060
Applicant	Austino Property Group
Date of Issue	6 July 2018
General Requirements	The Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) must meet the minimum form and content requirements in clauses 6 and 7 of Schedule 2 the Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulation 2000.
	Notwithstanding the key issues specified below, the EIS must include an environmental risk assessment to identify the potential environmental impacts associated with the development.
	<ul> <li>Where relevant, the assessment of the key issues below, and any other significant issues identified in the risk assessment, must include:</li> <li>adequate baseline data;</li> </ul>
	consideration of potential cumulative impacts due to other development     in the vicinity; and
	<ul> <li>measures to avoid, minimise and if necessary, offset the predicted impacts, including detailed contingency plans for managing any significant risks to the environment.</li> </ul>
	The EIS must be accompanied by a report from a qualified quantity surveyo providing:
	<ul> <li>a detailed calculation of the capital investment value (CIV) (as defined in clause 3 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulation 2000 of the proposal, including details of all assumptions and components from which the CIV calculation is derived;</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>an estimate of the jobs that will be created by the future development during the construction and operational phases of the development; and</li> <li>artification that the information gravitle discovered at the operational phases of the development.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>certification that the information provided is accurate at the date of preparation.</li> </ul>
Key issues	The EIS must address the following specific matters:
	<ol> <li>Statutory and Strategic Context         The EIS shall address the relevant statutory provisions applying to the site contained in all relevant Environmental Planning Instruments (EPI's) including:         <ul> <li>State Environmental Planning Policy (State and Regional Development 2011</li> <li>State Environmental Planning Policy (State Significant Precincts) 2005</li> <li>State Environmental Planning Policy (Infrastructure) 2007</li> <li>Sydney Regional Environmental Plan (Sydney Harbour Catchment) 2008</li> <li>State Environmental 65 Design Quality of Residential Flat Development</li> <li>State Environmental Planning Policy No 55 – Remediation of Land</li> <li>State Environmental Planning Policy (Building Sustainability Index BASIX) 2004</li> </ul> </li> </ol>

	Draft Environment SEPP
	<i>Permissibility</i> Detail the nature and extent of any prohibitions that apply to the development.
	Development Standards Identify compliance with the development standards applying to the site and justification for any variations proposed.
	<ul> <li>The EIS shall address the relevant planning provisions, goals and strategic planning objectives in the following:</li> <li>NSW State Priorities</li> <li>The Greater Sydney Region Plan 2018</li> <li>Central City District Plan 2018</li> <li>Future Transport Strategy 2056 and supporting plans</li> <li>NSW State Infrastructure Strategy 2018-2038</li> <li>Better Placed – an integrated design policy for the built environment of NSW 2017</li> <li>Sydney's Cycling; Walking; Light Rail and Rail Future Guidelines</li> <li>Sydney Olympic Park Masterplan 2030</li> <li>Sydney Olympic Park Masterplan 2030 (2018 Masterplan Review) and relevant SOPA guidelines</li> <li>Sydney Olympic Park Major Event Impact Assessment Guidelines</li> <li>Sydney Olympic Park Urban Elements Design Manual</li> <li>Sydney Olympic Park Stormwater and Water Sensitive Urban Design Policy 2016</li> <li>Development near Rail Corridors and Busy Roads – Interim Guideline 2008</li> <li>Interim Construction Noise Guideline 2009</li> <li>Crime Prevention Through Environmental Design Principles</li> <li>Managing Land Contamination: Planning Guidelines – SEPP 55 Remediation of Land.</li> <li>SEPP 65 Apartment Design Guide</li> <li>Sydney Olympic Park Authority's Design Excellence Policy</li> <li>Guide to Traffic Generating Developments (Roads and Maritime Services)</li> <li>Code of Practice for Archaeological Investigations of Aboriginal Objects in NSW (OEH)</li> <li>Guide to investigating, assessing and reporting on Aboriginal Cultural Heritage in NSW 2011 (DECCW)</li> <li>Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Consultation Requirements for Proponents 2010 (DECCW).</li> <li><i>Guide to Traffic Generating Developments (Roads and Maritime</i> Service)</li> </ul>
	2. Design Excellence
	The EIS shall detail the design excellence strategy, including the design competition process in accordance with the Sydney Olympic Park Authority (SOPA) design excellence policy, prepared in consultation with SOPA, and demonstrate how the design responds to the comments and recommendations made by the competition jury and SOPA Design Review Panel.
8	<b>3. Built Form and Urban Design</b> The EIS shall:

<ul> <li>address the height, bulk and scale of the proposed development within the context of the locality, with specific consideration of the overall site layout, open spaces, interface with the public domain, facades, massing, setbacks, building articulation, solar access and overshadowing, materials, colours, signage or signage envelopes</li> <li>demonstrate how the development of the tower design is informed by a detailed study of wind impacts</li> <li>detail how services, including but not limited to, waste management, loading zones, and mechanical plant are integrated into the design of the development to minimise impacts on the public domain and pedestrian through-site links</li> <li>address the relationship of the built form with the existing rail tunnel</li> <li>non-compliance of the proposal with the maximum building height and FSR development standards for the site</li> <li>consult with Aboriginal people and document in accordance with the Aboriginal cultural heritage consultation requirements for proponents 2010</li> </ul>
(DECCW).
4. Public Domain and Landscaping The EIS shall:
<ul> <li>identify proposed open space, public domain, the new street and pedestrian linkages within the site and at the interface with adjoining sites</li> <li>provide landscaping and public domain details, including details of the</li> </ul>
<ul> <li>interface between the proposed development and adjoining sites</li> <li>demonstrate how ground level uses are configured to provide safe and active street frontages and provide visual interest to the public domain</li> <li>address impacts on existing trees, both on site and within surrounding streets, including opportunities to retain and integrate existing trees into the proposed landscaping design</li> </ul>
<ul> <li>identify and integrate key pedestrian and cycle links through the site and between the site and the surrounding street network.</li> <li>identify the through-site link required under Master Plan 2030, including details of gradients and level changes, landscaping details and arrangements to maintain uninterrupted public access</li> <li>include a 'Perimeter Security Strategy', which assesses the need and level of any physical security measures that are required to be integrated into the landscape and ground plane design. Any measures should be commensurate with the perceived level of threat for the future uses and</li> </ul>
occupants.
5. Environmental Amenity The EIS shall:
<ul> <li>detail the impacts of the development on view loss, sunlight/overshadowing, wind impacts, reflectivity, visual and acoustic privacy to achieve a high level of environmental amenity</li> <li>demonstrate any potential overshadowing onto the adjoining properties with shadow diagrams</li> <li>detail any external lighting or illumination and consider the impacts of this lighting/illumination to surrounding properties and the public domain.</li> </ul>
6. Ecologically Sustainable Development (ESD) The EIS shall:
<ul> <li>detail how ESD principles (as defined in clause 7(4) of Schedule 2 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulation 2000) will be incorporated in the design, construction and ongoing operation phases of the development</li> </ul>
<ul> <li>demonstrate how the proposed development responds to sustainable building principles and best practice, and improves environmental</li> </ul>

performance through energy efficient design, technology and renewable energy

- include a description of the measures that would be implemented to minimise consumption of resources, water and energy.
- demonstrate how the proposal will achieve the Green Star requirements in Section 4.2 of the Sydney Olympic Park Master Plan 2030 (2018 Review).

#### 7. Contamination

The EIS shall assess and quantify any soil and groundwater contamination and demonstrate that the site is suitable for the proposed use in accordance with SEPP 55.

#### 8. Noise, odour and Vibration

The EIS shall:

- assess the impacts on the proposed development from surrounding land uses, including noise from the Olympic Park Rail Line and Sydney Olympic Park events
- identify the main noise and vibration generating sources and activities at all stages of construction, and any noise sources during operation, outlining measures to minimise and mitigate potential noise and vibration impacts on surrounding occupiers of land
- include an assessment of odour impacts on the proposal associated with industrial and commercial activities in the vicinity including the Homebush Liquid Waste Treatment Plant.

#### 9. Transport and Accessibility (Operation and Construction)

The EIS shall include a Traffic and Transport Impact Assessment that includes the following:

- accurate details of the current daily and peak hour vehicle, public transport, pedestrian and bicycle movements and existing traffic and transport facilities provided on the road network located adjacent to the proposed development
- traffic modelling and analysis of the future daily and peak hour vehicle, public transport, pedestrian and bicycle movements likely to be generated by the proposed development and assessment of the impacts on the local road network, including key intersection capacity and any potential need for upgrading or road works (if required)
- assessment of the operation of existing and future transport networks including the rail, ferry and bus networks and their ability to accommodate the forecast number of trips to and from the development
- assessment of the cumulative impacts of traffic volumes from the proposal together with existing and approved developments in the area, and proposed measures to mitigate any associated impacts on public transport, pedestrian, cycle and traffic networks
- assessment of the adequacy of the proposal to meet the likely increase in pedestrian and cycle demands
- measures, to promote travel choices for residents, employees and visitors, that support the achievement of State Plan targets, such as implementing a location-specific sustainable travel plan and provision of end of trip facilities
- details of the proposed access, bicycle and car parking provision and end of trip facilities associated with the proposed development including compliance with the relevant parking codes and Australian Standards and having regard to the Sydney Olympic Park Masterplan 2030
- consideration of the proposed Parramatta Light Rail Stage 2 alignment along Australia Avenue and Dawn Frazer Avenue, including proposed arrangements and development integration

- details of any access requirements for the hotel and serviced apartment components of the proposal, including pick up/drop off areas
- details of servicing vehicle movements and site access arrangements including vehicle types and likely arrival and departure times of service vehicles, loading dock provision and access for the proposed range of uses within buildings.

### **10. Construction Impacts**

The EIS shall include a draft construction management plan which includes:

- details of access arrangements for workers to/from the site, emergency vehicles and service vehicles
- potential impacts of the construction on surrounding areas including adjoining rail corridor, development and the public domain with respect to noise and vibration, air quality and odour impacts, dust and particle emissions, water quality, storm water runoff, groundwater seepage, soil pollution and construction waste
- with respect to excavation and/or remediation provide details of the annual volume of materials to be extracted, processed or stored on site during construction and how the extracted material will be disposed of or reused
- potential construction noise and vibration impacts on nearby wildlife habitats in Bennelong Pond.

### 11. Major Events

The EIS shall:

- adequately address the impact of major events in the precinct as they relate to the proposed development within the Town Centre (SOP Major Event Impact Assessment Guidelines)
- demonstrate that the proposed development and future operation can provide acceptable amenity in major event mode, including any management or mitigation measure to address potential impacts.

### 12. Utilities

The EIS shall:

- address the existing capacity and future requirements of the development for the provision of utilities including staging of infrastructure in consultation with relevant agencies
- detail impacts to any existing infrastructure assets of utility stakeholders from demolition/construction and any proposed mitigation/protection measures.

### 13. Staging

The EIS shall provide details regarding the staging of the proposed development (if proposed).

#### 14. Public Benefit and Contributions

The EIS shall provide confirmation of the public benefit to be derived from the proposal including any Contributions Plan and/or details of any Voluntary Planning Agreement.

### 15. Water and Soil Quality

The EIS shall:

- map acid sulphate soils, rivers, streams, wetlands, estuaries, groundwater, groundwater dependent ecosystems and proposed intake and discharge locations
- identify if the proposal involves any discharges to waters or any dewatering requirements from the site, including during construction, and any associated impacts on water quality, including an assessment against relevant guidelines and the Water Quality Objectives (as endorsed by the NSW Government), licensing requirements under the Water Act 1912 and

	<ul> <li>Protection of the Environment Operations Act 1997</li> <li>assess the impact on hydrology and include an integrated water management strategy that considers water, wastewater and stormwater. The strategy must include alternative water supply, proposed end uses of potable and non-potable water, outline opportunities for the use of integrated water cycle management practices and principles, and demonstrate water sensitive urban design (WSUD) and any water conservation measures.</li> <li><b>16. Drainage and Flooding</b> The EIS shall: <ul> <li>assess any flood risk on site and consider any relevant provisions of the NSW Floodplain Development Manual (2005), including the potential effects of climate change, sea level rise, and increase in rainfall intensity</li> <li>detail drainage associated with the proposal, including stormwater, and drainage infrastructure.</li> </ul></li></ul>
	17. Servicing and Waste
	<ul> <li>The EIS shall:</li> <li>identify, quantify and classify the likely waste streams to be generated during construction and operation of the development and describe the measures to be implemented to manage, reuse, recycle and safely dispose of this waste</li> <li>identify appropriate servicing arrangements (including but not limited to, waste streams the dispose of the servicing arrangements (including but not limited to, waste streams the dispose of the servicing arrangements (including but not limited to, waste servicing arrangements (including but not limited to, but here it is a servicing arrangement because but here it is a servicing arrangement because but not limited to, waste servicing arrangements (including but not limited to, but here it is a servicing arrangement because because because but here it is a servicing arrangement because be</li></ul>
	waste management, loading zones and mechanical plant) for the site. <b>18. Heritage (Including Aboriginal Heritage)</b>
	<ul> <li>The EIS shall:</li> <li>include a Heritage Impact Statement (HIS), prepared by a suitably qualified Heritage Consultant identifying any state and local heritage items and conservation areas within the site and vicinity, documenting any impacts and proposed mitigation measures</li> <li>include a Historical Archaeological Assessment (HAA), prepared by a suitably qualified Historical Archaeologist identifying any relics present within the site or vicinity, documenting any impacts and proposed mitigation strategies and where appropriate, a Research Design and excavation methodology to guide any proposed excavations</li> <li>include an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Assessment Report (ACHAR) identifying any cultural heritage values, impacts and mitigation measures.</li> </ul>
	<b>19. Biodiversity</b> The EIS shall assess biodiversity impacts related to the proposed development in accordance with Section 7.9 of the Biodiversity Conservation Act 2016.
	<ul> <li>20. Ecology and Impact on Adjoining Wetlands The EIS shall: <ul> <li>assess the impact of overshadowing on the significant vegetation, including Grey Mangroves and aquatic Zannichellia palustris, in Bennelong Pond, and how these impacts will be minimised</li> <li>assess the impact of light spill from the development on significant wildlife habitats in Bennelong Pond, and how these impacts will be minimised.</li> </ul></li></ul>
Plans and Documents	The EIS must include all relevant plans, architectural drawings, diagrams and relevant documentation required under Schedule 1 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulation 2000. Provide these as part of the EIS rather than as separate documents.
	<ul> <li>In addition, the EIS must include the following:</li> <li>site survey plan, showing existing levels, location and height of existing</li> </ul>

Further consultation after 2 years	<ul> <li>The EIS must describe the consultation process and the issues raised, and identify where the design of the development has been amended in response to these issues. Where amendments have not been made to address an issue, a short explanation should be provided.</li> <li>If you do not lodge a development application and EIS for the development within 2 years of the issue date of these SEARs, you must consult further with the Secretary in relation to the preparation of the EIS.</li> </ul>
Consultation	During the preparation of the EIS, you must consult with the relevant local State or Commonwealth Government authorities, service providers community groups and affected landowners. In particular you must consult with the Sydney Olympic Park Authority including the Sydney Olympic Park Authority Design Review Panel and the Sydney Olympic Park Access Advisory Committee, the Environmen Protection Authority and the NSW Government Architect, NSW Governmen Transport Agencies including Transport for NSW, Sydney Trains, Roads and Maritime Services and Sydney Metro.
	and adjacent structures/buildings and relationship to the rail corridor site analysis plan architectural drawings urban design report design competition report heritage impact statement historical archaeological assessment Aboriginal cultural heritage report visual impact assessment view analysis/photomontages schedule of materials and finishes public domain and landscape plan public domain interface plan prepared in accordance with the requirements set out in the Sydney Olympic Park Urban Elements Design Manual air quality assessment noise impact assessment reflectivity report access impact statement ESD report Building Code of Australia report consultation summary report traffic and transport impact assessment preliminary construction management plan, inclusive of a Construction Traffic Management Plan wayfinding signage strategy sustainable travel plan stormwater concept plan and MUSIC modelling for stormwater sediment and erosion control plan geotechnical and structural report contamination assessment, including for stormwater sediment and erosion control plan geotechnical and structural report contamination assessment, including remedial action plan and site audit statement (if required) integrated water management plan. evidence of registration with the Green Building Council of Australia for the relevant Green Star Design and As Built rating.



Artefact Heritage ABN 73 144 973 526 Level 4, Building B 35 Saunders Street Pyrmont NSW 2009 Australia +61 2 9518 8411 office@artefact.net.au www.artefact.net.au